-

\_

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Thursday, 12th December, 2024

10.00 am

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall,
Maidstone

~







Council

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Thursday, 12th December, 2024, at 10.00 am Ask for: Ruth Emberley
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Telephone: 03000 410690
Hall, Maidstone

Membership (13)

Conservative (8) Conservative (7) Mrs R Binks (Chairman), Mr T Bond,
Mr N J D Chard, Mr P C Cooper,
Mr O Richardson, Mr S Webb and

Vacancy
Independent (1) Mr M Whiting
Labour (1) Mr A Brady
Liberal Democrat (1) Mr C Passmore (Vice-Chairman)
Green and Mr M A J Hood
Independent (1)
Independent Members Ms C Black and Dr D A Horne

(2)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Introduction/Webcasting

2. Apologies and Substitutes

3. Declarations of Interest in items on the agenda for this meeting

4. Minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2024 (Pages 1 - 16)



© © N o O

10.
11.

12.

13.

Verbal update on Committee Business (Pages 17 - 22)

External Audit - Audit Findings for Kent County Council (Pages 23 - 82)

Kent County Council Statement of Accounts (Pages 83 - 278)

External Audit - Audit Findings for the Kent Pensions Fund (Pages 279 - 314)
External Audit - Annual Auditors Report

Treasury Management Mid-Year Update (Pages 315 - 336)

Council's Governance in Relation to Wholly Owned Companies
To Follow

Other items which the Chairman decides are urgent

Exclusion of the Press and Public

RESOLVED that under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 the press
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the grounds
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs
1, 2, 3 and 4 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

EXEMPT ITEMS

Legal Update
To Follow

Benjamin Watts
General Counsel
03000 416814

Wednesday, 4 December 2024

Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant
report.



Agenda Item 4

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee held in the
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 12
November 2024.

PRESENT: Mrs R Binks (Chairman), Ms C Black, Mr A Brady, Mr N J D Chard,
Dr D Horne, Mr M A J Hood, Mr C Passmore (Vice-Chairman), Mr O Richardson
and Mr S Webb

ALSO PRESENT: Mr D Watkins, Mr H Rayner, Mr P Oakford

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr J Idle (Head of Internal Audit), Mr J Flannery (Counter
Fraud Manager), Mr M Scrivener (Head of Risk and Delivery Assurance), Mr M
Rolfe (Head of Community Protection) Miss K Reynolds (Governance Advisor),
Mr J Betts (Interim Corporate Director Finance), Mr T Carty (Head of Facilities),
Mr R Smith (Corporate Director for Adult Social Care), Ms P Parker (Head of
portfolio Management), Ms S Hammond (Corporate Director, Children, Young
People and Education, Mrs C Maynard (Head of Commercial and Procurement
Division), Ms K Smith (Commercial Policy and Governance Officer), Mr P Dossett
(Grant Thornton), Mr P Williams (Grant Thornton), Ms E Summers (Auditor), Ms
K Herbert (Auditor), Ms D Chisman (Audit Manager), Ms M Stewart (Principal
Auditor), Mr R Benjamin (Principal Auditor), Ms H Savage (Democratic Services
Officer) Miss R Emberley (Democratic Services Officer).

VIRTUAL ATTENDANCE: Mr B Watts (General Council), Mr D Jeffrey, Mr R
Smith (Principal Auditor), Miss K Babb (Executive Officer to Rebecca Spore)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

240. Apologies and Substitutes
(Item 2)

Apologies for absence had been received from Mr M Whiting, Mr P Cooper and Mr T
Bond.

241. Declarations of Interest in items on the agenda for this meeting
(ltem 3)

In relation to ltem 11 (External Audit Progress Report and Sector Updates), Mr S Webb
declared that he was in receipt of a Kent Pension.

242. Minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2024
(Item 4)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2024 were a correct
record and that a paper copy be signed by the Chairman.

Page 1



243. Verbal Update on Committee Business
(Item 5)

1. The verbal update was delivered by the Governance Advisor, Ms Katy Reynolds.
2. The key points from the update included:

a) It was confirmed that the verbal update would be a standing item on the
agenda.

b) A brief introduction of the action tracker was provided. It was confirmed
the tracker would follow on from the minutes of each meeting, to allow
Members to check on the progress of requests made to relevant
officers.

c) It was confirmed that two further actions had been completed. The actions
were assigned to Mr Ben Watts and Ms Amanda Beer in relation to
further information being provided to the Committee, which had been
shared via Email and the Microsoft Teams internal site.

d) Further to a previous request, reference numbers had been assigned to
actions, although this was not included on the most recent published
items, however the Microsoft Teams site had been updated to reflect
this.

e) A dashboard had been created and would be maintained to show
Members what actions had been completed.

f) The Members thanked Miss Reynolds for all of her hard work on this item.

3. RESOLVED to note the verbal update on Committee Business.

244. Verbal Update on Corporate Risk Register
(Item 6)

1. The update was presented by the Head of Risk and Delivery Assurance, Mr
Mark Scrivener.

2. The key points from the update included:

a) It was confirmed that a formal review of the Corporate Risk Register
involving the Cabinet Members and Corporate Management Team would
take place in Autumn and then following the review, a full report of the
changes, along with a detailed register, will be presented to the
Committee for assurance in January 2025.The risk relating to unidentified
reinforced autoclave aerated concreate in schools and corporate estate
was descaled to Infrastructure divisional risk register.

b) A new risk will be added relating to the Oracle Cloud Programme. It was
confirmed that this was a large and complex programme which carried

2
Page 2



f)

significant inherent risk, in addition to reports in the public domain
concerning some implementation problems faced by other Councils. It
was confirmed by Officers that a more detailed report on the Oracle Cloud
Programme would be considered as part of the agenda setting process.

The capacity to care for, and accommodate, unaccompanied asylum
seeking children had previously been reported on during the July
Committee. At that time, it was confirmed that the risk had reduced from
the maximum rating down to a lower risk point, although still high.
Following on from recent discussion, it was suggested that the risk had
reduced even lower due to additional funding agreements being in place
as well as accommodation and some improvement in the operation of the
National Transfer Scheme.

Significant Failure to bring Forecast Budget Overspend under Control
within Budget Level Assumed remained at a maximum level. Scrutiny
Committee had considered the quarter 1 Revenue and Capital Budget
Monitoring Report in a recent meeting.

The introduction of the EU’s Entry Exit System (EES) had been delayed
with uncertainty around the future implementation date.

An inspection took place by the Care Quality Commission on the 30
September 2024 and the report was yet to be received, although it was
suggested that the risk be removed in its current form and consideration
be given to how the Council adjusted to being a regulated service and any
risks associated with that.

Two risks were brought together around SEND (financial and practice
improvement) although a discussion would take place with Corporate
Board as to whether these two elements should be separated out into two
risks.

The Chair suggested that Members receive a briefing on one or two of the
risk areas highlighted during the item. The Chair would discuss this further
with the Head of Risk and Delivery Assurance.

3. RESOLVED to note the progress update on the Corporate Risk Register.

245. Annual Governance Statement

(Iltem 7)

1. The item was introduced by the General Counsel, Mr Ben Watts and included a

PowerPoint presentation, which was presented by Governance Advisor, Ms
Katy Reynolds.

2. The PowerPoint presentation can be found here: GA AGS Update - 12 November

2024.pdf

3. In answer to question and comments from the Members, it was said that:

a) The Annual Government Statement is a document which supports the

continuous improvement of governance within the Council. The final
draft of the document, to be considered at the 12 December 2024

3
Page 3



meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee, would include a
more digestible ‘Executive Summary’ section. There was ongoing
work to ensure that the Statement was presented in a way in which
the Committee could more easily compare the document to prior
years’ Statements.

b) There would be noticeable improvements as a result of completing some
of the actions contained in the Annual Governance Statement and
whilst some of the impacts could be measured and quantified, it was
not possible to do this for some actions.

4. Inreply to a direct question from a Member, Mr Dossett answered that the
principles in which the Council put together the Annual Governance
Statement, were sound and encouraged a willingness to reflect on progress
and changing direction, where necessary. He confirmed that more in-depth
comments would be made at the next Governance and Audit Committee
meeting, when the final report would be submitted.

5. RESOLVED to note the Annual Governance Statement.

246. Internal Audit Progress Report
(Item 8)

1. The report was introduced by the Head of Internal Audit, Mr Jonathan Idle.
2. In answer to questions and comments from Members, it was said that:

a) External work was undertaken for two main reasons: first to bring in extra
income to the Council as reference in the Governance report at the
July Governance and Audit Committee meeting and second it is an
important part of retaining good quality staff by providing
developmental opportunities.

b) In relation to management actions following Internal Audit reports the
information was shared during the September Committee meeting by
the Chief Executive. The implementation levels were previously
highlighted in the July Committee meeting and since then input
towards assisting Directorates and monitoring had increased.
Ongoing monitoring continued to take place and the next full report
would be in January 2025.

c) Entry and Exit System report was in draft form and would be updated and
brought to the Committee now that final discussions had taken place.

d) In relation to the issue surrounding Internal Audit (Counter Fraud
separate) capacity and workload, at present no business case had
been put forward to support the employment of new staff

3. In relation to the Direct Payments audit report, Mr Richard Smith (Corporate
Director of Adult Social Care and Health) confirmed that he, Mr Idle and Mr
Albiston (Director of Adult Social Care and Health) agreed that the report was
accurate and provided a fair and balance response to the audit. In relation to

Page 4



the issue surrounding staffing, he confirmed that the staffing level present in
his teams were under resourced.

4. Mr Smith commented that direct payments provided a better outcome for people
by allowing them a greater level of control and this reflected in a reduced
number of safeguarding responsibilities.

5. Ms Paula Parker (Head of Portfolio Management) provided a further update of
actions since the audit; she commented that work had started on updating the
Direct Payments policy, with a view to coproduce it alongside with those
people who use and benefit from it. Part of this would include obtaining
feedback from the individuals who were in receipt of the direct payments.

6. Ms Parker acknowledged the pressures within the Adult Social Care team’s
staffing and confirmed that the department was about to mobilise a new
contract for the Kent Card and resources around supporting the work for this,
would need to be managed. She confirmed that 94% of reviews conducted by
her team were currently up to date.

7. The Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Public Health confirmed that
Direct Payments were a regular item in the Directorate meetings. The policy
on direct payments and accompanying forms (which potential users are
required to complete) are complex and additional thinking was required to
make a step change. He confirmed that considerable time had been spent on
this.

8. The Interim Corporate Director for Finance replied to an earlier suggestion made
by a Member, that the implementation of recommendations should be a
standing item; he commented that monthly meetings took place and that the
Internal Audit Team look comprehensively at how a recommendation had
been implemented. By way of a compromise, it was suggested that a report
could be made available to the Committee every 6 months as a way forward.

9. Inreply to a Member's comment, Mr Smith stated that financial constraints and
the operational environment required the directorate to be transformational in
delivering their work and whilst he acknowledged the target was ambitious,
Kent remained above the national average. Trends indicated that direct
payment funds are decreasing and so the emphasis was on preventative
work, rather than working with people at the point of crisis. Direct payments
were considered in a wider context, often along some colleagues in other
directorates.

10. In reply to a Member’'s comment, Mr Smith commented that the service would be
looking to maximise the use of Al (Artificial Intelligence) where appropriate,
but this would be fine balance as previous feedback indicated that service
users preferred face to face engagement.

11. In response to a question by a Member, Ms Melisa Stewart (Principal Auditor)
commented that the sample size varied, depending on the grant requirement.
It also depended on the sampling methodology used.

12. In answer to a Member’s question, Mr Idle stated that it was dependent on the
size of grant and requirements of relevant Government Department as to
whom signed off the recommendations. In some cases, this was the relevant
Corporate Director, in others it could be the Section 151 Officer.

5
Page 5



13. In answer to the Chair’s question regarding the Entry Exit System and the
utilisation of reserves (page 33 of the Audit report) the Interim Corporate
Director for Finance acknowledged the Council’s reserves were not at a level
they wanted, however, it also needed to be accepted that the reserves could
be utilised for reasonable reasons.

14. In reply to a Member’s question regarding the Entry Exit System, Mr Rayner
(Deputy Cabinet Member for Finance) indicated that the report was prepared
at a specific point in time and it was his understanding that the system had
been indefinitely postponed, however, as things have now moved on, the
Council needed to wait for further information regarding the intention of the
path of the Entry Exit System in the way that the strategy is implemented.

15. It was pointed out by a Member that some reports did not contain dates to
indicate whether they were the most up to date version of the document and it
would be helpful if these could be included as matter of course.

16. RESOLVED that Members noted the Internal Audit Progress report for the period
of July 2024 to November 2024.

247. Counter Fraud Progress Report
(Iltem 9)

1. The Counter Fraud Manager, Mr James Flannery, introduced the report.

2. The Interim Corporate Director for Finance commented that at present, for each
occasion fraud was identified on a grant claim, this expenditure could not be
claimed back from central government. This was currently being raised with
the highest level with the Cabinet office and the specific government
departments.

3. In answer to a question raised by a Member, the Counter Fraud Manager stated
that in the department’s communications with management, they sought to
obtain assurance that they conducted relevant checks to identify any further
similar case in order to look for lessons learned.

4. Mr Brady requested that his thanks to the Counter Fraud Department be
recorded.

5. Inresponse to a Member’'s comment, the Counter Fraud Manager clarified that
the referrals from districts were primarily in relation to the misuse of Blue
Badge referrals and the information that the Committee was presented with in
relation to the Kent Intelligence Network, is not comprehensive enough to
accurately reflect the level of referrals by district.

6. The Deputy Cabinet Member for Finance raised the Committee’s awareness of
an organisation called CIFAS (Credit Industry Fraud Advisory Service) and
highlighted their ability to report mortality figures. He asked for the Counter
Fraud Manager’s views on the Council becoming a member.

7. It was commented that although the Council was not a member of CIFAS, it did
not stop the communication the Council had with them via the Fighting Fraud
and Corruption Locally network. Mr James Flannery explained that the

6
Page 6



department attended joint meetings with CIFAS in order to understand their
impact on the local authority. The Tell Us Once service run by the DWP
(Department of Work and Pensions) is fed into local authorities and part of
this included relaying mortality data. The National Fraud Initiative hub which
also provided a mortality screening tool and the Kent Intelligence Network
were looking at a subscription.

8. RESOLVED that Members noted the Counter Fraud Progress Report for

2024/2025 and reported irregularities form April 2024 to 30 September 2024.

RESOLVED that Members noted the progress of the Counter Fraud Action Plan
for 2024/2025.

248. Covert Enforcement Techniques
(Item 10)

1.

2.

The report was introduced by the Head of Community Protection, Mr Mark Rolfe.

The Interim Head of Community Protection drew the Members’ attention to the
fact that the use of Covert Techniques for 2023/2024 focused on
telecommunications data and not on the use of covert surveillance or covert
human intelligence sources. The use of these techniques was determined by the
ongoing operations.

It was confirmed that officers had access to a wide range of overt techniques and
the evident lack of use of the covert range demonstrated that officers did not use
the intrusive techniques as a matter of course but considered all available
options.

The most serious cases are currently within the Crown Court processes, where
there are significant delays. Updates would be shared with the Committee when
they are available.

RESOLVED Members noted the assurance of the use of covert investigation
techniques during the period and endorsed the policy in relation to their use.

249. External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
(ltem 11)

1.

2.

The report was introduced by Mr Paul Dossett of Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Mr Paul Dossett confirmed that the external auditors were on track to bring the
Audit Findings report for Kent County Council and the Kent Pension Fund to the
12 December Governance and Audit meeting, as well as the Auditors’ Annual
report and confirmed that this should navigate the backstop.

RESOLVED Members considered and commented on the report and sector
update.

250. Other items which the Chairman decides are urgent
(ltem 12)

There were no other items.

Page 7



251. Internal Audit Progress Report - Exempt Report

(Item 13)

1. The Head of Internal Audit introduced the summaries of completed Audit reports
between for the period July 2024 to November 2024. The two exempt audits
(RB18-2024 — Loans to Schools and RB37-2025 - Facilities Management
(DRAFT)) were detailed and updates were provided to Members. It was
confirmed that advice had been taken from the General Counsel in relation to the
exemption criteria for these audits.

2. In answer to questions and comments from Members, it was said that:

a)

f)

In relation to Loans to Schools, the Deputy Cabinet Member and the Area
Education Officer highlighted that the issues raised in relation to RB18-
2024 — Loans to Schools were based on historic cases, and that progress
had been made in preventing such issues occurring in future.

The Area Education Officer commented that the prospect for improvement
had been rated as ‘Good’ due to the current systems and structures in
place.

The Corporate Director for Children, Young People and Education,
confirmed that policy had been updated and amended. The areas for
development which had been identified were historic cases but will be
revisited and an update to the Committee would be provided.

The process that schools go through when they apply for a loan was
explained to the Members for provide context.

A comprehensive suite of documents referred to by Internal Audit in the
key strengths section, and further information on current loans would be
provided to Members outside of the meeting.

In relation to Facilities Management, the Head of Facilities, addressed
questions from Members. He confirmed that a contractor must pay within
30 days and that there was scope for improvement in this area, as
highlighted in the payments monitoring section of the audit report.

The Head of Facilities explained that in terms of variable services and
value for money, every contract that receives a quote is evaluated by the
Contracts Team and the department was working towards putting in place
a more formal consistent process.

In answer to a Member’s question regarding the dip testing methodology
used, the Head of Facilities explained that every month, as the part of the
Key Performance Indicator (KPI) the Technical Service team will dip test
contractors’ compliance by checking that the contractor has carried out
the correct level of service to every service request from the helpdesk

Due to the rising rates for labour, there are increased levels of quotes

being submitted into the team for consideration and so due diligence had
increased.

Page 8



3. RESOLVED Members noted the Internal Audit Progress report for the period of
July 2024 to November 2024

252. Counter Fraud Progress Report - Exempt Report
(Item 14)

The report was presented by the Head of Internal Audit, Jonathan Idle.

1. It was explained that within the Counter Fraud Progress Report, in the main
agenda and the Annual Counter Fraud Report, presented and discussed at
the May 2024 Governance and Audit Committee, that over the last 18
months, there had been significant increases in referrals to the Counter Fraud
services of potential fraud, loss or irregularities

2. Mr Idle stated that the Counter Fraud Team could be considered ‘a victim of
its own success’, examples of this included the awareness work undertaken
in relation to Blue Badges and No Recourse to Public Funds, which have had
extensive work in raising the profile of fraud risks and consequently led to
increased referrals.

3. Members were also reminder of new legislation that there is a duty to prevent
fraud.
4, In answer to questions and comments from Members it was said that:

a) Savings were difficult to quantify, however, over the past three years
significant amounts of work had predominantly gone into civil recovery
but also the criminal element.

b) Another example provided was from investigating an invoice in relation to
a supported living provider. From a financial cost benefit point of view it
was the referrals for supported living which took significant amounts of
time to conduct but could provide the greatest financial saving for KCC.

c) Members raised the notion that if minor fraud is identified and stopped
then there was a potential that this would reduce the spread of more
significant fraud, therefore, it would be preferable to see a written cost to
benefit and if there was a significant financial saving and return to be
made from on moving the outlined investigations to other departments,
then the relevant Cabinet Member should be made aware.

d) The Deputy Cabinet Member for Finance confirmed that he would be
content to take a resolution from the Committee. It was agreed that the
Chair would draft a written memorandum to the Executive, on behalf of
Governance and Audit Committee, which would set out their concerns and
emphasise the need to support internal audit teams in a cost effective way
and maintain an appropriate level of support.

5. RESOLVED that the Chair will write a memorandum to the Executive, on
behalf of the Governance and Audit Committee, setting out the Committee’s
concerns and emphasising the need to support internal audit teams in a cost
effective way whilst maintaining an appropriate level of support.

Page 9



253. Update from the Commercial and Procurement Oversight Board
(Item 15)

1. The item was presented by the Head of Commercial and Procurement Division,
Ms Clare Maynard.

2. In answer to Members’ comments and questions it was confirmed that:

a) Tiered contracts were there to ensure the contract specifications
were correct and not over estimated.

b) It was confirmed that in the 12 months CPOB had been established
significant saving had been made.

c) It was explained that the commissions cycle looked at procurement in
flight and a separate committee looked at the gold and silver tier
projects.

d) The Contract Management Review group was responsible for
identifying the savings by targeting the contracts before the time came
for renewal.

3. RESOLVED Members considered and noted the report.

254. Legal Update
(ltem 16)

1. The update was presented to the committee by General Counsel, Mr Ben Watts.

2. Mr Watts provided the Committee with an update in relation to legal spend on
complaints and some of the issues involved. He also advised Members of a more
in-depth update following a review of prior issues advised to the Committee that
would come to the next meeting.

3. RESOLVED Members noted the legal update.

10
Page 10



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



)T abed

Governance and Audit Committee Action Tracker

Council

kent.gov.uk

Status

This was discussed
at the agenda setting
meeting for 12
November 2024. It
was agreed that
further discussions
were required to
determine what
information could be
shared and the most
appropriate way to
share the information

to Members.

G&A Meeting Minute Agenda Action Responsible
Reference Date No. Item/Subject Officer/Area
Number
GAO001 23 July 2024 | 222.6.a Internal Audit A progress report from Ben Watts
Annual Report management on the
2023-24 implementation of the
agreed management
actions would be
presented at the next
meeting.
GA002 23 July 2024 | 2234 Risk Management Committee’s tracking of Mark
Verbal Update the risk relating to the Scrivener
Council’s financial position | John Betts
would be considered as
part of the agenda setting
process.
GA003 23 July 2024 | 225.2.b External Audit Members would receive an | Ben Watts
Progress Report update on the Council’s John Betts

and Sector
Update

progress towards
addressing the

G wa)| epuaby



8T abed

recommendations outlined
in the previous year's VFM
findings.

GA004 23 July 2024 | 225.2.c External Audit The Committee’s role in Ben Watts | This will be reviewed
Progress Report relation to the Council’s Katy by December 2024.
and Sector productivity plans would be Reynolds
Update considered as part of a
review of the Committee’s
Terms of Reference.
GAO005 23 July 2024 | 222.6.b Internal Audit Following a request for Ben Watts | This has been added
Annual Report clarification regarding to the Governance
2023-24 contract management (and and Audit Committee
the Council’s governance agenda for 12
in relation to wholly owned December 2024.
companies), it was agreed
that a paper providing
further information would
be considered as part of
the agenda setting
process.
GA006 23 July 2024 | 222.6.c Internal Audit Further clarification Jonathan Idle
Annual Report regarding the Internal
2023-24 Audit process in relation to
advisory and follow-up
audits would be provided
to the Committee.
GAO007 9 October 230.7.c Internal Audit It was agreed that a final Ben Watts This item has been
2024 Management report be provided before Amanda tentatively added to




6T abed

Actions Update

the end of the current
administrative cycle
(before end of March
2025)

Beer the 20 March 2025
Governance and
Audit Committee

agenda.

GA008 9 October 230.7.b Internal Audit The latest compliance Ben Watts
2024 Management figures will be uploaded to Amanda
Actions Update the Teams site before the Beer
Governance and Audit
Committee meeting on 12
November 2024.
GA009 9 October 2304 Internal Audit Training on the audit Jonathan Idle The induction
2024 Management process and how audits programme for 2025
Actions Update are built will be developed is currently in
for Committee Members development.
as part of the revised
induction programme to be
launched in 2025.
GA010 9 October 230.7.b Internal Audit A detailed version of Ben Watts
2024 Management Appendix 1 would be Amanda
Actions Update circulated to the Beer

Committee via the Teams
site ahead of the
Governance and Audit
Committee on 12
November 2024.




0z abed

GAO011 9 October 234 Progress Update It was agreed that a final Ben Watts This item has been
2024 on the Grant report be provided before John Betts tentatively added to
Thornton Value the end of the current the 20 March 2025
For Money administrative cycle Governance and
Recommendations (before end of March Audit Committee
2025) agenda.
GA012 9 October | 231.2.m | Annual Customer | The Committee would be Ben Watts
2024 Feedback Report provided with further
2023/24 details regarding the legal
costs of complaints for
2023/24
GA013 9 October 2371.b Audit Backstop Ahead of the Committee's | John Betts
2024 and Revised Date consideration of the Cath Head
accounts, training would
be provided to the
Committee on how to
effectively read the
accounts.
GA014 12 244.2.h | Verbal Update on | The Chair suggested that Mark This will be
November Corporate Risk Members receive a Scrivener/ discussed as part of
2024 Register briefing on two of the risk Chair the agenda setting
areas highlighted during process.
the item. The Chair would
discuss this further with
the Head of Risk and
Delivery Assurance
GA015 12 251.2.e Internal Audit School Loans Information: | David Adams _




T¢ abed

November
2024

Progress Report —
Exempt Report

A comprehensive suite of
documents referred to by
Internal Audit in the key
strengths section, and
further information on
current loans would be
provided to Members
outside of the meeting.

GAO16

12
November
2024

251.2.c

Internal Audit
Progress Report —
Exempt Report

RB18-2024 — Loans to
Schools: The Corporate
Director for Children,
Young People and
Education, confirmed that
policy had been updated
and amended. The areas
for development which had
been identified were
historic cases but will be
revisited and an update to
the Committee would be
provided.

CYPE




This page is intentionally left blank



From:

To:

Agenda Item 6

Katy Reynolds, Governance Advisor

Governance and Audit Committee, 12 December 2024

Subject:  Audit Findings Report for Kent County Council

Status: Unrestricted

Summary: The Audit Findings Report for Kent County Council sets out the opinion of

the External Auditor on the Council’s financial statements. The
Governance and Audit Committee has the responsibility of receiving and
reviewing this report.

1)

2)

b)

b)

c)

Introduction

Under the International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the National Audit
Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’), the Appointed Auditor,
Grant Thornton UK LLP, are required to issue as opinion as to whether:

e Kent County Council’s financial statements give a true and fair view of
both the financial position and the income and expenditure for the year;
and

e Have been properly prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of practice on local
authority accounting and prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

The External Auditor is also required to report whether other information
published together with the audited financial statements is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements and/or whether information obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Governance and Audit Committee’s Responsibility

In accordance with CIPFA’s Position Statement 2022, the Committee is
responsible for considering the opinion and recommendations of External
Audit and their implications for governance, risk management or control, and
for monitoring management action in response to the issues raised by
external audit.

Members are reminded that the purpose of this Committee, in accordance
with its Terms of Reference, is to provide independent and high-level focus on
the adequacy of governance, risk, finance, and control arrangements.

Towards this purpose, its role is to:
i. ensure there is sufficient assurance over governance risk and control and
provide reports to full Council on the effectiveness and adequacy of these
arrangements;

Page 23


https://www.kent.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0010/3142/Constitution.pdf#page=[66]

ii. have oversight of both internal and external audit together with the
financial and governance reports, helping to ensure that there are
adequate arrangements in place for both internal challenge and public
accountability, and

iii. throughiand ii above, give greater confidence to all those charged with
governance for Kent County Council that its arrangements are effective
and reporting to full Council or other Committees as necessary where the
Committee has concerns that these arrangements are not effective.

3) Recommendation

The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the External Auditor’s
Findings Report for Kent County Council for assurance.

4) Appendices
Appendix: Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings Report for Kent County Council 2023/24

5) Background Documents

CIPFA’s Position Statement 2022
International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260
National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice

6) Contact Details

Katy Reynolds
Governance Advisor
katy.reynolds@kent.gov.uk
03000 422252

Page 24


mailto:katy.reynolds@kent.gov.uk

o Grant Thornton

The Audit Findings
for Kent County Council

Year ended 31 March 2024

Gg abed




Commercial in confidence

Private and
o Gra ntThorntOn Confidential

Governance and Audit Committee
Kent County Council

Grant Thornton UK LLP

County Hall 30 Finsbury Square
Maidstone London
ME14 1XQ EC2A1AG

020 7383 5100
12 December 2024

www.grantthornton.co.uk

Dear Governance and Audit Committee Members

Audit Findings for Kent County Council for the year ended 31 March 2024

This Audit Findings report presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process and confirmation of auditor independence, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK] 260. Its contents will be discussed with the Audit and
Governance Committee.

As c@ditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK], which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on
the®nancial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
manggement or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

(e}
The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our
testing, we identify control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all
possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in
whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

We encourage you to read our transparency report which sets out how the firm complies with the requirements of the Audit Firm Governance Code and the steps we have taken to
drive audit quality by reference to the Audit Quality Framework. The report includes information on the firm’s processes and practices for quality control, for ensuring independence
and objectivity, for partner remuneration, our governance, our international network arrangements and our core values, amongst other things. This report is available at
transparency-report-2023.pdf (grantthornton.co.uk].

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Paul Dossett

Partner
For Grant Thornton UK LLP

Chartered Accountants
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2023.pdf

/¢ abed

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Paul Dossett

Key Audit Partner

T: 020 7728 3180

E: Paul.Dossett@uk.gt.com

Lucy Nutley

Senior Audit Manager

T: 014 1223 0623

E: Lucy.H.Nutley@uk.gt.com

Radoslaw Borzymowski

Assistant Audit Manager
T: 020 7865 2014

E: Radoslaw.Borzymowski@uk.gt.com

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section
1. Headlines
2. Financial statements
3. Value for money arrangements
4. Independence and ethics
Appendices
A, Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance

TIOQMNMUQO®

Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Follow up of prior year recommendations

Audit Adjustments
Fees and non-audit services

Auditing developments

Management Letter of Representation

Audit opinion

Page

30
32

36
37
39
42
47
48
49
50

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention, which
we believe need to be reported to you as part of
our audit planning process. Itis not
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters,
which may be subject to change, and in particular
we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting
all of the risks which may affect the Council or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This report
has been prepared solely for your benefit and
should not be quoted in whole or in part without
our prior written consent. We do not accept any
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third
party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis
of the content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square,
London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available
from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm
of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and
the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL
and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one
another’s acts or omissions.



Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of Kent County Council (‘the Council’) and
the preparation of the group and Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 for those charged with governance.

Financial Statements

Under International Standards of Audit
(UK) (ISAs) and the National Audit Office
(NAOQ] Code of Audit Practice ('the
Code'), we are required to report
whether, in our opinion:

* the group and Council's financial
statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the group
and Council and the group and
Council’s income and expenditure
for the year; and

have been properly prepared in
accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC
code of practice on local authority
accounting and prepared in
accordance with the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

8¢ abed

We are also required to report whether
other information published together
with the audited financial statements
(including the Annual Governance
Statement (AGS), Narrative Report and
Pension Fund Financial Statements), is
materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Our audit work was completed remotely during July to October. Our findings are summarised on pages 8 to 29. The Council’s single entity draft
financial statements were published with the appropriate publication notice on 31 May 2024. The suite of supporting working papers were
submitted for audit in mid July. The group financial statements and supporting working papers were submitted to us on 29 August 2024, three
months after the national deadline and have not yet been published. We have recommended in Appendix B that this is not repeated in 2024/25. As
in previous years, the quality of the financial statements and supporting working papers continues to be high evidenced by the relatively small
number of adjustments and disclosure issues identified during our audit. There was no impact on useable reserves from the adjustment made to the
financial statements.

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) provided for audit and presented to Governance and Audit Committee members in November 2024 is not
yet complete. We have reviewed the draft version but cannot conclude on the AGS until we have reviewed a final version. This remains an
outstanding audit matter. We have raised a recommendation on the timeliness of the AGS production and presentation to audit in Appendix B.

We have identified 1 adjustment to the financial statements that have resulted in a £10.4m reduction to expenditure and corresponding increase in
assets. We have also identified é misstatements from our testing which management have decided not to adjust for. Individually and in aggregate,
these misstatements are not material to the financial statements. The net impact of these misstatements would increase expenditure by £40.4m
and decrease assets by £40.4m. Details of these can be found in Appendix D. Cur follow up of recommendations from the prior year’s audit are
detailed in Appendix C.

Four issues arose during the current and prior year audit which we feel is important to give prominence to.

Schools cash reconciliations - reconciliations are not always prepared by schools as at 31 March, giving rise to differences between the cash
book and the bank statement

+  Schools salaries account reconciliations - an unadjusted misstatement in the 2022/23 financial year was posted twice in error in 2023/24

Journal entries posted different than the preparer - this is a long-term issue that is expected to be rectified by the Oracle upgrade in August
2025.

*  Over-optimistic assumptions in the calculation of the expected credit losses for Adult Social Care costs - audit has identified a significant
difference in our calculation of the provision, noting that the Council intend to make some changes to the provision calculation in 2024/25.

These issues are set out in more detail in the audit findings section of this report

We have raised three new control recommendations for management as a result of our audit work in the current year. These are detailed in
Appendix B. We have followed up on prior year control recommendations raised as part of our work and note that four of seven recommendations
have been implemented. This is detailed in Appendix C.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines - continued

Financial Statements

62 abed

Qur work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would require modification of our audit opinion or
material changes to the financial statements, subject to the following outstanding matters;

* review of the final draft AGS so that we can ensure information is consistent with the financial statements and meets the requirements of
the financial reporting framework;

* review of the updated financial statements;
* receipt of subsequent events confirmation email from management;
* receipt of signed management representation letter; and

* completion of internal review processes and closedown of audit file.

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements, is consistent with our knowledge of your
organisation and the financial statements we have audited.

Our anticipated audit report opinion will be unmodified. We anticipate signing our opinion shortly after the Governance and Audit
Committee on 12 December 2024

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

Value for Money (VFM) arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO)
Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we
are required to consider whether the
Council has put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. Auditors are required to report
in more detail on the Council's overall
arrangements, as well as key
recommendations on any significant
weaknesses in arrangements identified
during the audit.

Auditors are required to report their

Our work on the Council’s value for money (VFM] arrangements will be reported in our commentary on the Council’s arrangements in our
Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR], which is presented as a separate paper to the Governance and Audit Committee.

We have identified significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements for VFM in the following areas:
* Financial sustainability - adult social care overspends
* Financial sustainability - reducing spend on the high needs block

* Governance - implementation of high priority actions from Internal Audit

As such, we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. Our findings are set out in the value for money arrangements section of this report (Section 3).

Trommentary on the Council's
gdrrdngements under the following
(specified criteria:

8 Improying economy, efficiency and
effectiveness;
* Financial sustainability; and

*  Governance

Statutory duties

The Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 (‘the Act’) also requires us to:

* report to you if we have applied any
of the additional powers and duties
ascribed to us under the Act; and

* to certify the closure of the audit.

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties

We have completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to certify the completion of the audit following completion of
Whole of Government Accounts procedures.

Significant matters

We did not encounter any significant difficulties or identify any significant matters arising during our audit.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

National context — audit backlog

Government proposals around the backstop

On 30 July 2024, the Minister of State for Local Government and English Devolution, Jim McMahon, provided the following written statement to Parliament Written statements - Written
guestions, answers and statements - UK Parliament This confirmed the government’s intention to introduce a backstop date for English local authority audits up to 2022/23 of 13 December
2024 and a 28 February 2025 statutory deadline for 2023/24% audits. This was passed into legislation in October 2024. We are pleased to confirm that we anticipate concluding your audit in
advance of the backstop date.

New National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice

As part of ongoing reforms to local audit, the National Audit Office has also laid a new Code of Audit Practice (the Code) before Parliament. One of the objectives is the new Code is to ensure
more timely reporting of audit work, including Value for Money. The Code requires that from 2025, auditors will issue their Annual Auditor’s Report by 30 November each year. We have already
put resource plans in place to ensure we achieve this deadline across all audited bodies.

TNational context - level of borrowing

«Q

DAl Councils continue to operate in an increasingly challenging financial context. With inflationary pressures placing increasing demands on Council budgets, there are concerns as Councils

ﬁook to alternative ways to generate income. We have seen an increasing number of councils look to ways of utilising investment property portfolios as sources of recurrent income. Whilst there
have been some successful ventures and some prudently funded by councils’ existing resources, we have also seen some councils take excessive risks by borrowing sums in excess of their
revenue budgets to finance these investment schemes. Additionally, we have also seen some authorities lending money to their subsidiary companies, which may not be in a position to repay
those loans.

The impact of these huge debts on Councils, the risk of potential bad debt write offs and the implications of the poor governance behind some of these decisions are all issues which now have
to be considered by auditors across local authority audits.

Local context:

As at 31 March 2024, the Council held £781 million of borrowings (£703 million long-term and £78 million short-term). The majority of the long-term borrowing is held with Public Work Loans
Board (PWLB) and Barclays Bank PLC on a fixed interest rate. The borrowings taken out by the Council have been used to finance capital acquisition of operational assets. Unlike other
Councils, we have not seen any evidence of the Council borrowing excessive amounts to invest in exotic instruments, nor have we seen any evidence of the Council taking excessive risks.
Current borrowing is in line with the Council’s prudential indicators, and we have no concerns that those indicators are inappropriate.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.


https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46

2. Financial Statements

Commercial in confidence

Overview of the scope of our .

This Audit Findings Report presents the
observations arising from the audit that are
significant to the responsibility of those charged
with governance to oversee the financial reporting
process, as required by International Standard on
Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of Audit Practice
(‘the Code’). Its contents will be discussed with
management and the Governance and Audit
_gommittee.

8\3 auditor we are responsible for performing the

®yuudit, in accordance with International Standards

CI\‘iin Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed
towards forming and expressing an opinion on the
financial statements that have been prepared by
management with the oversight of those charged
with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those
charged with governance of their responsibilities
for the preparation of the financial statements.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our audit approach was based on a
thorough understanding of the group’s
business and is risk based, and in particular
included:

* An evaluation of the group’s internal
controls environment, including its IT
systems and controls;

* Anevaluation of the components of the
group based on a measure of
materiality considering each as a
percentage of the group’s gross revenue
expenditure to assess the significance of
the component and to determine the
planned audit response.

* Substantive testing on significant
transactions and material account
balances, including the procedures
outlined in this report in relation to the
key audit risks

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and
subject to outstanding queries set out on page 5 being resolved, we anticipate
issuing an ungualified audit opinion following the Governance and Audit
Committee meeting on 12 December 2024.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance
provided by the finance team and other staff.

As highlighted in our previous progress reports presented to the Governance and
Audit Committee during the audit there have been challenges to our audit.
Challenges included:

* the timely response to some of our queries, particularly where it required
information outside of finance

* annual leave over the summer holidays that reduced the resources available in
your finance team and our audit team to respond to queries

* the reconciliation issues in your schools’ cash balances and Schools Salary
account

* pension valuation and the national arising issue of the IFRIC 14 asset ceiling,
which required internal consultations with our technical team

* the control issue we identified in your general ledger where journals were being
posted by a user other than the person who prepared the journal. This led to
additional lines of enquiries and testing to gain the required assurances. This is
a known long-term issue.



2. Financial Statements

<

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is
fundamental to the preparation of the
financial statements and the audit
process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and adherence
to acceptable accounting practice and
applicable law.

In our Audit Plan, communicated in
March 2024, we assessed materiality at
1.5% of the prior year gross revenue
expenditure, plus interest payable.
Materiality was assessed as £42m for
the Council and £43m for the group.

£¢ abed

In the 2023/24 draft accounts, gross
revenue expenditure plus interest
payable had increased by more than
5% and therefore we reassessed our
materiality levels. No benchmarks were
changed as there were no indicators of
additional inherent risk at the point of
reassessment.

We set out in this table our
determination of materiality Kent
County Council and the Group.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Group Amount (£) Council Amount (£) Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the £48,000,000 £45,500,000 We considered materiality from the perspective of the users of the

financial financial statements. The Council prepares an expenditure-based

statements budget for the financial year with the primary objective to provide
services to the local community, therefore gross expenditure was
deemed the most appropriate benchmark. This benchmark was also
used in the prior year. We considered 1.6% to be an appropriate rate
to apply to the gross expenditure benchmark.

Performance £31,200,000 £29,575,000 Performance Materiality is based on a percentage of the overall

materiality materiality. We have determined to apply 65% of overall materiality
considering the requirements of ISA 320.

Trivial matters £2,400,000 £2,275,000 The threshold above which we are required to report errors or
uncertainties to those charged with governance, calculated as 5% of
materiality.

Specific N/A £20,000 Senior officer remuneration is an area of interest to readers of

Materiality for
Senior Officers
Remuneration

financial statements. A lower level of materiality in these areas is
appropriate due to the nature of these disclosure notes.

We have therefore assessed a specific materiality for senior officer
remuneration that is £20k per each senior officer. Note this is not a
cumulative amount and was applied to each senior officer.




Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the
potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Relevant to Council
Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary and/or Group

Management override of controls We have: Council and Group

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable ¢ Evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals.

presumed risk that the risk of management

over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

The council faces external scrutiny of its

spending and this could potentially place

management under undue pressure interms  «  Gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements made by management and
S'DUDf how they report performance. considered their reasonableness with regards to corroborative evidence.

* Analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals.

* Tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness
and corroboration.

Q * Evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual

1) .
uWe therefore identified management transactions.

Poverride of control, in particular journals,
management estimates and transactions
outside the course of business as a
significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material
misstatement.

As reported to you in the prior year, part of our work to understand the design and implementation
effectiveness of controls around journals, confirmed that your ledger system allows people to post journals
that they did not prepare themselves. For example, person “X* accesses the ledger system and prepares the
debits and credits for a journal but does not click post. That journal is then held in draft within the system.
Person Y’ then accesses the draft journal and posts it to the ledger. This functionality in the system meant
that it was possible for somebody who shouldn’t post journals to the ledger i.e. senior management, to create
a journal and have somebody post it on the system. Equally, the ledger itself does not retain an audit trail
as to why person Y’ has posted the journal and whether person ‘X’ is satisfied with it.

We performed additional procedures to review and test journal entries posted by users other than who
prepared them. In total, we identified 21 different people had posted 68 journals that they did not create
during the period. During one financial year, the number of transactions posted to the ledger is more than
100,000. Contextually therefore, 68 journals is a small number and supported management’s initial assertion
that journals posted by a user that did not create the transaction is rare.

We have discussed the matter with management who are satisfied that there are sufficient mitigating
controls and that they are comfortable with the level of residual risk. As required by the ISA’s and to ensure
transparency, we are communicating this control deficiency to ensure all concerned are aware of the issue.
See Recommendation 6 in Appendix C.

Conclusion:

Our work has not identified any material issues in relation to this risk. 0

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary Relevant to Council and/or Group
Improper revenue recognition Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the Council and the Group’s revenue  Council and Group
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a streams, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted,

because:

rebuttable presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due tothe *  There is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition.
improper recognition of revenue. This
presumption can be rebutted if the
auditor concludes that there is no
risk of material misstatement due to
Traud relating to revenue recognition. Therefore, we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Kent County Council or the Group

*  Opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited.

*  The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including that of Kent County Council, mean that
all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

QD

Lg[rebutted] Although we have rebutted this risk, we have still performed substantive work on all relevant assertions of
w revenue where those revenue streams are material to the financial statements in accordance with auditing
ul standards. No issues arose from this work that would cause us to reassess our rebuttal of the presumed risk.

Conclusion:

Our work has not identified any material issues in relation to this risk.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Relevant to Council
and/or Group

Valuation of land and buildings (Rolling revaluation)

The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a rolling
four-yearly basis. Investment properties are valued
annually. These valuations represents a significant
estimate by management in the financial statements due
to the size of the numbers involved and the sensitivity of
this estimate to changes in key assumptions. Additionally,
management will need to ensure the carrying value in the

We have

Council and Group

Evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the
instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work.

Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert (Wilks, Head and
Eve).

Written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out to ensure that
the requirements of the Code are met.

Engaged our own valuer (Gerald Eve) to assess the instructions to the Council’s valuer, the

TAuthority and group financial statements is not materially
gdifferent from the current value or the fair value (for
Msurplus assets) at the financial statements date, where o
(&}olling programme is used.

Council’s valuer’s report and the assumptions that underpin the valuation.

* Tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the
Council’s asset register and financial statements.

We therefore identified the closing valuation of land and
buildings and investment property, as a significant risk,
which was one of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement.

Pinpointing the significant risk:
We pinpointed the significant risk around the following:
* assets which were material;

* assets where the valuation movement differed
significantly to what we would expect based on indices;

* assets where we were aware of a significant change in
any of the key assumptions from the prior period; and

* any other factors which in our auditor judgement
increased the risk of material misstatementin a
particular asset.

Assessed the value of a sample of assets in relation to market rates for comparable properties.

Assessed the value of a sample of assets held at Depreciated Replacement value - testing
provided assurance on the reasonableness of key assumptions used by your valuer including the
build cost, obsolesce rate and floor areas.

Reviewed assets not revalued to obtain assurance there is no material difference between the
carrying value and current value of those assets as at the balance sheet date.

Assessed the value and reasonableness of key assumptions in relation to a sample of investment
properties

Conclusion:

Our work has not identified any material issues in relation to this risk.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Relevant to Council
and/or Group

Valuation of the pension fund net liability (£34.8 million)

The pension fund net liability, as reflected in the balance sheet as the net
defined benefit liability, represents a significant estimate in the financial
statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant estimate due to the
size of the numbers involved (£34.8m in the Council’s balance sheet) and
the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

The methods applied in the calculation of the IAS 19 estimates are routine
and commonly applied by all actuarial firms in line with the requirements
set out in the Code of practice for local government accounting (the
applicable financial reporting framework). We have therefore concluded
that there is not a significant risk of material misstatement in the IAS 19
estighate due to the methods and models used in their calculation.

Thgsource data used by the actuaries to produce the IAS 19 estimates is
pr(SP/ided by administering authorities and employers. We do not consider
this3o be a significant risk as this is easily verifiable.

The actuarial assumptions used are the responsibility of the entity but
should be set on the advice given by the actuary.

A small change in the key assumptions (discount rate, inflation rate, salary
increase and life expectancy) can have a significant impact on the
estimated IAS 19 liability.

We have therefore concluded that there is a significant risk of material
misstatement in the IAS 19 estimate due to the assumptions used in their

We have:

Council and Group

Updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to
ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and
evaluate the design of the associated controls.

Evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an
actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work.

Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the
Council’s pension fund valuation.

Assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to
the actuary to estimate the liability.

Tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes
to the core financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary.

Undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made
by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any
additional procedures suggested within the report.

Following a national issue arising where local authorities are paying secondary
contributions to pension funds and the additional liability has not been fully recorded in
the actuarial estimate, thus reducing any pension assets held and invoking the use of the
asset ceiling, as set out in IFRIC14. We have performed a review, confirming that the
Council does not pay secondary contributions and there was not an initial pension asset
at 31 March 2024.

calculation. With regard to these assumptions, we have therefore identified Conclusion:

valuation of the Authority’s pension fund net liability as a significant risk.

Our work has not identified any material issues in relation to this risk.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Audit findings

2. Financial Statements - Observations in
respect of other risks

This section provides commentary on ‘other risks’. Other risks are risks to the financial statements which we have assessed as not being significant under ISAs.

Other risks identified Commentary Relevant to Council and/or
Group
Testing of expenditure We have: Council and Group

Practice Note 10 suggests that the risk of material
misstatement due to fraudulent financial reporting that
may arise from the manipulation of expenditure ) ) )
recognition needs to be considered, especially where Tested a sample of op’erotlng expenses ’fo gain assurance in respect of the accuracy and
an entity is required to meet financial targets. occurrence of expenditure recorded during the financial year.

* Performed testing over post year end transactions to assess completeness of expenditure
recognition.

aving considered the risk factors relevant to Kent
County Council and the Group and the relevant
mexpenditure streams, we have determined that no
useparate significant risk relating to expenditure
OFecognition is necessary, as the same rebuttal factors
listed on page 11 relating to revenue recognition apply.

Conclusion:

Our work has not identified any material issues in relation to this risk.

We consider that the risk relating to expenditure
recognition would relate primarily to period-end
journals and accruals which are considered as part of
the standard audit tests below and our testing in
relation to the significant risk of Management Override
of Controls as set out on page 10.

Whilst we have concluded that there is no significant
risk, we have assessed that there is some risk of
material misstatement that requires an appropriate
audit response.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Audit findings

Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Observations in
respect of other risks

Other risks identified

Commentary Relevant to Council
and/or Group

Schools cash and pay expenditure reconciliations
In the prior year we noted that almost half of the
balance held at bank was held in schools accounts.
We further noted that bank reconciliations on these
balances were not always performed as at 31 March,
with some being prepared weeks before. This meant
that the balance reported to KCC central finance by
schools and therefore used in the preparation of the
financial statements was often significantly different to

“Othe actual balance at 31 March 2024. We raised a

8 recommendation in the prior year to ensure all bank

@ reconciliations were performed as at 31 March 2024,

8but note that our Audit Findings Report was not
presented until 1 March 2024, giving limited time for the
recommendation to be implemented.

The schools payroll account is managed by a third-
party service provider. No reconciliation was provided
for this bank account at 31 March 2024. It was
requested from the third-party provider as part of the
audit process. When received it was not sufficient, and
the finance team then completed an appropriate bank
reconciliation for the account. The figure per the
cashbook was £678k, however, the figure per the
NatWest bank confirmation was £11,200k. The
reconciliation process was successfully completed,
with all reconciling items being identified and verified.

However, the reconciliation process highlighted an
erroneous entry in the payroll account for the March
2023 PAYE and NI costs of £2.8m where the journal
entries had not been entered in the 2022/23 accounts
and so were raised in the 2023/2%4 accounts. This
journal had been duplicated in error. This has been
raised as an unadjusted misstatement in Appendix D.

We have: Council
*  We have tested bank reconciliations as part of our schools income and expenditure testing.

* We have again, identified a number of schools where the year-end reconciliation was performed in
advance of 31 March 2024. A projected error of £4.8m has been calculated for those schools that did
not complete bank reconciliations at the reporting date. This is not material and management have
chosen not to adjust the financial statements. It has therefore been reported as an unadjusted
misstatement in Appendix D.

Our control finding and recommendation from the 2022/23 audit regarding school cash reconciliations
has been repeated - see Recommendation 7 in Appendix C.

The error identified through our work on the schools payroll reconciliation highlights the importance of the
reconciliation process. While in this instance the reconciliation highlighted one error which is immaterial,
had the reconciliation been completed earlier, this error would not have been identified as part of the
audit process.

Our control finding and recommendation from the 2022/23 audit regarding school cash reconciliations
has been repeated - see Recommendation 1in Appendix C.

Conclusion:

Our work has not identified any material issues in relation to this risk.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: new issues and

risks

This section provides commentary on new issues and risks which were identified during the course of the audit that were not previously communicated in the Audit Plan and a summary of any
significant deficiencies identified during the year.

Issue

Commentary

Auditor view

IFRS 16 implementation

Ot abed

Following consultation and agreement by FRAB, the Code
will provide for authorities to opt to apply IFRS 16 in
advance of the revised implementation date of 1 April
2024. In advance of this standard coming into effect, we
would expect audited bodies to disclose the title of the
standard, the date of initial application and the nature of
the changes in accounting policy for leases, along with
the estimated impact of IFRS 16 on the accounts.

On 01 April 2024, management formally adopted IFRS 16.
For 2023/24, a disclosure was made to reflect the impact
on the 2024/25 accounts (Note 3 - Accounting standards
that have been issued, but not yet adopted). Management
asserted that the adoption of IFRS 16 will introduce right of
use assets on the balance sheet with a value of
approximately £23.7m matched against future lease
liabilities of £23.7m.

Our work to review this disclosure centred around the
following two steps:

*  Review and reperformance of steps implemented by
management to identify leases which are impacted by
IFRS 16. These were checked against the CIPFA Code of
Practice as well as industry guidance.

* Review and reperformance of calculations to determine
the future lease liabilities using present value
calculations.

Our work on the above two steps did not note any issues.

However, we have noted that PFl liabilities were not included
in management’s calculations. Furthermore, no exercise was
undertaken to show peppercorn leases at their market value.
The omission of these from the calculations mean that the
disclosure does not present the full liability that will be
presented in 2024/25. We have requested that management
update the disclosure to reflect the above and have raised a
recommendation in Appendix B to ensure that these
calculations are performed for the 2024/25 accounts.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Key findings arising from the

group audit

In accordance with ISA (UK) 600, as group auditor we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the components and the consolidation process to express an opinion on whether the group financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The table below sets out the results of our work against the risks set out for Group Audit.

Individually
Component Significant? Risks identified Planned audit approach Findings and conclusions
Kent County Council Yes We have detailed the significant Full scope audit performed by Grant Our findings are set out in this report and
risks for the audit of this entity on  Thornton UK LLP based on the work to date, we plan to
pages 10 to 13 issue an unmodified opinion in respect of
the single entity financial statements
;?Commerciol Services Kent Ltd No None Audit of expenditure, carried out by the Work in this area is complete but remains
«Q group audit team of Commercial Services  subject to internal review processes.
© expenditure. Corroborated by analytical
iE reviews performed by Grant Thornton UK
LLP
*  Global Commercial Services Group No None Analytical reviews performed by Grant Work in this area is complete but remains
Ltd (formerly Kent Holdco Ltd) Thornton UK LLP. subject to internal review processes.

+ EDSECO Ltd

*  Kent County Trading Ltd

* Cantium Business Solutions Ltd

*  GENZ2 Property Ltd

* Invicta Law Ltd

> KentTop Temps Ltd

*  Commercial Services Trading Ltd and

its subsidiary (CES Holdings Ltd)
Group consolidation N/A None *  To document our understanding of the ~ Work in this area is complete but remains

consolidation process
* To review and test (where appropriate)
intercompany eliminations

* Toensure intercompany eliminations are

complete

e Perform an analytical review at the
group level as part of our risk
assessment process

subject to internal review processes.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Significant
judgement
or estimate

Summary of management’s approach

Audit Comments Assessment

Land and Other land and buildings comprises circa £2bn of As part of our work we have:
Bmldln‘g SpeC.IO|ISGd assets such as SCh°9IS and libraries, which are * reviewed the land and buildings valuation estimate in line with ISAB40 requirements
valuations - required to be valued at dfaprecmted replacement cost and have no issues to raise:
£2,599m (DRC] at year end, reflecting the cost of a modern ) ) ) ) )
equivalent asset necessary to deliver the same service * reconciled the fixed asset register to the ledger and the financial statements
provision. The remainder of other land and buildings are not  «  gssessed management’s valuation expert and found them to be competent,
specialised in nature and are required to be valued at capable and independent; and
existing use n value [EUV) at year end' for operational * verified the valuer’s outcome against our independent auditor’s expert valuation
assets or fair value (FV) for assets designated as surplus.
;;U trend report.
Q The Council has engoged Wilks H.eod & Eve LLP (WHE] to + verified that management’s judgement that the carrying value of assets is not
@ complete the valuation of properties as at 31 March 2024 on . . . .
. ; - o materially different to the current value is reasonable. This has been done by
B a five yearly cyclical basis. 88% of total assets were : ) : . LT .
N - . - setting an independent expectation of the difference using indices provided by
revalued during 2023/24. The valuation of properties valued Gerald Eve
by the valuer has resulted in a net decrease of £21.4m. '
. . th | f alternative site j t ti
Management has considered the year end value of assessed the reasonableness of alternative site judgements and assumptions
properties not re-valued in year (£325.2m). In particular, * assessed the accuracy and completeness of underlying information used to
management have considered the potential valuation determine the estimate; and
change in the assets based on the market reYieW provided * assessed the reasonableness of key underlying assumptions for DRC buildings i.e.
by the valuer as at 31 March 2024, to determine whether build costs, floor areas and obsolescence. This assurance was provided to us by
there hqs been a mctteria,l change in the total value of these our auditor’s expert.
properties. Management’s assessment of assets not . . .
revalued has identified no material change to the assessed the reosonablenegs of key underlying os§sumpt!or'15 for EUV osset§ and
properties’ value assets held at market value i.e. investment properties. This included assessing the
reasonableness of yields and rental figures. This assurance was provided to us by
our auditor’s expert.
Conclusion:
Our work has not identified any material issues in relation to this accounting estimate.
Assessment

@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant
judgement or
estimate

Summary of management’s
approach

Audit Comments

Net pension
liability - £34.8m

The Council’s net pension liability at
31 March 2024 is £34.8m (PY £62.4m)
comprising the Local Government
pension scheme as administered by
Kent County Council. The Council
uses Barnett Waddingham to provide
actuarial valuations of the Council’s
assets and liabilities derived from this

We have assessed the Council’s actuary, Barnett Waddingham, to be competent, capable and

objective.

We have performed additional tests in relation to the accuracy of the contribution figures, benefits
paid and asset returns, to gain assurance over the 2023-24 roll-forward calculation carried out by the

actuary.

We have used PwC as our auditor expert to assess the actuary’s assumptions - see table below for our

comparison of actuarial assumptions:

o scheme. A full actuarial valuation is
g required every three years. Assumption Actuary Value PwC range Assessment
i The latest full actuarial valuation was Discount rate 4.9% 4.8%-4.95%
w completed in 2022. A roll forward
approach is used in intervening Pension increase rate 2.95% 2.85% - 3%
iods, which utilises k
periods, which UTISes ey Salary growth 3.95% 3.85% - 4%
assumptions such as life expectancy,
.o||scount rates, salary growth and . Pensioners: 20.8 Pensioners: 19.2 - 21.8
investment returns. Life expectancy - Males Fut ; 200 Fut ; 906 -
‘ o ——T uture pensioners: 22. uture pensioners: 20.
Given the significant value of the net eurrently 231
pension fund liability, small changes
in assumptions can result in Life expectancy - Pensioners: 23.3 Pensioners: 22.6 - 24.3
significant valuation movements. Females currently aged Future pensioners: 24.7 Future pensioners: 24.1 -
There has been a £3.3m net actuarial 5/65 257
gain during 2023/24.
- Continued overleaf
Assessment

® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Assessment



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant
judgement or Summary of management’s
estimate approach Audit Comments Assessment
Net pension * We have confirmed the controls and processes over the completeness and accuracy of the underlying
liability - £34.8m information used to determine the estimate.
*  We have confirmed there were no significant changes in 2023/24 to the valuation method.
*  We conducted an analytical review to confirm reasonableness of the Council’s share of LGPS pension
assets.
* We have conducted appropriate work to confirm that the application of an asset ceiling, as required by
IFRIC 14 is not required.
-
Q
L% Conclusion
i Our work has not identified any material issues in relation to this accounting estimate.
Assessment

@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

20

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant
judgement or
estimate

Summary of management’s approach

Audit Comments

Assessment

Minimum Revenue
Provision - £59.4m

G abed

The Council is responsible, on an annual basis,
for determining the amount charged for the
repayment of debt - known as its Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP).

The Council’s approach to the MRP is set out to
Members as part of the Budget and council tax
proposals each year. The basis for the charge
is set out in Regulations and statutory
guidance.

This year end the MRP charge was £569.4m, a

net increase of £1.2m from 2022/23 (58.2m in
PY).

Findings:
We have carried out the following work:
+  Confirmed that the Council’s policy on MRP complies with statutory guidance.

+ Assessed that there are no changes to the Council’s MRP policy in comparison to 2022/23.
Assessed and benchmarked the percentage of the Council’s MRP charge against the
opening capital financing requirement (4.59%). As this is well above 2%, it falls within our
‘Green’ range - no concerns identified.

+ Assessed and benchmarked the percentage of the Council’s total debt against the capital
financing requirement (83%). As this is below 100%, it falls within our ‘Green’ range - no
concerns identified.

Conclusion:

Following consultation MHCLG have clarified and updated the regulations and the statutory
guidance for minimum revenue provision. Although these take full effect from April 2025, the
consultation highlighted that the intention was not to change policy, but to clearly set out in
legislation the practices that authorities should already be following.

This guidance clarifies that capital receipts may not be used in place of a prudent MRP and that
MRP should be applied to all unfinanced capital expenditure and that certain assets should not
be omitted from the calculation unless exempted by statute.

Based on our findings, we are satisfied that the MRP charge complies with regulations and is set
at a prudent level to repay borrowing over the long term. The MRP charge must remain under
regular review, particularly in light of future capital spending plans.

Assessment

® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

21



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant

judgement or

estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
PFl liability PFI transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service Conclusion:

(carrying value - concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s FReM , are accounted Our work in respect of the estimate of your PFl liability, including the fair

£185.2m) for as ‘on-Statement of Financial Position” by the entity. The PFI value estimate has not identified any material issues.

liability is determined by the original financial model updated for
inflation and relevant variations. The source data is derived from
(fair value - the financial model. Estimates are used for un-invoiced variations
£218.4m) (or credits for insurance) based on estimates provided at the time
of the variation.

In line with IFRS 13 requirements, in addition to the carrying value of
the liability on the balance sheet, management must also disclose
the fair value of the liability. Management has engaged an expert
to estimate the fair value of the PFI liability (£218.4m).

There has been no change in the methodology or underlying
assumptions in management’s estimation process compared with
the prior year.

ot abed

Assessment

@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

22

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant
judgement Summary of management’s
or estimate approach Audit Comments Assessment
Depreciation  Buildings are depreciated in Assets not depreciated in the year of acquisition: Amber
(£110.4m) acgordgncefW|tf|1 th/e volu.er.s As we communicated in the prior year, management’s accounting policy to not depreciate assets in the year it was
ijSt'rEOt'fm orva uel :jgmmmng brought into use is not consistent with the LG Code (14.1.2.41) which requires assets to be depreciated at the point in
e. quipment inc uaing which they are brought into use.
vehicles are depreciated based
on standard lives and We have performed work that confirms this departure does not lead to a material misstatement in the accounts. We
estimates from relevant have estimated the impact as £2.8m, which is significantly below our materiality level. This has been recognised as an
managers and contract lengths unadjusted misstatement in Appendix D.
where relevant. Remaining economic life assumption:
- For existing assets the source As we reported in the prior year, for specialised assets valued under the ‘Depreciated Replacement Cost” method, your
) data is the carrying value at valuer provides you with information on the remaining economic life (REL) assumption for each asset. The REL is the
L(% the start of the year. For key assumption for a depreciation calculation as it sets out how many years the cost of the asset is depreciated.
ﬁ ets\f;ggdbglldg::gi;mse:vgzr Each year your valuer has assigned the same REL for each DRC asset at 46 years. According to your valuer, 46 years
P " o is the life of a DRC asset as new, and your valuer has formed the judgement that it is appropriate to depreciate your
other existing assets it is the . . . . . . . o .
. entire DRC portfolio on this basis because there is a system of repairs and maintenance both historically and into the
brought forward depreciated future
replacement cost. For new ’
assets it is the purchase cost Our auditor’s expert has communicated to us that in their view, this is an unreasonable judgement and one that does
during the year. For buildings not satisfy the requirements to form the assumption based on its current condition. Our auditor expert does not believe
this is the revaluation it is appropriate to base the assumption on future events which are contingent i.e. future repairs and maintenance.
performed at year end. What this means is that our auditor’s expert considers the REL assumption used by the Authority to be optimistic and
. . t too high.
The point estimate for settoo g
depreciation is generated by As a result of this risk, we have done work to quantify the potential impact to determine whether there is a risk of
the asset register based on the material misstatement in the estimate. A sensitivity analysis was carried out based on a REL calculated from
inputs of costs and expected obsolescence data provided by your valuer. We were comfortable with using this data because our auditor’s expert
lives for each asset. concluded that the obsolescence data used by your valuer was reasonable.
There has been no change in Using the obsolescence data, we arrived at a REL of 32 years. If this REL was applied to your asset base, the difference
the methodology or underlying on your depreciation estimate would be £10m. As this is not material, we are satisfied that whilst your depreciation
assumptions in management’s charge is optimistic, it is not materially misstated. We have included this difference in our schedule of unadjusted
estimation process compared misstatements to ensure that when added to other misstatements, there isn’t a material uncertainty in your financial
with the prior year. statements. See Appendix D for details.
Assessment
® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious -

® [Green]We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant

judgement or

estimate Summary of management’s approach Assessment
Provision for adult  The Council provides social care support to adults as part of their statutory duties. Some of these services are charged to the individual and Amber

social care debts
(£18.5m)

remain unpaid at the year-end. As at 31 March 2024, the total debt outstanding from KCC residents was £60.5m (PY £44.7m).

In line with the relevant accounting standards, management must estimate a provision for doubtful debt on an expected loss basis.
Management’s estimate for the provision in the draft financial statements is £18.5m (PY 14.0m).

The council have a methodology for estimating the value of debts that they consider are unlikely to be settled - typically referred to as a bad
debt provision. Where debt is secured and the Council has a right to recover debts against a person’s estate, no provision is made. For
unsecured debts, the Council calculate the provision using a weighted average. This is based purely on the age of the debt, with no account
taken of the type of debt - in a cost of living crisis, individual debts are more likely to remain unpaid.

-
g The weighted averages used are set out below. We consider these all to be overly optimistic.
@D
g Age profile of debt Weighted average provision
Current 1%
Up to 6 months 5%
6 months to 1 year 1%
1year to 3 years 47%
Over 3 years 62%
We have performed a sensitivity analysis using alternative percentage figures to quantify the level of optimism. This analysis suggests that the
estimate is potentially understated by £14.4 million. This is not a factual misstatement but rather a judgemental quantification of the impact of
optimistic assumptions. In line with the auditing standards, we are reporting this to you as an audit difference included in our unadjusted
misstatement reporting in Appendix D.
We had raised a control finding regarding the default rates used by the Council in calculating this provision in our 2022/23 AFR. As this has
not been actioned, the recommendation has been raised again. See Recommendation 3 in Appendix C.
Assessment

@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

24



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Information
Technology

This section provides an overview of results from our assessment of Information Technology (IT) environment and controls which included identifying risks from the use of IT related to business
process controls relevant to the financial audit. This includes an overall IT General Control (ITGC] rating per IT system and details of the ratings assigned to individual control areas.

ITGC control area rating

Technology Additional procedures
Level of acquisition, carried out to address
IT assessment Overall ITGC Security development and Technology Related significant risks arising from our
application performed rating management maintenance infrastructure risks/other risks findings

ITGC assessment

- Financial reportin
o) P 9
©Oracle EBS .[deS|gn and . expenditure, payables, Not applicable
«Q implementation .

[ : payroll and journals

effectiveness only)

N

(]

Assessment

@ Significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements
Non-significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements/significant deficiencies identified but with sufficient mitigation of relevant risk
IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements judged to be effective at the level of testing in scope

® Notin scope for testing

25
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Digital Audit

We have invested significantly in our digital tools and our audit approach is underpinned by a suite of tools, enabling us to capture and analyse the detailed data contained within the
general ledger. This supports more efficient and effective testing, with a focus on higher risk areas and unusual transactions. The ability to obtain full ledger data quickly and effectively is key
to the progress of audit work, as is documentation of the Council’s methodology for mapping code structures to the financial statements and use of off-ledger adjustments. Difficulties and
delays in obtaining data adversely impact on the scheduling and delivery of the audit and it is important that management engage with the audit teams to understand the requirements for
data transfer, providing a clearly documented understanding of how financial statement entries are produced from underlying ledger and a timetable for doing so.

We requested several reports/documents from the Council to aid with this and these are summarised in the table below along with comments on delivery.

Document requested

Date requested

Date received

Comments

Closing trial balance for

0S 9bed

202223 4 July 2024 4 July 2024
Opening trial balance for
2023-24 4 July 2024 4 July 2024
Closing trial balance for 4 July 2024 An |n|t.|o| B was provided on 4 July ?02'+, however, the.re were issues |o|er’1t|f|eo| WI'Eh the
2023-24 4 July 2024 mapping requirements of the reporting and the Council had to rework this to provide an
2 30 July 202 updated TB on 30 July 2024.
Significant effort was input by the audit team, finance team and Cantium Business Solutions
All general ledger 4 July 2024 19 July 2024 to use the Discoverer tool to enable o full download of the general ledger that could be
transactions during 2023-24 Y Y utilised by our Digital Audit Team, providing efficiencies for the audit team. Work done in
2023/24 will be usable in future years, ensuring efficiencies in our audits going forward.
Mapping between the trial 26 J 2024 -, . . . . .
- . une Initial mapping documents received were not in a format that was compatible with our
balance and the financial 4 July 2024 software and had to be reworked
statements for 2023-24 9 August 2024 ’
Council financial statements were published and presented for audit on 31 May 2024, in line
Draft accounts for 2023-24 31 May 2024 with requirements. Group financial statements were not presented for audit until 29 August

2024 and have not yet been published. See recommendation 1in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

26



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with

governance.

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation to fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Governance and Audit Committee. We have not been made aware of any incidents in the period
and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

Matters in relation to
related parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

atters in relation to laws
gand regulations
«Q

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not identified any
incidences from our audit work.

D
o Written representations
|

Aletter of representation has been requested from the Council, including specific representations in respect of the Group covering the financial
statements, annual governance statement and narrative report which is included in the Governance and Audit Committee papers.

Confirmation requests
from third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to the Council’s banking, investment and borrowing institutions. This
permission was granted and the requests were sent. All confirmation responses were received. PENDING NATWEST CONFIRMATIONS FOR 7
SCHOOLS

Accounting practices

We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Council's accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. We are
satisfied that the Council’s accounting policies, estimates and disclosures are reasonable having completed our work and confirmed several
adjustments to the financial statements

Audit evidence
and explanations/
significant difficulties

All information and explanations requested from management is being provided as promptly as possible. Information and evidence which needs to be
provided outside of the main finance team does however take longer and has resulted in some delays in the audit process.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

27



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

2S abed

Issue

Commentary

Going concern

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are requiredto “cbtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about the appropriateness of
management's use of the going
concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the
financial statements and to conclude
whetherthere is a material
uncertainty about the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern” (1SA

(UK) 570).

In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice - Practice Note 10:
Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The Financial Reporting Council
recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing standards are applied to an entity in a
manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of financial statements in that sector. Practice Note 10
provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector entities:

* the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources
because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for accounting will apply
where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related
to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and standardised approach for the consideration of going
concern will often be appropriate for public sector entities

* for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is more likely
to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Our consideration of the
Council's financial sustainability is addressed by our value for money work, which is covered elsewhere in this report.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern basis of
accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the auditor applies the
continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting framework adopted by the
Council meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service approach. In doing so, we have
considered and evaluated:

* the nature of the Council and its group and the environment in which it operates
* the Council and group’s financial reporting framework
* the Council's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern

* management’s going concern assessment for the Council and group.

On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
* a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

28



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements:
other responsibilities under the Code

Issue

Commentary

Other information

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements (including the Annual
Governance Statement, Narrative Report and Pension Fund Financiall Stotements], is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. No inconsistencies have been identified.

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) provided for audit and presented to Governance and Audit Committee members in November 2024 is not yet
complete. We have reviewed the draft version but cannot conclude on the AGS until we have reviewed a final version. This remains an outstanding audit
matter.

Subject to the satisfactory completion of the outstanding matters, we plan to issue an unmodified opinion in respect of other information.

Matters on which we report
Py exception
QD

€G ab

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a number of areas:

* if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is misleading or inconsistent
with the information of which we are aware from our audit,

* if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties.
+ where we are not satisfied in respect of arrangements to secure value for money and have reported a significant weakness/es.

We have nothing to report on these matters.

Specified procedures for
Whole of Government
Accounts

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation pack under WGA
group audit instructions.

As the group exceeds the specified reporting threshold of £2bn we examine and report on the consistency of the WGA consolidation pack with the group's
audited financial statements.

This work is not yet started and will be completed after the financial statements audit is complete.

Certification of the closure
of the audit

We intend to certify the closure of the 2023/24 audit of Kent County Council and its group in the audit reports, as detailed in Appendix H and I. Formal
closure of the audit will not take place until we have completed procedures on the Whole of Government Accounts.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

29



Commercial in confidence

3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM)

Approach to Value for Money work for
2023/24

The National Audit Office issued its guidance for auditors
in April 2020. The Code require auditors to consider
whether the body has put in place proper arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources.

¥/hen reporting on these arrangements, the Code requires
guditors to structure their commentary on arrangements
®nder the three specified reporting criteria.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

&%

Improving economy, efficiency Financial Sustainability Governance
and effectiveness

Arrangements for ensuring the Arrangements for ensuring that the
Arrangements for improving the body can continue to deliver body makes appropriate decisions
way the body delivers its services. services. This includes planning in the right way. This includes
This includes arrangements for resources to ensure adequate arrangements for budget setting
understanding costs and delivering finances and maintain sustainable and management, risk
efficiencies and improving levels of spending over the medium management, and ensuring the
outcomes for service users. term (3-5 years) body makes decisions based on

appropriate information

Potential types of recommendations

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on the body’s arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, which are as follows:

Statutory recommendation
Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses in arrangements to
secure value for money they should make recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the
body. We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

Improvement recommendation
These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the body, but are not

made as a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the body’s arrangements

30



Commercial in confidence

3. VFM: our procedures and conclusions

We have completed our VFM work and our detailed commentary is set out in the separate Auditor’s Annual Report, which is presented alongside this report.

We identified significant weaknesses in the Council's arrangements and so are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. Our auditor’s report will make reference to these significant weaknesses in arrangements, as required by the Code.

Significant weakness identified

Conclusion

Outcome

Kent County Council made good progress overall with spending
control and savings plans during 223/24. However, its’ spend on
adult social care and health remains stubbornly high. At the time
of writing this report, the forecast overspend for the whole Council
in 2024/25 stood at £16.3 million. This was more than matched by
the forecast shortfall in adult social care and health savings for
the year of £16.5 million. Special educational needs and disability
is the other area were the Council struggles to contain spend.

U Despite the Council participating in a safety valve agreement

(and complying with its terms), the Council’s dedicated schools

grant deficit continued to grow in 2023/24

GG abe

Significant weakness identified and key
recommendation raised

Key Recommendation - The Council should explore options for increased
efficiency in the adult social care and health directorate in 2024/25 and future
years. Reducing current overspends will be essential if reserves are to remain
robust in future. Where it is the case that planned savings for adult social care
and health need longer timeframes to secure than had been expected (for
example with brokerage of new prices and access to new community
rehabilitation services), new timeframes should be calculated or new options for
savings and additional income should be explored

Significant weakness identified and key
recommendation raised

Key Recommendation - The Council should work holistically to reduce spend on
the high needs block. The Council has made good progress in slowing the rate of
growth in spend on high needs, but continued discipline is essential to limit the
call required on reserves to the agreed total of £80 million

Only 38% of Internal Audit recommendations were implemented
during 2023/24. Although there have been changes to operating
standards since the year end, which are understood to have
helped, it is still the case that by September 2024 there were 14
high priority Internal Audit actions due and 12 high priority Internal
Audit actions in progress.

Significant weakness identified and key
recommendation raised

Key Recommendation - Remaining high priority actions from Internal Audit
recommendations should be completed and closed. Any improvements made to
implementation rates under the new operating standards should be maintained.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

31



Commercial in confidence

L. Independence considerations

9g abed

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant
matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm or
covered persons (including its partners, senior managers, managers and network firms).

In this context, we disclose the following to you:

Paul Dossett is currently serving their seventh year on the engagement. As discussed, and
agreed with you and PSAA, we will rotate Paul in 2025/26. We have mitigated the familiarity
threat by an additional partner reviewing their key judgements to ensure that these are not
influenced by the familiarity that may arise from a long relationship with the Council.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the
financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor
Guidance Note O1issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix F.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Transparency

Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of
the action we have taken over the past year to improve audit quality as well as the
results of internal and external quality inspections. For more details see Grant
Thornton International Transparency report 2023.

32


https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf

Commercial in confidence

L. Independence considerations

As part of our assessment of our independence we note the following matters:

Matter

Conclusion

Relationships with Grant Thornton

We are not aware of any relationships between Grant Thornton and the Company that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our integrity, independence and objectivity

Relationships and Investments held by individuals

We have not identified any potential issues in respect of personal relationships with the
Group or investments in the Group held by individuals

Employment of Grant Thornton staff

We are not aware of any former Grant Thornton partners or staff being employed, or holding discussions in respect of
employment, by the Group as a director or in a senior management role covering financial, accounting or control related areas.

i)
8Business relationships
D

We have not identified any business relationships between Grant Thornton and the Group

a1
\bontingent fees in relation to non-audit services

No contingent fee arrangements are in place for non-audit services provided

Gifts and hospitality

We have not identified any gifts or hospitality provided to, or received from, a member of the Group’s board, senior
management or staff that would exceed the threshold set in the Ethical Standard

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention and consider that an objective
reasonable and informed third party would take the same view. The firm and each covered person have complied with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and confirm that we
are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

33



Commercial in confidence

L. Independence considerations

Audit and non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the group. The following non-audit services were identified, as well as the threats
to our independence and safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats.

Service Fees £

Threats identified

Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of 15,000
Teachers Pension Return

~ 85 abed

on-audit related Nil

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

Self review (because GT
provides audit services)

N/A

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this
work is £15,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £446,964 and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK
LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the
perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

To mitigate against the self review threat , the timing of certification work is done after the audit has completed,
materiality of the amounts involved to our opinion and unlikelihood of material errors arising and the Council has
informed management who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree the accuracy of our
reports on grants.

N/A

These services are consistent with the group’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Governance and Audit Committee via our

Audit Plan. None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

34



Commercial in confidence

Appendices

Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance

Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Follow up of prior year recommendations

Audit Adjustments

Fees and non-audit services

Auditing developments

Management Letter of Representation

A
B.
C

.

&,
F.
G
-

Audit opinion

35

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Appendices

A.Communication of audit matters to those
charged with governance

Audit Audit

Our communication plan Plan Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged

with governance

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing
and expected general content of communications including
significant risks

Confirmation of independence and objectivity

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence. Relationships and other matters which

might be thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work
erformed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and network firms, together with

;,Ufoees charged. Details of safeguards applied to threats to
%independence

OMatters in relation to the group audit, including:
cope of work on components, involvement of group auditors in
component audits, concerns over quality of component auditors'
work, limitations of scope on the group audit, fraud or suspected
fraud

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written
representations that have been sought

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or
which results in material misstatement of the financial statements

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK), prescribe matters which we are required
to communicate with those charged with governance, and which we set out in
the table here.

This document, the Audit Findings, outlines those key issues, findings and other
matters arising from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in
writing rather than orally, together with an explanation as to how these have
been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with
ISAs (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on
the financial statements that have been prepared by management with
the oversight of those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or
those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

Distribution of this Audit Findings report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals
charged with governance, we are also required to distribute our findings to those
members of senior management with significant operational and strategic
responsibilities. We are grateful for your specific consideration and onward
distribution of our report to all those charged with governance.

36



Commercial in confidence

B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

We have identified three recommendations for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with
management and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2024/25 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies
that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing

standards.

Assessment Issue and risk

Recommendations

Publication of group financial statements

The council financial statements were published on the Kent County Council
website by 31 May 2024, alongside the appropriate publication notice, as
required by legislation. These accounts were for the Council only and did not
contain the group financial statements and notes. Group accounts were not
presented for audit until August 2024.

Group accounts are required because the component companies which are

owned by the Council are deemed to be financially material by management.
Their exclusion from the financial statements that are published for inspection
could raise the point that the published accounts are not materially accurate.

For 2024/25 and beyond, the council should produce full group accounts for
publication on the website by 30 June, so the public inspection period is applied to the
group accounts and not only the council accounts.

Management response

The deadline for the production of the single entity accounts of 31 May is extremely
challenging and group accounts, considered disclosure to the accounts rather than
part of the main statements, has been deemed by management as acceptable to
publish as part of the final accounts. The change to the publication date for draft

Y accounts to 30 June means including group financial statements is more achievable in
8 The financial statements on the website have not been updated for the inclusion future years and plans are in place to deliver this for 2024/25
@ of group accounts and they have therefore not been open for public inspection.
g This practice was followed in the prior year.
Preparation and publication of the Annual Governance Statement For 2024/25 and beyond, the council should produce the Annual Governance
‘ The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is a key part of the annual reporting Statement at the same time as the full group accounts, by 30 June.
for the Council. While the Council chooses to report its AGS separately to the
ﬂnono!ol stqtements, which it is entitled to, the AQS should be published with the Management response
draft financial statements by 31 May of the reporting year.
This is agreed and schedules are in place to ensure the AGS is published in line with the
draft financial statements.
Controls

® High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements

Low - Best practice

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

37



Commercial in confidence

B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Assessment Issue and risk

Recommendations

Implementation of IFRS 16 - Leases

‘ The Council has undertaken work during 2023/24 to identify the impact of the
implementation of IFRS 16 for leases. The work done did not consider the impact
of IFRS 16 on PFl liabilities, or peppercorn leases. Peppercorn leases will require
the asset and resulting liability to be stated at market value, which could be a
significant value depending on the level and nature of assets held on
peppercorn leases.

Management will require to undertake a review of PFl liabilities and peppercorn leases
to ascertain the full impact of the implementation of IFRS 16 in the 2024/25 accounts.

Management response

Management took the view that to incur costs in requesting valuations for peppercorn
leases for the estimation of the impact of IFRS 16 was not good use of Council resources
but always planned to obtain these for the 2024/25 accounts as part of the
implementation of the standard. Draft valuations have now been obtained and are
currently being reviewed - they are not a significant value.

Guidance from CIPFA on the remeasurement of the PFl liability is still in draft so
accurately calculating the impact of this was not possible for 2023/24, but work is
underway on this as planned in 2024/25 and will be completed once final guidance is
published by CIPFA.

29 afed

Controls

® High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements

Low - Best practice

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

38



Commercial in confidence

C. Follow up of prior year recommendations

We identified the following issues in the audit of Kent County Council's 2022/23 financial statements, which resulted in [x] recommendations being reported in our 2022/23 Audit Findings report.
We have followed up on the implementation of our recommendations and note [X] are still to be completed but note that our 2022/23 Audit Findings Report was not issued until March 2024 so
there has been limited time for implementation.

Assessment  Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue
1 X Cash reconciliation - schools salaries account Auditor update 2023/24

As part of the work conducted on cash and cash equivalents, we selected for testing the school’s There has been no change to the schools payroll bank
salaries bank account. A reconciling item of £2.8m for PAYE was included erroneously in the reconciliation process.
reconciling items and was not a true reconciling item. We continue to flag the lack of reconciliation in our Audit
We recommended that management ensure bank reconciliations are performed and reviewed on a Findings Report to ensure there is complete transparency of
monthly basis to ensure the financial statements are complete and accurate. the issue with the Governance and Audit Committee and to
During our 2023/24 audit we identified that reconcilaitions have not been completed during the encourage best practice.
year or at year-end as the prior year recommendation was issued after 2023/24 year-end
instructions had been issued. Further, we identified that the correcting journal entry for the £2.8m

g identified in 2022/23 had been duplicated in the ledger but has not been paid twice.

Lg We again assess this as a high priority recommendation for management

(9]

w2 v VAT uncertainty Auditor update 2023/24
Testing of the VAT debtor identified a difference of £4,280k arising from a transaction made in The Council has obtained expert tax advice on the matter
2019/20 pertaining to Kings Hill. The history of the transaction is complex and involves two and settled the liability with HMRC.
voluntary disclosures to HMRC in respect of underpaid and overpaid VAT. As a result of our
challenge, management have revisited this transaction and through their investigation, they have
now concluded that their 31 March 2023 VAT claim of £32,601k included an error. They had
incorrectly claimed again for the £4,280k which they had already received in October 2022.
Whilst evidence provided does support management’s judgement, because the VAT issue is
complicated and because management’s judgement is not support by expert tax advice, this was
disclosed in our 2022/23 Audit Findings Report as an uncertainty.

Assessment

v" Action completed
X Not yet addressed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

39



Commercial in confidence

C. Follow up of prior year recommendations

Assessment  Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue
3 v Adult Social Care Provision for bad debts Auditor update 2023/24
As part of our review of your estimate, we have concluded that the As part of the Council’s annual review of the adequacy of the bad debt provision
assumptions used by management are optimistic leading to an percentages, they consider the rate of default and the adequacy of the percentages
understatement in the provision for doubtful debt. More information is used. An amendment will be made to the provision calculation for 2024/25 which is not
set out on page 24. expected to have a material impact to the current provision held.
We recommended in the 2022/23 AFR that management obtained
updated information regarding default rates in adult social care debtors
to inform the percentages they apply to age debt.
L v Fully depreciated VPE Auditor update 2023/24
As part of our audit work, we identified a material amount of VPE which No further issues were identified by our audit testing in 2023/24. Management have
was fully depreciated. Management reviewed this balance and performed a review to ensure that all nil NBV VPE are written out of the financial
concluded that there was insufficient evidence to confirm whether those records where they are no longer in use.
S-DU assets existed or not. Thereby increasing the risk that VPE gross cost and
«Q accumulated depreciation is misstated.
@
?2 5 v Journals - policies and procedures Auditor update 2023/24
As explained on page 10, our audit work identified that journals can be No further issues were identified by our audit testing in 2023/24.
posted by a user other than the person who prepared it. We were also
told that this functionality should only be used in rare circumstances.
Whilst our testing has not identified any issues with the journals posted
by a user that did not create the journal, we have agreed with
management the need to strengthen and communicate policies and
procedures about the appropriate use of the functionality and the need
to retain an audit trail as to the rationale of it being used.
6 X Journals authorisation Auditor update 2023/24
As reported in prior years (since 2021/22), manual journals posted to the  There has been no change to the journal control environment for 2023/2l. We continue
general ledger do not require authorisation or approval. There is no to flag the lack of journal authorisation in our Audit Findings Report to ensure there is
segregation of duties between the preparer and poster of a journal. complete transparency of the issue with the Governance and Audit Committee and to
encourage best practice.
We note that the Council is currently planning a new ledger system and encourage
that appropriate controls around manual journals are implemented. Management
have engaged with the external auditors for guidance on their proposed approach in
the new accounting system. The new system will improve controls.
Assessment

v Action completed

X Not yet addressed
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

40



Commercial in confidence

C. Follow up of prior year recommendations

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

7 X School bank account reconciliations

As reported in prior years (since 2021/22), schools bank reconciliations are not always
being performed as at 31 March. This results in a projected misstatement on the schools
bank accounts. This year the error is projected to be £4.8m.

We again assess this as a high priority recommendation for management

Auditor update 2023/24

We note that the recommendation made in the 2022/23 Audit
Findings Report was received after the closedown instructions had
been sent to schools for 2023/24. We have therefore projected an
error on the schools bank balances again.

Management update 2023/24

Work was undertaken during the 2022/23 audit to show that the risk
of misstatement was unlikely. As per the Audit Finding Report from
the 2022/23, due to timescales, preparations for closedown
processes in schools were too advanced for changes to be made for
the 2023/24 year end, but we committed to addressing it as part of

Rv) the 2024/25 year end timetable. Changes to timetables have been
8 made to allow time for reconciliation returns to be completed as at
o) 31 March, which has in part been made feasible by the extension to
8 publish draft accounts to 30 June.

Assessment

v Action completed
X Not yet addressed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Ll



Commercial in confidence

D. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2024.

Comprehensive Income and Balance Sheet Impact on total net Impact on general fund
Detail Expenditure Statement £000 £000 expenditure £000 £000
REFCUS correction Cr REFCUS Dr Assets under construction Dr Movement in Reserves
Correction of expenditure incorrectly classified as (10.450) 386 Statement
REFCUS (Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Dr Infrastructure assets 10,450
Under Statute], which should have been recorded 10.064

as the Council’s capital expenditure

Cr Capital Adjustment Account
(10,450)

Overall impact (10,450) 0 0 10,450

99 abed

42

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

D. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Disclosure/issue/Omission Auditor recommendations Adjusted?

Note 37b - Pension liability Management have agreed to change the disclosure v

‘Other movements in the liability/asset’ are more correctly described as ‘Present value of
unfunded obligation’

Note 2 - Accounting Policies Management have agreed to change the disclosure v

Inclusion of the de-minimis limits of £5,000 for revenue accruals and £10,000 for capital
accruals in the accounting policies, in line with the council’s practices.

Note 2 - Accounting Policies Management have agreed to change the disclosure v

The impact of implementing IFRS 16 did not clarify that the £20m estimate did not include PFI
liabilities or peppercorn leases.

/9 abed

Note 6 - Remuneration disclosures Management have agreed to change the disclosure v

Changes to wording regarding exit packages under £40,000 and the records kept by the
Council. The Interim Corporate Director of Finance was added to the remuneration table
rather than only being disclosed in the foot note to the table.

Note 8 - Material items of income and expense Management have agreed to change the disclosure v

Prior year comparative figures were not documented in full in the first draft accounts

Note 32 - Reconciliation of liabilities arising from finance activities Management have agreed to change the disclosure v

Figures for lease liabilities and on balance sheet PFl liabilities were incorrectly stated in the
first draft accounts.

Note 38 - Audit fee Management have agreed to change the disclosure v

Final fee variations for 2022/23 have now been agreed with PSAA and the prior year audit fee
required to be amended to reflect the approved fee variation. The proposed fee for Teacher’s
Pensions assurance also required amendment for 2023/24.

43

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



D. Audit Adjustments (continued)

Impact of unadjusted misstatements

Commercial in confidence

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the 2023/24 audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements. These have been reported to the
Governance and Audit Committee as they are over our trivial threshold of £2.75m, but are underneath materiality, individually and in aggregate. The Governance and Audit Committee is

required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below.

Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement Balance Sheet Impact on total net Impact on general Reason for
Detail £000 £000 expenditure £000 fund £000 not adjusting
Schools payroll bank reconciliation - PAYE incorrect journal Dr Cash 0 0  Immaterial projected
As set out on page x, audit testing identified a correction journal 2,784 audit difference
for’ PAYE costs that had incorrectly been entered in the ledger Cr Creditors
_dWICe. [2,78"")
Q@
(MSchools bank reconciliation Dr Income Cr Cash 4,880 (4,880])  Immaterial projected
%s set out on page x, audit have identified an uncertainty in the 880 (+.880) audit difference
value of cash and cash equivalents held by schools as not all
schools perform bank reconciliations as at 31 March. Audit
extrapolated the known error in our sample across the total
population to correct the potentially overstated cash balance.
Depreciation Dr Deprecation Cr Accumulated 10,008 (10,008)  Immaterial projected
As in prior year, audit work identified that the remaining life expense deprecation audit difference
assumption was based on inappropriate judgements about future 10,008 (10,008)
activity rather than it being based on the current state of each
property. Audit estimate that this has understated the deprecation
charge in 2023/24
First year depreciation charge Dr Deprecation Cr Accumulated 2,822 (2,822)  Immaterial projected

The Council does not depreciate assets in the year of their
addition as we would expect. The journal represents the
depreciation that audit consider should have been charged

expense

2,822

deprecation
(2,822)

audit difference

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

ul



D. Audit Adjustments (continued)

Impact of unadjusted misstatements - continued

Commercial in confidence

Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement Balance Sheet Impact on total net Impact on general Reason for
Detail £000 £000 expenditure £000 fund £000 not adjusting
Provision for doubtful debts - social care debtors Dr Expenditure  Cr Bad debt provision 14,394 (14,394)  Immaterial projected
As set out on page x, audit concluded that the assumptions used 14,394 (14.394) audit difference
to calculate the social care debtors provision for doubtful debts
were optimistic. Audit have calculated an amount considered to
be more prudent, which is shown here as an audit difference
TWommercial services creditor Dr Debtors 0 0  Immaterial projected
anagement include a 15% provision against invoices they 6,185 audit difference
Dreceive, because, in their view, not all of them will pass validation. )
%}omporison between the 15% provision and the post period-end Cr Creditors
payments, we consider there to be a difference of £6.185m, which (6.185)
understates the accrual at 31 March 2024.
Overall impact 32,104 (32,104) 32,104 (32,104)

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

45



Commercial in confidence

D. Audit Adjustments (continued)

Impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the prior year audit which had not been made within the final set of 2022/23 financial statements

Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Balance Sheet Impact on total net
Detail Statement £000 £000 expenditure £000
Depreciation: Nil Nil Nil
In the prior year we determined that depreciation was undercharged by £11.984 million. As
accumulated depreciation is written out on revaluation, we are satisfied that the prior year
misstatement has no impact as at 31 March 2024. Note - a similar issue for 2023/24 has arisen
and this is captured in the schedule of 2023/24 unadjusted misstatements.
Salaries bank account: Nil Nil Nil
Un the prior year we identified that the cashbook figure for the salaries bank account was
Qoverstated by £2.8m. This was a balance sheet transaction and therefore has no impact on the
D2023/24 accounts.
\l
@)
Operating expenditure - recharges overstatement: Nil Nil Nil
In the prior year we reported that the internal recharge process had not been properly
completed, meaning that expenditure was overstated by £3.5m and revenue was understated
by £3.5m. This misstatement had no impact on the net expenditure or general fund and
therefore has no impact on the 2023/24 accounts
Commercial services - creditor/debtor overstatement: Nil Nil Nil
In the prior year we reported that intercompany transactions had been incorrectly recorded in
the ledger, overstating creditors and debtors by the same amount. This was a balance sheet
transaction and therefore has no impact on the 2023/24 accounts.
Commercial services creditor Nil Nil Nil
In the prior year we reported that an energy accrual was understated by £3.5m. As the accrual
was offset by a corresponding debtor, this was a balance sheet transaction and therefore has
no impact on the 2023/24 accounts.
Overall impact Nil Nil Nil

46

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

E. Fees and non-audit services

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non-audit services.

Audit fees Proposed fee Final fee
£ £
Scale fee 420,984 420,984
ISA 315 fee variation 12,550 15,690
Use of expert for PPE valuations 10,380
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £433, 4k £1146,964
Y
Q
«Q
(¢}
\'
Mon-audit fees for other services Proposed fee Final fee
£ £
Audit Related Services - Grant Claims 15,000 TBC
Total non-audit fees (excluding VAT) 16,000 TBC

The fees reconcile to the financial statements.
None of the above services were provided on a contingent fee basis

This covers all services provided by us and our network to the group, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known connected parties
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our integrity, objectivity or independence.

47

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

F. Auditing developments

Revised ISAs

There are changes to the following ISA (UK):

ISA (UK) 315 (Revised July 2020] ‘Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement’

This impacts audits of financial statement for periods commencing on or after 15 December 2021.

ISA (UK) 220 (Revised July 2021) ‘Quality Management for an Audit of Financial Statements’

ISA (UK) 240 (Revised May 2021] ‘The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements

A summary of the impact of the key changes on various aspects of the audit is included below:

These changes will impact audit for audits of financial statement for periods commencing on or after 15 December 2022.

Area of change

Impact of changes

Risk assessment

2/ abed

The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures performed in support of the audit opinion may change due to clarification of:

* the risk assessment process, which provides the basis for the assessment of the risks of material misstatement and the design of audit procedures
* the identification and extent of work effort needed for indirect and direct controls in the system of internal control

* the controls for which design and implementation needs to be assess and how that impacts sampling

* the considerations for using automated tools and techniques.

Direction, supervision and
review of the engagement

Greater responsibilities, audit procedures and actions are assigned directly to the engagement partner, resulting in increased involvement in the
performance and review of audit procedures.

Professional scepticism

The design, nature, timing and extent of audit procedures performed in support of the audit opinion may change due to:
* increased emphasis on the exercise of professional judgement and professional scepticism

* an equal focus on both corroborative and contradictory information obtained and used in generating audit evidence
* increased guidance on management and auditor bias

* additional focus on the authenticity of information used as audit evidence

* afocus on response to inquiries that appear implausible

Definition of engagement
team

The definition of engagement team when applied in a group audit, will include both the group auditors and the component auditors. The implications of this
will become clearer when the auditing standard governing special considerations for group audits is finalised. In the interim, the expectation is that this will
extend a number of requirements in the standard directed at the ‘engagement team’ to component auditors in addition to the group auditor.

* Consideration is also being given to the potential impacts on confidentiality and independence.

Fraud

The design, nature timing and extent of audit procedures performed in support of the audit opinion may change due to:
* clarification of the requirements relating to understanding fraud risk factors
* additional communications with management or those charged with governance

Documentation

The amendments to these auditing standards will also result in additional documentation requirements to demonstrate how these requirements have been
addressed.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

48



G. Management Letter of Representation
- included as a separate agenda item

€/ abed

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

Commercial in con

fidence



Commercial in confidence

H. Audit opinion

- included as a separate agenda item

v/ abed

50

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



G/ abed

GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

"Grant Thornton” refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



This page is intentionally left blank



Independent auditor's report to the members of Kent County Council

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Kent County Council (the ‘Authority’) and its subsidiaries
(the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2024, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow
Statement, the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Group Movement in
Reserves Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash Flow Statement and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Authority as at 31 March
2024 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Authority’s expenditure and income for the
year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2024) (“the Code of Audit Practice”) approved
by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the group and the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Corporate Director Finance’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group and the
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Authority or the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Corporate Director Finance’s conclusions, and in accordance with the
expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2023/24 that the Authority’s and group’s financial statements shall be prepared on a
going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services
provided by the group and the Authority. In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice
Note 10 Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom
(Revised 2022) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We
assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the group and Authority and the group
and Authority’s disclosures over the going concern period.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Corporate Director Finance’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Page 77

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1



Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s and
the group’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Corporate Director Finance with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Governance Statement and the
Statement of Accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, and our
auditor’s report on the pension fund financial statements, The Corporate Director Finance is responsible
for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in November 2024 on behalf of
the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether
the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24, or is misleading or
inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider
whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are
satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements, the
other information published together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

e we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

¢ we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

¢ we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under
Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the
audit; or;

e we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

¢ we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Page 78

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2



Responsibilities of the Authority and the Corporate Director Finance

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts [set out on
page 20], the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial
affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.
In this authority, that officer is the Corporate Director Finance. The Corporate Director Finance is
responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the Corporate Director Finance determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporate Director Finance is responsible for assessing the
Authority’s and the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been
informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Authority and the group without
the transfer of its services to another public sector entity.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements. Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud, is detailed below.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the group
and Authority and determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to specific assertions
in the financial statements are those related to the reporting frameworks (the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24, the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Local Government Act 2003 and
the Local Government Act 1972).

We enquired of management and the Governance and Audit Committee concerning the group and
Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:
¢ the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

e the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

e the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance
with laws and regulations.

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Governance and Audit Committee, whether they
were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any
knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority and group’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management’s incentives and
opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of
management override of controls. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to

e unusual journal entries made during the year and at the accounts preparation stage; and

e the appropriateness of assumptions applied by management in determining significant
accounting estimates, such as the valuation of land and buildings and the valuation of the
defined benefit pension liability.

Our audit procedures involved:

e evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent
and detect fraud,

Page 79

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3



e journal entry testing, with a focus on testing unusual journal entries made during the year
and accounts preparation for appropriateness and corroboration

e challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting
estimates in respect of the valuation of land and buildings and investment property and the
valuation of the defined benefit pension liability, and

e assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our
procedures on the related financial statement item.

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements
were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is
inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members, including the potential for fraud and error in revenue and expenditure recognition and the
significant estimates related to the valuation of land and buildings and investment property and the
valuation of the defined benefit pension liability. We remained alert to any indications of non-compliance
with laws and regulations, including fraud, throughout the audit.

Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the group and
Authority’s engagement team and component auditors included consideration of the engagement team's
and component auditor’s understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar
nature and complexity through appropriate training and participation

o knowledge of the local government sector in which the group and Authority operates

e understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority and group
including:

o the provisions of the applicable legislation
o guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE
o the applicable statutory provisions.
In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

e the Authority and group’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and
its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions,
account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may
result in risks of material misstatement.

e the Authority and group's control environment, including the policies and procedures
implemented by the Authority and group to ensure compliance with the requirements of the
financial reporting framework.

For components at which audit procedures were performed, we requested component auditors report to
us instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that gave rise to a risk of material
misstatement of the group financial statements. No such matters were identified by the component
auditors.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.

Page 80

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4


http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — the Authority’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception —the Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been
able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2024.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter except:

e On 12 December 2024, we identified that the Authority had made good progress overall with
spending control and savings plans during 2023/24. However, its spend on adult social care
and health remains stubbornly high. Special educational needs and disability is another area
where the Authority struggles to contain spend. We recommended that the Authority should:

o explore options for increased efficiency in the adult social care and health directorate
in 2024/25 and future years. Reducing current overspends will be essential if reserves
are to remain robust in future. Where it is the case that planned savings for adult
social care and health need longer timeframes to secure than had been expected (for
example with brokerage of new prices and access to new community rehabilitation
services), new timeframes should be calculated or new options for savings and
additional income should be explored.

o work holistically to reduce spend on the high needs block. The Authority has made
good progress in slowing the rate of growth in spend on high needs, but continued
discipline is essential to limit the call required on reserves to the agreed total of £80
million.

e On 12 December 2024, we identified that only 38% of Internal Audit recommendations were
implemented during 2023/24. We recommend that the authority should:

o ensure that remaining high priority actions from Internal Audit recommendations
should be completed and closed. Any improvements made to implementation rates
under the new operating standards should be maintained.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied
that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of
the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
are operating effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2024. This guidance sets out the
arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these
arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

e Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can
continue to deliver its services;

e Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly
manages its risks; and

Page 81

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5



e Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about its
costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these three
specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and
commentary in our Auditor’'s Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there is
evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Delay in
certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Kent County Council for the year
ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed the work necessary in relation to
consolidation returns, including Whole of Government Accounts (WGA), and the National Audit Office
has concluded their work in respect of WGA for the year ended 31 March 2024. We are satisfied that
this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 85 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the
Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Paul Dossett, Key Audit Partner
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

London

Date:

Page 82

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6



Agenda Item 7

By: Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate
and Traded Services, Peter Oakford
Interim Corporate Director Finance — John Betts

To: Governance and Audit Committee — 12 December 2024
Subject: DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2023-24
Classification: Unrestricted

Recommendations:

Members are asked to:

a) Consider and approve the 2023-24 Statement of Accounts
b) Approve the Letters of Representation
C) Note the recommendation in the Audit Findings Report and their

management responses

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The draft Statement of Accounts of the County Council for 2023-24 follows
this report. The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2024 state
that;

... the publication date for final, audited accounts is by 28 February 2025.
The authority must, following the conclusion of the period of public inspection,
in the following order:

I) consider, either by way of a Committee or by the Members meeting as a
whole, the Statement of Accounts;

ii) approve the Statement of Accounts by a resolution of that Committee or
meeting;

i) ensure that the Statement of Accounts is signed and dated by the person
presiding at the Committee or meeting at which that approval was given.

1.2 Itis recommended that the Statement of Accounts are finalised and signed
by the Committee Chairman today on the basis that the audit work is
substantially completed.

1.3 The draft Statement of Accounts attached to this report are for comment and
review and reflect changes identified as part of the audit process.

1.4 The report and the draft Statement of Accounts are the culmination of eight
months’ work after year end and collaboration with the external auditors.
Responses to over 225 queries have been provided and evidence of income,
expenditure and year-end adjustments (for example specific invoices, bank
statements, grant letters) has been provided for over 600 individual sample
requests.

Pagk 83



15

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

The Audit Findings Report (AFR) is once more a positive outcome for the
Council. The signing of the accounts before the end of the 2024 calendar
year will allow planning time to implement audit recommendations in the AFR
ahead of the completion of the 2024-25 accounts.

The deadline for the publication of draft accounts has been extended to 30
June from 31 May for years 2024-25 to 2027-28. The audit backstop dates
for the next four years are:

2024-25: 27 February 2026
2025-26: 31 January 2027
2026-27: 30 November 2027
2027-28: 30 November 2028

The public inspection period concluded on 12 July 2024.

Letters of Representation are provided in connection with the audits of the
financial statements for the Council and the Kent Pension Fund; and they will
be required to be formally minuted by the Committee to confirm they are
approved.

The purpose of the Governance & Audit committee includes
the following:

Review and approval of the Statement of Accounts, with
related reports, and Annual Governance Statement, and
ensure that they properly reflect the risk environment and
supporting assurances of the Council

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS - CONTENTS

The content and format of the Accounts is as prescribed in the Accounting
Code of Practice issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) and is known as the Code.

The Statement of Accounts for 2023-24 is prepared on an International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) basis.

The remainder of Section 2 of this report highlights the key facts, figures, and
iIssues from the attached draft Accounts.

Narrative Pages 3-19

The narrative provides clarification on the relationship between the
Statement of Accounts and other financial information that the Council
reports on externally. The 2023-24 narrative provides information on the
funding strategy applied during 2023-24 and the direction of travel for 2024-
25 onwards.

The details of the revenue outturn are shown on page 14. This shows an
Page 84



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

overspend of £9.6m before roll forwards against the non-schools’ budgets.
Details of under/overspends within the directorates have been detailed in the
monitoring reports throughout the year and were reported in the Final Outturn
report which was considered by Cabinet on 20 June 2024. After committed
roll forwards and bids approved by Cabinet on 29 June, the resulting
overspend was £12.4m.

The £12.4m overspend was funded by drawdowns from reserves.

The level of KCC general revenue reserves is £43.2m, a net increase of £5.8m
which was part of the replenishment of general reserves as part of the 2023-
24 approved budget. This injection to the reserve was part of budget setting
to maintain the general reserve at 5% of our net revenue budget position.
£12.4m was drawn down to fund the 2023-24 overspend referred to in
paragraphs 2.5 and 2.6.

Capital expenditure excluding that incurred by schools under devolved
arrangements was £192.7m less than the revised cash limits. Of this,
£198.3m reflects re-phasing of capital expenditure plans across all services
and £5.561m was due to real variations on a small number of projects. The
overall unspent capital resources will be carried forward into 2024-25 and
beyond in order to accommodate the revised profiles of capital expenditure.

The 2023-24 International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 report shows a
further decrease in the Pensions’ Reserve deficit of £27.6m.

Statement of Responsibilities Page 20

2.10 This statement sets out the respective responsibilities of the Council and the

Corporate Director Finance in relation to the production of the final accounts.

Financial Statements Pages 21-26

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2.11 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) consolidates

all the gains and losses experienced by a council during the financial year.
As councils do not have any equity in their Balance Sheets, these gains and
losses should reconcile to the overall movement in net worth.

2.12 The CIES has two sections:

I)  Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services — the increase or decrease
in the net worth of the council as a result of incurring expenses and
generating income.

ii) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure — shows any changes in
net worth which have not been reflected in the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services. Examples include the increase or decrease in the
net worth of the council as a result of movements in the fair value of its
assets and actuarial gains or losses on pension assets and liabilities.

Pag® 85



2.13

2.14

2.15

Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS)

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves
held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be
applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and unusable reserves.
The unusable reserves are required due to accounting practices and are not
cash-backed. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows
the true economic cost of providing the Council’s services, more details of
which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Usable reserves have increased by £30.2m in 2023-24. The increase is due
to a large increase in capital grants unapplied (£61.5m). The main
movements are summarized in the table below:

£m
Relating specifically to capital
Increase in capital grants unapplied —grant funding received in -61.5
year for projects in progress
Increase in usable capital receipts — proceeds from sale of fixed -5.8
assets and loan repayments available to meet future capital
expenditure
Other movements
Increase in general fund reserves:
Contribution in the approved budget -5.0
Decrease in earmarked reserves:
Funding the 2023-24 overspend +12.4
KCC's contribution to the DSG Safety Valve Agreement +14.4
Drawdown to support the 2023-24 per approved budget +4.3
Drawdown of Section 31 Grant per approved budget +2.3
Drawdown from Major Projects reserves +3.0

The MIRS is a summary of the changes that have taken place in the bottom
half of the Balance Sheet over the financial year. It does this by analysing:

I) The increase or decrease in the net worth of the council as a result of
incurring expenses and generating income.

ii) The increase or decrease in the net worth of the council as a result of
movements in the fair value of its assets.

i) Movements between reserves to increase or reduce the resources
available to the council according to statutory provisions.

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet summarises the Council’s financial position at 31 March
each year. The top half contains the assets and liabilities that it holds or has
accrued with other parties. As local councils do not have equity, the bottom
half consists of reserves that show the disposition of a council’s net worth,
falling into two categories:

I) Usable Reserves, which include the revenue and capital resources
available to meet future expenditure (e.g. the General Fund Balance and

Pagde 86



2.16

the Capital Receipts Reserve), and

ii) Unusable Reserves, which include:
unrealised gains and losses, particularly in relation to the revaluation of
property, plant, and equipment (e.g., the Revaluation Reserve);
adjustment accounts that absorb the difference between the outcome of
applying proper accounting practices and the requirements of statutory
arrangements for funding expenditure (e.g. the Capital Adjustment
Account and the Pensions Reserve).

Property, Plant & Equipment has decreased by £46m. This includes
additions of £184m, revaluation decreases of £30m, disposals and
derecognition of £96m, depreciation of £110m and other smaller
adjustments.

2.17 Current assets increased by £26m. £51m is due to an increase in short-term

debtors, offset by a reduction of £24m in short-term investments. The short
terms debtors figure has increased for three main reasons; the VAT debtor
has increased by £29m primarily due to two reimbursements being due from
HMRC, the debtor with government departments has increased by £16m in
respect of grant income due, and £14m relates to trade receivables, offset by
smaller reductions in other balances.

2.18 Current liabilities reduced by £19m, due to a decrease in temporary borrowing

2.19

of £12m and a decrease in short term creditors of £25m, offset by an increase
in short-term provisions of £11m relating to a capital project.

Long-term liabilities have decreased by £58m. The significant movements
include a decrease in long-term borrowing of £19m and a decrease in the
pensions liability of £28m.

2.20 Net worth has increased from a surplus of £2,975m to a surplus of £2,999m.

2.21

2.22

This is due to the range of movements as detailed in sections 2.16 to 2.19.

Cash Flow Statement

This statement summarises the changes in cash and cash equivalents by
classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. Cash
equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in
value. The cash and cash equivalents balance is very similar to 2022-23.

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis detailed on pages 27 to 28 shows
how the Council’s expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes
between the Directorates. It also shows how the annual expenditure is used
and funded from resources by the Council compared with the resources
consumed or earned in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices.

Page 87



Notes to the Accounts pages 27-127

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations

2.23 This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

income and expenditure recognised by the Council in the year, in accordance
with proper accounting practice, to the resources that are specified by
statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital
and revenue expenditure. It also supports this line in the MiRS and provides
more detail on how this is split across usable and unusable reserves.

Officers Remuneration

Note 6 on pages 35-43 provides details of officers’ remuneration over
£50,000 and details on exit packages in bands of £20,000 split between
compulsory redundancy and other departures.

Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Note 9a on pages 45 to 48 provides an analysis and explanation of the main
adjustments to the Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund and
Adjustments between the Funding and Accounting Basis that were set out in
the Expenditure and Funding Analysis explained in paragraph 2.23.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Note 16 on pages 58-68 shows the movements on these assets, which have
decreased in net book value from £3.74bn to £3.70bn.

Reserves

Details of reserves can be found in the following notes, usable reserves in
Note 22 which also include earmarked reserves, unusable reserves in Note
23, and earmarked reserves in Note 24.

Group Accounts pages 128-145

The Group Accounts section contains:

)] Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on pages
128 to 129

i) Group Movement in Reserves Statement on pages 132 to 133

Iii) Group Balance Sheet on page 134
iv) Group Cash Flow Statement on page 136

All of the above statements are presented in the same format as the single
entity account. Each entity’s financial position has been consolidated by
elimination of inter-company balances and the realignment of accounting
policies where required.

Page 88



2.29 Notes to the Group Accounts are provided where there are material
differences to the single entity accounts.

Pension Fund Accounts pages 145-176

2.30 Pages 145 to 176 contain a summarised extract of a more detailed statement
produced for the Pension Fund.

Glossary

2.31 A glossary of some of the terms used within the Accounts is provided on
pages 184 to 185.

3. RECOMMENDATION

Members are asked to:
3.1 Consider and approve the Statement of Accounts for 2023-24.
3.2 Approve the Letters of Representation

3.3 Note the recommendations in the Audit Findings Report and their
management responses.

Joe McKay Cath Head
Acting Chief Accountant Head of Finance Operations
Ext: 419601 Ext: 416934

Pagé 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft
Statement
of Accounts

2023/2024
Draft Statement of Accounts

Page 91




Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Contents Page
Narrative 3
Statement of Responsibilities for Statement of Accounts 20
Accounting Statements
- Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 21
- Movement in Reserves Statement 23
- Balance Sheet 25
- Cash Flow Statement 26
- Notes to the Accounting Statements 27
Group Accounts
- Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 128
- Group Movement in Reserves Statement 132
- Group Balance Sheet 134
- Group Cash Flow Statement 136
- Notes to the Group Accounts 137
Pension Fund Accounts 145
Independent Auditor’s Report 177
Glossary of Terms 184

This document may not be fully accessible, and we are working on improving this for future
documents we create.

If you need an alternative format for this document, please contact:
CATenquiriesKkCC@kent.gov.uk

03000 421447

Page 92



Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Notes to the Accounting Statements Index

Note | Name Page
1a Expenditure and Funding Analysis 27
1b Basis for preparation/General 29
2 Accounting Policies 29
3 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 31
4 Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies 32
5 Assumptions Made about the Future and other Major Sources of Estimation 33
Uncertainty
6 Officers Remuneration 35
7 Members Allowances 44
8 Material Items of Income and Expense 44
9a Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 45
9b Segmental Income
10 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 49
11 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 50
12 Other Operating Expenditure 55
13 Financing and investment income and expenditure 55
14 Taxation and non-specific grant income 55
15 Grant Income 56
16 Property, Plant and Equipment 58
17 Investment Property 68
18 Capital Expenditure and Financing 72
19 PFI and Similar Contracts 73
20 Heritage Assets 79
21 Leases 82
22 Usable Reserves 85
23 Unusable Reserves 86
24 Earmarked Reserves 95
25 Provisions 97
26 Debtors 98
27 Creditors 99
28 Cash and Cash Equivalents 99
29 Cash Flow - Operating Activities 100
30 Cash Flow - Investing Activities 101
31 Cash Flow - Financing Activities 101
32 Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from Financial Activities 102
33 Trading Operations 102
34 Audit Costs 103
35 Dedicated Schools Grant 104
36 Related Party Transactions 106
37 Pension Costs 108
38 Financial Instruments 114
39 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 122
40 Contingent Liabilities 125
41 Subsidiary Undertakings 126
42 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 127
43 Other Notes 127

Page 93



Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Statement of Accounts 2023-24

Narrative

The purpose of this Statement of Accounts (Accounts) is to give electors, those subject to locally
levied taxes and charges, Members of the Council, employees, and other interested parties clear
information on the financial performance for the year 2023-24 and the overall financial position of
the Council.

The format of the Statement of Accounts is governed by The Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). To make the document as useful as possible to its
audience and make more meaningful comparisons between authorities, the Code requires:

« all Statements of Accounts to reflect a consistent presentation,
* interpretation and explanation of the Statement of Accounts to be provided, and
+ the Statement of Accounts and supporting notes to be written in plain English.

The Statement of Accounts comprises various sections and statements, which are briefly
explained below:

* Narrative - this provides information on the format of this Statement of Accounts as well as a
review of the financial position of the Council for the financial year 2023-24.

» The Statement of Responsibilities - this details the responsibilities of the Council and the
Corporate Director Finance concerning the Council's financial affairs and the actual Statement of
Accounts.

» The main Accounting Statements, comprise:

~ The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) - this provides a high level
analysis of the Council's spending. It brings together all the functions of the Council and
summarises all of the resources that the Council has generated, consumed and set aside in
providing services during the year. (See pages 21 to 22)

~ The Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) - this statement shows the movement in the
year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that
can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and 'unusable reserves', which are
held either for statutory purposes or to comply with proper accounting practice. (See pages 23 to
25)

~ The Balance Sheet - this statement shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets
and liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets/liabilities of the Council (assets less
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. (See page 25)

~ The Cash Flow Statement - this summarises the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the
Council during the reporting period. (See page 26)

» The Expenditure and Funding Analysis - this note brings together the Council's performance
reported on the basis of expenditure measured under proper accounting practices with statutorily
defined charges to the General Fund presented on the basis of how the Council is structured for
decision making purposes. (See pages 27 to 28)

» Accounting Policies - notes relating to specific accounting statement lines as identified in the
main statements of the accounts include the corresponding accounting policy. Note 2 - General
Accounting Policies details the policies where there are not accompanying notes.

« The Group Accounts sets out the income and expenditure for the year and the financial position
at 31 March 2024 of the Council and the whollya%vgrbef subsidiaries. The Group Accounts



combines the financial results of Global Commercial Services Group Ltd (formerly Kent Holdco
Ltd).

» The Pension Fund Accounts - the Kent County Council Superannuation Fund (Kent Pension
Fund) is administered by the Council but is accounted for completely separately. (See pages 145
to 176).

» The Independent Auditor's Report to the Council - this will be provided by the external auditors,
Grant Thornton UK LLP, following the completion of the annual audit.

» The accounting arrangements of any large organisation such as Kent County Council are
complex, as is local government finance. The Accounts are presented as simply as possible,
however it is still a very technical document. A glossary of terms is provided on pages 184 to 185
to make the Statement of Accounts more understandable for the reader.

Changes to financial reporting requirements and accounting policies

The Code of Practice is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and has
been developed by the CIPFA/LASAAC Code Board under the oversight of the Financial
Reporting Advisory Board. These Statement of Accounts for 2023-24 are prepared on an IFRS
basis, as adapted and implemented by the Code.

There are no significant changes to accounting practice to report for 2023-24.

Organisational Overview and External Environment

Kent County Council (KCC) operates under the legislation set out in the Local Government Act
and provides statutory and discretionary services. KCC is organised on a directorate and
divisional basis as set out below:

Directorates/Departments Divisions

Adult Social Care & Health (ASCH) | Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets
Adult Social Care & Health Operations
Strategic Commissioning (Integrated & Adults)
Business Delivery Unit

Public Health
Children, Young People & Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets
Education (CYPE) Education & Special Educational Needs

Integrated Children's Services (Operations & County Wide)
Schools' Delegated Budgets

Growth, Environment & Transport Strategic Management & Directorate Budgets
(GET) Environment & Circular Economy

Growth & Communities

Highways & Transportation

Chief Executive’s Department Strategic Management & Departmental Budgets
(CED) Commercial & Procurement
Finance

Governance, Law & Democracy
Strategic Commissioning
Strategy, Policy, Relationships & Corporate Assurance

Deputy Chief Executive's Strategic Management & Departmental Budgets
Department (DCED) Corporate Landlord

Human Resources & Organisational Development
Infrastructure

Marketing & Resident Experience

Technology

Non-Attributable Costs (NAC) Non-Attributable Costs including Corporately Held Budgets

Page 95



Governance

Kent County Council (KCC) is responsible for ensuring that services and operations are conducted
in accordance with the law and proper standards. The authority has a specific responsibility to
ensure that public money is used carefully and effectively and is properly accounted for. There is
also a duty to continuously review and improve the way we work whilst offering services that are
efficient and provide value for money.

KCC operates an Executive scheme of governance with major decisions taken by nine Cabinet
Members and a Leader executing the policies and strategies supported by a majority of Members.
Where there are powers and functions reserved to the Council, these are taken by or on behalf of
the full Council. The County Council sets an annual budget which determines the resource
available to deliver these decisions, strategies, and functions.

KCC’s Code of Corporate Governance describes the principles applied by KCC as the framework
for good corporate governance, how we are achieving these, and the key policies and plans in
place to support this.

To meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the principles set out in
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local
Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) Framework: “Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government (2016)” the Council is required to produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS).
Please see the 2023-24 AGS for further information on how the Council has complied with these
principles.

Strategic and Corporate Plans

Every few years, KCC produces a flagship strategy to set the strategic direction for the Council
which shapes business and resource planning. KCC’s latest Strategic Statement, ‘Framing Kent’s
Future’, was approved by County Council in May 2022 and sets out the council’s ambition and
strategic priorities until 2026. The strategy is built around four key priorities. Each of these four
priorities (Levelling Up Kent, Infrastructure for Communities, Environmental Step Change, New
Models of Care and Support) has a number of commitments attached, setting out what we will do
to deliver them.

Framing Kent’'s Future acknowledged the significant financial pressures the council would be
facing over the coming four years, and since the strategy was approved, the financial and
operating landscape facing the council has become ever more testing due to an acceleration of
demand pressures and the continued impact of the challenging national and global economic
environment. In autumn 2023, ‘Securing Kent’s Future’, the Council’s Budget Recovery Strategy
acknowledged the changed financial landscape, and the fundamental policy priority of bringing the
budget back into balance. This meant there needed to be a short-term reprioritisation of all council
activity, and whilst the Strategic Statement’s priorities remain vital to the medium-long term future
for Kent, it is critical to focus efforts on delivering the objectives of the New Models of Care and
Support priority. Securing Kent’s Future requires a multi-faceted, multi-year programme of activity
and is supported by robust Delivery Plans which will be iterative.

In order to support delivery of Framing Kent’s Future and the shifting pressures affecting the
council, for 2023-24, a council-wide single business plan was developed, and brought together all
significant activity to be undertaken across the organisation, over and above the council’s core
service delivery.

For 2024-25, Securing Kent’s Future has underpinned KCC'’s strategic business planning. In order
to support this, divisions were asked to produce their own individual plans to provide a

comprehensive picture of the key priorities and activities across the Council’s services for the year
ahead, set against the context of ensuring financial sustainability as described through the budget
recovery strategy. Delivery of the activity within the divisional business plans will be taken forward

Page 96



Narrative m

through the existing management structures of the council and high-level monitoring will be
undertaken.

Council's wholly-owned subsidiaries

The Council has interests in a number of companies that are classified as a subsidiary, associate

or joint venture, all of which have been considered for consolidation. This is a common model of

operation for local authorities as they seek alternative ways of achieving their aims within reduced
funding arrangements. Kent County Council's subsidiary structure is as follows:

1 Kent County Council ’

( Global Commercial

Services Group Ltd
(previously Kent Holdco
Ltd) (11735631

I
1 | I 1 ]

Commercial ] Cantium EDSECO Ltd J

Invicta Law
Ltd
(10079679)

Gen2
Property Ltd
(09834851)

. Commercial .
Services Kent Business (TEP)

Services Trading .
Ltd Solutions Ltd
(05858177) Ltd (05858178) (11242115) (10970974)

|
[ ] [ I ]

Bowerhouse |1 ESSG G'IObEId
Solar Ltd ucation Lt
Vs 50% owned (previously CES
(12128147) 5
Hampshire & Kent CS Holdings Ltd)
LLP (0C424699) (01702231)
Luton & Kent CS LLP
(0C431629)
Surrey & Kent CSLLP
(0C439317)
Dudley & Kent CS LLP
(14099774)
Dorset & Kent CSLLP
(0C449592)

Lifecycle
Management Prospects Payroll Ltd

Group Ltd (03176328)
(06390313)

~— @/

Each company in this structure chart is 100% owned by its parent company, other than the Joint
ventures which are 50% owned by their parent, CSKL and the relevant local authority partner
(Hampshire, Luton, Surrey, Dudley or Dorset).

Although many of the companies trade with KCC, they also have other clients.

Global Commercial Services Group Ltd - a wholly owned company of KCC established to
provide KCC a single point of contact with a streamlined management and executive function. The
intention is for Global CS to help generate efficiencies and consistency between the companies.
Prior to May 2023 Global Commercial Services Group was known as Kent Holdco Ltd.

Commercial Services Kent Ltd - provides temporary staff, waste management, vehicle leasing
and managed portfolio services on behalf of KCC. It manages solar farms and provides energy
services (Laser), helping clients achieve carbon reduction.

GEN2 Property Ltd - provides property services and property management consultancy.
Invicta Law Ltd - specialises in child protection and community care.

Cantium Business Solutions Ltd - provides a range of IT services to KCC and other external
clients. Cantium provides IT services including a “one stop shop” from the provision of hardware to
support, professional management IT services and General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
management.

EDSECO Ltd - operates under the trading name of “The Education People” or “TEP”. The
principal trading activities are the provision oflggégtgxfes and services to educational



Financial Report

establishments from early years to young adults. Services include early years and childcare
management, schools' financial management, governor services, clerking, professional
development, outdoor learning and specialist employment advice. The main clients are schools
within Kent.

Bowerhouse Il Solar Ltd - a company generating electricity through renewable energy, reducing
carbon emissions.

GSG Global Education Ltd - this company is involved in the provision of education supplies and
equipment to international schools. Prior to March 2023 this company was called CES Holdings
Ltd.

Lifecycle Management Group Ltd - provides a fully managed procurement service and contract
management.

Prospects Payroll Ltd - provides payroll services (specialising in the Education sector).

Joint ventures - joint venture partnerships between Commercial Services Kent Ltd and various
local authorities (Hampshire County Council, Luton Borough Council, Surrey County Council,
Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council and Dorset Council). They provide agency and interim staff
and recruitment for hard to fill permanent contracts.

Financial Report
Setting the Revenue Budget for 2023-24 - the budget strategy

The Council previously had a good financial track record delivering a small net surplus on its
revenue budget in each of the last 22 years up to 2021-22. 2022-23 outturn ended with a £47.1m
overspend after roll forwards, balanced from drawdowns from general and risk reserves. The
budget setting continues to be a robust and prudent approach to both annual revenue budget and
medium-term financial plan albeit spending forecasts have been considerably volatile and
unpredictable in recent years, together with the added uncertainty from one-year settlements. In
year budget management and monitoring has proved more challenging, identifying and
implementing corrective action in response to volatile and unpredictable spending changes has
proved to be exceptionally difficult in the timescales required, leading to a weakening of financial
resilience through use of reserves. Future budgets will need to focus on restoring financial
resilience.

In recent years the local government sector has faced significant and unprecedented financial
challenges. These fell into 3 distinct periods:

e 2011-12 to 2015-16 was a period of significant annual reductions in central government
grant support (as well as changes to funding arrangements that saw the transfer of specific
grants into general grants and the introduction of business rate retention), and council tax
freezes/2% increases in the latter years of the period. The transfer of specific grants and
devolution of additional responsibilities disguised the negative impact of budget reductions
during this period. There was no recognition of spending growth and consequently
significant savings had the be achieved to balance budgets. KCC planned for savings of
£433m over this five-year period to balance grant reductions and spending growth.

e 2016-17 to 2019-20 represented a “flat cash” settlement over the four-year period. This flat
cash included further reductions in the main revenue support grant, additional and
increasing grants to reflect social care pressures, and modest annual council tax increases
up to government determined referendum limits (including the introduction of and annual
expansion of a specific adult social care council tax levy). The grant settlements did not
include any specific funding for legislative reforms such as Care Act 2014, Children and
Families Act 2014, introduction of Natipggkldgng wage, etc., even though these proved to



Financial Report l_

add additional cost pressures on councils over and above pressures for prices and
population demographics. KCC planned for savings of £250m over this four-year period to
balance flat cash settlement and spending growth.

e 2020-21 to 2023-24 has seen increases in government grants (both grants to deal with the
impact of Covid-19 pandemic and subsequently additional grants for social care, to
compensate for loss of business rates, and annual indexation increases), and higher
council tax referendum thresholds. The Covid-19 pandemic saw councils increasing
reserves in the early part of this period but in the latter part the increases from grants and
council tax have not been sufficient to cover rising costs (both from inflation/cost increases
and service demands) and councils continued to plan for savings, and from 2022-23 have
started to draw on reserves. KCC planned for savings of £200m over this four-year period.

The scale of forecast spending increases and funding settlements is predicted to lead to KCC
savings requirements for 2024-27 returning to the levels required in 2011-16.

The 2023-24 budget

A high-level presentation of the changes between the final approved revenue budget for 2022-23
and the final 2023-24 budget is shown in the table below. This presentation shows the change in
the council’s net budget requirement and the change in net funding from central government and
local taxation and in particular the magnitude spending growth compared to the available funding
from government settlement and local taxation (which as explored later in this narrative changed
considerably as the 2023-24 evolved).

Change in net spending £m Change in net funding £m
Additional spending 219.3 Net increase in government grants 63.8

Savings from spending reductions -39.1 Change in council tax base 12.0
Changes in income -15.6 Increase in council tax charge 41.7

Changes in specific grants -34.7 Change in retained business rates 7.4
Changes in reserves -5.7 Change in Conegg(::pfeu:saﬁgg -0.8

Total change in net spending 1241 Total change in net funding | 124.1

Although 2023-24 was a further one-year settlement (effectively the 5" consecutive one-year
settlement) the core principles for council tax referendum and grant settlements for 2024-25 were
also announced (albeit without individual authority indicative allocations). This enabled a more
predictable funding assumption to be included in three year medium term to be published covering
2023-24 to 2025-26 (albeit 2025-26 remained highly speculative). Spending forecasts have
continued to prove unpredictable due to a combination of in year variances and inaccurate future
forecasts.

The budget for 2023-24 was approved by full Council on 9" February 2023. The net revenue
budget for 2023-24 was £1,310.9m an increase of £119.4m on 2022-23 final budget of £1,191.5m.
The 2023-24 budget presented to County Council for approval comprised of £216.8m of increased
spending including base budget changes to reflect the full year effect of forecast variances in
2022-23 budget monitoring, provision for forecast pay, price and other demand and cost driver
increases, and increased spending from specific grants including the extension of Household
Support Fund into 2023-24. The budget presented included £54.8m of savings and income,
£31.9m increased specific government grant income and net £10.7m from changes in reserve
contributions and drawdown. The budget presented to County Council did not include final local
government finance settlement, the council’sP%{baé'%Qf retained business rates and collection fund



Financial Report l=-

balances, and final announcement of some departmental specific grants e.g. public health, as
these had not been announced in time for publication.

The final local government finance settlement and share of business rates was reported to Cabinet
on 30" March and were incorporated in the final budget along with the increased grant income and
spending from subsequent specific grant announcements as reflected in the final table above.
Savings and other income were unchanged from the budget approved by County Council.
Cabinet agreed that the additional £3.6m of funding in the final settlement from Services Grant,
Extended Rights to Free Travel Grant as well as retained share of business rates and
compensations was used to reduce the draw down from smoothing reserves to balance 2023-24.
In line with established policy the £1.1m business rate collection fund surplus was transferred into
local taxation equalisation reserve. These changes approved by cabinet increased the final net
revenue budget to £1,315.6m and increase of £124.1m on the final budget for 2022-23.

The capital programme presented planned rolling programmes over 10 years together with
approved projects where funding has been secured over the planned duration for the projects.
Projects under development where funding has not yet been secured are presented in a separate
schedule that does not form part of the approved programme. The ten-year capital programme for
2023-24 to 2032-33 was £1,624m funded by a combination of government grants (£959m),
borrowing (£400m and other sources (£265m).

The revenue and capital budgets represented the culmination of a long evolution process updating
the original 2023-24 plan in the 2022-25 MTFP. This updating process started in May 2022 with
Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Cabinet and included public consultation in the summer
and cabinet committee scrutiny of the final draft proposals in January. The estimates were
prepared against the backdrop of the extraordinary economic consequences of global and national
circumstances which have had a significant impact on public spending and borrowing, and on local
spending. Adult social care spending has come under pressure particularly older persons
residential and nursing care where the cost of packages for new clients has been continually rising
(although there are also combination of demand and cost pressures for other client groups and
care settings but to a relatively lesser extent than older persons). There have also been significant
cost and demand pressures in children’s services including children in care, home to school
transport and special educational needs.

Inflation rose significantly during 2022-23 (after the original medium-term plans for 2023-24 and
2024-25 were prepared) and the 2023-24 budget was based on the forecasts from the Office for
Budget Responsibility (OBR) although it was recognised that forecasts had become significantly
less reliable following the recent economic shocks and consequently the 2023-24 budget also
included a 1% risk contingency.

The MTFP showed a balanced position over the three years 2023-24 to 2025-26 based on
funding, spending and savings/income assumptions albeit with a drawdown from smoothing
reserves in 2023-24 and details of new efficiency and policy savings in 2024-25 and 2025-26 still
to be fully developed. The MTFP maintained a general reserve of 5% of net revenue spending,
although income from insecure sources (New Homes Bonus Grant, Company Dividends and
Business Rate Pool) was returned to support core spending rather than added to reserves. The
budget also assumed that 2022-23 would be balanced without drawing down reserves that would
subsequently need to be replenished.

The 2023-24 budget included an assessment of the main financial risks that have not been
included in spending plans. The highest rated risks included:

e Ongoing rises in demand to support children and young people with Special Educational
Needs and Disability (SEND). This demand is rising much faster than increases in High Needs
funding within the Dedicated Schools Grant. The Council has developed and implemented an
SEN Action Plan and is included in phase 2 of government’s “Safety Valve” programme.

e Impact of 2022-23 forecast overspend orpé@%bﬁbevenue reserves.



Financial Report

e Changes in circumstances affecting the delivery of planned savings.

¢ Inflation increases over and above estimated price levels included within capital and revenue
budgets.

¢ Demand increases over and above estimated levels included within the revenue budget.

e Market sustainability of adult social providers and children’s services (children in care and
transport providers).

In each year up to 2021-22 the final outturn showed a small surplus which was added to reserves
but 2022-23 and 2023-24 were balanced with drawdowns from reserves. The overspends in these
years were a combination of under delivery of savings and additional unplanned spending.

Risk Strategy

Please refer to the draft Annual Governance Statement on Kent.gov.uk for details of the Council's
governance arrangements.

The operating environment for local government has become increasingly challenging over the
past decade, in terms of growing and complex service demand, cost inflation, recruitment and
retention difficulties, additional statutory requirements (often without sufficient levels of funding to
support changes) and increasing resident expectations, all set against a backdrop of local
government funding restraint. This continuing trend requires greater collaboration, system-wide
planning and a strong understanding of risk across public services.

The pressures on local government finances have become particularly acute now, with several
authorities over recent years issuing Section 114 (S114) notices under the 1988 Finance Act;
essentially a statutory stop on all non-essential spending. In addition to these sector-wide
concerns, there are some challenges unique to KCC that compound the pressures the Council is
facing, for example, as a result of Kent’s strategic location as the Gateway to Europe and main
entry point into the UK through the Short Straits channel crossings. These factors all affect the risk
environment, which is likely to be volatile, complex and ambiguous for a number of years. The
risks arising in this environment will often have no simple, definitive solutions and will require
whole-system-thinking, aligned incentives, positive relationships and collaboration, alongside
relevant technical knowledge, to support multi-disciplinary approaches to their effective
management.

Given the above, in delivering Securing Kent’'s Future the council is required to increase its risk
appetite to successfully mitigate the significant financial risk it currently faces, while also
continuing to consider how much control can be exerted over risks, many of which cannot be
directly mitigated by the Council alone.

In the context of continual and fast-paced change in a challenging financial context, our elected
Members will need to make challenging policy and budgetary decisions, while maintaining a
longer-term view, so officers will need to provide the right balance of evidence, insight, advice and
understanding of risk and opportunity.

Revenue Strategy

The overall revenue strategy was based on the following key elements:

e Funding estimate - Government Grants, Council Tax, and Business Rates
e Spending growth forecasts

e Changes in Reserves

e Savings and income options

e Consultation and engagement.
Page 101



Financial Report

Funding Estimate

The early funding estimates for 2023-24 were difficult to predict in the absence of an indicative
settlement from government, uncertainties around the government’s plans for Social Care
charging reforms and volatile council tax base in previous years. Consequently, these were based
on a prudent approach using the best information available in late 2021 when the initial plans for
2023-24 were developed as part of 2022-25 MTFP. These initial plans were based on the
following assumptions:

* 1% increase in council tax base from new dwellings, changes in discounts/exemptions and
collection rates.

e Council tax referendum limit allowing an increase in the household charge up to but not
exceeding 2% (same as 2022-23 provisional settlement).

* The social care council tax levy for further 1% increase in the household charge (same as
2022-23 provisional settlement).

* Final year of council tax and business rates collection fund deficits from 2020-21 under 3-year
Covid dispensation with no subsequent surpluses.

e Retained business rates increasing in line with 3.8% CPI (based on autumn 2021 Office for
Budget Responsibility (OBR) forecasts) linked inflationary uplifts to the business rate multiplier
with some of the temporary covid-19 reliefs assumed to be removed and reflected in business
rate share rather than compensation grant.

e Government grants rollover at the same amounts as 2022-23 other than Services Grant (this
grant was introduced in 2022-23 and at the time it was announced as a temporary measure so
the assumption was that this would be a phased removal) and with inflationary uplifts to
revenue support grant and business rates top-up on the same basis as uplifts in business rates
multiplier.

e Pro rata share of nationally announced amount from National Insurance increase to fund Social
Care reforms spread over two years from October 2023.

These assumptions resulted in an initial forecast increase in available funding of approx. £42m
(+3.5%), with 60% of this increase anticipated to fund the Social Care Reforms from the National
Insurance increase. The assumptions were updated in spring/summer 2022 for the allocation of
directorate resource envelopes. The update included increasing council tax base assumption to
1.5%, assuming 1% council tax collection fund surplus (average of recent years adjusted for
Covid-19 impacts), no reduction in Services Grant, and increased CPI assumption to 10% (based
on March 2022 OBR forecasts) for business rate and grant uplifts. This revised funding
assumption represented approx. £78m increase on 2022-23 (+6.6%), with just under 1/3 of this
increase for Social Care reforms.

The Chancellor of the Exchequer announced the 2022 Autumn Statement (setting out high level
government departmental spending plans for 2023-24) on 17" November 2022. The
announcement included significant changes for local authorities including delaying the Social Care
charging reforms (with the funding repurposed and allocated to address spending pressures in
health and adult social care, of which £1.3bn was available for social care) plus an additional £1bn
for social care from new money (£0.4bn of which would be allocated to local authorities via a new
social care grant and £0.6bn managed through Better Care Fund), and higher council tax
referendum thresholds (3% for general levy plus further 2% for adult social care). The autumn
statement also confirmed that business rate multiplier would be frozen with additional
compensation paid to local authorities for impact on retained shares. The funding estimate was
revised following the announcement and now represented approx. £98m increase (+8.2%) based
on the assumed allocation of additional grants, assumed reduction in Services Grant for the return
of the element for employer’s national insurance increase, and take up of increased council
referendum thresholds, with nothing now required for Social care reforms.

The provisional local government finance settlement was published on 19th December 2022
confirming the Autumn Statement aIIocatiolgggp'ld%dividual grants and council tax referendum



Financial Report

limits. The £1.3bn repurposed social care funding was allocated through existing Social Care
Grant which included an element for council tax equalisation and transfer of Independent Living
Fund Grant (these resulted in an allocation circa £4m more than had previously assumed albeit
now shown through existing grants), the new social care grant from the £0.4bn was largely as
assumed (now called Market Sustainability and Improvement Fund Grant), and the settlement
included allocation of £0.3bn from the new money in Better Care Fund through Hospital Discharge
Grant (£7m for KCC). The reduction in Services Grant was more than expected with some of this
money redistributed to fund other increases in the settlement.

The administration’s draft budget was published on 4" January 2023 based on the provisional
settlement and showed a total revenue funding estimate of £1,306.8m (an increase of £115.3m or
9.7% on the approved budget for 2022-23). The estimated council tax base increase for the draft
budget was still based on the assumed 1.5% from the summer update pending confirmation from
individual districts.

The final draft budget for County Council approval was published on 15t February 2023. The
settlement funding was the same as previous draft (final settlement was not published until 6™
February) and the final draft included the council tax base notification from districts for precepting
purposes (1.46% increase i.e. slightly lower than previous assumption of 1.5%) and council tax
collection fund balance (£4.5m higher than previously assumed albeit the additional surplus
transferred to smoothing reserve rather than funding additional spending). The revenue funding
estimate for County Council was £1,310.9m (an increase of £119.4m or 10% on approved budget
for 2022-23).

The final local finance settlement was confirmed on 6™ February 2023 and included some minor
changes including an increase for all authorities from Levy Surplus account allocated though
Settlement Funding Assessment. The final settlement together with business rate tax base and
collection fund balances was included in final budget approved by Cabinet on 30" March. The
final net revenue for 2023-24 was £1,315.6m (an increase of £124.1m or 10.4% on 2022-23).

The evolution of funding estimates from the Spending Review onwards to the final budget is
shown below.

Final 2022- Original Summer Estimate Draft County Final Final

23in 2022- | 2023-24 in 2022 from Budget Council Budget | Change on

25 MTFP 2022-25 | Update for Autumn January Budget March 2022-23

£m MTFP Resource | Statement 2023 February 2023 £m

£m Envelope | November £m 2023 £m
£m 2022 £m
£m

Council Tax (inc. 823.1 856.2 860.4 877.2 877.2 876.8 876.8 53.7
tax base)

_ Retained 52.8 60.6 63.9 63.9 58.1 58.1 60.2 7.4
Business Rates
Collection Funds

& Compensation 9.9 -3.4 3.6 3.6 3.6 8.1 9.2 -0.8
for losses

General Grants 184.1 179.7 195.0 190.9 200.4 200.4 201.6 17.6

Existing Social 104.5 104.5 104.5 104.5 138.8 138.8 138.8 343
Care Grants

New Services 13.0 6.5 13.0 9.8 73 73 756 54
Grant

New S°°'a'grg:ﬁ 4.2 29.1 29.1 395 214 214 21.4 17.3

Total 1,191.5 1,233.2 1,269.5 1,289.4 1,306.8 1,310.9 1,315.6 124.1

Spending, Changes in Reserves and Savings & Income

Forecasts for spending demands are based upon a combination of in-year monitoring of budgets
and estimates for the impact of anticipated changes over the forthcoming year. The forecasts are
regularly refreshed as part of developing the budget proposals over the summer and autumn and
include estimates for staff pay, prices, demographic demand and other cost drivers, legislation,
and service improvements. Page 103



Financial Report

The final budget showed £219.3m of additional spending growth in 2023-24 (£182.3m excluding
spending funded by increases in specific grants/external sources). This is historically an
exceptionally high level of spending growth way in excess of the additional funding available from
government settlement and local taxation, the breakdown of spending growth is as follows:

e £63.5m net base budget changes reflecting full year effect of 2022-23 variances

e £69.5m (£65.2m excl. externally financed) for forecast index linked contractual price increases
and negotiated contracts

e £34.0m (£33.5m excl. externally financed) for forecast increases in demand/demographic
changes and non-index linked/negotiated price uplift unit cost increases (referred to as demand
and cost drivers)

e £14.9m (£14.2m excl. externally financed) for increases in Kent scheme pay

e £37.5m (£5.9m excl. externally financed) other including spending from government grant,
service improvements and other legislative requirements

Changes in Reserves

The net movement in reserves was -£5.7m (£6.3m excl. externally financed) i.e. net draw down.
This movement comprised planned additional drawdowns in 2023-24 totalling £8.5m from
Corporate Reserves to balance 2023-24 budget (£4.3m from corporate reserves to be repaid in
2024-25), Public Health Reserve (£3.2m) and other specific reserves (£1.0m). The change in
reserves included £23.5m additional contributions in 2023-24 to risk reserve (£12m), general
reserve (£5.8m to maintain this at 5%) and local tax equalisation reserve (£5.6m from collection
fund balances). The change in reserves also includes removal of £29.5m of previous year
contributions and £8.8m draw down from reserves in 2022-23 budget.

Savings and Income

Although the 2023-24 funding settlement represented an increase over previous years with
additional funding both from government grants and local taxes, the total increase of £124.1m was
not sufficient to fully fund the additional spending growth of £219.3m and net -£5.7m changes in
contributions and drawdown from reserves. Additional savings and income of £54.8m plus £34.7m
of increased specific grant income were required to balance the budget. The savings and income
(excluding grants) comprised of:

e £9.6m from efficiency savings from staffing, contracts and managing premises (doing the same
for less money)

£23.9m policy savings (service reductions)

£1.7m from service transformation (improved outcomes at lower cost)

£3.9m rephasing of capital financing and increased income from financial investments

£15.6m income generation

Budget Consultation and Engagement

Consultation on budget strategy was launched on 19" July 2022 and was open for 7 weeks until
5% September 2022. The consultation focussed on the financial challenge the council potentially
faced in a highly volatile, and more risky/uncertain environment than previously, with rising costs of
fuel, energy and inflation more generally resulting in increased costs for most services. These
cost increases were compounded by market supply and sustainability issues for key providers of
council services and increasing demands on council services due to complexity of need as well as
increasing client numbers in some key services. The consultation identified that this combination
meant that forecasting future spending and income is much harder than in previous years. The
consultation sought views on council tax increases up to referendum level and for adult social
care. The consultation also sought views on areas for savings and income to balance the overall
budget and close the gap between spending and likely funding forecasts. Responses to the
consultation were set out in a report considered by elected Members (Councillors) at Cabinet
Committee/Scrutiny Committee/Cabinet meetings during January 2023 in advance of the budget

debate and approval by County Council on 9" February 2023.
Page 104




Financial Report

Revenue Budget and Outturn

In February 2023 the Council approved a net revenue budget for 2023-24 of £1,315.6m. In
addition, £2.7m was rolled forward from 2022-23 and £9.4m additional funding was received from
the Market Sustainability and Improvement Fund increasing the budget to £1,327.7m. The outturn
position for the year against the revised budget is set out in the following table, together with the
sources of income from which the Council's net revenue expenditure was financed.

Directorate/Department Budget Outturn Variance
£000 £000 £000

Adult Social Care & Health including Public 528,724 561,326 32,602
Health
Children, Young People & Education 347,002 371,637 24,635
Growth, Environment & Transport 195,346 191,465 -3,881
Chief Executive's Department 31,035 28,076 -2,959
Deputy Chief Executive's Department 83,694 75,643 -8,050
Non-Attributable Costs 141,872 113,568 -28,304
including Corporately Held Budgets

1,327,673 1,341,715 14,043
School’'s Delegated Budgets 0 42,024 42,024
Delegated Schools Budgets - DfE contribution 0 -19,360 -19,360
to DSG Deficit

1,327,673 1,364,379 36,707
FUNDED BY:
Reserves -2,688 -2,688 0
Reserves (Funding of 2023-24 overspend) 0 -12,288 -12,288
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) -11,073 -11,073 0
Council Tax Yield including Collection Fund -883,647 -883,647 0
Local Share of Business Rates & Business -60,137 -63,581 -3,444
Rate Collection Fund
Business Rate Top Up -140,802 -140,802 0
Business Rate Compensation Grant -44 241 -43,004 1,237
New Homes Bonus (NHB) -2,273 -2,273 0
Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) -50,014 -50,014 0
Social Care Support Grant -88,771 -88,771 0
Market Sustainability & Improvement Fund -23,810 -23,810 0
Services Grant -7,599 -7,599 0
Adult Social Care Discharge Fund -7,012 -7,012 0
Compensation for Covid-19 related Business 0 -2,097 -2,097
Rate Reliefs Grant
Compensation for irrecoverable Local Taxation -2,348 -2,348 0
Losses - Transfer to/from Reserves
Other Un-ringfenced Grants -3,258 -3,396 -138
Total Funding -1,327,673  -1,344,403 -16,730
NET OUTTURN POSITION 0 19,977 19,977

Page 105



Financial Report

The net overspending within the directorates is £9.601m, being +£14.043m and -£4.442m funding
variance (excluding -£22.664m delegated schools net overspend). There are £2.771m roll forward
requests and these will be added to the 2024-25 budget to support the rescheduling of projects.
The overspend (including roll forwards) have been funded by a £12.372m drawdown from

reserves.

What the money is spent on

2022-23 2023-24
£000 £000
KCC Employees 373,206 402,319
Schools Employees 520,694 551,847
Support Services 66,257 77,948
Premises related costs 50,028 48,659
Transport related costs 77,820 93,081
Supplies and Services 37,367 36,995
Professional Fees, Grants & Subscriptions 114,222 121,318
Commissioned Services 1,205,247 1,364,721
Accounting Adjustments 53,093 48,375
Schools revenue expenditure 218,819 228,142
2,716,753 2,973,406
Where the money came from
2022-23 2023-24
£000 £000
General Grants 367,553 445,769
Specific Government Grants 1,166,452 . 1,211,085
Council Tax 830,447 883,647
Fees, Charges and Other Income 284,375 317,651
Reserves 54,855 14,967
2,703,682 2,873,139

The 'what your money is spent on' and 'where the money came from' tables do not reconcile to the
information in the Outturn table as they contain accounting adjustments.

Schools

In total, schools’ reserves have decreased by £2.5m, this amount is made up of academy
conversions of £0.7m, an increase in the value of schools’ deficit balances of £0.4m and an
increase in schools’ surplus balances of £1.4m.

In addition, there was a £39.6m net overspend in year on the Central DSG Reserve made up of
£42.7m overspend on High Needs budgets, £1.3m underspend relating to School Block related
spend, £1.4m underspend on Early Years and an underspend on central DSG budgets of £0.4m.
The council made a contribution of £14.4m and as part of the safety valve agreement Kent
received £19.4m towards the historic deficit. The net surplus from 22-23, after offsetting the in year
deficit, was £36.2m and is held in an earmarked ‘DSG Safety Valve reserve’ and the balance
remains unchanged as at 31 March 2024.

Schools now have £58.6m of revenue reserves as reflected in note 22 on page 85 and there is a
deficit balance of £103.4m in the DSG Adjustment Account as reflected in note 23 on page 86. The
Authority entered the Department for Education's "Safety Valve" process in Summer 2022, which
involves the Local Authority reforming its high needs systems and associated spending in return
for additional funding to contribute to the historic deficit.

Page 106



Financial Report

Earmarked Reserves

The financial statements set out the detail and level of the Council's earmarked reserves.
Earmarked reserves are an essential tool that allows the Council to manage risk exposure and
smooth the impact of major costs. The requirement for financial reserves is acknowledged in
statute. Sections 31A, 32, 42A and 43 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 require billing
and precepting authorities in England and Wales to have regard to the level of reserves needed for
meeting estimated future expenditure when calculating the budget requirement, and regard to
LAAP 13: Local Authority Reserves and Balances.

Revenue earmarked reserves are £312.851m and Note 24 on pages 95 to 96 provides an
explanation of the purpose of each significant reserve along with the balance held at 31 March
2024. The general reserve position as at 31 March 2024 is £43.228m which is a net increase of
£5.800m.

At 31 March 2024 the Council has usable capital reserves of £207.887m as shown on Note 22
(page 85).

Certain reserves are held to manage the accounting processes for such items as capital assets,
collection fund and retirement benefits and these are unusable reserves of the Council. The
Council also has a number of provisions set aside to meet known liabilities. The main provisions
are for insurance claims and redundancies. Provisions held at 31 March 2024 totalled £36.453m,
see Note 25 on page 97 to 98.

The level of the County Council General Fund is consistent with the overall financial environment
and the key financial risks faced by the Council. Our Corporate Director of Finance, who is
responsible for setting the level of reserves, has deemed the level to be 'adequate’ given the level
of risk that we face. A thorough review of our reserve policy and balances was undertaken in 2020-
21, and a subsequent review was undertaken during 2023-24.

Capital

Capital expenditure is defined as expenditure on the purchase, improvement, or enhancement of
assets, the benefit of which impacts for longer than the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
Capital expenditure is funded from a variety of sources including: grants, capital receipts,
borrowing, external contributions including developer contributions, and revenue contributions.
Capital expenditure for the year was £237.287m. The expenditure analysed by portfolio was:

Revised
Budget Outturn Variance
Portfolio £000 £000 £000
Children, Young People & Education 120,402 52,319 -68,083
Adult Social Care & Health 3,634 2,951 -683
Growth, Environment & Transport 265,761 146,309 -119,452
Chief Executive's Department 1,586 -350 -1,936
Deputy Chief Executive's Department 23,526 20,995 -2,531
414,909 222,224 -192,685
Devolved Capital to Schools 9,500 15,063 5,563
TOTAL 424,409 237,287 -187,122

Expenditure excluding that incurred by schools under devolved arrangements was £192.685m
less than cash limits. Of this, -£198.246m reflected re-phasing of capital expenditure plans across
all services and +£5.561m was due to real variations on a small number of projects. Rephased
capital resources will be carried forward into 2024-25 and beyond in order to accommodate the

revised profiles of capital expenditure.
Page 107



Financial Report

Capital expenditure incurred directly by schools in 2023-24 was £15.063m.
Details of the financing of capital expenditure are on pages 72 and 73.

Insurance Fund

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets requires that full provision should
be made for all known insurance claims.

Based on current estimates of the amount and timing of fund liabilities, the insurance provision at
31 March 2024 is established at a level sufficient to meet all known insurance claims where the
likely cost can be estimated and there is reasonable certainty of payment. It is therefore in
accordance with the requirements of IAS 37. Details can be found on page 97.

Pension Fund

Local Authorities are required to comply with the disclosure requirements of IAS 19 - Employee
Benefits. Under IAS 19, the Council is required to reflect in the primary statements of the
Accounts, the assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund attributable to the Council and the cost of
pensions. IAS 19 is based upon the principle that the Council should account for retirement
benefits when it is committed to give them even though the cash payments may be many years
into the future. This commitment is accounted for in the year that an employee earns the right to
receive a pension in the future. These disclosures are reflected in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account, the Balance Sheet and the Movement in Reserves Statement.

IAS 19

The 2023-24 1AS 19 report shows that the Kent County Council Pension Fund now has a deficit of
£35m. This is a decrease in the deficit of £27.6m from 2022-23.

Current Borrowing & Capital Resources

All of the borrowing disclosed in the balance sheet relates to the financing of capital expenditure
incurred in 2023-24, earlier years and for future years. The balance currently stands at £781m
(short- and long-term) as shown on the balance sheet on page 25. Future capital expenditure will
be financed from revenue contributions, sale of surplus fixed assets, capital grants and
contributions, borrowing, and relevant funds within earmarked reserves.

East Kent Opportunities

East Kent Opportunities LLP (EKO) is a 'Jointly Controlled Operation' and in 2023-24 the
transactions and balances of EKO relating to KCC have been incorporated into the financial
statements and notes of the Council's Statement of Accounts.

2023-24 onwards

Local authorities in the United Kingdom will continue to keep their Accounts in accordance with
'‘proper practices'. CIPFA/LASAAC continue to consider future changes to IFRS for Local
Government, as it reinforces the drive to improve financial reporting and enhance accountability
for public money.

Consultation on the 2024-25 budget was carried out over a similar timeframe to 2023-24 from 13t
July 2023 to 6" September. The consultation included some key facts about Kent, KCC’s strategic
priorities and the financial challenges the council has faced through 2022-23 outturn and balancing
2023-24 budget. The consultation identified the large proportion of the council’s budget spent on
the main service areas including social care services for vulnerable adults & older people,
children’s social care, public transport (including home to school), 3waste recycling & disposal,
and highways management & maintenance which are the areas which have been subject to vast
majority of spending growth.

Page 108



Financial Report

The 2024-25 budget was developed based on the core principles for 2024-25 funding settlement
which were announced as part of 2023-24 settlement. These included further increases in social
care grants (in addition to increases in 2023-24) and same 3%+2% council tax referendum
principles as 2023-24. The announcement of these core principles was a consideration in
planning to publish an earlier draft budget for scrutiny in November, with key decisions then
published in principle in January in advance of full Council budget meeting in February. The core
principles also meant that funding forecasts for 2024-25 were less volatile than 2023-24 (as
demonstrated earlier in this narrative).

Cabinet approved “Securing Kent’'s Future — Budget Recovery Strategy” on 5" October 2023.
SKF set out the recent challenge from rising spending particularly in adult social care, children in
care and home to school transport. The strategy recognised that councils have to comply with
competing statutory duties including setting a balanced budget, meet statutory requirements to
deliver services and to secure value for money. SKF represented a reset of the Council’s strategic
priorities with the objective of delivering new models of care prioritised over other objectives. SKF
also set objectives to bring 2023-24 budget back into balance, identify savings from service
transformation in adult social care, children’s services and from reviews of contracts & staffing
towards setting a sustainable 2024-25 budget and MTFP, identify other policy choices and reset
scope of the Council’'s ambitions, and transformation of the operating model of the Council. The
draft budget for 2024-25 and MTFP was developed to reflect the revised strategic priorities.

An initial draft revenue budget and MTFP was published in November albeit with a significant
£48.8m gap between forecast spending and funding in 2024-25 (with lesser gaps in later years
assuming previous year gaps were closed). The imbalance was largely due to increased
spending forecasts significantly exceeding the available funding in government settlement and
from local taxation, requiring substantial balancing savings/income that were not possible to be
fully identified for the November publication. The increased spending growth was largely as a
result the need to plan for further significant base budget changes in response to forecast
overspends for 2023-24, significantly higher demand and cost drivers than previously forecast, as
well as rate of inflation not falling as fast as forecast during 2023. The first draft includes
replenishment of general reserves drawn down to balance 2022-23 outturn over two years to
return general reserves to 5% by 2025-26. The initial draft also included continuation of 1% risk
contingency provision. The plan assumed no further draw down from reserves to balance 2023-24
outturn that would require subsequent replenishment.

The first draft was published before the Autumn Budget Statement 2023 on 22" November,
although when announced this did not include any significant changes from expectations other
than higher inflation forecasts for 2024 and into 2025 (leading to higher price uplifts not fully
compensated by higher index linked business rate/grant uplifts). The provisional local government
finance settlement was announced on 18" December 2023, again with no significant changes
other than a larger than expected reduction in Services Grant.

A revised draft budget was published on 3™ January 2024 based on the provisional settlement.
This represented a balanced position compared to the November draft albeit largely through
£19.8m of one-offs in 2024-25 (use of reserves and capital receipts) that needed to be replaced
with policy savings in 2025-26, and removal of previous risk contingency within the plans for 2024-
25. The planned replenishment of general reserves to 5% by 2025-26 remained unchanged from
initial draft.

The final local government finance was announced on 5" February and included an additional
£0.6bn social care grant (£12.8m for KCC) compared to provisional settlement, this had been first
announced in late January. The additional grant was reflected in the final draft budget for Council
approval published on 9" February 2024 for full council approval on 19" February 2024 to fund
latest spending forecasts and provide some investment in transformation activity along with limited
other changes from the revised 3 January draft. Thes final draft was net revenue budget of
£1,423.6m, £108m increase on 2023-24 final budget. However, this did not include the final share
of retained business rate or business rate coftegfiondmlance (or some late grant announcements).



The Council's Stewardship, Responsibilities and Financial Management Policies

As in 2023-24 these were reported and approved by Cabinet in March resulting in a final approved
net revenue budget for 2024-25 of £1,429.5m. The 10 year capital programme was unchanged
from the Council approval of £1,665.3m

There are no detailed government departmental spending plans beyond 2024-25 with only overall
high level total public sector spending plan consistent with the fiscal targets for debt to be falling as
a % of gross domestic product (GDP) and for borrowing to not exceed 3% of GDP, both by 2027-
28. To achieve these targets public spending is forecast to grow in cash terms but at a slower rate
than the overall economy representing real terms reductions.

In the absence of detailed government plans, the later years of 2024-27 MTFP are based on flat
cash grant settlements (other than those subject to index linked increases through business rate
multiplier) and same council tax referendum principles as 2023-24 and 2024-25. The plans for
2025-26 and 2026-27 will be updated during the course of 2024 with the aim of publishing a draft
2025-26 budget and MTFP in November, and final draft in January for Cabinet endorsement and
County Council approval.

The Council's Stewardship, Responsibilities and Financial
Management Policies

The Council is responsible for handling a significant amount of public money. The Council’s
Financial Regulations must comply with the Constitution and set the control framework for five key
areas of activity:

Financial Planning

Financial Management

Risk Management and Control of Resources
Systems and Procedures

External Arrangements.

The Council needs to ensure that it has sound financial management and procedures in place and
that they are adhered to. The Financial Regulations are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
structures and working practices; and to ensure our regulations reflect current best practice and
strengthen areas where there were known gaps. The regulations provide clarity about the
accountability of the following:

Cabinet

Members

the Monitoring Officer

the Chief Finance Officer (Corporate Director Finance)
Corporate Directors.

Further information about the Accounts can be obtained from Joe McKay, Acting Chief Accountant.

Telephone (03000) 42 14 47 or E-Mail joe.mckay@kent.gov.uk

Page 110


mailto:joe.mckay@kent.gov.uk

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

The Council's Responsibilities
The Council is required:

» to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one
of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council, that
officer is the Corporate Director of Finance;

+ to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and to
safeguard its assets; and

» to approve the Statement of Accounts.

| confirm that these Accounts were approved by the Governance and Audit Committee at its
meeting 12 December 2024 on behalf of Kent County Council.

Councillor Rosalind Binks
Chairman of the Governance and Audit Committee

The Corporate Director Finance's Responsibilities

The Corporate Director Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Council Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code), and is required to give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Council at the accounting date and its income and
expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2024.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts the Corporate Director Finance has:

 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently

* made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and

« complied with the Code.

The Corporate Director of Finance has also:

» kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and

» taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

| confirm that these accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council at the
reporting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Certificate of the Corporate Director Finance

John Betts
Acting Corporate Director Finance
Page 111



Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of
providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance
with statutory requirements; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is
shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Year Ended 31 March 2024

Gross Gross Net

Expenditure Income | Expenditure
Service - Notes £000 £000 £000
Adult Social Care & Health including Public 865,528 -290,820 574,708
Health
Children, Young People & Education 1,608,074 . -1,189,157 418,917
Growth, Environment & Transport 318,676 -70,160 248,516
Chief Executive's Department 60,495 -33,650 26,845
Deputy Chief Executive's Department 107,705 -13,107 94,598
Non-Attributable Costs 17,084 -14,041 3,043
including Corporately Held Budgets
Cost of Services 2,977,562  -1,610,935 1,366,627
Other operating Expenditure 12 89,800
Net Surplus on trading accounts 33 -4 487
Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure 13 21,035
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 14 -1,521,511
(Surplus) or deficit on Provision of -48,536
Services
(Surplus)/deficit arising on revaluation of
non-current assets 21,446
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability 3,359
(Surplus)/deficit from investments in equity
instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income -950
Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure 23,855
Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure -24,681

Page 112




Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Year Ended 31 March 2023

Gross Gross Net

. Expenditure Income . Expenditure
Service . Notes £000 £000 £000
Adult Social Care & Health including Public 766,661 -278,982 487,679
Health
Children, Young People & Education 1,513,866 -1,139,897 373,969
Growth, Environment & Transport 317,959 -80,750 237,209
Chief Executive's Department 60,130 -30,277 29,853
Deputy Chief Executive's Department 106,054 -16,133 89,921
Non-Attributable Costs 10,526 -9,259 1,267
including Corporately Held Budgets
Cost of Services 2,775,196 -1,555,298 1,219,898
Other operating Expenditure 12 115,421
Net Surplus on trading accounts 33 -4,027
Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure 13 58,301
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 14 1,367,921
(Surplus) or deficit on Provision of
Services 21,672
(Surplus)/deficit arising on revaluation of
non-current assets -219,234
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability -1,516,489
(Surplus)/deficit from investments in equity
instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income -950
Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure -1,736,673
Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure -1,715,001

Page 113




Movement in Reserves Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves held by the Council,
analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’. The
Statement shows how the movements in year of the Council’s reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax for the year.
The Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary
transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council.

Year Ended 31 March 2023

General Ear- S31 - Total Capital Capital Total Unusable | Total
Fund marked 75% Tax General Receipts Grants Usable Reserves | Council

General Income Fund Reserve Unapplied | Reserves Reserves

Fund Guarantee including

Reserves | Grantand | Ear-

Business marked
Rate Reserves

o Relief
& Grant
@ Reserves
%\'A?;‘rcde at 31 March 2022 carried 56,188  -393,152  -20,040  -469,380  -33,291 74183  -565,890  -682,709 -1,248,599
Movement in reserves in 2022-23 0 0
Total Comprehensive Income & 21,672 21,672 21,672 1,736,673 | 1,715,001
Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis 4,772 4,772 5,936 -28,020  -38,729 38,729 0
and funding basis under regulations
Net increase/decrease before 16,900 16,900 5936  -28,020 17,057 -1,697,944 -1,715,001
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves
Transfer between Usable and 2371 -20,063 17,692 0 0
Unusable Reserves
Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 0 0
(total of *s in Note 22)
Increase/Decrease (movement) in year 19,271 -20,063 17,692 16,900 5936  -28,020  -17,057 -1,697,944 -1,715,001
Balance at 31 March 2023 -36,917  -413,215 2,348  -452,480  -39,227 -102,203  -593,910 -2,380,653 -2,974,563




Movement in Reserves Statement

Year Ended 31 March 2024

General Ear- S31 - Total Capital Capital Total Unusable | Total
Fund marked 75% Tax General Receipts Grants Usable Reserves | Council
General Income Fund Reserve Unapplied | Reserves Reserves
Fund Guarantee including
Reserves  Grantand | Ear-
Business | marked
Rate Reserves
Relief
Grant
Reserves
Eofgj‘;‘rcde at 31 March 2023 carried -36,917  -413,215 2,348 -452,480  -39227  -102,203  -593,910 -2,380,653 -2,974,563
Movement in reserves in 2023-24
Total Comprehensive Income & 48,537 48,537 48,537 23,854 24,683
Expenditure
Aglustments between accounting basis | 74 357 70,367 -5008  -61,448 3,911 3,911
and funding basis under regulations
Wet increase/decrease before 21,830 0 0 21,830 5,008  -61,448  -44,626 19,943  -24,683
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves
Pransfer between Usable and 14,400 14,400 14,400 14,400
Unusable Reserves
Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves
(total of *s in Note 22) -27,943 1 25,595 2,348 0
Increase/Decrease (movement)inyear 5443 39,995 2,348 36,230  -5008 61,448  -30,226 5543 24,683
Balance at 31 March 2024 43,030 -373,220 0 -416,250  -44,234  -163,652  -624,136 -2,375,110  -2,999,246




Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the financial position of Kent County Council as a whole at the end of
the year. Balances on all accounts are brought together and items that reflect internal transactions

are eliminated.

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

Notes £000 £000 £000

Property Plant & Equipment 16 3,695,126 3,741,347
Heritage Assets 20 8,546 7,986
Investment Property 17 43,168 51,140
Intangible assets 330 1,681
Long-term investments 38 301,053 323,487
Long-term debtors 26 50,787 50,940
Total long-term assets 4,099,010 4,176,581
Inventories 2,537 8,710
Assets held for sale (<1yr) 1,614 4,091
Short-term debtors 26 397,669 346,204
Short-term investments 38 36,683 60,423
Cash and Cash equivalents 28 142,511 135,958
Total current assets 581,014 555,386
Temporary borrowing 38 -78,369 -90,155
Short-term Lease Liability 38 -9,207 -8,458
Short-term provisions 25 -26,905 -16,346
Creditors 27 -441,793 -466,545
Cash and Cash equivalents 28 -10,967 -4,244
Total Current liabilities -567,241 -585,748
Creditors due after one year 27 -34 -35
Provisions 25 -9,548 -10,030
Long-term borrowing 38 -702,562 -721,893
Other Long-Term Liabilities 37/38 -243,325 -284,855
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 15 -158,068 -154,842
Long-Term Liabilities -1,113,537 -1,171,655
Net Assets/(Liabilities) 2,999,246 2,974,564
Usable Reserves 22 -624,135 -593,911
Unusable Reserves 23 -2,375,111 -2,380,653
Total Reserves -2,999,246 -2,974,564

Page 116




Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing, and financing activities. The amount
of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the
operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or income from the
recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which
cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's
future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims
on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

2023-24 2022-23

Notes £000 £000
Net (Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services -48,536 21,672
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 29 -181,115  -371,114
for non-cash movements
Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the 29 249,452 252,876
provision of services that are investing and financing activities
Net cash flows from operating activities 19,801 -96,566
Investing Activities 30 -56,040 56,639
Financing Activities 31 36,409 27,855
Net increase (-) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 170 -12,072
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting 131,714 119,642
period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 28 131,544 131,714
period

Page 117



Note 1a - Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from
resources (government grants, council tax, and business rates) by local authorities in comparison
with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes
between the Council’s directorates/services/departments. Income and expenditure accounted for
under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Year Ended 31 March 2024

Net
Adjustment . Expenditure
Adjustments Net . s between in the
to arrive at the | Expenditure the Comprehen-
net amount Chargeable Funding . sive Income
As reported . chargeable to to the and and
to the General General | Accounting . Expenditure
Management | Fund Balance Fund Basis Statement
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adult Social Care &
Health 561,326 11,481 572,807 1,901 574,708
Children, Young People
& Education 371,637 4,921 376,558 42,359 418,917
Growth, Environment &
Transport 191,465 1,775 193,240 55,275 248,515
Chief Executive's
Department 28,076 5 28,081 -1,236 26,845
Deputy Chief
Executive's
Department 75,643 11,405 87,048 7,551 94,599
Non-Attributable Costs
including Corporately
Held Budgets 113,568 -110,441 3,127 -84 3,043
Schools' Delegated
Budgets 22,664 -22,664 0 0 0
Cost of Services 1,364,379 -103,518 1,260,861 105,766 1,366,627
Other Income and
Expenditure -1,344,402 105,372 -1,242,515 -176,134 -1,415,164
Surplus or Deficit 19,977 1,854 21,831 -70,368 -48,537
Opening General
Fund Balance -452,480
Less/Plus Surplus or
(Deficit) on General
Fund in Year 21,830
Transfers between
Usable & Unusable
Reserves 14,400
Closing General Fund
Balance at 31 March
2024 -416,250

Note 9a on pages 45 to 48 provides an explanation of the main adjustments to the Net
Expenditure Chargeable to the General Fund to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Page 118



Year Ended 31 March 2023

Net
Adjustments Expenditure
to arrive at in the
the net Net Comprehen-
amount . Expenditure Adjustments | sive Income
As reported . chargeable to  Chargeable = between the and
to the General to the | Funding and = Expenditure
Management | Fund Balance General . Accounting Statement
£000 £000 . Fund £000  Basis £000 £000
Adult Social Care &
Health 479,488 2,065 481,553 6,127 487,680
Children, Young People
& Education 338,294 -12,051 326,243 47,725 373,968
Growth, Environment &
Transport 179,608 4,208 183,816 53,394 237,210
Chief Executive's
Department 29,906 -1,433 28,473 1,379 29,852
Deputy Chief
Executive's Department 71,707 6,251 77,958 11,962 89,920
Non-Attributable Costs
including Corporately
Held Budgets 151,166 -147,897 3,269 -2,001 1,268
Schools' Delegated
Budgets -19,263 19,263 0 0 0
Net Cost of Services 1,230,906 -129,594 1,101,312 118,586 1,219,898
Other Income and
Expenditure -1,252,855 168,443 -1,084,412 -113,814  -1,198,226
Surplus or Deficit -21,949 38,849 16,900 4,772 21,672
Opening General
Fund Balance -469,380
Reporting of Schools
Budget Deficit to new
Adjustment Account at
1 April 2020
Less/Plus Surplus or
(Deficit) on General
Fund in Year -16,900
Transfers between
Usable & Unusable
Reserves 0
Closing General Fund
Balance at 31 March
2023 -452,480

Page 119




Note 1b. Basis for Preparation/General

The notes to the financial statements on the following pages are in order of significance, primarily
based on aiding an understanding of the key drivers of the financial position of the Council, whilst
maintaining the grouping of notes between the income and expenditure statement and the balance
sheet where appropriate.

The notes relating to specific financial statement lines include the corresponding accounting policy.
As a result, there is not a separate principal accounting policies note but note 2 details general
accounting policies or those where there are not accompanying notes.

Details of the order of the notes can be found in the index on page 2 of the financial statements.

Note 2. General Accounting Policies (where there is no
accompanying note)

General

The Council is required to prepare a Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices. The Accounts of Kent County Council have
been compiled in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK
2023-24 supported by International Financial Reporting Standards. These accounts are prepared
in accordance with the historical cost convention, modified for the valuation of certain categories of
non-current assets and financial instruments. They are also prepared on a going concern basis.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made
or received. In particular:

e Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods,
is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in
accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

e Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories
on the Balance Sheet.

e Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

e Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

¢ Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. The
majority of expenditure is created using iProcurement and accruals are generated
automatically. Outside of iProcurement, a de minimus of £5,000 for revenue and £10,000 for
capital is used for income and expenditure items. Where debts may not be settled, the balance
of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and
Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Page 120



Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other
events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a

change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Accounting for Schools

The accounting policies for Schools are in line with the Council's and therefore are compiled on an
accruals basis. Schools balances are consolidated into the Council's accounts, with income and
expenditure being attributed to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and assets and liabilities included on the Balance Sheet. The Schools
Reserve is held in a separate reserve and is located within Usable Reserves. The DSG deficit is
transferred to the DSG Adjustment Account via the Movement to Reserves Statement.

Non-current assets for maintained schools are included on the balance sheet where they are
owned or controlled by the Authority or the school governing body.

Intangible Assets

Assets that do not result in the creation of a tangible asset (which is an asset that has physical
substance), but are identifiable and are controlled by the Council, e.g. software licences, are
classified as intangible assets. This expenditure is capitalised when it will bring benefits to the
Council for more than one financial year. The balance is amortised to the relevant service revenue
account over the life of the asset. For software licences this is normally between 3 to 5 years.

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services.

Fair Value Measurement of non-financial assets

The Council's accounting policy for fair value measurement of financial assets is set out in Note
38. The Council also measures some of its non-financial assets such as investment properties and
assets held for sale and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings at fair
value at each reporting date. Surplus assets are also valued at fair value in accordance with the
valuation policy of surplus assets disclosed on page 64. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset
takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the

use of unobservable inputs.
Page 121



Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the Council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as
follows:

» Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the authority can
access at the measurement date

» Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

» Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset.

Valuation techniques for levels 2 and 3 include market approach, cost approach and income
approach.

Joint Operations

Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. The
activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction with other joint operators involve the use of the
assets and resources of those joint operators. In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the
Council as a joint operator recognises:

* its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly

* its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly

« its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation
« its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation

* its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Accounting for Value Added Tax (VAT)

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from His
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC). VAT receivable is excluded from income.

Inventories

Stock is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Spending on consumable items is
accounted for in the year of purchase.

Interests in companies and other entities

The Council has material interests in companies and other entities that have the nature of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and require it to prepare group accounts. In the
Council's own single-entity accounts, the interests in the companies and other entities are
recorded as financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss.

Note 3. Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been
adopted

IFRS 16 - Leases: This standard was issued in January 2016 and was planned to be adopted by
Local Authorities in 2020-21 but was initially deferred to 2021-22. Due to the pressures on finance
teams the adoption has been further deferred to 2024-25. The impact of adopting this standard is
that most of our leases where we are the lessee will require a 'right of use asset' to be recognised
on the Balance Sheet. This is different from the current accounting standard where leases are
classified as operating or finance leases, with only the assets and liabilities relating to finance
leases recognised on our Balance Sheet. This accounting change will have an impact on our
accounts and will require new accounting for an estimated 178 assets, of which 120 are property
or land, 57 are vehicles, and 1 is equipment. Based on the work undertaken so far, we estimate a
right of use asset value and corresponding I%aasgeelifggity of approximately £23.7m. This value



excludes the impact of peppercorn leases (which need to be valued at a cost to the Council and
will increase the right of use asset value), the impact of PFI lease liabilities, and the impact of sub-
lease arrangements. This work will be undertaken during 2024-25 to form part of our disclosure in
the 2024-25 statement of accounts.

Note 4 - Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out, the Council has had to make certain judgements about
complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements
made in the Statement of Accounts are:

- There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government.
However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an
indication that the assets of the Council might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities
and reduce levels of service provision.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Council has a policy to revalue its land and buildings at least every 4 years and undertakes an
annual review, based on applying percentage movements on revalued assets to the unvalued
asset portfolio, to ensure that the carrying amount of assets not revalued in year is not materially
different to their current value at the balance sheet date. £319m worth of assets in the balance
sheet have not been revalued in 2023-24. Due to the value, valuation type and prior valuation date
of these assets, and the percentage movements on the revalued assets, we are confident that the
value of assets not revalued in 2023-24 is not materially different to their current value at the
balance sheet date.

In order to meet the Authority’s policy on accounting for non-current assets related to schools,
each school is considered on an individual basis taking into account ownership rights and, where
relevant, the circumstances under which the school is using the asset.

Kent County Council's - Interest in Companies

The Council wholly owns Global Commercial Services Group Ltd and this company and its
subsidiaries are consolidated into our Group Accounts.

The Council has an interest in companies outside of those that are our wholly owned subsidiaries.
KCC have conducted tests of control on these companies and in considering the outcome of these
tests we have concluded that we have no overall control or significant influence over these
companies, and our level of control is less than or equal to 50%. The economic activity of these
companies is not deemed material and therefore not consolidated into the group accounts.
Payments made to any entity we have an interest in are shown in Note 36 on pages 106 to 107.
We annually review all companies we have an interest in and test the level of control.

Page 123



Note 5 - Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about the future or that are otherwise
uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances
cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2024 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial
year are as follows:

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual results differ from Assumptions

Property, Plant | Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are | If the useful life of assets is reduced,

and dependent on assumptions about the level of depreciation would increase and the carrying amount of the assets could
Equipment: repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in fall. It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge would increase by
Useful lives relation to individual assets. The current £1.9m for every year that asset lives had to be reduced.

economic climate makes it uncertain that the
Council will be able to sustain its current spending | The useful lives applied to our assets for depreciation calculations are
on repairs and maintenance, bringing into doubt provided by RICS qualified external valuers and we therefore consider this

- the useful lives assigned to assets. to be the most accurate estimate we can obtain. However, if assumptions
8 do not materialise then there could be a material difference to depreciation
) and carrying amounts of assets.
Rioperty, Plant | Asset valuations are based on key assumptions. | The assumptions on which valuations are based are provided by RICS
ahd qualified external valuers and challenged rigorously and therefore
Equipment: Assets valued on a Depreciated Replacement considered reliable. However, if assumptions within the methodology do
Valuation Cost basis, totalling £2,276.8m in the balance not materialise then there could be a material impact on the valuation of
Assumptions | sheet, are significantly influenced by land & buildings.

obsolescence rates, BCIS rates and allowances

for fees & externals. These require professional It should be noted though that any differences in asset valuations would not

judgement and therefore are not certain. have an impact on the General Fund balance.

Assets valued on an Existing Use Value basis,
totalling £215.8m on the balance sheet, are
significantly influenced by assumptions around
rents and yields.

Surplus assets valued on a Fair Value basis,
totalling £99.2m, are significantly influenced by
assumptions around land values, rents and
yields.




Pensions Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions The effects on the net pension liability of changes in individual assumptions
Liability depends on a number of complex judgements can be measured. For example, a decrease of 0.1% in the discount rate
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at would result in an increase in the pension liability of £53.7m. A 1-year
which salaries are projected to increase, changes | increase to life expectancy assumptions would result in an increase in the
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected pension liability of £142.0m.
returns on pension fund assets. A firm of
consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the A reduction in the value of the assets would increase the pension liability
Council with expert advice about the assumptions | on the Balance Sheet.
to be applied.
The net pension liability carrying value for 2023-24 is £34.8m.
More information on the carrying amount of the assets & liabilities impacted
by estimation uncertainty can be found in Note 37 on pages 108 to 114.
Fair Value Surplus and Investment Properties cannot be Sizable changes in any of the unobservable inputs would result in a
measurements | measured based on quoted prices in active significant lower or higher fair value measurement for those assets held at
markets (i.e. Level 1 inputs), so their fair value is | fair value.
g measured using income or market approach
<Q valuation techniques. Where possible, the inputs
B to these valuation techniques are based on
ol observable data, but where this is not possible

unobservable inputs, which require judgement,
are used to establish fair values. The significant
unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement include assumptions regarding
passing rents and yields, estimated sale values,
revenue streams and discount rates.

Information about valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of the Council's
assets and liabilities is disclosed in notes 16, 17
and 38.




Note 6. Officers Remuneration
Accounting Policy

Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for
services in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for the
cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but
not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The
accrual is charged to Service lines within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
but is then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement, so that holiday benefits
are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an
officer’'s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary
redundancy, in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to Service lines
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises the cost for
restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund
or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and
any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

The Council participates in two different pension schemes. Both schemes provide members with
defined benefits (retirement lump sums and pensions), related to pay and service. The schemes
are as follows:

Teachers and former NHS Staff
The Council contributes to the Teachers' Pension Scheme and the NHS Pension Scheme at
rates set by the schemes actuary and advised by the Schemes Administrator. The schemes
pay benefits on the basis of pre-retirement salaries of teaching staff and former NHS staff.
While the schemes are of the Defined Benefit type, they are accounted for as Defined
Contribution Schemes and no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the
Balance Sheet.

Other employees

- The liabilities of the Kent Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method —i.e. an assessment of the future
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees,
based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of
projected earnings for current employees.

Page 126



- The assets of Kent Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet
at their fair value:
e quoted securities — current bid price
e unquoted securities — professional estimate
e unitised securities — current bid price
e property — market value

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

Service cost comprising:

- current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year
— allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which
the employees worked,

- past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,

- net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. the net interest expense for the
Council - the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises
from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this is calculated by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period - taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (assets) during the period as a result of
contribution and benefit payments.

Remeasurement comprising:

- net return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the defined benefit
liability (asset) - charged to the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure,

- actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions — charged to the Pensions Reserve, as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure,

- contributions paid to the Kent Pension Fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the
pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for
retirement benefits, on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member
of staff (including teachers) are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Page 127



Summary of employees receiving remuneration of £50,000 or more during the
period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024

Regulations require the Council to disclose remuneration for all employees earning over £50,000
plus additional disclosures for those senior officers reporting directly to the Head of Paid Service
and those earning over £150,000.

This note shows the number of employees whose total remuneration in the financial year 2023-24,
was £50,000 or more.

Remuneration includes:

a) all sums paid to or receivable by an employee including non-taxable termination payments,
redundancy payments and pay in lieu of notice. This includes all payments, regardless of whether
or not they were due in the year e.g. advance payment of salary in lieu of notice,

b) expense allowances chargeable to tax i.e. the profit element of car allowances; and
c) the money value of benefits such as leased cars and health insurance,
d) but excludes Employer's Pension contributions.

Senior Officers whose remuneration is disclosed on pages 39 to 42 are included in the
renumeration bandings shown in the table on the following page for completeness, even though
there is a statutory provision that allows senior officers to be excluded from the banding analysis.

Page 128



Remuneration Total Number Total Total Number | Total Number
£ of Employees | Number of | of Employees | of Employees
Non-Schools | Employees | Non-Schools Schools
31 March Schools 31 March 31 March
2024 31 March 2023 2023
2024

50,000 - 54,999 315 367 250 241

55,000 - 59,999 207 227 184 160

60,000 - 64,999 145 139 105 98

65,000 - 69,999 65 99 67 72

70,000 - 74,999 65 70 44 55

75,000 - 79,999 40 52 22 34

80,000 - 84,999 29 26 26 20

85,000 - 89,999 19 23 15 14

90,000 - 94,999 12 8 9 12

95,000 - 99,999 14 11 15 7

100,000 - 104,999 10 8 9 4

105,000 - 109,999 4 2 5 5

110,000 - 114,999 8 6 5 1

115,000 - 119,999 3 7 3 4

120,000 - 124,999 4 1 3 2

125,000 - 129,999 1 3 3 2

130,000 - 134,999 1 2

135,000 - 139,999 3 1

140,000 - 144,999 2 1 1 1

145,000 - 149,999

150,000 - 154,999 1 1 1

155,000 - 159,999 1

160,000 - 164,999 2

165,000 - 169,999 1 1

170,000 - 174,999 1

175,000 - 179,999

180,000 - 184,999 1 1

185,000 - 189,999

190,000 - 194,999 1

195,000 - 199,999

200,000 - 204,999

205,000 - 209,999

210,000 - 214,999

215,000 - 219,999 1

Total 955 1,051 776 732

The number of employees shown against the above remuneration band will not tie-up with the
information on the following pages. This is because the table above refers to remuneration which
includes items a-c as per the note on the previous page, whereas the following table relates purely
to salary entitlement in the year and requires the employer's pension contribution to be disclosed
but only for senior officers. The Code defines senior officers as those whose annual salary is
£150,000 or more, or those whose salary is above £50,000 and holds a chief officer position.
Where a senior officer's annual salary is £50,000 or more, but less that £150,000, remuneration is
disclosed by job title. For Senior Officers whose annual salary is £150,000 or more, their name is
also disclosed. The following tables are set out in the format prescribed in the CIPFA Code, issued
by The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.

Page 129



The remuneration paid to the Authority's senior employees for 2023-24 is as follows:

Post Holder Notes | Salary Bonus | Allowance | Compensation | Other | Total Employer | Total
Including | £ £ for loss of £ Remun- Pension Remun-
Fees & Office e.g. eration excl | Contri- eration incl
Allowance Redundancy pension bution pension
£ Payment * Contribution | £ Contribution

£ £ £

Chief Executive — David 1 86,036 86,036 15,817 101,854

Cockburn

Chief Executive — Amanda 2 142,345 142,345 29,181 171,525

Beer

Deputy Chief Executive — 3 56,744 56,744 11,633 68,377

Amanda Beer

Corporate Director Adult 187,100 187,100 38,355 225,445

Social Care & Health —

Fichard Smith

Qorporate Director 163,854 163,854 33,590 197,445

Ghildren, Young People &

Exducation — Sarah

Hammond

Corporate Director 155,810 155,810 31,941 187,751

Growth, Environment &

Transport — Simon Jones

Corporate Director 4 152,744 7,436 160,180 32,837 193,017

Finance - Zena Cooke

Director of Public Health* 123,842 16,158 140,000 28,700 168,700

General Counsel — Ben 123,842 14,475 138,317 917 139,234

Watts

Director of Infrastructure 123,842 123,842 25,388 149,230

Director of Strategy, 123,842 123,842 25,388 149,230

Policy, Relationships &
Corporate Assurance




Post Holder Notes | Salary Bonus | Allowance | Compensation | Other | Total Employer | Total
Including | £ £ for loss of £ Remun- Pension Remun-
Fees & Office e.g. eration excl | Contri- eration incl
Allowance Redundancy pension bution pension
£ Payment * Contribution | £ Contribution

£ £ £

Director of Technology 122,012 12,568 134,580 27,589 162,169

Strategic Commissioner 5 45,880 542 46,422 9,448 55,870

(Interim)

Head of Commercial & 6 62,569 3,792 66,361 13,673 80,034

Procurement

Director of Human 115,959 3,500 119,459 24,489 143,948

Resources &

Organisational

Development

* This includes all

@®ntractual entitlements.

«Q

D

=

Kbtes

1 Mr Cockburn left KCC on 31 July 2023

2 Mrs Beer was appointed as Chief Executive from 1 August 2023

3 Mrs Beer was Deputy Chief Executive from 1 April to 31 July 2023. The Deputy Chief Executive was vacant for the remainder of the year

4 In the absence of the Corporate Director Finance since 8 January 2024, the role has been filled by an Acting Corporate Director Finance
from 8 January 2024 until 31 March 2024 at a cost of £50,400

5 The Strategic Commissioner post was deleted from 1 September 2023 and replaced by the Head of Commercial & Procurement

6 The Head of Commercial & Procurement post was introduced from 1 September 2023




The remuneration paid to the Authority's senior employees for 2022-23 is as follows:

ZoT abed

Communications —

Amanda Beer

Post Holder Notes | Salary Bonus | Allowance | Compensati | Other | Total Employer | Total
Including | £ £ on for loss £ Remun- Pension Remun-
Fees & of Office e.g. eration excl | Contri- eration incl
Allowance Redundancy pension bution pension
£ Payment * Contribution | £ Contribution
£ £ £
Chief 5 219,221 219,221 46,694 265,915
Executive/Corporate
Director Strategic &
Corporate Services -
David Cockburn
Corporate Director Adult 180,250 180,250 38,393 218,643
Social Care & Health -
Richard Smith
D Corporate Director 3 48,646 48,646 10,362 59,008
2 Children, Young People &
SEducation - Matt Dunkley
bCBE
Corporate Director 4 130,359 130,359 27,766 158,125
Children, Young People &
Education — Sarah
Hammond
Corporate Director 1 136,284 4,871 141,155 34,722 175,877
Finance - Zena Cooke
Corporate Director 2 67,662 67,662 67,662
Finance — John Betts
Corporate Director 150,106 150,106 31,973 182,079
Growth, Environment &
Transport — Simon Jones
Deputy Chief Executive / 6 159,788 159,788 34,035 193,823
Corporate Director
People &




Director Public Health* 117,726 16,441 134,167 28,578 162,745
General Counsel — Ben 123,891 14,475 138,366 953 139,319
Watts

Director of Infrastructure 123,891 1,900 123,891 26,674 150,565
Director of Strategy, 118,532 6,700 125,232 26,674 151,906
Policy, Relationships &

Corporate Assurance

Director of Technology 117,432 12,235 129,667 27,619 157,286
Strategic Commissioner 107,280 107,280 22,851 130,131
(Interim)

Director of Human 81,900 81,900 17,445 99,345

Resources &
Organisational
Development

*This includes all
contractual entitlements

&

Notes

[N Mrs Cooke was on maternity leave from April to August 2022

2 Mr Betts was appointed to cover Mrs Cooke’s maternity leave

3 Mr Dunkley (CBE) left KCC in June 2022

4 Mrs Hammond was appointed as Corporate Director for Children, Young People & Education from June 2022

5 Mr Cockburn was Corporate Director Strategic & Corporate Services from April to June and was appointed as Chief Executive from July
2022

6 Mrs Beer was Corporate Director People & Communications from April to June and was appointed as Deputy Chief Executive from July
2022

7 A new Director of Human Resources & Organisational Development was appointed from July 2022




The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below. Of
the total redundancies made, 79% of those are compulsory redundancies. We do not have the detail across bands £0 - £20,000, £20,001 -
£40,000, and £40,001 - £80,000 and have applied this percentage equally to each of these bands. The total cost in 2023-24 of £0.9m includes
schools and commitments in 2024-25.

(d) Total (d) Total
number of number of

(b) Number (b) Number exit exit (e) Total (e) Total

(a) Exit package of of (c) Number | c) Number packages packages cost of exit | cost of exit
cost band (inc compulsory | compulsory of other of other by cost by cost packages packages

special redundancies | redundancies | departures | departures band band in each in each

payments) 2022/23 2023/24 agreed agreed [(b)+(c)] [(b)+(c)] band £ band £

2022/23 2023/24 2022/23 2023/24 2022/23 2023/24
80,001 - 120,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0 £0
49,001 - 80,000 0 2 0 1 0 3 £0 £133,207
20,000 - 40,000 11 12 5 3 16 15 £459,409 £363,410
¢- 20,000 15 40 7 11 22 51 £153,841 £355,255
Total 26 54 12 15 38 69 £613,250 £851,872




Note 7. Members Allowances
The Council paid the following amounts to members of the Council during the year:

2023-24  2022-23

£000 £000

Allowances 2,055 1,975
Expenses 59 44
Total 2,114 2,019

In 2023-24 the cost of the County Cars was £11.5k (£33.5k in 2022-23).

Note 8. Material Items of Income and Expense

Accounting Policy

Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately,
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the
accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Council’s
financial performance.

Material ltems of Income and Expense

The net loss on disposal of non-current assets of £87.2m (£113.1m in 22-23) includes a loss of
£86.7m (£93.5m in 22-23) which relates to schools transferring to academy status, at nil value, as
instructed by the Secretary of State for Education.

Page 135



Note 9a - Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to the Net Expenditure Chargeable to
the General Fund to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement.
Investment Realignment
Income Chief . of Financing
Drawdown reported at Exec’s Items for | Adjustments
2023-24 to/from Directorate Dept Accounting for Trading
Reserves Level | Recharges Purposes Activities
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adult Social Care & Health 11,465 16
Children, Young People &
Education 4,152 546 31 192
Growth, Environment &
Transport 1,050 513 296 -83
Chief Executive's Department 348 -343
Deputy Chief Executive's
Department 9,859 2,485 -940
Non-Attributable Costs
including Corporately Held
Budgets -18,777 18,681 -110,344
Schools Delegated Budgets -22,664
Net Cost of Services -14,567 22,225 0 -110,152 -1,023
Other income and
expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding
Analysis 17,323 -22,225 110,152 121
Total 2,756 0 0 0 -902

Page 136




Total to Total
arrive at Adjustment
amount Net change between
2023-24 charged Adjustmepts fon: the Funding
to the for Capital Pensions Other and
General Purposes Adjustments | Differences = Accounting
Fund (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 4) Basis
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adult Social Care & Health 11,481 5,778 -3,667 -210 1,901
Children, Young People &
Education 4,921 36,948 -15,126 20,537 42,359
Growth, Environment &
Transport 1,776 57,482 -2,646 440 55,276
Chief Executive's
Department 5 172 -1,415 6 -1,237
Deputy Chief Executive's
Department 11,404 8,312 -728 -33 7,551
Non-Attributable Costs
including Corporately Held
Budgets -110,440 0 -1 -83 -84
Schools' Delegated Budgets -22,664 0 0 0 0
Net Cost of Services -103,517 105,207 -23,583 20,657 105,766
Other income and
expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding
Analysis 105,371 -174,067 -7,396 5,329 -176,134
Total 1,854 -65,375 -30,979 25,986 -70,368
Drawdo | Investment Realignment
wn Income Chief . of Financing
to/from reported at Exec’s Items for = Adjustments
2022-23 Reserve Directorate Dept | Accounting for Trading
s Level Recharges Purposes Activities
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adult Social Care & Health 2,046 19
Children, Young People &
Education -12,548 241 58 198
Growth, Environment &
Transport 3,226 420 626 -64
Chief Executive's Department -728 -703
Deputy Chief Executive's
Department 5,506 1,886 -1,141
Non-Attributable Costs
including Corporately Held
Budgets -50,612 11,592 -108,877
Schools' Delegated Budgets 19,263
Net Cost of Services -33,847 14,139 0 -108,679 -1,205
Other income and
expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding
Analysis 72,548 -14,139 108,679 1,353
Total 38,701 Page 137 0 0 0 148




Total
Net change Adjustment
Total to arrive | Adjustments for the between
2022-23 at amount for Capital Pensions Other Funding and
charged to the Purposes Adjustments Differences | Accounting
General Fund (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 4) Basis
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adult Social Care &
Health 2,065 2,530 3,597 -1 6,126
Children, Young
People & Education -12,051 35,386 13,018 -679 47,725
Growth, Environment
& Transport 4,208 50,390 2,437 567 53,394
Chief Executive's
Department -1,431 326 1,411 -358 1,379
Deputy Chief
Executive's
Department 6,251 11,293 670 11,963
Non-Attributable
Costs
including Corporately
Held Budgets -147,897 156 -2,157 -2,001
Schools' Delegated
Budgets 19,263 0
Net Cost of Services -129,592 99,925 21,289 -2,628 118,586
Other income and
expenditure from the
Expenditure and
Funding Analysis 168,441 -100,852 -1,045 -11,917 -113,814
Total 38,849 -927 20,244 -14,545 4,772

1. Adjustments to arrive at amount charged to the General Fund

Drawdown to and from Reserves — for management reporting purposes the Council includes
drawdowns to and from reserves, this needs reversing to arrive at the amount chargeable to the

General Fund.

Investment Income and realignment of Financing Items for Accounting Purposes — the
Council also includes investment income in its directorate reporting and within Financing ltems are
such items as interest payable, Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and bank fees, however this
is reported in the financial statements below the cost of services line and the table above shows
these items being reallocated.

Chief Executive Department Recharges — for management reporting purposes the Council
records Members Grants to Strategic and Corporate Services, however for accounting purposes
this is reallocated across the other directorates.

Trading Activities — for management reporting purposes the Council includes the contribution
received from its trading activities, however this needs adjusting to reflect the surplus or deficit of
the trading activities. The Council also is required to consolidate a joint operation into its

accounts.

Page 138




2. Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Adjustments for capital purposes — this column adds in depreciation and impairment and
revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for:

Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal
of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

Financing and investment income and expenditure — the statutory charges for capital financing
i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income
and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure — capital grants are adjusted for
income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are
adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for which
conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and
Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for
which conditions were satisfied in the year.

3. Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits
pension related expenditure and income:

For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the
Authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service
costs.

For Financing and investment income and expenditure the net interest on the defined benefit
liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

4. Other Differences

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:

For services this represents the following:

i) The finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that are
different from the finance chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements.

ii) The officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on
an accruals basis that is different from the remuneration charged in the year in accordance with
statutory requirements.

iii) The Schools Budget deficit charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the
difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and NDR that
was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally
accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be
brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.

Page 139



Note 9b. Segmental Income

Income from Sales, Fees and Charges, including Internal Recharges, are analysed on a

segmental basis below:

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Adult Social Care & Health -120,691 -98,083
Children, Young People & Education -122,934 -103,500
Growth, Environment & Transport -51,039 -45,986
Chief Executive's Department -13,209 -11,385
Deputy Chief Executive's Department -13,345 -16,202
Non-Attributable Services -7,099 -9,219
Total Income analysed on a segmental basis -328,317 -284,375
Note 10. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature
The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:
2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Expenditure
Employee benefits expenses 936,945 922,078
Other services expenses 1,955,679 1,790,780
Support service recharges 77,948 66,257
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 115,754 125,646
Interest payments including interest on Defined Liability of 44,316 53,531
the Pension Fund
Precepts and levies 2,280 2,144
Loss/(Gain) on the disposal of assets 87,169 113,106
Total expenditure 3,220,091 3,073,542
Income
Fees, charges and other service income -336,766 -325,774
Interest and investment income -34,170 -19,677
Income from council tax and non-domestic rates -939,432 -885,685
Government grants and contributions -1,958,261 -1,820,734
Total income -3,268,629 -3,051,870
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services -48,538 21,672

Included in the 2022-23 'Fees, charges and other services income' is £106.1m (£85.3m in 2022-

23) of Revenue from Contracts with Service Recipients specifically relating to Social Care.

Page 140




Note 11. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis
under regulations

31 March 2024 General Capital Capital Movement
Fund Receipts Grants = in Unusable

Balance = Reserve | Unapplied reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital
Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of

non-current assets -110,436 110,436
Revaluation gains/(losses) on Property Plant

and Equipment and Assets held for Sale -7,925 7,925
Movements in the fair value of Investment

Properties -7,165 7,165
Amortisation of intangible assets -1,351 1,351
Capital Grants and contributions applied 135,128 -135,128
Income in relation to donated assets 0 0
In year revenue expenditure funded from

capital under statute -43,491 43,491

Prior year revenue expenditure funded from
capital under statute including long term debtor
adjustments 6,690 -6,690
Amounts of non-current assets written off on
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement -99,274 99,274
Amounts of capital inventory written off on
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement -162 162
Realised & unrealised gains/(losses) on
financial assets held at FVPL 3,485 -3,485

Insertion of items not debited or credited to
the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital

investment 59,421 -59,421
Capital expenditure charged against the
General Fund 19,973 -19,973

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital
Grants Unapplied Account:

Capital grants and contributions unapplied
credited to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement 94,027 -94,027 0
Application of grants to capital financing
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account 32,579 -32,579

Cessation of recyclable grant repaid to
accountable body

-1,319 1,319 0

'S

=




31 March 2024 (contd..) General Capital Capital Movement
Fund Receipts Grants = in Unusable

Balance = Reserve | Unapplied reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital
Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part
of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 7,433 -7,433 0
Transfer of cash sale proceeds from disposal
of investment property credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 5,035 -5,035 0
Transfer of cash sale proceeds from disposal
of capital inventory credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement 195 -195 0
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance

new capital expenditure 14,639 -14,639
Loan repayments 857 -8,303 7,446
Movement in Donated Assets Account 3,815 -3,815

Adjustment primarily involving the
Financial Instruments Adjustment
Account:

Amount by which finance costs charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement are different from finance costs
chargeable in the year in accordance with
statutory requirements 495 -495
Adjustment primarily involving the
Pooled Investment Adjustment
Account:

Unrealised gains/losses on financial assets
held at FVPL 473 -473
Adjustments primarily involving the
Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefits debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement -59,746 59,746
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct

payments to pensioners payable in the year 90,725 -90,725
Adjustments primarily involving the DSG

Adjustment Account:

Amount by which Schools Deficit has moved in

year. -5,815 5,815
KCC contribution to the DSG Safety Valve -14,400 14,400

Adjustments primarily involving the
Collection Fund Adjustment Account:
Amount by which council tax and non-domestic
rating income credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is different

from council tax and non-domestic rating ...
T MU\/

-6,219 6,219

'
N




income calculated for the year in accordance
with statutory requirements

31 March 2024 (contd..) General Capital Capital Movement

Fund Receipts Grants = in Unusable
Balance | Reserve | Unapplied reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustment primarily involving the

Accumulated Absences Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged

to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement on an accruals basis is different

from remuneration chargeable in the year in

accordance with statutory requirements -81 81

Total Adjustments 70,368 -5,008 -61,448 -3,912

Page 143




31 March 2023

General
Fund
Balance
£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£000

Movement
in Unusable
reserves
£000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital
Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of
non-current assets

-102,330

102,330

Revaluation gains/(losses) on Property Plant
and Equipment and Assets held for Sale

-2,936

2,936

Movements in the fair value of Investment
Properties

-1,749

1,749

Amortisation of intangible assets

-1,544

1,544

Capital Grants and contributions applied

119,596

-119,596

Income in relation to donated assets

30,767

-30,767

In year revenue expenditure funded from
capital under statute

-61,631

61,631

Prior year revenue expenditure funded from
capital under statute including long term debtor
adjustments

Amounts of non-current assets written off on
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

-123,908

123,908

Amounts of capital inventory written off on
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

-1,723

1,723

Realised & unrealised gains/(losses) on
financial assets held at FVPL

-3,455

3,455

Insertion of items not debited or credited to
the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital
investment

58,273

-58,273

Capital expenditure charged against the
General Fund

27,211

-27,211

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital
Grants Unapplied Account:

Capital grants and contributions unapplied
credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

68,496

-68,496

Application of grants to capital financing
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account

40,475

-40,475

Cessation of recyclable grant repaid to
accountable body

-1,607

1,607

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital
Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part
of the gain/loss on disposal to the

Paae
J

a4 10,353

-10,353




Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement
31 March 2023 (contd..) General Capital Capital Movement
Fund Receipts Grants in Unusable
Balance | Reserve | Unapplied reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000

Transfer of cash sale proceeds from disposal
of investment property credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 0 0 0 0
Transfer of cash sale proceeds from disposal
of capital inventory credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement 2,046 -2,046

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance

new capital expenditure 13,389 -13,389
Loan repayments 477 -8,533 8,056

Adjustment primarily involving the
Financial Instruments Adjustment
Account:

Amount by which finance costs charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement are different from finance costs
chargeable in the year in accordance with
statutory requirements 2,189 -2,189
Adjustment primarily involving the
Pooled Investment Adjustment
Account:

Unrealised gains/losses on financial assets
held at FVPL -15,408 15,408
Adjustments primarily involving the
Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefits debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement -105,201 105,201
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct
payments to pensioners payable in the year 84,956 -84,956
Adjustments primarily involving the DSG
Adjustment Account:

Amount by which Schools Deficit has moved in
year. 0 0
Adjustments primarily involving the
Collection Fund Adjustment Account:
Amount by which council tax and non-domestic
rating income credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is different
from council tax and non-domestic rating
income calculated for the year in accordance
with statutory requirements 11,188 -11,188
Adjustment primarily involving the
Accumulated Absences Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged
to the Comprehensive Income and Expendifure. , .~ 1,168 -1,168

1 MU\, LT




Statement on an accruals basis is different
from remuneration chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements

Total Adjustments -4,772 -5,936 -28,021 38,729
Note 12. Other Operating Expenditure

2023-24 2022-23

£000 £000

Levies 2,280 2,144

(Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non-current assets 87,169 113,106

Assets held for Sale - revaluation movements ((Gains)/Losses) 351 171

89,800 115,421

Note 13. Financing and investment income and expenditure

2023-24 2022-23

£000 £000

Interest payable and similar charges 54,761 54,947

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability -10,054 -1,022

(Gain)/loss from settlements -296 -2,015

Pensions - Administration expenses and curtailments 2,954 1,992

Interest receivable and similar income -20,548 -12,898

Income & expenditure in relation to investment properties and 586 985

changes in fair value

Changes in fair value of Financial Assets held at fair value -3,958 18,835
through profit and loss

Other investment income -2,410 -2,523

21,035 58,301

Note 14. Taxation and non-specific grant income

Collection Fund Accounting Policy

To reflect that billing authorities act as agents for major preceptors in collecting their share of
Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rating income, transactions and balances will be allocated
between billing authorities and major preceptors. Thus, the risks and rewards that the amount of
Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates collected could vary from that predicted will be shared

proportionately by the billing authorities and major preceptors.

The difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund shall be
taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the

Movement in Reserves Statement.

Revenue relating to such things as Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates, are measured at the full
amount receivable (net of any impairment losses) as they are non-contractual, non-exchange

transactions and there can be no difference between the delivery and payment dates.

A debtor/creditor position between billing authorities and major preceptors is required to be
recognised for the cash collected by the billing Council from Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates
debtors that belongs proportionately to the billing Council and the major preceptors. This is
because the net cash paid to each major prelggagoi%the year will not be its share of cash




collected from Council Taxpayers and Non-Domestic Ratepayers. The effect of any bad debts
written off, or movement in the impairment provision, are also shared proportionately.

Part of the arrangement for the retention of business rates is that authorities will assume the
liability for refunding ratepayers that have successfully appealed against the rateable value of their
property. At the end of 31 March 2024, the Council's estimated share of these liabilities is £7.8m.

2023-24 2022-23

£000 £000

Income from Council Tax -873,968 -829,729
Non-domestic rates income and expenditure -65,464 -55,956
Non-ringfenced government grants -381,429 -305,873
Capital Grants and Contributions -200,651 -176,363
-1,521,512 -1,367,921

KCC's share of surplus on the Council Tax is £1.2m (2022-23 surplus of £10.9m). For 2023-24, the
Business Rate Collection Fund has a surplus of 3.2m (2022-23 a deficit of £0.2m). See the
Collection Fund Adjustment Account detailed in Note 23.

Note 15. Grant Income

Accounting Policy

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

e the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
e the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the
recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the
transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution
is credited to the relevant service line or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Page 147



The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in 2023-24

2023-24 2022-23
£000 Restated
£000
Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

Council Tax Yield including Collection Fund -873,968 -829,729
Local Share of Business Rates & Business Rate Collection Fund -65,464 -55,956
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) -11,073 -10,018
Social Care Support Grant -88,771 -54,478
Business Rate Top-Up -140,802 -138,429
Business Rate Compensation Grant -44 581 -30,727
Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) including Additional Adult -50,015 -50,015

Social Care Allocation
New Homes Bonus (NHB) & NHB Adjustment Grants -2,273 -4,381
Covid 19 Compensation for Covid related business rate reliefs -2,097 2,508
Services Grant -7,599 -12,953
Adult Social Care Discharge Fund -7,012 0
Social Care Reform Grant -23,810 -4,161
Other Un-ringfenced Grants -3,396 -3,157
Capital Government Grants & Contributions -200,651 -176,363
Total -1,521,512 -1,367,921
2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000

Credited to Services
Dedicated Schools Grant -844,380 -842,657
Education Funding Agency -104,692 -85,648
Other DFES Grants -52,310 -45,998
Department of Health Grants -101,770 -104,334
Department for Transport -15,369 -8,983
Asylum -41,479 -33,192
Department of Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 0 -198
Department for Housing, Levelling-up, Communities & Housing -35,955 -33,617
Department for Environment Food & Rural Affairs -1,776 -9,398
Other -40,538 -37,789
Total -1,238,269 -1,201,814

The Council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be
recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies or
property to be returned to the donor. The balances at the year-end are as follows:

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance
Department for Education -197 -197
Other Grants -39,494 -59,155
Other Contributions -118,377 -95,490
Total -158,068 -154,842

Page 148



Note 16. Property, Plant and Equipment

Accounting Policy

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used
during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment
above our de minimis of £10k (£2k in schools) is capitalised on an accruals basis. In this context,
enhancement means work that has substantially increased the value or use of the assets. Work
that has not been completed by the end of the year is carried forward as "assets under
construction”.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

¢ the purchase price,

e any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management,

e the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
on which it is located.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

e infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical
cost,

e surplus assets — fair value based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date,

o all other assets — current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset
in its existing use (existing use value — EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value.

Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical
cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.

The Council has a policy in place to revalue its assets on a rolling programme basis. All assets
will be revalued at least every four years. Assets will also be revalued following significant works
occurring on that asset or some event that may impact on the value of that asset, such as a
significant downturn in economic conditions. Revaluation gains are written to the Revaluation
Reserve, after reversing any revaluation losses on that asset previously posted to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Revaluation losses will be written off against
any balance on the Revaluation Reserve for that asset or to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement where no revaluation gain exists in the reserve for that asset. These
amounts are then written out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no
impact on Council Tax.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

Page 149



e writing down the balance on the Revaluation Reserve for that asset up to the accumulated
gains

e writing down the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement where there is no balance or insufficient balance on the Revaluation Reserve.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original
loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over each asset’s useful economic life and is
charged to the relevant service revenue account in the year following completion of the asset.

The periods over which assets are depreciated are as follows:

Land - nil

Buildings - 3-60 years (as determined by the valuer)
Vehicles, plant and equipment - 3-25 years

Roads & other highways infrastructure - 5-120 years

Community assets - nil

Assets under construction - nil

Investment properties, Assets Held for Sale - nil

Heritage Assets - nil

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Property will be split into five components:

Land

Structure

Mechanical and Electrical
Fixtures and Furnishings
Temporary Buildings.

These components are a significant value of the asset as a whole and have significantly different
useful lives.

Under component accounting, the Authority applies a de minimis threshold of £2m per asset
except Secondary Schools which have a threshold for componentisation of £8m.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Assets are generally defined as ‘held for sale’ if their carrying amount is going to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continued use. This excludes from
consideration any assets that are going to be abandoned or scrapped at the end of their useful
lives. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this
amount and fair value, less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less
costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of

Page 150



Notes . J60_

any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is
not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were
classified as Held for Sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have
been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at
the date of the decision not to sell.

Gains and Losses on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the difference between the capital receipt from
the sale and the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet, after identified costs have
been removed, is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Any revaluation gains
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment
Account. The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

Schools transferring to academy status within the financial year are derecognised. On transfer the
full carrying value is derecognised as an asset disposal for nil consideration. The net loss on
disposal of non-current assets of £87.2m includes a loss of £86.7m which relates to schools
transferring to academy status.

Capital receipts

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The
balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then
normally only be used for new capital investment. There are certain circumstances that allow
revenue expenditure to be funded from capital receipts, for example the revenue costs associated
with transformation. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement. Conditional receipts are not included in these figures until it
is prudent to do so.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record
the cost of holding fixed assets during the year:

e depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service,

e revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off,

e amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment
losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement. Depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General
Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Page 151



Movement on balances PFI Assets
- Movements in 2023-24 included in
Vehicles, Assets Property,
Land and Plant and Community under Surplus Plant and
Buildings Equipment Assets | Construction Assets Total  Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation at 1 April 2023 2,621,106 59,330 6,027 102,029 103,813 2,892,305 348,213
Additions 25,063 8,349 20 60,292 57 93,781 3,940
Donations 0
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in
the Revaluation Reserve -69,327 134 -69,193 -21,545
Revaluation increase / (decreases) recognised in
the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services -12,300 -442 -12,742 -5,225
Derecognition - Disposals -89,845 -1,708 -4,846 -96,399 -23,911
Derecognition - Other -1,073 -7,175 -8,248
Assets reclassified (to) / from Held for Sale -928 -928
Teansfers from Assets Under Construction 36,519 4,240 -57,758 121 -10,585
Qther Movements in cost or valuation -3,315 10,236 1,311 1,939
At 31 March 2024 2,506,828 63,036 6,047 114,799 99,220 2,789,930 301,472
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
at 1 April 2023 -9,061 -38,510 -227 -47,798 -5,287
Depreciation Charge -50,104 -5,182 -135 -55,421 -6,730
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation
Reserve 47,294 123 47,417 10,009
Depreciation written out to Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services 5,021 148 5,169 1,846
Impairment (losses) / reversals recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve 0
Impairment (losses) / reversals recognised in the
Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 90 -8 -343 -261
Derecognition — Disposals 330 942 3 1,275
Derecognition - Other 7,140 7,140
Other movements in Depreciation and Impairment -568 8 343 88 -129
At 31 March 2024 -6,998 -35,610 0 0 0 -42,608 -162
Net Book Value At 31 March 2024 2,499,830 27,426 6,047 114,799 99,220 2,747,322 301,310
Net Book Value At 31 March 2023 2,612,045 20,820 6,027 102,029 103,586 2,844,507 342,926




Movement on balances PFI Assets
- Comparative Movements in 2022-23 included in
Vehicles, Assets Property,
Land and Plant and Community under Surplus Plant and
Buildings Equipment Assets | Construction Assets Total  Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation at 1 April 2022 2,467,248 55,559 10,604 82,514 122,945 2,738,870 396,383
Additions 30,874 6,468 51,520 36 88,898 2,925
Donations 30,767 30,767
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in
the Revaluation Reserve 180,196 -4,543 175,653 14,890
Revaluation increase / (decreases) recognised in
the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services 376 -4,976 -4,600
Derecognition - Disposals -97,362 -274 -18,522  -116,158 -65,985
Derecognition - Other -6,743 -2,480 -9,223
Assets reclassified (to) / from Held for Sale -4,262 -4,262
Tgansfers from Assets Under Construction 23,827 37 -32,005 -8,141
&ther Movements in cost or valuation -8,077 20 -4 577 13,135 501
&t 31 March 2023 2,621,106 59,330 6,027 102,029 103,813 2,892,305 348,213
Atcumulated Depreciation and Impairment at 1
April 2022 -8,972 -36,397 -157 -45,526 -2,597
Depreciation Charge -45,689 -4,731 -95 -50,515 -7,392
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation
Reserve 42,885 173 43,058 4,120
Depreciation written out to Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services 1,757 77 1,834
Impairment (losses) / reversals recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve 0
Impairment (losses) / reversals recognised in the
Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services -146 -68 -527 -741
Derecognition - Disposals 623 196 16 835 582
Derecognition- Other 95 2,422 2,517
Other movements in Depreciation and Impairment 386 68 527 -241 740
At 31 March 2023 -9,061 -38,510 0 0 -227 -47,798 -5,287
Net Book Value At 31 March 2023 2,612,045 20,820 6,027 102,029 103,586 2,844,507 342,926
Net Book Value At 31 March 2022 2,458,276 19,162 10,604 82,514 122,788 2,693,344 393,786




Roads and Other Highways Infrastructure Assets

Movements on balances

In accordance with the temporary relief offered by the Update to the Code on infrastructure assets
this note does not include disclosure of gross cost and accumulated depreciation for infrastructure
assets because historical reporting practices and resultant information deficits mean that this
would not faithfully represent the asset position to the users of the financial statements.

The Authority has chosen not to disclose this information as the previously reported practices and
resultant information deficits mean that gross cost and accumulated depreciation are not
measured accurately and would not provide the basis for the users of the financial statements to
take economic or other decisions relating to infrastructure assets.

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000

Net Book Value as at 1 April 896,840 851,550
Additions 89,750 94,442
Derecognition
Depreciation -54,753 -51,074
Impairment
Transfers from Assets Under Construction 15,968 1,922
Other movements in cost
Net Book Value as at 31 March 947,805 896,840

Reconciliation to Property, Plant and Equipment balance:

2023-24 2022-23

£000 £000

Infrastructure Assets 947,805 896,840
Other PPE Assets 2,747,322 2,844,507
Total PPE Assets 3,695,127 . 3,741,347

The authority has determined in accordance with Regulation 30M of the Local Authorities (Capital
Finance and Accounting) (England/Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2022 that the carrying
amount to be derecognised for infrastructure assets when there is replacement expenditure is nil.

Valuations of Property, Plant and Equipment carried at current value:

The following statement shows an analysis of the Net Book Value of revalued assets by the year
of valuation. The valuations as at 31 March 2024 were carried out by Wilks Head & Eve, overseen
by Guy Harbord MRICS

Land &

Buildings NBV = Surplus Assets Total
Valuation date of revalued assets: £000 NBV £000 NBV £000
31/03/2021 458 0 458
31/03/2022 163,455 0 163,455
31/03/2023 147,854 0 147,854
31/03/2024 2,181,328 99,220 2,280,548
TOTAL 2,493,095 99,220 2,592,315

In addition, land and buildings totalling £6.735m are held at cost as at 31st March 2024, reflecting
new assets that will be revalued in 2024-25. Page 154



The basis for valuation is set out in the statement of accounting policies, and further explained
below.

Basis of valuation

All valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the Statements of Asset
Valuation Practice and Guidance Notes of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). In
2023-24 all land and buildings which have not had a valuation within the last four years have been
valued. All schools, social care establishments, county offices, and surplus assets were revalued.

The following methods/assumptions have been applied in estimating the current values:

- Existing Use Value where the property is not specialised and is owner occupied, for example
county offices.

- Depreciated Replacement Cost where no market exists for a property, which may be rarely sold
or it is a specialised asset, for example schools.

- Fair value for surplus assets.

We have considered and analysed the assets which have not been revalued in 2023-24 and are
confident that the carrying amount of these assets as at 31 March 2024 is not materially different
to their current value as at 31 March 2024.

The sources of information and assumptions made in producing the various valuations are set out
in a valuation certificate and report.

Surplus Assets Fair Value Hierarchy

Details of the Authority's surplus assets and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31
March 2024 are shown in the following table:

Fair value
Level 2 Level 3 as at 31 Level 2
Recurring fair value inputs inputs | March 2024 | Valuation Level 3 Valuation
measurements using: £000 £000 £000 Technique  Technique
Residential 800 72,478 73,278 Market
developments/conversions approach | Market approach
Car Park 348 348 Income approach
Residential dwellings 1,437 1,437 Income & Market
approach
Non-residential institutions 2,186 2,186 Income approach
Assembly & Leisure 421 421 Income approach
Amenity land 3,549 3,549
/woodland/grazing land Market approach
Educational land/agricultural 7,051 7,051 Income & Market
land approach
Industrial
development/Commercial
development/Mixed
Development 10,525 10,525 Market approach
Commercial warehousing/units 425 425 Income & Market
approach
800 98,420 99,220

Page 155



Details of the Authority's surplus assets and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31

March 2023 (excluding in year additions) are as follows:

Fair value
as at 31
Level2 Level3 March Level 2 Level 3

Recurring fair value inputs | inputs 2023 Valuation Valuation
measurements using: £000 £000 £000 Technique  Technique
Residential 850 74,091 74,941 Market Income & Market
developments/conversions approach  approach

263 263 Income & Market
Car Park approach
Residential dwellings 1,323 1,323 Income & Market

approach
Non-residential institutions 3,515 3,515 Income approach
Assembly & Leisure 269 269 Income approach
Amenity land /woodland/grazing 3,702 3,702 Market approach
land
Educational land/agricultural 8,564 8,564 Income & Market
land approach
Industrial 10,754 10,754 Market approach
development/Commercial
development/Mixed
Development
Commercial warehousing/units 256 256 Income approach
850 102,737 103,587

NB The Council does not have any Level 1 valuations.

Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements (using Significant Unobservable
Inputs) Categorised within Level 3 of the Fair Value Hierarchy

The movements during the year of level 3 surplus assets held at fair value, are analysed below:

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000

Opening balance 102,737 121,711
Transfers into Level 3 5,377 203
Transfers out of Level 3 -4,912 -4,268
Additions 0 36
Donations 0 0
Derecognition -4,675 -18,272
Total gains or (losses) for the period included in the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services resulting from changes in the fair
value -294 703
Total gains or (losses) for the period included in Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure resulting from changes in
the fair value 306 2,455
Depreciation charge -135 -90
Other changes 16 259
Closing balance 98,420 102,737

£0.3m of losses arising from changes in the fair value of surplus assets have been recognised in
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services within the 'Strategic & Corporate Services' line
and £0.3m of gains were recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure within the

'(Surplus)/deficit arising on revaluation of non-current assets' line.
Page 156




Quantitative Information about Fair Value Measurement of Surplus Assets using Significant Unobservable Inputs -

Level 3
Fair Value | Unobservable input Quantitative Information Sensitivity
as at 31/03/24
£000
1) £2,350,000 - £4,650,000
1) Land value reduced per hectare reduced by 0% -
to reflect uncertainty 90% Significant changes in unobservable
Residential 2) Estimated fees, costs | 2) £275,000 per unit less inputs could result in a significantly

Developments

72,478

and values

construction costs and fees

lower or higher fair value

1) Estimated rent
2) Passing rent

1) £65 - £350 per permit
2)£13,250

Due to the low fair value of this
category a significant change in
unobservable inputs would not
result in a significantly lower or

Car Park 348 | 3) Estimated yield 3) 5% - 8% higher fair value

]) 1) £1,400 - £6,516 per

& 1) Rent annum

2 2) Lifelong tenancy 2) Years Purchase in

9 valued to perpetuity Perpetuity 4% Significant changes in unobservable

3) Sales price and

3) £385,000 unit reduced by

inputs could result in a significantly

Residential Dwellings 1,437 | location discount 50% lower or higher fair value

1) £1,924 - £6,200 per

annum and £90 - £95 per Significant changes in unobservable
Non-residential 1) Estimated rent square metre inputs could result in a significantly
institutions 2,186 | 2) Estimated yield 2)6.5% - 9% lower or higher fair value

Assembly & Leisure

421

1) Passing rent
2) Estimated yield

1) £150 per annum and £55
per square metre
2) 8% - 10%

Significant changes in unobservable
inputs could result in a significantly
lower or higher fair value




Fair Value
as at 31/03/24
£000

Unobservable input

Quantitative Information

Sensitivity

Amenity land

1) £22,230 - £100,000 per

Significant changes in unobservable
inputs could result in a significantly

/woodland/grazing land 3,549 | 1) Estimated land value hectare lower or higher fair value
1) £300 - £3,150 per annum

1) Estimated rent 2) 5% - 9% Significant changes in unobservable
Educational 2) Estimated yield 3) £22,230 - £4,400,000 per | inputs could result in a significantly
land/agricultural land 7,051 | 3) Estimated land value hectare lower or higher fair value
Industrial
development/Commercial 1) £250,000 - £2,250,000 Significant changes in unobservable
development/Mixed 1) Land value reduced to | per hectare reduced by 0% - | inputs could result in a significantly
Development 10,525 | reflect uncertainty 75% lower or higher fair value
Gommercial
Earehousing/units 1) £95 - £129 per square Significant changes in unobservable
= 1) Estimated rent metre inputs could result in a significantly
0 425 | 2) Estimated yield 2)12% lower or higher fair value
Total 98,420




Notes . J68_

Valuation Process for Surplus Assets

The fair value of the Council's surplus assets is measured at least every four years in line with our
revaluation policy for Property, Plant and Equipment. All valuations are carried out by appointed
external valuers in accordance with the professional standards of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and reviewed internally by finance officers.

Highest & Best Use of Surplus Assets

In estimating the fair value of the Council's surplus assets, the highest and best use of 35 of the 95
assets is their current use. Of the remaining 60 assets, 55 are vacant, and 5 have alternative uses
as a result of existing lease arrangements.

Contractual Commitments

The Council have contractual commitments to make payments of circa £155.2m in future years
(£120.0m in 2022-23).

Note 17. - Investment Property

Accounting Policy

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or
production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the
amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length.
Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the
year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same
treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment
Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal
gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General
Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any
sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:

2023-24 2022-23

£000 £000

Rental income from Investment Property 2,484 1,905
Direct operating expenses arising from Investment Property -940 -1,141
Net gain/(loss) 1,544 764

There are no restrictions on the Council's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment
property or on the Council's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The
Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or for
repairs, maintenance, or enhancement.

Page 159



Notes . J69_

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the

year:
2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Balance at start of the year 51,140 50,745
Additions:
e Purchases 2,288
e Construction
e Subsequent expenditure 47
Disposals: -4,706
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments -2,459 -1,749
Transfers:
e to/(from) Inventories 378
e to/(from) Property, Plant & Equipment -1,367 -191
Other Changes 182
Balance at end of the year 43,168 51,140

Fair Value Hierarchy

Details of the Authority's investment properties, and information about the fair value hierarchy as at

31 March 2024 are shown below:

Fair value
Re_CU”'i”g fair value measurements Level2 Level3 as at 31  Level 2 Level 3
using: inputs inputs | March 2024 | Valuation  Valuation
£000 £000 £000 Technique | Technique

Residential developments 530 6,298 6,828 Market Market
Offices 27,741 1,752 29,493 Income Income
Industrial development / commercial
development 60 1,341 1,401 Market Market
Non-residential institutions 132 132 Income
Car Parks 1,187 1,187 Income
Ransom Strips 500 500 « Market
Industrial units 2,744 103 2,847 Income Income
Affordable housing 780 780 Market

32,355 10,813 43,168

Page 160




Details of the Authority's investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at
31 March 2023 are shown below. This excludes purchases of £2.288m made in 2022-23 as fair
value hierarchy information is obtained when assets are revalued, not purchased.

Recurring fair value Level 2 Level 3  Fair value as at | Level 2 Level 3
measurements using: inputs inputs 31 March 2023 Valuation  Valuation
£000 £000 £000 Technique @ Technique

Residential developments -300 10,670 10,370 | Market Market

Offices 12,362 17,032 29,394  Income Income

Industrial 1,383 1,853 3,236 Market Market

development/commercial

development

Non-residential institutions 440 440 Income

Car Parks 1,233 1,233 Income

Ransom Strips 2,500 2,500 Market

Golf Course 348 348 Income

Industrial units 145 106 251 Income Income

Affordable housing 1,080 1,080 Income
16,438 32,414 48,852

NB The council does not have any Level 1 valuations.

Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements (using Significant Unobservable
Inputs) Categorised within Level 3 of the Fair Value Hierarchy

The movements during the year of level 3 investment property held at fair value, are analysed

below:

2023-24 2022-23

£000 £000

Opening balance 32,414 35,019
Transfers into Level 3 1,581
Transfers out of Level 3 -17,985 -955
Additions 47
Disposals -3,041
Total gains or (losses) for the period included in the Surplus or Deficit on -725 -3,278
the Provision of Services resulting from changes in the fair value
Other changes 150
Closing balance 10,813 32,414

£0.7m of losses arising from changes in the fair value of the investment property have been
recognised in the 'Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services - Financing and Investment

Income and Expenditure’ line.

Page 161




Quantitative Information about Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties using Significant Unobservable

Inputs - Level 3

Fair Value | Unobservable input Quantitative Information Sensitivity
as at 31/03/24
£000
Significant changes in
1) £2,700,000 - £3,300,000 | unobservable inputs could result
Residential 1) Estimated land value per hectare in a significantly lower or higher
Developments 6,298 | 2) Discount for uncertainty | 2) 50% - 65% fair value

1) Estimated rent
2) Estimated yield

1) £124 per square metre
2)9.5% - 10.5%

Significant changes in
unobservable inputs could result
in a significantly lower or higher

Offices 1,752 | 3) Void period 3) 2 years fair value
Significant changes in
Industrial 1) £1,200,000 - £4,100,000 | unobservable inputs could result

Jgvelopment/commercial

1) Estimated land value

per hectare

in a significantly lower or higher

&evelopment 1,341 | 2) Discount for uncertainty | 2) 15% - 50% fair value
= Significant changes in
N unobservable inputs could result
Non-residential 1) Estimated rent 1) £110 per square metre in a significantly lower or higher
institutions 132 | 2) Estimated yield 2)10% - 11% fair value
Significant changes in
unobservable inputs could result
1) Estimated rent 1) £250 per space; £30/sgm | in a significantly lower or higher
Car Parks 1,187 | 2) Estimated yield 2)7.75% - 8.5% fair value

Industrial Units

103

Estimated yield

8.25% - 9.25%

Significant changes in
unobservable inputs could result
in a significantly lower or higher
fair value

Total

10,813




Valuation Process for Investment Properties

The fair value of the Council’s investment property is measured annually at each reporting date. All
valuations are carried out by appointed external valuers in accordance with the professional
standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and reviewed internally by finance
officers.

Highest & Best Use of Investment Properties

In estimating the fair value of the Council's investment properties, the highest and best use of 20
of the 29 properties is their current use. Of the remaining 9 properties, 5 are held for capital
appreciation as investments, 2 have an alternative use as a result of existing lease arrangements
and 2 are currently vacant.

Note 18. Capital Expenditure and Financing
Accounting Policy

Government Grants and Contributions

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied
reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the
Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they
have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute represents expenditure which may be
properly capitalised but does not result in the creation of a non-current asset. The expenditure has
been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year. Capital expenditure on assets that do not belong to the council
such as Academy schools are charged here and are written out in the year. These charges are
reversed out to the Capital Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reserves Statement to
mitigate any impact on council tax.

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the following table
(including the value of assets acquired under finance leases and PFI/PP contracts), together with
the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in
future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in
an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure
incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second
part of this note.

Page 163



2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Opening Capital financing requirement 1,292,420 1,294,084
Capital investment
Property, Plant and Equipment 183,529 183,340
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 43,491 61,631
Long-Term Debtors 10,974 10,241
Other -386 2,849
1,530,028 1,552,145
Sources of finance
Capital receipts -14,639 -13,389
Government grants and other contributions -167,707 -160,852
Direct revenue contributions -19,973 -27,211
(MRP/loans fund principal) -59,421 -58,273
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 1,268,288 1,292,420
Movement -24,132 -1,664
Explanation of movements in year 2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Increase in underlying need to borrow (supported by Government
financial assistance)
Increase/(decrease) in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by -24,414 -1,664
Government financial assistance)
Assets acquired under finance lease 282
Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement -24,132 -1,664

Note 19. PFIl and Similar Contracts

Accounting Policy

PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making
available the property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFlI
contractor. As the Council is deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI
schemes, and as ownership of the property, plant and equipment will pass to the Council at the
end of the contracts for no additional charge, the Council carries the assets used under the

contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The original recognition of these assets is balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts
due to the scheme operator to pay for the assets, written down by any capital contributions.

Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same

way as property, plant and equipment owned by the Council.

e fair value of the services received during the year — debited to the relevant service in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

e finance cost — an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement

e contingent rent — increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the
contract, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

e payment towards liability — applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI

operator Page 164




¢ lifecycle replacement costs - recognised as additions to Property, Plant and Equipment.

Value of PFl assets at each balance sheet date and analysis of movement in
those values

Value of assets

Better
Homes, Excellent
6 Swanscombe | Westview/ | Active 3 BSF Homes TOTAL
schools | Schools Westbrook | Lives Schools | for All £000
As at 31
March 2023 94,642 11,153 24296 | 70,198 73,201 66,495 | 339,985
Additions 881 11 813 931 838 163 3,637
Transfers out | -23,609 -23,609
Transfers in 0
Revaluations -1,750 -204 -1,409 -5,768 -2,026 -3,757 | -14,914
Depreciation -1,610 -227 -540 -1,344 -1,642 -1,285 -6,648
As at 31
March 2024
68,554 10,733 23,160 | 64,017 70,371 61,616 | 298,451
£24m assets transferred out relates to one school converting to academy status.
NB The value of PFI assets in Note 16 includes £2,859k in relation to service concession
arrangements (IFRIC 12) assets that are not included in this note.
Finance Lease Liability
Better
Homes, Excellent
6 | Swanscombe | Westview/ Active 3 BSF Homes | TOTAL
schools Schools | Westbrook Lives | Schools for All £000
As at 31
March 2023 55,997 5,496 10,323 | 45,332 46,900 29,490 | 193,538
Additions 0
Liability
repaid -2,296 -948 -409 -1,220 -2,070 -1,325 -8,267
As at 31
March 2024
53,701 4,548 9,914 44 112 44,830 28,166 | 185,271

The original recognition of these fixed assets is balanced by the recognition of a liability for
amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the assets. For the 6 Schools PFl, the liability was
written down by an initial capital contribution of £4.541m. For the Better Homes, Active Lives PFI
the liability was written down by an initial capital contribution of £0.65m.

Page 165




Details of payments to be made under PFI contracts

6 schools
Repayment of Interest Service | Lifecycle TOTAL
liability Charges costs £000
Within 1 year 2,617 4,749 4,609 2,360 14,334
Within 2-5 years 12,447 16,620 19,616 10,864 59,548
Within 6-10 years 24,383 13,389 27,408 11,750 76,930
Within 11-15 years 14,254 1,982 11,946 2,238 30,420

RPIx is used as the basis for indexation in the 6 schools PFI contract. RPIx has been assumed to
be at 2.5% per annum for the duration of the remainder of this PFI contract.

Swanscombe Schools

Repayment of Interest Service | Lifecycle TOTAL

liability Charges costs £000

Within 1 year 1,009 668 1,015 340 3,031
Within 2-5 years 3,539 1,021 2,631 855 8,046
Within 6-10 years 0 0 0 0 0

RPIx is used as the basis for indexation in the Swanscombe Schools PFI contract. RPIx has been

assumed to be at 2.5% per annum for the duration of the remainder of this PFI contract.

Westview/Westbrook

Repayment of Interest Service | Lifecycle TOTAL

liability Charges costs £000

Within 1 year 293 766 2,168 1,160 4,386
Within 2-5 years 2,838 2,673 9,303 1,995 16,810
Within 6-10 years 6,783 1,805 10,411 968 19,967
Within 11-15 years 0 0 0 0 0

The RPIx and Average Weekly Earnings (AWE) indices are both used as bases for indexation in
the Westview/Westbrook PFI Contract. RPIx has been assumed to be at 2.5% per annum for the
duration of the remainder of this PFI contract and AWE has been assumed to be 2% higher than
this at 4.5% over the same period.

Better Homes, Active Lives

Repayment of Interest Service | Lifecycle TOTAL

liability Charges costs £000

Within 1 year 1,708 3,133 0 530 5,371
Within 2-5 years 8,628 11,136 0 1,720 21,484
Within 6-10 years 13,855 10,083 0 2917 26,855
Within 11-15 years 19,920 4,245 0 899 25,065
Within 16-20 years 0 0 0 0 0

No indexation is applied to the Better Homes, Active Lives PFI contract.

Page 166




3 BSF Schools

Repayment of Interest Service | Lifecycle TOTAL

liability Charges costs £000

Within 1 year 2,036 4,166 2,824 1,672 10,698
Within 2-5 years 9,971 14,587 12,021 7,595 44,175
Within 6-10 years 19,731 12,108 16,796 8,062 56,698
Within 11-15 years 13,091 1,912 4,788 844 20,636

RPIx is used as the basis for indexation in the BSF Wave 3 PFI contract. RPIx has been assumed
to be at 2.5% per annum for the duration of the remainder of this PFI contract.

Excellent Homes for All

Repayment of Interest Service | Lifecycle TOTAL
liability Charges costs £000
Within 1 year 1,324 1,287 1,097 223 3,931
Within 2-5 years 5,103 4,566 4,387 1,668 15,724
Within 6-10 years 7,580 4,327 5,484 2,264 19,655
Within 11-15 years 9,053 2,460 5,484 2,659 19,655
Within 16-20 years 5,105 374 1,645 738 7,862
No indexation is applied to the Excellent Homes for All PFI contract.
TOTAL for all PFI Contracts
Repayment Interest Service Lifecycle TOTAL
of liability Charges costs £000
Within 1 year 8,987 14,769 11,712 6,284 41,752
Within 2-5 42,527 50,604 47,958 24,696 165,785
years
Within 6-10 72,332 41,712 60,099 25,961 200,104
years
Within 11-15 56,319 10,598 22,218 6,641 95,776
years
Within 16-20 5,105 374 1,645 738 7,862
years
Total 185,271 118,057 143,633 64,320 511,280

Swan Valley and Craylands, 6 Group Schools, and 3 BSF Schools

On 24 May 2001, the Council contracted with New Schools (Swanscombe) Ltd to provide Swan
Valley Secondary School and Craylands Primary School under a Private Finance Initiative (PFI).
The schools opened in October 2002. Under the PFI contract the Council pays an agreed charge
for the services provided by the PFI contractor. The unitary charge commenced in October 2002,
PFI credits were received from April 2003 and were backdated to October 2002. This charge is
included in the Council’s revenue budget and outturn figures. At the time the contract was signed
the total estimated contract payments were £65.5m over the 25 year (termination end of
September 2027) contract period. In September 2013 Swan Valley Community School converted
into Ebbsfleet Academy.

On 7 October 2005, the Council contracted with Kent Education Partnership to provide 6 new
secondary schools (Hugh Christie Technology College, Holmesdale Technology College (now

Holmesdale School), The North School (now an Academy), Ellington School for Girls, The Malling
Page 167



School and Aylesford School - Sports College) under a Private Finance Initiative (PFI). The
development of these schools straddled both the 2006-07 and 2007-08 financial years. Three of
these schools opened part of their new buildings during the 2006-07 financial year (Hugh Christie,
Holmesdale and The North). The other three schools opened their new buildings during 2007-08
(Ellington School for Girls, The Malling and Aylesford). From September 2009 Ellington School for
Girls merged with Hereson Boys School to become Ellington and Hereson School, which is also a
Trust. The school has now been renamed the Royal Harbour Academy. The Royal Harbour
Academy Lower Site, serving Years 7 and 8 is the only site in the PFIl. The Upper Site is not part of
the contract. The North School became an academy in January 2022. In September 2022 both
Aylesford and Holmesdale Schools became academies. The Royal Harbour Academy school
became an academy on 1 April 2023.

The unitary charge commenced in November 2006, PFI credits commenced in June 2007 and
were backdated to November 2006. This charge is included in the Council’s revenue budget and
outturn figures. At the time the contract was signed the total estimated contract payments were
£373.9 million over the 28 year contract period.

On 24 October 2008, the Council contracted with Kent PFI Company 1 Ltd to provide 3 new
secondary schools in Gravesend (St John's Catholic School, Thamesview School and Northfleet
Technology College) under a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) which formed part of the Building
Schools for the Future programme. All three schools opened their new buildings during the 2010-
11 financial year. The unitary charge commenced in July 2010 upon the opening of the three
schools, PFI credits commenced in March 2011 and were backdated to July 2010. This charge is
included in the Council’s revenue budget and outturn figures. At the time the contract was signed
the total estimated contract payments were £250.8 million over the 25 year contract period.

Central Government provides a grant to support the PFI schemes. This Revenue Support Grant is
based on a formula related to the Capital Expenditure in the scheme: this is called the notional
credit approval and amounts to £11.62m of credits for Swan Valley and Craylands, £80.75m for the
6 schools and £98.94m for the 3 schools. This approval triggers the payment of a Revenue
Support Grant over the life of the schemes of 25 years (Swan Valley and Craylands), 28 years (6
schools), and 25 years (3 schools). This grant amounts to just under £23m (Swan Valley and
Craylands), just over £177m (6 schools) and just over £193m (3 schools).

Westbrook and Westview

In 2023-24, the Council made payments of £5.5m to Integrated Care Services (ICS) for the
maintenance and operation of Westbrook and Westview recuperative care facilities. The Council is
committed to making payments of £5.6m for 2024-25 under this PFI contract. The actual amount
paid will depend on the performance of ICS in delivering the services under the contract which will
run until April 2033.

Gravesham Place

The NHS are the accountable body for this PFI arrangement and in accordance with accounting
procedures this is not included on KCC's balance sheet. However, in 2024-25 the Council is
committed to making payments estimated at £4.4m per year under a contract with NHS Property
Services, of which an estimated £3.9m will be paid by NHS Property Services to Land Securities
Group Plc for the maintenance and facilities management, including laundry and catering, of
Gravesham Place integrated care centre. The actual amount is subject to an annual inflationary
uplift, other contractual adjustments and is also dependent on the performance of Land Securities
in delivering the services under the contract (£4.3m was invoiced in 2023-24, of which £3.7m was
paid to Land Securities Group Plc). The contract will run until April 2036.

Better Homes, Active Lives PFI

In October 2007 the Council signed a PFI contract with Kent Community Partnership Ltd (a wholly
owned subsidiary of Housing 21) to provide p4@aniggof accommodation of which 275 units are



Extra Care accommodation, 58 units for people with learning difficulties, and 7 units for people
with mental health problems. The contract for the provision of services will last until 2038-39. In
2023-24 the Council made payments of £5.4m to the contractor and is committed to paying the
same amount next year, although this will depend on the performance of Kent Community
Partnership delivering the services under the contract.

Excellent Homes for All PFI

In June 2014 the Council signed a PFI contract with Galliford Try PLC (now Galliford Try Ltd) who
will provide 238 units of specialist accommodation on seven sites across Kent. There will be 218
units of Extra Care accommodation, 9 units for people with mental health problems and 11 move-
on apartments. In 2023-24the Council made unitary charge payments of £3.9m to the contractor
and is committed to paying the same amount each year, although this will depend on the
performance of the Kent EHFA Projectco Limited delivering the services under the contract. The
contract runs until 2040-41.

Page 169



Note 20. Heritage Assets

Accounting Policy

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical, or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge
and culture.

Heritage assets above our de minimis of £10k are recognised in the balance sheet wherever
possible at valuation or cost. In most cases, insurance valuations are used. However, the unique
nature of many heritage assets makes valuation complex and so where values cannot be
obtained, either due to the nature of the assets or the prohibitive cost of obtaining a valuation, they
are not recognised in the balance sheet, but comprehensive descriptive disclosures are included
in the statement of accounts.

An impairment review of heritage assets is carried out where there is physical deterioration of a
heritage asset.

Historic Artwork - Historical & Civic Total
Building ~ Paintings &  Archives Archaeological Regalia  Heritage
s £000  Sculptures £000 Artefacts ¢gpg  Assets
£000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2022 1,550 2,425 2,832 188 19 7,014
Additions 493 493
Donations
Disposals

Revaluations Increases
/ (Decreases)
recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve 245 233 2 480

Revaluations Increases
/ (Decreases)
recognised in the
Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services

At 31 March 2023 2,043 2,670 3,065 188 21 7,987
Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2023 2,043 2,670 3,065 188 21 7,987
Additions 306 306
Donations

Disposals

Revaluations Increases
/ (Decreases)
recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve 254 254

Revaluations Increases
/ (Decreases)
recognised in the
Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services

At 31 March 2024 2,349 2,670 3,319 188 21 8,547

Page 170



Notes . J380_

Historic Environment & Monuments

Eight windmills are included in the balance sheet at a value of £2.237m, which represents spend
on these assets including £306k capital expenditure added to these assets in 2023-24. These are
either Grade | or |l listed buildings and are located across Kent. KCC first took windmills into our
care in the 1950s when, with the millers gone, there was no one else to protect these landmark
buildings. We now own eight, ranging from Post Mills of Chillenden and Stocks at Wittersham to
the magnificent Smock Mill at Cranbrook — the tallest in England.

Kent County Council works with local groups to actively preserve the future of the windmills and to
support their repair and, where records exist, restoration. We also encourage improvements to the
buildings and sites, to encourage greater public access and greater use of the windmills as an
educational resource.

Thurnham Castle, located within White Horse Wood Country Park is a late 11th/early 12th
century motte and bailey castle with gatehouse and curtain walls in flint and traces of an oval or
polygonal shell keep, built on a steep spur of the North Downs. Above ground remains consist of
some surviving sections of walling and earthworks of the main castle mound. This is valued at
£111k in the balance sheet which represents spend on the asset. Situated within Shorne Woods
Country Park is the site of the medieval manor house Randall Manor. The site now consists of
below ground archaeological remains, along with earthworks relating to associated fish ponds and
field systems.

Hildenborough war memorial consists of a cross shaft with a carved relief of a crucifixion scene.
It stands on a plinth on a stepped dais. The inscription to the dead of the First World War is on the
front face of the plinth below the cross with names on the side faces and additional names of the
fallen on the risers of the steps.

The former World War Il Air Raid Wardens’ post stands in a fenced and partly walled enclosure
at the side of the steps down from Folkestone Road to the approach to Dover Priory railway
station. It is a small flat-roofed concrete structure with all apertures boarded up.

Martello Tower No. 5 situated at Folkestone Grammar School is a Scheduled Monument, one
of a chain of forts that protected the south coast from the threat of invasion in the Napoleonic
period. It stands within the grounds of the school, immediately west of the buildings.

The church of St Martin-le-Grand and remains of the Dover Classis Britannica fort are
incorporated and displayed at the Dover Discovery Centre, which houses Dover Library. It was
formerly the White Cliffs Experience. The Roman remains relate to the 2nd century fort that
occupied the site and the area to the southwest. The church of St Martin-le-Grand was an early
foundation that developed through the medieval period. At the time of the Reformation, it fell into
disuse and buildings were constructed in and around the church. The remains of the church are
exposed in the land between the centre and the museum to the northeast.

A grade |l listed Statue of Queen Victoria is situated outside of the Adult Education Centre,
Gravesend.

Artwork

Included in the balance sheet, at insurance valuations, are the following collections:

Kent Visual Arts Loan Service, a collection of ¢.1500 pieces of original artwork currently held in
storage at Sessions House, valued at £730k.

The Antony Gormley Boulders Sculpture, the sculptors' first professional commission, valued at
£859k. The sculpture is a single piece, in that the two parts are inextricably linked. The hollow
bronze piece is a facsimile of the granite stone. The work represents the “old and the new” sitting
side by side in harmony and is located at the I},(%g hlisfory and Library Centre.



Contemporary collection of c. 200 artworks (6 out 7 collections) in storage in Sessions House,
valued at £334k.

KCC Sessions House collection, valued at £83k.

Glass Screen by Chris Ofili valued at £491k. Translucent glazed screen lit from below, by Chris
Ofili (2003), welcoming you to Folkestone Library.

Kent History Tree & Leaves valued at £173k. The "History Tree" at the Kent History and Library
Centre was installed in September 2013, created by Anne Schwegmann-Fielding in collaboration
with Michael Condron. It is an 8 metre stainless steel tree, adorning the front of the building, with
translucent mosaic at its base and 17 steel and mosaic leaves changing from green to red blowing
along the pillars.

Archive Collections

Kent County Council looks after its own records and those of its predecessor authorities. In
addition, it collects and makes accessible other historic records under the terms of the 1962 Public
Records Act and the 1972 Local Government Act. These records include those of public bodies
such as courts, health trusts and coroners, of district councils and of individuals and organisation
in the county. There are about 12kms of records, dating back to 699AD, and they are stored in
BS5454 conditions at the Kent History Centre in Maidstone. Approximately 25% of the records are
owned by KCC, the values of which are included in the balance sheet as follows (valuations are
insurance valuations unless otherwise specified):

General archive collections, £952k

Knatchbull/Brabourne Manuscripts, £1,845k. Family and estate papers relating to the
Knatchbull/Brabourne family comprising of accounts, correspondence, legal papers, and manorial
records.

Rare Books collection, valued at £209k based on an informal estimate given by an antiquarian
book dealer.

Amherst Family Papers £314k based on a valuation obtained before they were bought via a
Heritage Lottery Fund bid.

The Kent Historic Environment Record is primarily a digital database (including GIS display) of
Kent's archaeological sites, find spots, historic buildings, and historic gardens. It also includes
paper records of archaeological, historic building and historic landscape reports. The County aerial
photograph series is now located in the Kent History centre.

Archaeological & Historical Artefacts

Kent County Council has accepted ownership of the majority of the HS1 archaeological archives
as owner of last resort to prevent the collections from being broken up or disposed of. The
collections comprise approximately 70 cubic metres of boxes containing archaeological artefacts
including pottery, bone, stone, metalwork, and worked flint. They are generally of little financial
value. The collections are currently housed half at Kent Commercial Services, Aylesford, half in a
store at Dover Eastern Docks, a small number of items in Invicta House, Maidstone, and
waterlogged wood in Chatham Historic Dockyard. During 2014-15, in order to keep the HS1
archive together in one ownership, KCC has also acquired the finds from the Anglo-Saxon
cemetery excavations at Saltwood Tunnel which have been declared as treasure under the
Treasure Act 1996 and valued at £37.5k. The finds are currently stored within the Art Store at Kent
County Council.

KCC owns approximately 4,000 objects of social history, archaeological and geological, prints, and

drawings and other material housed at Sevelggggsl%(zaleidoscope Museum. A marble roman



bust & portrait, found at Lullingstone Villa, dating back to 2nd Century AD are valued at £60k and
£40k, respectively. These are currently on long term loan from Sevenoaks Museum to the British
Museum. The museum holds a painting by John Downton and a 18th/19th soldier’s quilt
recently valued at £50k by an industry expert.

There is a collection of around 100 artefacts kept at Ramsgate Library, remnants of a fire at the
library in 2004, including prize cups, watches, signs & plaques, pots, printing plates, weights and
measures.

There is a wooden model of Broadstairs Lifeboat that was launched 84 times between 1868 -1888,
displayed in a wood and glass cabinet. This model has been restored by a member of the public
and is now on display in Broadstairs Library.

KCC owns Scientific Calibration Equipment dating back to the 1800s in the display cases.

Civic Regalia

KCC'’s silver collection is valued at £21k. This includes The Chairman’s Plate, The Silver Salver,
The Silver Gilt Cup, and The 500 Squadron Silver collection.

Note 21. Leases

Accounting Policy

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant, or equipment from the lessor to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Council as Lessee

Finance Leases

Property, plant, and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at
the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present
value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for
the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount
of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

e a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant, or equipment — applied to
write down the lease liability, and

¢ afinance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

e contingent rents, the difference between the rent paid in year and the original amount
agreed in the contract (e.g. following a rent review) also debited to Financing and

Page 173



Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this
is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to
the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment
losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue
funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.
Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue
contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant, or
equipment.

The Council as Lessor

Operating Leases

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant
asset and charged as an expense on the same basis as rental income.

The Council as Lessee

Operating Leases

Following a review on the materiality of lease values we found that only operating leases where
the Council is the lessee were deemed to be material. The values are represented in the tables
below.

The Council has acquired property, motor vehicles, and office equipment by entering into operating
leases.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31 Mar 2024 . 31 Mar 2023

£000 £000

Not later than one year 9,114 8,779
Later than one year and not later than five years 18,637 15,317
Later than five years 12,769 16,954
40,520 41,050

KCC sub-lets some properties held as operating leases. In most cases the amount charged to the
tenants for sub-leases is nil. For those where we do charge, the future minimum sub-lease
payments expected to be received by the Council is £10.9m over the remaining life of the 25 year
lease.

Page 174



The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the

year in relation to operating leases was:

31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023

£000 £000

Minimum lease payments 11,046 10,462
Contingent rents 354 389
Sublease payments receivable -807 -807
10,593 10,044

Page 175




Note 22. Usable Reserves

Accounting Policy

The Council holds general fund reserves as a consequence of income exceeding expenditure,
budgeted contributions to reserves or where money has been earmarked for a specific purpose.
These reserves are set at a level appropriate to the size of the budget and the level of assessed
risk.

Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged
to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then
appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that
there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. Certain reserves are kept to manage
the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, retirement and employee
benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council.

Net Balance
Balance Movement 31 March
1 April 2023 in year 2024
Reserve £000 £000 £000 : Purpose of Reserve
Usable Capital -39,226 -5,008 -44,234 Proceeds of fixed assets and
Receipts loan repayments available to
meet future Capital Expenditure
General Fund - KCC -37,428 -5,800 -43,228 | Resources available to meet
future unforeseen events
General Fund - 511 -312 199 Resources available to meet
Commercial Services future unforeseen events
Capital Grants -102,205 -61,447 -163,653 See note below
unapplied
Earmarked -353,334 40,483 -312,851 See Note 24
Reserves*
Schools Reserve* -61,083 2,449 -58,634 : See table below
Surplus on Trading -1,146 -589 -1,735 Commercial Services
Accounts*
Total -593,911 -30,224 -624,136

The Net Movement in year figures in rows with an asterisk (*) in the table above match the
‘Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves’ figures in the Earmarked GF Reserves and S31 - 75%
Tax Guarantee grant and Business Rates Relief Grant Reserves columns in the Movement in
Reserves Statement (MIRS).

Capital grants unapplied of £163.7m as at 31 March 2024 includes the schools capital reserves of
£0.984m. This has decreased from the surplus of £3.851m held by schools as at 31 March 2023.
The remainder reflects Government grants and contributions received in year for projects in
progress.

Page 176



Notes . J36_

School Reserves

At 31 March 2024 funds held in school revenue reserves stood at £58.634m. These reserves are
detailed in the table below:

Balance at Movement Balance at
1 April 2023 £000 31 Mar 2024
£000 £000
School delegated revenue budget reserves -
committed -18,981 599 -18,382
School delegated revenue budget reserves -
uncommitted -41,790 1,802 -39,988
Unallocated Schools budget 0 0 0
Community Focused Extended School Reserves -312 48 -264
-61,083 2,449 -58,634

Note 23. Unusable Reserves

The Council keeps a number of reserves in the Balance Sheet. Some are required to be held for
statutory reasons, some are needed to comply with proper accounting practice.

Net
Balance 1| Movement . Balance 31
April 2023 in year . March 2024
Reserve £000 £000 £000 Purpose of Reserve
Store of gains on revaluation of
Revaluation Reserve -1,585,992 102,308 1,483,684 : fixed assets
Capital Adjustment Store of capital resources set
Account -978,593 -79,341 -1,057,934 aside for past expenditure
Financial Movements in fair value of assets
Instruments and premiums
Adjustment Account 18,215 -1,446 16,769
Movement between the | & E and
Collection Fund amount required by regulation to
Adjustment Account -10,631 6,219 -4,412  be credited to the General Fund
Balancing account to allow
Pensions Reserves - inclusion of Pensions Liability in
KCC 61,556 -27,524 34,032 Balance Sheet
Balancing account to allow
Pensions Reserves - inclusion of Pensions Liability in
DSO 893 -96 797 Balance Sheet
Pooled Investment Movements in fair value of Pooled
Adjustment Account 6,043 -473 5,570 Investment Funds
This absorbs the differences on
Accumulated the General Fund from accruing
Absences Account 8,865 995 9,860 for untaken annual leave
This absorbs the differences on
the General Fund from accruing
for redundancy and retirement
Post Employment costs agreed but not due until
Account 1,375 -914 461 future years
DSG Adjustment Recognition of deficits in respect
Account 97,616 5,815 103,431 of the schools budget
Total -2,380,653 5,543 -2,375,110

raytc 177




Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the
value of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated
gains are:

¢ revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
e used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
e disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the
Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the
balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2023-24 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance as at 1st April -1,585,992 -1,464,591
Upward revaluation of assets -44 384 -235,274

Downward revaluation of assets and
impairment losses not charged to the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 65,830 16,040

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-
current assets not posted to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services 21,446 -219,234

Difference between fair value depreciation
and historical cost depreciation 26,880 22,727

Accumulated gains on assets sold or
scrapped 53,981 75,106

Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment
Account 80,861 97,833

Balance at 31 March -1,483,685 -1,585,992

Page 178



Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction, or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account
is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment
losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical
cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the
costs of acquisition, construction, and enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment
before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Note 11 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from
those involving the Revaluation Reserve.

Page 179



Notes ______________________________J38

2023-24 2023-24  2022-23  2022-23

£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance as at 1st April -978,593 -898,381
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement:
- Charges for depreciation and impairment of
non-current assets 110,436 102,330
- Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and
Equipment and Assets Held for Sale 7,925 2,936
- Income in relation to donated assets -30,767
- Amortisation of intangible assets 1,351 1,544
- Revenue expenditure funded from capital under
statute 36,801 61,631

- Amounts of non-current assets written off on
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement 99,274 123,908

- Amounts of capital inventory written off on
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement 162 1,723

- Realised and unrealised gains/losses on
financial assets held at FVPL -3,485 3,455

252,464 266,760

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation
Reserve -80,861 -97,833

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current
assets consumed in the year -806,990 -729,454

Capital financing applied in the year:

- Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance
new capital expenditure -14,639 -13,389

- Capital grants and contributions credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement that have been applied to capital

financing -135,128 -119,596
- Application of grants to capital financing from

the Capital Grants Unapplied Account -32,579 -40,475
- Statutory provision for the financing of capital

investment charged against the General Fund -59,421 -58,273
- Capital expenditure charged against the

General Fund -19,973 -27,211

-261,740 -258,944

Movements in the market value of Investment
Properties debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 7,165 1,749

Movement in the Donated Assets Account
credited to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement -3,815
Write down of long-term debtors 7,446 8,056
Balance at 31 March -1,057,934 -978,593

Page 180



Notes . Joo_

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the

different arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial

instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains per statutory provisions. The Council
uses the Account to manage premiums paid on the early redemption of loans. Premiums are
debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are incurred but
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Over time, the expense is posted back to the General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory
arrangements for spreading the burden on council tax. In the Council’s case, this period is the

unexpired term that was outstanding on the loans when they were redeemed.

2023-24
£000

2023-24
£000

2022-23
£000

2022-23
£000

Balance as at 1st April

18,215

21,354

Premiums/discounts incurred in the year and
charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Proportion of premiums/discounts incurred in
previous financial years to be charged against the
General

Fund Balance in accordance with statutory
requirements

-950

-950

-950

-950

Amount by which finance costs charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
are different from finance costs chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements

-495

-2,189

Balance at 31 March

16,770

18,215

Page 181




Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Council accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service,
updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns
on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits
earned to be financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or
eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the
Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and
current employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory
arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be
paid.

2023-24 2022-23

Balance at 1 April 62,449 1,558,693

Remeasurement of the net defined liability/(asset) 3,359  -1,516,489

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 59,746 105,201
Employer’s pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners

payable in the year -90,725 -84,956
Balance at 31 March 34,829 62,449

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of
council tax and non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as it falls due from council tax payers and business rate payers compared with the
statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.

2023-24 2022-23

Balance at 1 April -10,631 557

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income credited to 6,219 -11,188
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from
council tax and non-domestic rates income calculated for the year in
accordance with statutory requirements

Balance at 31 March -4,412 -10,631

Page 182



Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the

General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year,
e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the
impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

2023-24 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance as at 1st April 8,865 9,254
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end -8,865 -9,254
of the preceding year
Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 9,860 8,865
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 995 -389
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on
an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements
Balance at 31 March 9,860 8,865

Post Employment Account

The Post Employment Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General
Fund Balance from accruing for early retirement and redundancy payments that are agreed in year
but are due in future years. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund
Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

2023-24 2023-24 2022-23 @ 2022-23

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance as at 1st April 1,375 2,154
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the -855 -1,210

end of the preceding year

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year -59 431

-914 -779

Balance at 31 March 461 1,375

Page 183




Pooled Investment Adjustment Account

The Pooled Investment Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the gains
or loss made by the Council arising from increases or decreases in the value of its investments

that are measured at fair value through profit or loss. On derecognition the cumulated gain or loss
is posted back to the General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory regulation. The balance

is reduced when investments with accumulated gains are:

¢ revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

e disposed of and the gains are realised

2023-24
£000

2023-24
£000

2022-23
£000

2022-23
£000

Balance as at 1st April

-6,043

-9,365

Upward revaluation of investments

Downward revaluation of investments

-474

15,408

Change in impairment loss allowances

474

15,408

Accumulated gains or losses on assets sold and
maturing assets written out to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Other
Investment Income

Accumulated gains or losses on assets sold and
maturing assets written out to the General Fund
Balance for financial assets designated to fair value
through other comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March

5,569

6,043

Page 184




DSG Adjustment Account

The Dedicated Schools Grant adjustment account holds accumulated deficits relating to the

schools budget. Where the authority has incurred a deficit on its schools budget in years beginning

1 April 2020 ending 31 March 2026, the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting)
Regulations do not allow for such amounts to be included in the General Fund and instead must

be held in this adjustment account.

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Balance as at 1st April 97,616 97,616
School budget deficit transferred from General Fund in accordance 20,214 0
statutory requirements
KCC'’s contribution to the DSG Safety Valve agreement for 2023-24 -14,400
Balance at 31 March 103,430 97,616

Page 185



Note 24. Earmarked Reserves

Areserves review took place during 2023-24 which resulted in some recategorization of reserve
balances.

The following describes each Earmarked Reserve categorisation for the balances shown as at 31
March 2023 or 31 March 2024 in the tables on page 96.
Vehicles, plant, and equipment (VPE)

These are reserve for the replacement and acquisition of vehicles, plant, and equipment. They are
supported by an asset management plan showing the projected replacement timeline and cost.
These reserves help to reduce fluctuations in spend.

Smoothing Reserves

These are reserves which are used to manage large fluctuations in spend or income across years.

Major Projects

These reserves are for future spending on projects.

Partnerships

These are reserves are resulting from our partnerships and are ringfenced for the benefit of the
partnership or are held for investing in strategic priorities. This includes £36.2m held in DSG
Safety Valve Reserve set aside to fund the deficit held in the DSG Adjustment Account.
Grants and External Funds

These reserves are for unspent grants which we are not required to repay, but which have
restrictions on what they may be used for, and time limited projects funded from ringfenced
external sources.

Departmental Under/Overspends

This reserve relates to the re-phasing of projects/initiatives and bids to use underspends at the
year-end which are approved as roll forwards into the following year. These are subject to
approval by Cabinet.

Insurance Reserve

This is a reserve for the potential cost of insurance claims in excess of the amount provided for in
the insurance fund provision.

Public Health reserve

As set out in the Local Authority Circular issued for the Public Health grant, any unused funds at
the end of the financial year have been placed into a reserve and are to be used to meet eligible
public health spend in future years.

Special funds

These are reserves held primarily to facilitate the implementation of economic development and
tourism initiatives and policy and regeneration expenditure.

Page 186



Balance at Balance at

1 April 2023 Movement 31 Mar 2024

Other Earmarked Reserves £000 £000 £000
VPE reserve -20,274 -2,280 -22,554
Smoothing Reserves -109,211 -39,440 -148,651
Major Projects -68,877 27,864 -41,013
Partnerships -67,661 16,140 -51,521
Grant and External Funds -53,182 37,031 -16,151
Departmental Under/Overspends -3,303 531 -2,772
Insurance Reserve -13,185 805 -12,380
Public Health Reserve -16,899 -85 -16,984
Special Funds -742 -83 -825
Total Earmarked Reserves -353,334 40,483 -312,851
Balance at Balance at

1 April 2022 Movement 31 Mar 2023

Other Earmarked Reserves £000 £000 £000
VPE reserve -18,707 -1,567 -20,274
Smoothing Reserves -124,687 15,476 -109,211
Major Projects -62,276 -6,601 -68,877
Partnerships -26,348 -41,313 -67,661
Grant and External Funds -79,075 25,893 -53,182
Departmental Under/Overspends -8,361 5,058 -3,303
Insurance Reserve -13,764 579 -13,185
Public Health Reserve -16,817 -82 -16,899
Special Funds -619 -123 -742
Total Earmarked Reserves -350,654 -2,680 -353,334

Page 187




Note 25. Provisions

Accounting Policy

It is the policy of Kent County Council to make provisions in the Accounts where there is a legal or
constructive obligation to make a payment, but the amount or timing of the payment is uncertain.
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation,
and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. The most significant
provision made is for insurance claims. In addition, provision is made for outstanding income
where there is doubt as to whether it will be realised.

The Council has made a provision for insurance claims. The Council's insurance arrangements
involve both internal and external cover. For internal cover, an Insurance Fund has been
established to provide cover for property, combined liability and motor insurance claims. The Fund
comprises a provision for all claims notified to the Council at 31 March each year and a Reserve
for claims not yet reported but likely to have been incurred.

The Post Employment Provision covers the costs of early retirements, redundancy costs, and any
other post employment costs for ex-employees/employees who have confirmed leaving dates.

The Accumulated Absences Provision is required to cover the costs of annual leave entitlements
carried over to the following financial year. If an employee were to leave, they would be entitled to
payment for this untaken leave.

Post . Accumulated Other
Insurance  Employment Absences @ Provisions Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Short Term
Balance at 1 April 2023 -3,292 -1,224 -8,864 -2,966 -16,346
Additional Provisions made in
2023-24 -2,824 -350 -6,593 -12,204 + -21,971
Amounts used in 2023-24 3,014 820 5,597 1,696 11,127
Unused amounts reversed in
2023-24 0 0 0 285 285
Balance at 31 March 2023 -3,102 -754 9,860 -13,189  -26,905
Long Term
Balance at 1 April 2023 -7,783 -520 0 -1,727 - -10,030
Additional/Reduction in
Provisions made in 2023-24 -206 0 0 -288 -494
Amounts used in 2023-24 0 443 0 0 443
Unused amounts reversed in
2023-24 0 0 533 533
Balance at 31 March 2024 -7,989 77 0 -1,482 -5,548
Total Provisions at 31 March
2024 -11,091 -831 -9,860 -14,671 -36,453

Page 188



Notes . Jo8_

Insurance

There is uncertainty over the timing of when insurance claims will be settled due to the complexity
of some claims. The short-term and long-term split is calculated using a percentage based on past
claims settled. Included within the insurance provision is £600k for the Municipal Mutual Insurance
(MMI) provision.

Post Employment

The provision relates to early retirements and redundancies and are individually insignificant.

Accumulated Absences

The provision relates to annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March 2024. It will not be
discharged until a cash settlement is made or an employee takes their settlement, or the liability
has ceased.

Other Provisions

Other provisions includes an amount relating to a capital project where there are ongoing
negotiations with the third party deliverer. A best estimate has been included, however the exact
amount and timing of the payment is dependent on the outcome of the ongoing negotiations.

Note 26 - Amounts owed to the Council by debtors

Short Term . Long Term Total
31 March 2024 £000 £000 £000
Medway Council (transferred debtor) 0 27,784 27,784
Recoverable VAT 55,799 0 55,799
Trade Receivables 155,635 0 155,635
Payments in Advance 29,346 0 29,346
General Debtors 156,889 23,003 179,892
Total 397,669 50,787 448,456

Short Term Long Term Total
31 March 2023 £000 £000 £000
Medway Council (transferred debtor) 0 28,940 28,940
Recoverable VAT 26,645 0 26,645
Trade Receivables 141,467 0 141,467
Payments in Advance 29,399 0 29,399
General Debtors 148,693 22,000 170,693
Total 346,204 50,940 397,144

Capital short term debtors amounting to £20.7m are included in the accounts at 31 March 2024
(£9.8m in 2022-23). These relate to grants and external funding towards capital expenditure
incurred in 2023-24 which had not been received by 31 March 2024 along with loan repayments
funded from capital falling due in 2023-24.

Page 189



Notes . Jo_

Note 27. Amounts owed by the Council to creditors

Short Term . Long Term Total
31 March 2024 £000 £000 £000
Receipts in Advance 79,908 0 79,908
Contract Liabilities 1,734 0 1,734
Deferred Income 7,062 0 7,062
General Creditors 353,089 34 353,123
Total 441,793 34 441,827

Short Term . Long Term Total
31 March 2023 £000 £000 £000
Receipts in Advance 82,015 0 82,015
Contract Liabilities 1,846 0 1,846
Deferred Income 7,265 0 7,265
General Creditors 375,419 35 375,454
Total 466,545 35 466,580

Capital creditors amounting to £24.2m are included in the accounts at 31 March 2024 (£27.4m in

2022-23).

Note 28. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounting Policy

Cash is represented by cash in hand/overdraft and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change
in value. They comprise call and business accounts.

In the Cash Flow Statement and Balance Sheet, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash
management.

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2023

£000 £000

Bank current accounts -10,967 -4.244
Call accounts (same day access funds) 142,511 135,958
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 131,544 131,714

Page 190



Note 29. Cash Flow - Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Interest received -20,507 -12,182
Interest paid 54,912 55,315
Employee Costs 952,720 891,486
Income from Council Tax -939,432 -885,685
Government Grants -1,857,983 -1,687,069
2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
The Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
has been adjusted for the following non-cash
movements:
Movement in pension liability 30,979 -20,245
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold -99,274 -123,908
Carrying amount of capital inventory old -162 -1,723
Carrying amount of Financial Assets held at FVPL 3,958 -18,863
Amortisation of fixed assets -1,351 -1,545
Depreciation of fixed assets -110,436 -102,330
Impairment and downward valuations -7,925 -2,936
Increase/(decrease) debtors 47,106 28,915
(Increase)/decrease creditors 21,350 -88,360
Increase/(decrease) stock -6,173 4,243
Movement on investment properties -7,165 -1,749
REFCUS -36,801 -61,631
Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus/deficit
on the Provision of Services -15,221 19,018
-181,115 -371,114
2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
The Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
has been adjusted for the following items that are
investing and financing activities
Proceeds from the sale of property plant and 13,520 12,876
equipment, investment property, and intangible assets
Capital grants applied 227,836 217,251
Payment of Collection Fund Deficit 8,096 22,749
249,452 252,876

Page 191

100



Note 30. Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment
property, and intangible assets 240,790 251,829
Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 2,770,890 1,108,337
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment,
investment property, and intangible assets -12,468 -10,353
Proceeds from capital inventory -195 -2,046
Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments -2,821,144 -1,062,165
Other receipts from investing activities -233,914 -228,963
Net cash flows from investing activities -56,040 56,639
Note 31. Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities
2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Cash receipts of short- and long-term borrowing 0 -75,700
Relating to finance leases and on-balance sheet PFI
contracts 5,832 4,356
Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing 30,577 99,199
Net cash flows from financing activities 36,409 27,855

Page 192

101



102

Note 32. Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from Financing
Activities

Non-cash
Non-cash changes:
2023-24  Financing changes: Other non- 2023-24
1 April cash flows Acquisition cash changes 31 March
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Long-term borrowings -721,893 19,331 -702,562
Short-term borrowings -90,156 30,577 -18,790 -78,369
* IFRIC 12 -2,003 157 -1,846
* Lease Liabilities -406 -406
* On balance sheet PFI
liabilities -193,537 8,267 -185,270
Total liabilities from
financing activities -1,007,996 39,001 0 541 -968,454
Non-cash
Non-cash changes:
2022-23 Financing changes: Other non- 2022-23
1 April cash flows Acquisition cash changes 31 March
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Long-term borrowings -762,470 40,577 -721,893
Short-term borrowings -73,839 33,839 -50,156 -90,156
* IFRIC 12 -2,152 149 -2,003
* Lease Liabilities -437 31 -406
* On balance sheet PFI
liabilities -201,804 8,267 -193,537
Total liabilities from
financing activities -1,040,703 42,286 0 -9,579 -1,007,996

Note 33. Trading Operations

The results of the various trading operations for 2023-24 are shown below prior to transfers to and
from reserves.

Surplus/ Surplus/
Deficit (-) Deficit (-)
Turnover | Expenditure 2023-24 2022-23
Business unit/activity £000 £000 £000 £000
Kent County Supplies and Furniture
Provision of educational and office
supplies (from warehouse stock and by
direct delivery) and furniture assembly
and professional services 9,727 8,681 1,046 1,792
Brokerage Services
Procurement and distribution of Services,
including Laser energy buying group 13,276 9,828 3,448 2,233
Transport Services
Provision of lease cars, minibuses, and
lorries, plus vehicle maintenance and
repairs 2 9 -7 2
Total surplus P Z0053 18,518 4,487 4,027




103
Note 34. Audit Costs

In 2023-24 the following fees were paid relating to external audit and inspection:

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Fees payable to Grant Thornton UK LLP for external
audit services carried out by the appointed auditor 447 238
Fees payable in respect of other services provided by
the appointed auditor 15 10
462 248

The 2023-24 £15k fee payable for other services relates to the Teachers' Pensions end of year
certificate.

Page 194



104
Note 35. Dedicated Schools Grant

The council’s expenditure on schools is funded primarily by grant monies provided by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). DSG is ringfenced and
can only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the schools budget, as defined in the
School Finance and Early Years (England) (No 2) Regulations 2022. The schools budget includes
elements for a range of educational services provided on an authority-wide basis and for the
individual schools budget (ISB), which is divided into a budget share for each maintained school.

Details of the deployment of DSG receivable for 2023-24 are as follows:

Individual
Central Schools
Expenditure Budget Total
£000 £000 £000

Final DSG for 2023-24 before academy and high 1,623,773
needs recoupment
Academy and high needs figure recouped for 2023- -791,762
24
Total DSG after academy and high needs recoupment 832,011
for 2023-24
Brought forward from 2022-23 36,263
Carry-forward to 2024-25 agreed in advance 0
Agreed initial budget distribution in 2023-24 303,125 565,149 868,274
In-year adjustments 14,565 3,425 17,990
Final budgeted distribution for 2023-24 317,690 568,575 886,264
Less actual central expenditure 301,642 301,642
Less Actual ISB deployed to schools 568,575 568,575
Plus Local Council contribution for 2023-24 14,400 14,400
Carry Forward to 2023-24 30,448 0 30,448
Plus Carry-forward to 2024-25 agreed in advance 0
Carry-forward to 2024-25 36,263
DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2022-23 -97,616
Addition to DSG Safety Valve reserve at the end of
2023-24* -5,815
Total of DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2023-24 -103,431
Net DSG position at the end of 2023-24 -67,168

*2023-24 in-year DSG Deficit after additional contributions from both the DfE and KCC
contribution.

The Authority entered the Department for Education's "Safety Valve" process in Summer 2022,
which involves the Local Authority reforming its high needs systems and associated spending in
return for additional funding to contribute to the historic deficit. This deficit is held in the DSG
Adjustment Account in Note 23 on pages 86 to 94. A DSG Safety Valve earmarked reserve holds
the net in-year surplus that has arisen due to the additional DfE funding and KCC contribution.

Page 195



Details of the deployment of DSG receivable for 2022-23 are as follows:

Individual
Central Schools
Expenditure Budget Total
£000 £000 £000

Final DSG for 2022-23 before academy and high 1,515,470
needs recoupment
Academy and high needs figure recouped for 2022- -722,483
23
Total DSG after academy and high needs recoupment 792,987
for 2022-23
Brought forward from 2021-22 0
Carry-forward to 2023-24 agreed in advance 0
Agreed initial budget distribution in 2022-23 244,700 548,287 792,987
In-year adjustments 50,451 6,857 57,308
Final budgeted distribution for 2022-23 295,151 555,144 850,295
Less actual central expenditure 275,888 275,888
Less Actual ISB deployed to schools 555,144 555,144
Plus Local Council contribution for 2022-23 17,000 17,000
Carry Forward to 2022-23 36,263 36,263
Plus Carry-forward to 2023-24 agreed in advance 0
Carry-forward to 2023-24 0
DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2021-22 -97,616
Addition to DSG Safety Valve reserve at the end of
2022-23 36,263
Total of DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2022-23 -97,616
Net DSG position at the end of 2022-23 -61,353

Page 196

105



106

Note 36. Related Party Transactions

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or
influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to
which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might
have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.

Central Government

Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council — it is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the
majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions
that the Council has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills). Grants received from government
departments are set out in Note 10 on expenditure and income analysed by nature.

Members

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. The
total of Member's allowances paid in 2023-24 is shown in Note 7 on page 44. During 2023-24
works and services to the value of £1.346m (£1.939m in 2022-23) were commissioned from
companies which nine Members have had an interest in. Contracts were entered into in full
compliance with the Council's standing orders.

Other Public Bodies (subject to common control by central government)

The Council has pooled budget arrangements for the provision of a range of services including
drug and alcohol related services, registered nursing care contribution in care homes, and
integrated care centres providing nursing, respite, and recuperative care to Older People.

Payments of Employers' Pension Contributions were made to the Pension Fund in respect of
members of the Local Government Pension Scheme and to the Teachers Pension Agency in
respect of teachers. The amounts of these payments are detailed in notes to the Consolidated
Income and Expenditure Statement, Note 37 on pages 108 to 114 of these Accounts.

As administrator of the Kent Pension Fund, KCC has direct control of the Fund. Transactions
between KCC Pension Fund and the Council in respect of income for pensions admin, investment
monitoring and other services amounted to £6.497m and cash held by the Pension Fund on behalf
of KCC is £6.252m.

Payments to other local authorities and health bodies, excluding precepts, totalled £84.1m.
Receipts from other local authorities and health bodies totalled £99.4m. Details of the highest
values with individual public bodies is shown in the table below.

Local authority or health body | Amount
£m

Payments

Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust £42.4m

Maidstone & Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust £6.5m

Wandsworth Borough Council £4.4m

NHS Property Services Ltd £1.6m

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council £1.5m
Receipts

NHS Kent & Medway ICB 31.2m

Medway Council £5.3m

Page 197



107

Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Council

The Council has one active subsidiary company, the largest of which is Global Commercial
Services Group Ltd (formerly known as Kent Holdco Ltd). During the year the total values of
payments made to and received from Global Commercial Services Group Ltd, were £78.1m and
£5.5m respectively (£73.5m and £5.2m respectively in 2022-23).

Kent County Council also has an interest in the following companies:

Payments made in
2023-24
Active companies with less than or equal to 50% control £000
Design South East Ltd (formerly The North Kent Architecture 3,000
Centre Ltd)
Aylesham & District Community Workshop Trust 10,090
Trading Standards South East Ltd 21,645
Kent PF| Holdings Company 1 Ltd 12,458
TRICS Consortium Ltd 3,835
Produced in Kent (PINK) Ltd 31,768
Discovery Park Technology Investments LP 1,266

The information on the above companies have been disclosed as either a Member or an officer of
the Council sits on the company board as a representative of the Council.

Page 198



Note 37. Pension Costs

Note 37a - Pension Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contribution Schemes

Teachers employed by the Authority are members of the Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered
by the Department for Education. The Scheme is technically a defined benefit scheme. However,
the Scheme is unfunded and the Department for Education uses a notional fund as the basis for
calculating the employers' contribution rate paid by local authorities. The Authority is not able to
identify its share of underlying financial position and performance of the scheme with sufficient
reliability for accounting purposes. For the purpose of this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore
accounted for on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme.

In 2023-24, Kent County Council paid £57.8m (£55.6m in 2022-23), to the Teachers Pension
Agency in respect of teachers' pension costs, which represented 23.7% (23.7% in 2022-23) of
teachers' pensionable pay. In addition, Kent County Council is responsible for all pension
payments relating to added years benéefits it has awarded, together with the related increases. In
2023-24 these amounted to £4.9m (£4.6m in 2022-23), representing 2.0% (1.9% in 2022-23) of
pensionable pay.

Public Health staff employed by the Authority are members of the NHS Pension Scheme. The
Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers and is a multi-
employer defined benefit scheme. The Authority is not able to identify the underlying scheme
assets and liabilities for the staff transferred. For the purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is
therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme.

In 2023-24 Kent County Council paid £0.07m (£0.05m in 2022-23), to the NHS Pension Scheme in
respect of public health pension costs, which represented 14.4% (14.4% in 2022-23) of employees
pensionable pay.

Note 37b. Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions
towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable
until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits)
and to disclose them at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.

The Council participates in one post-employment scheme:

e The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Kent County Council —
this is a funded defined benefit career average revalued earnings scheme, meaning that the
Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to
balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.

e Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement
— this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised
when awards are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these
pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension payments as they
eventually fall due.

e The Kent County Council Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framework for the
Local Government Pension Scheme and the governance of the scheme is the responsibility
of the Kent County Council Superannuation Fund Committee, a committee of Kent County
Council. Policy is determined in accordance with the Pensions Fund Regulations. The
investment managers of the fund are appointed by the committee and consist of the
Director of Finance of Kent County Council and external Investment Fund managers (for
details of investment fund managers see note 15d of the Pension Fund Accounts)

e The principal risks to the Council of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory
changes to the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from
the scheme), changes to inflation, bonpadeid®oend the performance of the equity

108



investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory
requirements to charge to the General Fund the amounts required by statute as described
in the accounting policies note.

The costs of retirement benefits are recognised in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned
by employees, rather than when they are paid as pensions. However, the charge we are required
to make against the Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost is
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Under the requirements of IAS19, the Council is required to show the movement in the net
pensions deficit for the year. This can be analysed as follows:

Local Government Pension Scheme

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2023-24  2022-23
£000 £000

Cost of Services:

Current service cost -65,846 @ -105,951

Past service costs -1,296 -295

-67,142  -106,246

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:

Net interest expenses 10,054 1,022
(Gain)/loss from settlements 296 2,015
Administration expenses -2,954 -1,992
Total Charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision -59,746  -105,201
of Services

Other Post Employment Benefit charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the -46,273  -113,870
net interest expenses)

Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 46,472 104,949
demographic assumptions

Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial 19,067 1,939,161
assumptions

Actuarial gains and losses arising on impact of asset ceiling -16,799 0
Experience loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation -10,621  -418,106
Other 4,795 4,355
Total Charged to the Comprehensive Income and -3,359 1,516,489
Expenditure

Total charged to Comprehensive Income and -57,197 1,411,288

Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves statement

Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on 59,746 105,201
the Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in
accordance with the Code

Actual amount charged against the General Fund
Balance for pensions in the year:

Employers' contributions payable to scheme -90,725 -84,956

Total Movement in Reserves statement -30,979 20,245

Page 200

109



110

Other Employees

Other employees of the County Council may participate in the Kent County Council Pension Fund,
part of the Local Government Pension Scheme, a defined benefit statutory scheme.

In 2023-24, Kent County Council paid an employer's contribution of £90.7m (£84.9m in 2022-23)
into the Pension Fund, representing 21% (21% in 2022-23) of pensionable pay. The employer's
contribution rate is determined by the Fund's actuary based on triennial actuarial valuations, and
for 2022-23 was based on the review carried out as at 31 March 2022. Under Pension Fund

Regulations the rates are set to meet 100% of the overall liabilities of the Fund.

Pension Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Authority's obligation in respect of its

defined benefit plan is as follows:

Local Government Pension Scheme

2023-24 2022-23

£000 £000

Present value of the defined benefit obligation 3,349,863 3,291,595
Fair value of plan assets -3,366,662 -3,267,712
Sub total -16,799 23,883
Impact of asset ceiling 16,799 0
Present value of unfunded obligation 34,829 38,566
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 34,829 62,449

Reconciliation of Movements in the Fair Value of the Scheme (Plan) Assets:

Local Government Pension Scheme

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000

Opening fair value of scheme assets 3,267,712 3,262,803
Interest on assets 168,576 133,741
Remeasurement gains/(losses)
* Return on plan assets (excluding the amount
included in the net interest expenses)
» Other -46,273 -113,870
Contributions from employer 95,520 89,311
Contributions from employees into the scheme 30,065 28,946
Benefits paid -141,128 -127,741
Other -7,810 -5,478
Closing fair value of scheme assets 3,666,662 3,267,712
The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £122,303k (2022-23: £19,871Kk).

Page 201




Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit

Obligation):
Liabilities: Local Government Pension Scheme
2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Opening balance at 1 April 3,330,161 4,821,496
Current service cost 65,846 105,951
Interest cost 158,522 132,719
Contribution from scheme participants 30,065 28,946
Remeasurement gains/(losses):
* Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in
demographic assumptions -46,472 -104,949
* Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in
financial assumptions -19,067 -1,939,161
* Experience loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation 10,621 418,106
» Other -4,795 -4,355
Past service costs 1,296 295
Benefits paid -136,333 -123,386
Liabilities extinguished on settlements -5,152 -5,501
Closing balance at 31 March 3,384,692 3,330,161
Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:
2023-24 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23
£000 % £000 %
Equities 1,958,520 58.2% 2,085,180 63.8%
Gilts 246,677 7.3% 17,899 0.5%
Other Bonds 484,746 14.4% 429,169 13.1%
Property 302,056 9.0% 326,154 10.0%
Cash 53,610 1.6% 58,622 1.8%
Absolute return fund 170,108 5.1% 239,369 7.3%
Infrastructure 150,945 4.5% 111,319 3.4%
Total assets 3,366,662 100% 3,267,712 100%

Page 202




The percentages of the total Fund held in each asset class were as follows:

2023-24 2023-24 | 2022-23 2022-23
% % % %
Quoted | Unquoted | Quoted | Unquoted
Fixed Interest
Government UK
Securities Overseas 0.0% 1.0%
Index Linked
Government UK 7.0% 4.0%
Securities Overseas
Corporate Bonds UK 4.0%
Overseas 11.0%
Equities UK 16.0% 16.0%
Overseas 37.0% 44.0%
Property All 9.0% 10.0%
Others Absolute return portfolio 5.0% 7.0%
Private Equity 5.0% 4.0%
Infrastructure 4.0% 3.0%
Derivatives -2.0% 0.0%
Cash/Temporary
Investments 3.0% 2.0%
Net Current Assets Debtors 1.0%
Creditors 0.0%
Total assets 80.0% 20.0% 81.0% 19.0%

The decrease in pension deficit during the year has arisen principally due to the technical
decrease in the valuation of the liabilities. International Accounting standard IAS19 requires the
liabilities to be valued using assumptions based on gilt and corporate bonds yields. Had these
markets remained at their 2023 levels then the pensions deficit would have been £19,067k higher

at £53,896k.

IAS19 does not have any impact on the actual level of employer contributions paid to the Kent
County Council Fund. Employers’ levels of contribution are determined by triennial actuarial

valuations which are based on the Fund’s actual investment strategy (rather than being based on
corporate bond yields).

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the
Council in the year to 31 March 2025 is £85,574k, this is in line with the revised IAS19 Standard.

Page 203

112




113

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate
of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependant on assumptions about mortality

rates, salary levels, etc. The County Council Fund liability has been assessed by Barnett

Waddingham.

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Local Government Pension Scheme

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners: Men 20.8 years 21.1 years
Women 23.3 years 23.5 years
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners: Men 22.0 years 22.3 years
Women 24.7 years 25.0 years
Rate of increase in Consumer Price Index 2.95% 2.90%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.95% 3.90%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.95% 2.90%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.90% 4.80%

Take-up option to convert annual pension into
retirement lump sum 50% 50%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in
the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for
each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain
constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or
decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the
accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit
method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below
did not change from those used in the previous period.

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme | Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption
£000 £000

Adjustment to discount rate (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 3,332,403 3,438,350

Adjustment to long-term salary increase (increase or 3,387,883 3,381,525

decrease by 0.1%)

Adjustment to pension increase and deferred revaluation 3,436,135 3,334,541

(increase or decrease by 0.1%)

Adjustment to mortality age rate assumption (increase or 3,526,659 3,249,192

decrease in 1 year)

Page 204



114

Highways ex Direct Works DLO Pension Fund

The Balance Sheet includes £0.8m to reflect the unfunded liability of the Highways (ex Direct
Works DLO) Pensions Fund as calculated by the actuary in March 2024 in accordance with IAS19.

Commercial Services, Invicta Law Ltd, Cantium Business Solutions Ltd, and
The Education People

The Balance Sheet includes the assets and liabilities for the wholly-owned subsidiaries of KCC.
All entities have closed resolution body status which allows them to treat the pension as a defined
contribution pension scheme with the Council keeping the assets and liabilities on its Balance
Sheet.

Note 38. Financial Instruments
Accounting Policy

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried
at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on
the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the
life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the authority has, this means that the amount presented in the
balance sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged
to the CIES is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread
over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was
remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was
repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer
to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects
the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. There are
two main classes of financial assets measured at:

+ amortised cost
« fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

The Council's business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial
assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments
are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take a form of a
basic debt instrument).

Page 205



115

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the
asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial assets
held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding
principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount
receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

However, the Council has made a number of loans to start up companies at less than market rates
(soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest
that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the
outstanding principal. Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate
of interest than the rate receivable, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of
the loan in the Balance Sheet.

Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the
interest receivable for the financial year — the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General
Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Any gains or losses that arise from the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its contractual financial assets held at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, either on a 12 month or lifetime
basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only
lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not
take place because the borrower could default on their obligation. Credit risk plays a crucial factor
in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially
recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or
remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12 month expected losses.

For loans and investments, the loss allowance is equal to 12-month expected credit losses (ECLS)
unless credit risk has increased significantly in which case it is equal to lifetime ECLs. For trade
receivables without a significant financing component, the loss allowance is always equal to
lifetime ECLs.

To calculate ECLs, a two-year delay in cash flows is assumed to arise in the event of default. For
12-month ECLs, only default events occurring in the next 12 months are considered.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Serpiggs 206



116

Fair value of an asset is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurements of the
financial assets are based on the following techniques:

* instruments with quoted market prices - market price
+ other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow analysis.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three
levels:

* Level 1 inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the
authority can access at the measurement date.

» Level 2 inputs - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset, either directly or indirectly.

» Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains or losses that arise from the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those relating
to taxes and government grants, do not give rise to financial instruments.

Financial Liabilities

The Council's financial liabilities held during the year are measured at amortised cost and
comprised of:

- long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board and commercial lenders
- short-term loans from other local authorities

- overdraft with NatWest Bank

- finance leases on land and buildings

- Private Finance Initiative contracts detailed in Note 19

- trade payables for goods and services received.

Financial Assets

The financial assets held by the Council during the year are held under the following two
classifications:

Amortised cost (where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and the Council’s
business model is to collect those cash flow) comprising:

- cash
- bank current and deposit accounts
- fixed term deposits with the DMO

- fixed term deposits with banks and building societies
Page 207



- treasury bills issued by the UK Government

- covered bonds issued by financial institutions and backed by a pool of assets

- loans to other local authorities

- trade receivables for goods and services delivered.

Fair value through profit and loss (all other financial assets) comprising:

- money market funds

- shares in unlisted companies

- unquoted equity investments relating to KCC wholly owned companies

- pooled equity, bond, and property investment funds

Categories of Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instruments are carried in the Balance Sheet:

31 March 2024

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

31 March 2023

Long Term Short Term Long Term Short Term
Financial Assets £000 £000 £000 £000
Investments
e Fair value through
profit or loss 201,763 128,912 197,705 134,708
e Amortised cost 99,290 50,283 125,782 61,673
301,053 179,195 323,487 196,381
Debtors
e Amortised cost 30,422 309,981 31,640 287,048
e Amortised cost - Soft
Loans 20,365 8,980 19,300 6,332
¢ Non financial assets 78,708 52,824
50,787 397,669 50,940 346,204
Cash & Cash
Equivalents
Total 351,840 576,864 374,427 542,585

31 March 2024

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

31 March 2023

Long Term Short Term Long Term Short Term
Financial Liabilities £000 £000 £000 £000
Borrowing
e Amortised cost 702,562 78,369 721,893 90,155
¢ Non-financial liabilities 178,549 9,207 187,489 8,458
881,111 87,576 909,382 98,613
Creditors
e Amortised cost 34 354,823 35 377,265
¢ Non-financial liabilities 86,970 89,280
34 441,793 35 466,545
Cash & Cash
Equivalents 10,967 4,244
Total 881,145 540,336 909,417 569,402

Page 208

117




Financial Instruments Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

For Money Market Funds, Bond, equity and property funds the fair value is calculated at Level 1
valuation techniques, as set out on page 119.

The shareholdings in our wholly owned subsidiaries and unquoted equity is not subject to credit
risk and is therefore limited to the value of our investment. Fair value is calculated at Level 3
valuation techniques, as set out on page 119.

2023-24 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23
Surplus or Other Surplus or Other
Deficit on the . Comprehensive @ Deficit on the . Comprehensive
Provision of Income and Provision of Income and
Services Expenditure Services Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000
Net gains/losses on:
Financial assets measured
at fair value through the
profit or loss -474 18,835
Financial assets measured
at amortised cost - - - -
Financial assets measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Financial liabilities
measured at amortised
cost -950 -950 -950 -950
Total net gain/losses -1,424 -950 17,885 -950
Interest revenue
Financial assets measured
at amortised cost 10,726 - 6,233 -
Financial Assets measured
at fair value through profit
or loss 15,101 - 8,136 -
Total interest revenue 25,827 0 14,369 0
Interest expenses -34,599 - -34,346 -
Fee income
Financial assets or
financial liabilities that are
not at fair value through
profit or loss - - - -
Trust and other fiduciary
activities - - - -
Total fee income 0 0 0 0
Fee expense
Financial assets or
financial liabilities that are
not at fair value through
profit or loss -18,822 - -19,257 -
Trust and other fiduciary
activities 0 - 0 -
Total fee expense -18,822 0 -19,257 0

Page 209




119

Fair Value of Financial Assets

Some of the Council’s financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are
described in the table below, including the valuation techniques used to measure them.

Input Level in As at As at
Recurring fair value  fair value Valuation technique used to 31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
measurements hierarchy measure fair value £000 £000

Fair value through
Profit and Loss:

Unadjusted quoted prices in
Money market active markets for identical
funds Level 1 shares 128,912 134,708

Unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical

Equity Shares Level 1 shares 0 0
Unadjusted quoted prices in

Bond, equity, and active markets for identical

property funds Level 1 shares 174,554 174,080

Inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or

Equity Funds Level 2 indirectly 10,127 10,528

Company net assets multiplied
by the percentage share
Unquoted Equity Level 3 capital owned 17,082 13,097

330,675 332,413

Sensitivity of Fair Value Measurement using Significant Unobservable Inputs - Level 3
Significant changes in unobservable inputs could result in a significantly lower or higher fair value.

Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements (using significant Unobservable
Inputs) categorised within Level 3 of the Fair Value Hierarchy

The movements during the year of level 3 Unquoted Equity held at fair value, are analysed below:

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000

Opening balance 13,097 16,632
Transfers into Level 3
Transfers out of Level 3
Additions
Derecognition -28
Total gains or (loss) for the period:
Included in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 3,985 -3,507
Included in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Closing Balance 17,082 13,097

Page 210



The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not
carried at Fair Value (but for which Fair Value Disclosures are required)

Except for the financial assets carried at fair value (described in the table on the previous page),
all other financial liabilities and financial assets held by the Council as well as long-term debtors
and creditors are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. The fair values calculated are as
follows:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Carrying | 31 March 2024 Carrying | 31 March 2023

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Liabilities £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities held at
amortised cost
PWLB loans 462,218 466,692 490,528 518,248
Long-term LOBO and
Market Loans 318,714 339,068 321,521 376,632
Cash and cash
equivalents 10,967 10,967 4,244 4,244
Other long-term loans
PFI and finance lease
liabilities 187,746 218,413 195,936 240,588
Total 979,645 1,035,140 1,012,229 1,139,713

The fair value of borrowings is higher than the carrying amount because the Council’s portfolio of
loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the
prevailing rates at the Balance Sheet date. This shows a notional future loss (based on economic
conditions at 31 March 2023) arising from a commitment to pay interest to lenders above current
market rates.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Carrying | 31 March 2024 Carrying | 31 March 2023

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets held at
amortised cost
- long-term investments 99,290 97,948 125,782 124,504
- short-term investments 50,283 50,283 61,673 61,829
- cash and cash equivalents
Amortised Cost - Soft Loans 20,365 11,640 19,300 12,350
Total 169,938 159,871 206,755 198,683

Long-term and short-term debtors and creditors carrying value is a fair approximation of their fair
value.

Page 211

120



Fair value hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not

carried at fair value

Quoted prices in Other
active markets = significant Significant
for identical | observable | unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
31 March 2024 £000 £000 £000 £000
Recurring fair value measurements
using:
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amortised
cost:
* Long-term PWLB loans 466,692 466,692
* Long-term LOBO and Market
Loans 339,068 339,068
PFI and finance lease liabilities 218,413 218,413
Total 0 805,760 218,413 1,024,173
Financial Assets
Financial assets held at amortised
cost:
* Investments held at amortised cost 88,756 60,90 150 149,596
* Soft loans to third parties 11,640 11,640
Total 88,756 60,690 11,790 161,236
Quoted prices
in active Other
markets for significant Significant
identical observable | unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
31 March 2023 £000 £000 £000 £000
Recurring fair value measurements
using:
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amortised
cost:
* Long-term PWLB loans 518,248 518,248
* Long-term LOBO and Market Loans 376,632 376,632
PFI and finance lease liabilities 240,588 240,588
Total 0 894,881 240,588 1,135,469
Financial Assets
Financial assets held at amortised
cost:
* Investments held at amortised cost 116,461 67,522 2,350 186,333
* Soft loans to third parties 12,350 12,350
Total 116,461 67,522 14,700 198,863

Page 212




122

The fair value for financial liabilities and financial assets included in Level 2 and Level 3 in the
table above have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual
cash flows at 31 March 2024 using the following methods and assumptions:

+ PWLB loans have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over the whole life of
the instrument at the available market rate for local authority loans

* LOBO loans have been increased by the value of the embedded options. Lender's options to
increase the interest rates of the loans have been valued according to the proprietary model for
Bermudan cancellable swaps. Borrower's options have been valued at zero on the assumption
that lenders will only exercise their options when market rates have risen above the contractual
loan rate.

* PFI and finance lease liabilities have been calculated by discounting the contractual cash flows
(excluding service charge elements)

» Soft loans have been valued by discounting the contractual payments at the market rate of
interest for a similar loan

The fair value for financial liabilities and financial assets that are not measured at fair value can be
assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining
term of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

Financial Assets Financial Liabilities
* no early repayment or impairment is * no early repayment or impairment is
recognised recognised

« estimated ranges of interest rates at 31 March | < estimated ranges of interest rates at 31 March
2024 based on new lending rates for equivalent | 2024 based on new lending rates for equivalent

loans at that date loans at that date
« the fair value of short-term financial assets * The fair value of short-term financial liabilities
including trade receivables is assumed to including trade payables is assumed to

approximate to the carrying amount. For trade approximate to the carrying amount
receivables this equates to the invoiced or billed
amount

Note 39. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial
Instruments

The Council complies with CIPFA’'s Code of Practice on Treasury Management and Prudential
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, both revised in December 2021.

In line with the Treasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury Management
Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets out the parameters
for the management of risks associated with Financial Instruments. The Council also produces
Treasury Management Practices specifying the practical arrangements to be followed to manage
these risks.

The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Investment Strategy in compliance with the
Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government Guidance on Local Government
Investments. This Guidance emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather
than yield. The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and its Treasury Management Practices
seek to achieve a suitable balance between risk and return or cost.

Page 213



The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

e Credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council,

e Liquidity risk — the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments,

e Market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes
in such measurables as interest rates and stock market movements.

Credit Risk: Treasury Investments

Council manages credit risk by ensuring that treasury investments are only placed with
organisations of high credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. These include
commercial entities with a minimum long-term credit rating of A-, the UK government, other local
authorities, and organisations without credit ratings upon which the Council has received
independent investment advice. Recognising that credit ratings are imperfect predictors of default;
the Council has regard to other measures including credit default swap and equity prices when
selecting commercial entities for investment.

A limit of £20m is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a single counterparty
(other than the UK government). For unsecured investments in UK banks, building societies, and
companies, a lower limit of £15m applies. The Council also sets limits on investments in certain
sectors. No more than £300m in total can be invested for a period longer than one year.

The credit quality of the £88.2m of the Council’s investments in covered bonds is enhanced as
these bonds are collateralised by pools of residential mortgages. The collateral significantly
reduces the likelihood of the Council suffering a credit loss on these investments.

The table below summarises the credit risk exposures of the Council’s investment portfolio by
credit rating:

Credit Rating 31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
£000 £000
AAA 217,668 252,141
AA- 31,138 44,528
A+ 8,634 0
A 5,022 1,237
A- 0 0
Unrated Pooled Funds/Equity/Other Local Authorities
Unrated Pooled Funds 190,600 198,338
Equity 27,209 23,624
Other Local Authorities
Total Investments 480,271 519,868

All deposits outstanding as at 31 March 2024 met the Council's credit rating criteria on 31 March
2024.

Loss allowances on treasury investments have been calculated by reference to historic default
data published by credit rating agencies. A two-year delay in cash flows is assumed to arise in the
event of default. Investments are determined to have suffered a significant increase in credit risk
where they have been downgraded by [three] or more credit rating notches or equivalent since
initial recognition, unless they retain an investment grade credit rating. They are determined to be
credit-impaired when awarded a “D” credit rating or equivalent.

Page 214

123



124

Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

The Council initiates a legal charge on property where, for instance, clients require the assistance
of social services but cannot afford to pay immediately. The total collateral at 31 March 2024 was
£1.5m.

Liquidity risk

The Council has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works Loan Board
and at higher rates from banks. There is no perceived risk that the Council will be unable to raise
finance to meet its commitments. The Council also has to manage the risk that it will not be

exposed to replenishing a significant proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourable interest
rates.

Time to maturity
Years 31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
£000 £000

Not over 1 29,330 30,577
Over 1 but not over 2 32,225 29,330
Over 2 but not over 5 41,674 65,674
Over 5 but not over 10 64,788 66,122
Over 10 but not over 20 212,976 178,867
Over 20 but not over 30 39,800 80,800
Over 30 but not over 40 160,600 130,000
Over 40 150,500 171,100
Uncertain date * 40,000 50,000
Total 771,893 802,470

* The Council has £90m of “Lender’s option, borrower’s option” (LOBO) loans where the lender
has the option to propose an increase in the rate payable; the Council will then have the option to
accept the new rate or repay the loan without penalty. £40m of these LOBO loans have option
dates in 2024-25. Due to current lower interest rates, in the unlikely event that the lender exercises
its option, the Council is likely to repay these loans. The maturity date is therefore uncertain.

Market risk

The Council is exposed to market risk both from its short-term cash investments as well as from its
investments in pooled equity, bond and property funds. The level of risk exposure depends on
market conditions, expectations of future price and yield movements and the asset mix. The
Council manages its investment risk through its treasury management strategy particularly by
investing in a diversified range of pooled funds across a range of asset classes.

Interest Rate Risk

The Council is exposed to risks arising from movements in interest rates. Movements in interest
rates have a complex impact on the Authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the
following effects:

borrowings at variable rates — the interest expense will rise
borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the liabilities will fall
investments at variable rates — the interest income will rise
investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall.

Page 215



125

Investments and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so changes in their fair value will
have no impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest
payable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments measured at fair value
will be reflected in the Provision of Services. The Treasury Management Strategy aims to mitigate
these risks by setting upper limits on its net exposures to fixed and variable interest rates. At 31
March 2024, £255.1m (2023: £254.4m) of net principal borrowed (i.e. borrowing net of
investments) was exposed to fixed rates and £40m (2023: £50m) to variable rates.

If all interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect
would be:

£000
Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 400
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 2,067
Decrease in fair value of investments held at FVPL -1,220
Impact on Provision of Services (surplus) 1,247
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets -185
Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure -185
Decrease in fair value of loans and investments at amortised cost* -93,724

*No impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure.

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements
being reversed.

Price Risk

The Council's investments will fluctuate in value as the result of changes in market prices. The
Council has sought to mitigate the price risk through diversification in line with its treasury
management strategy. The market prices of the Council’'s bond investments are governed by
prevailing interest rates and the market risk associated with these instruments is managed
alongside interest rate risk. The value of the Council's investments in pooled funds are subject to
the value of the underlying investments. The following table shows the impact on the value of the
Council's investments of falls in property and equity prices however these would have no impact
on the General Fund until the investments are sold.

£000
5% fall in commercial property prices 2,572
5% fall in equity prices 3,852

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has no foreign currency investments and therefore is not directly exposed to the risk
of adverse movements in exchange rates.

Note 40. Contingent Liabilities

Accounting Policy

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of thgy&oaacil. Contingent liabilities also arise in



circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts. They are factored into the consideration of an adequate level of reserves.

The Council is aware of the ‘Virgin Media Ltd v NTL Pension Trustees Il Ltd (and others)’ case and
considers that there is potential for the outcome of this case to have an impact on the Kent
Pension Fund. The case affects defined benefit schemes that provided contracted-out benefits
before 6 April 2016 based on meeting the reference scheme test. Where scheme rules were
amended, potentially impacting benefits accrued from 6 April 1997 to 5 April 2016, schemes
needed the actuary to confirm that the reference scheme test was still being met by providing
written confirmation under Section 37 of the Pension Schemes Act 1993. In the Virgin Media case
the judge ruled that alterations to the scheme rules were void and ineffective because of the
absence of written actuarial confirmation required under Section 37 of the Pension Schemes Act
1993. The case was taken to The Court of Appeal in June 2024 and the original ruling was upheld.

As a result, there may be a further liability to the Council’s share of the Kent Pension Fund for
benefits that were reduced by previous amendments, if those amendments prove invalid (i.e. were
made without obtaining s37 confirmation). The Government Actuary’s Department is currently
undertaking a review to confirm whether such changes occurred in Local Government Pension
Schemes. At this point it is not possible to estimate the potential impact, if any, on the Kent
Pension Fund and thus the obligation and liability shown in the Council’s accounts.

Note 41. Subsidiary Undertakings
Accounting Policy

Interests in Companies and Other Entities

The Council has material interests in companies and other entities that have the nature of wholly
owned subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities. An assessment of the transactions between the
Council and the subsidiaries and the jointly controlled entities is conducted each year.

The Council wholly owns Global Commercial Services Group Limited. This is a Local Authority
Trading Company (LATCo) and the group companies are consolidated as part of our Group
Accounts. GCSG is the holding company for other trading companies as detailed in the Narrative
section.

Subsidiary Undertakings

Kent County Council (KCC) and Thanet District Council (TDC) wished to bring forward the
economic development and regeneration of the sites known as Eurokent and Manston Park. A
Member Agreement was signed on 22 August 2008 and a joint arrangement vehicle was set up,
the East Kent Opportunities LLP (EKO LLP), which was incorporated on 4 March 2008. KCC and
TDC have 50:50 ownership, control and economic participation in the joint arrangement. KCC and
TDC contributed 38 acres of land each to EKO LLP. The land was valued for stamp duty land tax
(SDLT) at £5.5m (KCC contribution) and £4.5m (TDC contribution).

The powers used are the 'well-being powers' provided to local authorities in Part 1 of the Local
Government Act 2000. In 2023-24, in the final, audited EKO LLP accounts, the net assets of the
joint operation are £9.68m with an operating profit before members remuneration and profit shares
available for discretionary division among members of £0.17m.

Page 217

126



127
Note 42. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

e those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period —
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

e those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would
have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

Two schools on the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024 converted to academy status between 1
April and 1 July 2024. The net book value of these assets as at 31 March 2024 is £45.5m.

There have been no events since 31 March 2024, up to the date when these accounts were
authorised, that require any adjustment to these accounts.

Note 43. Other Notes

Pension Fund

Once credited to the Pension Fund, monies may only be used to provide for the statutory
determined pension and other payments attributable to staff covered by the Fund. The assets and
liabilities of the Pension Fund are shown separately from those of Kent County Council, although
the legal position is that they are all in the ownership of Kent County Council as the administering
Council. Any actuarial surplus or deficit is apportioned to the constituent member bodies of the
Fund. Details of the Fund are disclosed in the Pension Fund Accounts found on pages 145 to 176.

Page 218



Group Accounts

Group Accounts

Contents Page
Group Accounts Introduction and Group Boundary 130
Group Financial Statements

Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 133
Group Movement in Reserves Statement 135
Group Balance Sheet 137
Group Cash Flow Statement 138
Notes to the Group Financial Statements

G1. Critical Judgements 139
Supporting the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

G2. Reconciliation to the Single Entity CIES 140
G3. Tax Expenses of Group Entities 140
Supporting the Balance Sheet

G4. Debtors 141
G5. Creditors 141
G6. Cash and Cash Equivalents 141
G7. Reserves 142
G8. Financial Instruments 143
Supporting the Cash Flow Statement

G9. Cash Flows from Group Operating Activities 144
G10. Cash Flows from Group Investing Activities 145
G11. Cash Flows from Group Financing Activities 145

Please note that Note numbers with no 'G' refer to Kent County Council single entity accounts

where notes are not materially different.

Page 219

128



Group Accounts

Group Accounts Introduction

The Code of Practice requires local authorities with interests in subsidiaries, associates and/or

joint ventures to prepare group accounts in addition to their own single entity financial statements,

unless their interest is not considered material.

The Group Accounts contain the core statements similar in presentation to the Council’s single
entity accounts but consolidating the figures of the Council with Global Commercial Services

Group Ltd.

The following pages include:

» Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

= Group Balance Sheet

= Group Movement in Reserves Statement
= Group Cash Flow Statement

» Notes to the Group Accounts

Basis of Identification of the Group Boundary

Group accounts are prepared by aggregating the transactions and balances of the Council and all

its material subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

In its preparation of these Group Accounts, the Council has considered its relationship with entities

that fall into the following categories:

= Subsidiaries — where the Council exercises control and gains benefits or has exposures to

risks arising from this control. These entities are included in the group

= Joint Ventures — where the Council exercises joint control with one or more organisations.

Where these are material they are included in the group and have been accounted for on

an equity basis.

= No group relationship — where the body is not an entity in its own right or the Council has
an insufficient interest in the entity to justify inclusion in the group financial statements.

These entities are not included in the group.

In accordance with this requirement, the Council has determined its Group relationships as

follows:

Global Commercial Services Group Ltd (Holding Company)

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

Commercial Services Trading Ltd

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

CSG Global Education Ltd

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

Lifecycle Management Group Ltd

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

Prospects Payroll Ltd

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

Commercial Services Kent Ltd

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

Bowerhouse Il Solar Ltd

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

Hampshire & Kent Commercial Services LLP

Joint Venture

Consolidated

Luton & Kent Commercial Services LLP

Joint Venture

Consolidated

Surrey & Kent Commercial Services LLP

Joint Venture

Consolidated

Dudley & Kent Commercial Services Ltd

Joint Venture

Consolidated

Dorset & Kent Commercial Services LLP

Joint Venture

Consolidated

Cantium Business Solutions Ltd

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

EDSECO Ltd (trading as The Education People)

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

Invicta Law Ltd

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

Gen2 Property Ltd

100% Subsidiary

Consolidated

Page 220

129



130

Basis of the Preparation of Group Financial Statements

The Group Accounts have been prepared using the group accounts requirements of the Code.
Companies or other reporting entities that are under the ultimate control of the Council have been
included in the Council’s group accounts to the extent that they are material to users of the
financial statements in relation to their ability to see the complete economic activities of the
Council and its exposure to risk through interests in other entities and participation in their
activities.

Subsidiaries have been consolidated by:

= adding like items of assets, liabilities, reserves, income and expenses together on a line by line
basis to those of other group members in the financial statements; and

= eliminating intra-group balances and transactions in full.
Joint Ventures have been consolidated using the equity method by:

= adjusting the investment originally recognised at cost for the company's post-acquisition change
in its share of the net assets of the investee,

= including the company's share of profits and losses in its Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Global Commercial Services Group Ltd (11735631)

Global Commercial Services Group Ltd (previously called Kent Holdco Ltd) is a company limited
by shares and wholly owned by Kent County Council. It was incorporated on 19 December 2018
and the principal activity of the company is that of a holding company. It was established as part
of a move to a group structure giving Kent County Council a single point of contact with a
streamlined management and executive function. The intention is for Global Commercial Services
Group Ltd to help generate efficiencies and consistency between the companies.

On 1 October 2019 the shareholding for Kent County Trading Ltd (05242899), Gen2 Property Ltd,
Cantium Business Solutions Ltd and the guarantor for EDSECO Ltd were transferred from Kent
County Council to Global Commercial Services Group Ltd. Kent County Trading Ltd was a holding
company with Commercial Services Trading Ltd and Commercial Services Kent Ltd sitting beneath
it. It was dissolved on 2 January 2024 as part of a move to streamline the structure with one
holding company now overseeing all subsidiaries. Both Commercial Services Kent Ltd and
Commercial Services Trading Ltd now sit under Global Commercial Services Group Ltd.

Arm's Length and Commercial Trading Companies of Kent Holdco Ltd

Kent County Council's wholly owned companies form a group sitting under Global Commercial
Services Ltd (11735631). This company was previously called Kent Holdco Ltd. Global
Commercial Services Ltd was incorporated in 2004 and is the immediate parent of Commercial
Services Kent Ltd (05858177), Commercial Services Trading Ltd (05858178), Gen2 Property Ltd
(09834851), Invicta Law Ltd (10079679), Cantium Business Solutions Ltd (11242115), and
EDSECO Ltd (10970974).

Commercial Services Kent Limited has a 50% stake in Hampshire & Kent Commercial Services
LLP (OC424699), Luton & Kent Commercial Services LLP (OC431629), Surrey & Kent
Commercial Services LLP (OC439317), Dudley & Kent Commercial Services Ltd (14099774) and
Dorset & Kent Commercial Services LLP (OC449592). In addition to the joint ventures,
Commercial Services Kent Ltd acquired 100% shareholding in Bowerhouse Il Solar Ltd
(12128147) on 31 March 2022.

Page 221



131

On 6 January 2020, Commercial Services Trading Ltd acquired the entire share capital of CSG
Global Education Ltd (01702231), this was followed by Lifecycle Management Group Ltd
(06390313) on 31 August 2023 and Prospects Payroll Ltd (03176328) on 29 September 2023.

"The group of companies provide a broad range of services covering different industry sectors.
These include energy switching services (Lumina), solar farm (Bowerhouse Il), international
educational supplies (CSG Global Education Ltd), temporary and permanent staff recruitment
(Connect2Kent, Connect2Staff, Connect2Hampshire, Connect2Luton, Connect2Surrey,
Connect2Dudley and Connect2Dorset), managed services in relation to procurement solutions
and frameworks (energy and education supplies), landscape services, fleet services, vehicle
maintenance services, pallet storage and waste management.

The clients served are both private and public sector including Kent County Council."

Group Accounting Policies

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the Group Accounts are the same as for the
single entity accounts of Kent County Council as set out in the notes relating to specific financial
statement lines and the general accounting policies can be found at Note 2 to the Core Accounts.

Page 222



132

Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

The following statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing the Group's services in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.

Year Ended 31 March 2024

Directorate/Department Notes Budget Outturn Variance
£000 £000 £000

Adult Social Care & Health including Public 861,586 -290,820 570,766

Health

Children, Young People & Education 1,577,345  -1,203,925 373,420

Growth, Environment & Transport 309,726 -69,207 240,519

Chief Executive's Department 37,143 -33,449 3,694

Deputy Chief Executive's Department 106,120 -9,038 97,082

Non-Attributable Costs including Corporately 17,084 -14,041 3,043

Held Budgets

Groups — Global Commercial Services 131,465 -51,596 79,869

Group Cost of Services 3,040,469 -1,672,077 1,368,392

Other Operating Income and Expenditure 12 89,800

Net Surplus on Trading Accounts G2 -9,788

Financing and Investment Income and 13 28,097

Expenditure

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 14 -1,521,511

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services -45,010

Share of (surplus)/Deficit of associate or joint =751

venture

Taxation of Group Entities G3 425

Group (Surplus)/Deficit G2 -45,336

(Surplus)/deficit arising on revaluation of non- 21,446

current assets

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit 3,359

liability

(Surplus)/deficit from investments in equity -950

instruments designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Other Comprehensive Income and 23,855

Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income and -21,481

Expenditure

Page 223



Group Accounts

Year Ended 31 March 2023

Directorate/Department Notes Budget Outturn Variance
£000 £000 £000

Adult Social Care & Health including Public 763,245 -278,979 484,266

Health

Children, Young People & Education 1,486,371 -1,138,634 347,737

Growth, Environment & Transport 310,952 -80,061 230,891

Chief Executive's Department 45,992 -29,841 16,151

Deputy Chief Executive's Department 103,858 -11,845 92,013

Non-Attributable Costs including Corporately 10,526 -9,259 1,267

Held Budgets

Groups — Global Commercial Services 136,737 -71,797 64,940

Group Cost of Services 2,857,681  -1,620,416 1,237,265

Other Operating Income and Expenditure 12 115,421

Net Surplus on Trading Accounts G2 -24,200

Financing and Investment Income and 13 56,394

Expenditure

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 14 -1,367,921

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 16,959

Share of (surplus)/Deficit of associate or joint -545

venture

Taxation of Group Entities G3 541

Group (Surplus)/Deficit G2 16,955

(Surplus)/deficit arising on revaluation of non- -219,234

current assets

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit -1,516,489

liability

(Surplus)/deficit from investments in equity -950

instruments designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Other Comprehensive Income and -1,736,673

Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income and -1,719,718

Expenditure

Page 224




Group Accounts

Group Movement in Reserves Statement

The following statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the
Group, analysed into usable reserves and other reserves.

Year Ended 31 March 2023

General Profit
Fund and Capital Capital and
Earmarked Receipts Grants Loss
Reserves | Reserve Unapplied Reserve
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2022 -469,380  -33,291 -74,183 -6,932
Movement in reserves during 2022-23:
Total Comprehensive Expenditure & Income -80,076 97,032
Adjustments between group accounts and Kent 98,559 -98,559
County Council accounts
Net increase or decrease before transfers 18,483 0 0 -1,527
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding -1,583 -5,935 -28,021
basis under regulations - Note 11
Net increase/Decrease before Transfers to 16,900 -5,935 -28,021 -1,527
Earmarked Reserves
Transfer between Usable and Unusable Reserves 0 0 0 0
Increase/Decrease (movement) in Year 16,900 -5,935 -28,021 -1,527
Year Ended 31 March 2024
General Profit
Fund and Capital Capital and
Earmarked @ Receipts Grants Loss
Reserves . Reserve Unapplied Reserve
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2023 carried forward -452,480 -39,226 -102,204 -8,459
Movement in reserves during 2023-24:
Total Comprehensive Expenditure & Income -137,876 92,540
Adjustments between group accounts and Kent 93,379 -93,379
County Council accounts
Net increase or decrease before transfers -44,497 0 0 -839
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding 66,327 -5,008 -61,448
basis under regulations - Note 11
Net increase/Decrease before Transfers to 21,830 -5,008 -61,448 -839
Earmarked Reserves
Transfer between Usable and Unusable Reserves 14,400
Increase/Decrease (movement) in Year 36,230 -5,008 -61,448 -839
Balance at 31 March 2024 carried forward -416,250 -44,234  -163,652 -9,298

Page 225




Group Accounts

Year Ended 31 March 2023

Total | Unusable Total
Usable reserves Group
Reserves £000 Reserves
£000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2022 -538,786 -675,919 -1,259,703
Movement in Reserves during 2022-23:
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 16,955 -1,736,673  -1,719,718
Adjustments between group accounts and Kent County 0 0 0
Council accounts
Net increase or decrease before transfers 16,955 -1,736,673 -1,719,718
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis -35,539 35,539 0
under regulations - Note 11
Net increase/Decrease before Transfers to -18,584 -1,701,134  -1,719,718
Earmarked Reserves
Transfers between Usable and Unusable Reserves 0 0
Increase/Decrease (movement) in Year -18,584  -1,701,134  -1,719,718

Year Ended 31 March 2024

Total Unusable Total
Usable reserves Group
Reserves £000 Reserves
£000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2023 carried forward -602,370  -2,377,053  -2,979,421
Movement in Reserves during 2023-24:
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income -45,336 23,855 -21,481
Adjustments between group accounts and authority 0 0
accounts
Net increase or decrease before transfers -45,336 23,855 -21,481
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis -129 129 0
under regulations - Note 11
Net increase/Decrease before Transfers to -45,465 23,984 -21,481
Earmarked Reserves
Transfers between Usable and Unusable Reserves 14,400 -14,400 0
Increase/Decrease (movement) in Year -31,065 9,584 -21,481
Balance at 31 March 2024 carried forward -633,435 -2,367,469 -3,000,902

Page 226

135



Group Accounts

Group Balance Sheet

The Balance sheet shows the value of the assets and liabilities recognised by the group at 31
March 2024. The net assets of the Group are matched by Group reserves.

31 March 31 March

2024 2023

Notes £000 £000 £000

Property Plant & Equipment 16 3,710,351 3,757,166
Heritage Assets 20 8,546 7,986
Investment Property 17 43,168 51,140
Intangible assets 9,876 9,729
Long-term investments G8 286,345 312,571
Long-term debtors G4 50,787 50,940
Deferred tax asset 0 5
Total long-term assets 4,109,073 4,189,537
Inventories 7,258 9,107
Assets held for sale (<1yr) 1,614 4,091
Short-term debtors G4 411,446 357,904
Short-term investments G8 40,183 58,223
Cash and Cash equivalents G6 158,595 160,234
Current tax asset G4 24 126
Total Current Assets 619,120 589,685
Temporary borrowing G8 -78,369 -90,155
Short-term Lease Liability 38/G8 -9,207 -8,461
Short-term provisions 25 -26,905 -16,346
Creditors G5 -469,810 -493,028
Current tax liability G5 -408 -244
Cash and Cash equivalents G6 -10,967 -4.,244
Total Current liabilities -595,666 -612,478
Creditors due after one year G5 -14,377 -14,766
Provisions 25 -9,788 -10,219
Long-term borrowing G8 -705,532 -721,893
Other Long-Term Liabilities G8/37 -243,325 -284,855
Deferred tax liability -533 -747
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 15 -158,068 -154,842
Long-Term Liabilities -1,131,623 -1,187,322
Net Assets/(Liabilities) 3,000,904 2,979,422
Usable Reserves G7/22 -633,432 -602,369
Unusable Reserves 23 -2,367,472 -2,377,053
Total Reserves -3,000,904 -2,979,422

Page 227




Group Accounts

Group Cash Flow Statement

The cash flow statement shows the changes to cash and cash equivalents of the Group during the

reporting period.

Notes  2023-24  2022-23
£000 £000

Net (Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services -45,010 16,959
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services | G9 -184,636 -374,796
for non-cash movements
Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the G9 249,456 252,914
provision of services that are investing and financing activities
Taxation 364 728
Net cash flows from operating activities 20,174  -104,195
Investing Activities G10 -48,374 58,598
Financing Activities G11 36,562 28,499
Net increase (-) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 8,362 -17,098
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting 155,990 138,892
period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period G6 147,628 155,990

The statement shows how the Group generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by

classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities.

Page 228




Note G1 - Critical Judgements

All the critical judgements and estimation uncertainties disclosed in the Council's single entity
accounts is materially applicable to the group entity. The critical judgements can be found in Note
4 on page 32 and estimation uncertainties can be found in Note 5 on pages 33 to 34 of the single
entity accounts.

Use of unaudited accounts for Group Accounts consolidation

The company accounts used for the Group Accounts consolidation is based on their unaudited
draft accounts. This is due to the statutory timetable for completing local authority accounts means
that company audited accounts would not be available and it is not unusual practice for unaudited
accounts to be used. Consideration has been given to whether the audited accounts would be
materially different, and the conclusion is that the risk is low.

Consideration of IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The subsidiary companies compile their accounts based on FRS102 which is similar to
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) but not all of the latest IFRS standards have
been adopted into FRS102. To understand the differences in the accounting policies between Kent
County Council and the individual companies a questionnaire was issued.

No issues were identified in relation to IFRS 15. The companies recognise revenue from contracts
in accordance with the underlying contract and this will be either be overtime or at a point in time
which is not dissimilar to IFRS 15 requirements.

Elimination of Income and Expenditure

Income and expenditure between Kent County Council and the subsidiary companies is eliminated
through a matching process on transaction by transaction basis. This applies to all transactions
except those between Schools and the subsidiary companies where the balances provided by the
subsidiary companies is used for the elimination.

A transaction by transaction matching process for schools is not possible as only schools balances
are consolidated in the Council's single entity accounts. The risk of material unmatched items is
assessed to be low.

Page 229



Group Accounts

Supporting the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Note G2 - Reconciliation of Group CIES

The income and expenses of the Council’s subsidiary companies are consolidated in the

Statement on a line by line basis.

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
(Surplus) or deficit per single entity Comprehensive Income and -38,087 21,672
Expenditure Statement
Adjustment removing fair value gain/loss included in the single entity 4,039 -3,190
accounts as part of Group Accounts consolidation.
(Surplus) or deficit attributable to subsidiaries -839 -1,527
Total Group (Surplus) or Deficit -34,887 . 16,955
The consolidation adjustment to the 'Net Surplus on trading accounts' is due the following:
2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Net Surplus on Trading accounts per single entity Comprehensive Income -4,487 -4,027
and Expenditure Statement
KCS and Laser expenditure with Subsidiaries -11,773 . -20,516
KCS and Laser income generated through sales to Subsidiaries 6,472 343
-9,788 -24,200

Note G3 - Tax Expenses of Group Entities

The taxation figure included in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

represents:

2023-24 2022-23

£000 £000

Tax in respect of the current year 914 572

Adjustment in respect of prior years -271 -34

Deferred tax in respect of the current year -208 -6

Deferred tax on actuarial loss/(gain) for the year 0 0

Impact of the change in tax rates recognised in the Comprehensive -10 9
Income and Expenditure Statement

Total Taxation Expenses 425 541

Page 230




Group Accounts

Supporting the Balance Sheet
Note G4 - Debtors

The table provides details of amounts owed to the Group at the end of the year. Debtors included
within the Group Accounts exclude any amounts owed within the Group.

Short Short Long Long
Term Term Term Term Total Total
Debtors Debtors Debtors Debtors . Debtors Debtors
31 March 31 March . 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Medway Council 0 0 27,784 28,940 27,784 28,940
Recoverable VAT 55,979 26,831 0 0 55,979 26,831
Trade Receivables 166,028 154,715 0 0 166,028 154,715
Payments in 34,708 33,283 0 0 34,708 33,283
Advance
General Debtors 154,731 143,075 23,003 22,000 177,734 165,075
411,446 357,904 50,787 50,940 462,233 408,844
Note G5 - Creditors
The table provides details of amounts owed by the Group to creditors at the end of the year.
Creditors included within the Group Accounts exclude any amounts owed within the Group.
Short Short Long Long Total Total
Term Term Term Term  Creditors Creditors
Creditors Creditors Creditors Creditors 31 March 31 March
31 March 31 March . 31 March 31 March 2024 2023
2024 2023 2024 2023 £000 £000
£000 £000 £000 £000
Receipts in Advance 82,403 85,509 - - 82,403 85,509
VAT Payable 3,271 4,212 - - 3,271 4,212
Contract Liabilities 7,981 2,552 - - 7,981 2,552
Other HMRC Liabilities 2,031 1,609 - - 2,031 1,609
Deferred Income 15,444 12,061 14,343 14,731 29,787 26,792
General Creditors 359,088 387,329 34 35 359,122 387,364
470,218 493,272 14,377 14,766 484,595 508,038

Note G6 - Cash & Cash Equivalents

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

£000 £000

Single Entity Cash and Bank balances -10,967 -4,244
Subsidiary cash and bank balances 16,084 24,276
Short term deposits with the Money Market 142,511 135,958
Total Group Cash and Cash Equivalents 147,628 155,990

Page 231




Group Accounts

Note G7 - Reserves

Movements on the Group reserves are detailed in the Group Movement in Reserve Statement on
page 134. The reserves of the subsidiaries include:

2022-23 2023-24

Usable Usable

Reserves Reserves

Retained Retained

Earnings Earnings

£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2022 6,931 Balance at 1 April 2023 8,458

Profit/(Loss) for the year 2,132 3,939
Share of surplus/(deficit) of associate

or joint venture 545 0

Dividends paid/declared -1,150 -3,100

Balance at 31 March 2023 8,458 Balance at 31 March 2024 9,297

The disclosure note description relating to associate and joint venture has been amended to
reflect the same description as in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

on pages 132 & 133.

Page 232




Group Accounts

Note G8 - Financial Instruments

Categories of Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instruments are carried in the Group Balance Sheet:

Financial Assets

31 March 2024

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

31 March 2023

Long term Short term Long term Short term
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investments:
- Fair value through profit
or loss 187,055 128,912 186,789 134,708
- Amortised cost 99,290 53,783 125,782 59,473
286,345 182,695 312,571 194,181
Debtors:
- Amortised cost 30,422 311,779 31,640 294,678
- Amortised cost - Soft
Loans 20,365 8,980 19,300 6,332
- Non-financial assets 90,687 56,894
50,787 411,446 50,940 357,904
Cash & Cash Equivalents 16,084 24,276
Total 337,132 610,225 363,511 576,361

Financial Liabilities

31 March 2024

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

31 March 2023

Long term Short term Long term Short term
£000 £000 £000 £000

Borrowing
- Amortised cost 705,532 78,369 721,893 90,155
- Non-financial liabilities 178,549 9,207 187,489 8,458
884,081 87,576 909,382 98,613

Creditors

- Amortised cost 34 367,069 35 389,881
- Non-financial assets 14,343 103,149 14,731 103,391
14,377 470,218 14,766 493,272
Cash & Cash Equivalents 10,967 4,244
Total 898,458 568,761 924,148 596,129

Page 233




143

Supporting the Cash Flow
Note G9. Cash Flow - Group Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Interest received -20,866 -12,182
Interest paid 55,224 55,470
Employee Costs 1,060,336 1,007,642
Income from Council Tax -939,432 -885,685
Government Grants -1,857,983 -1,687,069
The Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services has been 2023-24 2022-23
adjusted for the following non-cash movements: £000 £000
Movement in pension liability 30,979 -20,245
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold -99,289 -123,999
Carrying amount of Capital Inventory sold -162 -1,723
Carrying amount of Financial Assets held at FVPL 3,958 -18,863
Amortisation of fixed assets -2,652 -2,673
Depreciation of fixed assets -111,549 -103,298
Impairment and downward valuations -7,925 -2,936
Income from shares in group undertakings 0 0
Increase/(decrease) debtors 46,359 23,695
(Increase)/decrease creditors 23,841 -86,927
Increase/(decrease) stock -1,849 4,357
Change in provisions -51 116
Movement on investment properties -7,165 -1,749
REFCUS -36,801 -61,631
Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus/deficit on the Provision
of Services -22,330 21,080
Taxation 0 0
-184,636  -374,796

The Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services has been

adjusted for the following items that are investing and financing 2023-24 2022-23
activities: £000 £000
Proceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment, investment 13,524 12,914

property, and intangible assets

Other adjustments for items included in the net Surplus or Deficit
on the provision of service that are investing or financing

activities:
Capital grants applied 227,826 217,251
Payment of Collection Fund Deficit 8,096 22,749

249,456 252,914

Page 234



Group Accounts

Note G10 - Group Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property, and 242,742 254,126
intangible assets
Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 2,774,912 1,108,337
Proceeds from capital inventory -195 -2,046
Other payments for investing activities 0 0
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment, investment -12,472 -10,391
property, and intangible assets
Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments -2,818,943 -1,062,165
Other receipts from investing activities -234,418 -229,263
Net cash flows from investing activities -48,374 58,598
Note G11 - Group Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities

2023-24 2022-23

£000 £000

Cash receipts of short- and long-term borrowing -1,000 -76,020
Relating to finance leases and on-balance sheet PFI contracts 5,835 4,370
Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing 30,577 99,199
Other payments from financing activities 1,150 950
Net cash flows from financing activities 36,562 28,499

Page 235




Pension Fund Accounts

Pension Fund Accounts

The following financial statements are included in the Kent Pension Fund's Annual Report and
Accounts 2023-24 available from the Fund's website at www.kentpensionfund.co.uk.

Fund Account for the year ended 31 March:

2023-24 2022-23
Notes £000 £000
Dealings with members, employers and others directly
involved in the Fund
Contributions 7 321,214 297,692
Transfers in from other pension funds 8 12,280 17,306
333,494 314,998
Benefits 9 -303,175  -270,995
Payments to and on account of leavers 10 -15,424 -15,184
-318,599 -286,179
Net additions from dealings with members 14,895 28,819
Management expenses 11 -34,788 -32,502
Net withdrawals including fund management expenses -19,983 -3,683
Returns on investments
Investment Income 13 157,148 153,112
Taxes on Income -371 -198
Profit and loss on disposal of investments and changes in the
market value of investments 15a 157,715 -3,704
Net return on investments 314,492 149,210
Net increase in the net assets available for benefits during
the year 294,599 145,527
Opening net assets of the scheme 7,847,952 7,702,425
Closing net assets of the scheme 8,142,551 7,847,952
Net Assets Statement as at 31 March
2023-24 2022-23
Notes £000 £000
Investment assets 8,144,656 @ 7,860,392
Investment liabilities -3,800 -12,323
Net investment assets 15 8,140,856 @ 7,848,069
Current assets 21 34,778 29,503
Current liabilities 22 -33,083 -29,620
Net assets available to fund benefits at the period end 8,142,551 7,847,952

Page 236



http://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/

Pension Fund Accounts
1. Description of the Fund

General

The Kent Pension Fund (the Fund) is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and
is administered by Kent County Council (KCC) for the purpose of providing pensions and other
benefits for the pensionable employees of KCC, Medway Council, the district and borough
councils in Kent and a number of other employers within the county area. The Fund is a reporting
entity and KCC as the Administering Authority is required to include the Fund's accounts as a note
in its Report and Accounts. Teachers, police officers and firefighters are not included as they come
within other national pension schemes. The LGPS is a contributory defined benefit pension
scheme.

The Scheme is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The Fund is administered in
accordance with the following secondary legislation:

e the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)
e the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and
Amendments) Regulations 2014 (as amended)
e the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016
The Fund is overseen by the Kent Pension Fund Committee (the Scheme Manager). The Local
Pension Board assists the Scheme Manager to ensure the effective and efficient governance and
administration of the Scheme.

Membership

Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether to join or remain
in the Scheme or to make personal arrangements outside the Scheme. Employers in the Fund
include Scheduled Bodies which are local authorities and similar entities whose staff are
automatically entitled to be members of the Scheme; and Admission Bodies which participate in
the Fund by virtue of an admission agreement made between the Administering Authority and the
relevant body. Admission bodies include voluntary, charitable and similar entities or private
contractors undertaking a local authority function following a specific business transfer to the
private sector.

There are 284 employers actively participating in the Fund and the profile of members is as
detailed below:

Kent County | Kent County Other Other Total Total
Council Council | Employers | Employers | 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23

Contributors 22,005 21,885 33,286 31,468 55,291 53,353

Pensioners 25,252 24,878 25,156 23,705 50,408 48,583

Deferred 24,495 24,618 26,150 25,284 50,645 49,902
Pensioners

Total 71,752 71,381 84,592 80,457 156,344 151,838

Page 237

146



Pension Fund Accounts

Funding

Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by active
members of the fund in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013 and ranged from 5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31 March
2024. Employers’ contributions are set based on triennial actuarial funding valuations. The last
such valuation was at 31 March 2022. Employers' contribution rates consist of a primary rate

(representing the rate required to meet the cost of future accrual of benefits) and a secondary rate,

which is an adjustment to the primary rate for employer specific circumstances (e.g. to allow for
deficit recovery). Currently, employers' primary contribution rates range from 15.7% to 36.4% of
pensionable pay.

Benefits

Pension benefits under the LGPS are based on the following:

Service pre April 2008

Membership from 1 April
2008 to 31 March 2014

Membership from 1 April
2014

Pension | 1/80 x final pensionable 1/60 x final pensionable 1/49 (or 1/98 if opted for
salary salary 50/50 section) x career
average revalued salary
Lump Automatic lump sum of No automatic lump sum. No automatic lump sum.
Sum 3/80 x final pensionable

salary.

In addition, part of the
annual pension can be
exchanged for a one-off
tax-free cash payment. A

Part of the annual pension
can be exchanged for a
one-off tax-free cash
payment. A lump sum of
£12 is paid for each £1 of
pension given up.

Part of the annual pension
can be exchanged for a
one-off tax-free cash
payment. A lump sum of
£12 is paid for each £1 of
pension given up.

147

lump sum of £12 is paid for
each £1 of pension given

up.

There is a range of other benefits provided under the Scheme including early retirement, ill health
pensions and death benefits. For more details, please refer to the Kent Pension Fund website:
www.kentpensionfund.co.uk .

2. Basis of preparation

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund's transactions for the 2023-24 financial year and
its position at 31 March 2024.

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24 which is based upon International Financial
Reporting Standards, as amended for the UK public sector. The accounts are prepared on a
going concern basis.

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets available to
pay pension benefits. The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and
benefits which fall due after the end of the financial year. The actuarial present value of promised
retirement benefits, valued on an International Accounting Standard (IAS)19 basis is disclosed at
note 20 of these accounts.

Page 238


http://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/

Pension Fund Accounts

Going concern

The Statement of Accounts has been prepared on a going concern basis. The vast majority of
employers in the pension scheme are scheduled bodies that have secure public sector funding,
and therefore there should be no doubt in their ability to continue to make their pension
contributions. Following the latest actuarial valuation and schedule of employer contribution
prepayments, the Pension Fund has reviewed its cashflow forecast and is confident in its ability to
meet is ongoing obligations to pay pensions from its cash balance for at least 12 months from the
date of signing the accounts. In the event that investments need to be sold, 81% of the Fund’s
investments can be converted into cash within 3 months.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Fund Account - revenue recognition
a) Contribution income

"Normal contributions, both from the members and from the employers, are accounted for on an
accruals basis at the percentage rate recommended by the fund actuary in the payroll period to
which they relate. Employers' deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the due dates on
which they are payable under the schedule of contributions set by the Fund Actuary or on receipt if
earlier than the due date.

Employers’ augmentation contributions and pensions strain contributions are accounted for in the
period in which the liability arises. Any amount due in year but unpaid will be classed as a current
financial asset."

b) Transfers to and from other schemes

Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who have
either joined or left the Fund during the financial year and are calculated in accordance with the
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations. Individual transfers in/out are accounted for
when received/paid, which is normally when the member liability is accepted or discharged.
Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary contributions
to purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are included in 'transfers
in'. Bulk transfers are accounted for in accordance with the terms of the transfer agreement.

c) Investment income

Dividends, distributions, interest, and stock lending income on securities have been accounted for
on an accruals basis and where appropriate from the date quoted as ex-dividend (XD). Changes
in the net market value of investments are recognised as income and comprise all realised and
unrealised profits/losses during the year. Where the Fund's investments are held in income
accumulating funds that do not distribute income the accumulated income on such investments is
reflected in the unit market price at the end of the year and is included in the realised and
unrealised gains and losses during the year. Direct property related income mainly comprises of
rental income which is recognised when it becomes due. Rental income is adjusted for provision
for rent invoiced but collection of which is assessed as doubtful.

Fund Account - expense items

d) Benefits payable

Pensions and lump-sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at the year end.
Any amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as current liabilities
providing the payment has been approved.

Page 239

148



Pension Fund Accounts

e) Taxation

The Fund has been accepted by the HM Revenue and Customs as a registered pension scheme
in accordance with paragraph 1(1) of Schedule 36 to the Finance Act 2004 and, as such, qualifies
for exemption from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on proceeds of
investments sold. Tax is therefore only applicable to dividend income from equity investments.
Income arising from overseas investments is subject to deduction of withholding tax unless
exemption is permitted by and obtained from the country of origin. Investment income is shown
gross of tax, and any recoverable tax at the end of the year is included in accrued investment
income.

By virtue of KCC being the administering authority, VAT input tax is recoverable on all Fund
activities including investment and property expenses.

f) Management expenses

All expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Costs relating to KCC staff involved in the
administration, governance and oversight of the Fund, and overheads incurred by KCC and
recharged to the Fund at the end of the year. Fees of the external investment managers and
custodian are agreed in the respective mandates governing their appointments. Broadly these are
based on the market value of the investments under their management and therefore increase or
reduce as the value of these investments change. Fees incurred include fees directly paid to fund
managers as well as fees deducted from the funds by pooled fund managers which is grossed up
to increase the income from these investments.

Net Assets Statement

g) Financial assets

Financial assets other than cash and debtors are included in the Net Assets Statement on a fair
value basis as at the reporting date. A financial asset is recognised in the Net Assets Statement on
the date the Fund becomes party to the contractual acquisition of the asset. Any purchase or sale
of securities is recognised upon trade and any unsettled transactions at the year-end are recorded
as amounts receivable for sales and amounts payable for purchases. From the trade date any
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the asset are recognised by the Fund. The
values of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined at fair value in
accordance with the requirements of the Code and IFRS 13 and IFRS 9. For the purposes of
disclosing levels of fair value hierarchy, the fund has adopted the classification guidelines
recommended in Practical Guidance on Investment Disclosures (PRAG/Investment Association,
2016).

The values of investments as shown in the Net Assets Statement have been determined as
follows:

- Quoted investments are stated at market value based on the closing bid price quoted on the
relevant stock exchange on the final day of the accounting period.

- Fixed income securities (bonds) are recorded at net market value based on their current yields

- Investments in unquoted property and infrastructure pooled funds are valued at the net asset
value or a single price advised by the fund manager

- Investments in private equity funds and unquoted listed partnerships are valued based on the

Fund’s share of the net assets in the private equity fund or limited partnership using the latest

financial statements published by the respective fund managers. The valuation standards

followed by the managers are in accordance with the industry guidelines and the constituent

management agreements. Such investments may not always be valued based on year end

valuation as information may not be available, and therefore will be valued based on the latest
Page 240

149



Pension Fund Accounts

valuation provided by the managers adjusted for cash flow and foreign exchange rate movements
to the year end.

- Pooled investment vehicles are valued at closing bid price if both bid and offer prices are
published; or if single priced, at the closing single price. In the case of pooled investment vehicles
that are accumulation funds, the change in market value also includes income which is reinvested
in the fund.

- Debtors / receivables being short duration receivables with no stated interest rate are measured
at original invoice amount. Debtors are adjusted for provision made for doubtful debts relating to
rent income.

h) Freehold and Leasehold Properties

The freehold and leasehold properties were valued at open market prices in accordance with the
valuation standards laid down by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The last valuation
was undertaken by Colliers International, as at 31 December 2023. The valuer's opinion of market
value and existing use value was primarily derived using comparable recent market transactions
on arm's length terms. The results of the valuation have then been indexed in line with the MSCI
Monthly Index movement to 31 March 2024. The indexation is carried out by DTZ, who are
managers of the Fund's direct property portfolio.

i) Derivatives

The Fund uses derivative instruments to manage its exposure to specific risks arising from its
investment activities. The Fund does not hold derivatives for speculative purposes. At the reporting
date the Fund only held forward currency contracts. The future value of the forward currency
contracts is based on market forward exchange rates at the year-end date and determined as the
gain or loss that would arise if the outstanding contract were matched at the year-end with an
equal and opposite contract. Under the European Market Infrastructure Regulations, the Fund's
forward currency contracts are required to be covered by margin cash. These amounts are
included in cash or cash equivalents held by the Fund and reflected in a corresponding margin
cash liability under investment liabilities.

j) Foreign currency transactions

Assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated into sterling at spot market exchange rates
ruling at the year-end. All foreign currency transactions including income are translated into
sterling at spot market exchange rates ruling at the transaction date. All realised currency
exchange gains or losses are included in change in market value of assets.

k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash at bank and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to minimal
risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents managed by fund managers and cash
equivalents managed by KCC are included in investments. All other cash is included in current
assets.

I) Financial liabilities

The Fund recognises financial liabilities relating to investments at fair value as at the reporting
date. A financial liability is recognised in the Net Assets Statement on the date the fund becomes
party to the liability. From this date any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
liability are recognised by the Fund. Other financial liabilities classed as amortised cost are carried
at amortised cost i.e. the amount carried in the net asset statement is the outstanding principal
repayable plus accrued interest. Any interest charged is accounted for on an accruals basis and
included in administration costs.

Page 241

150



Pension Fund Accounts 151

m) Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the
scheme actuary and the methodology used is in line with accepted guidelines and in accordance
with IAS 19. As permitted under IAS 26, the Fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value
of promised retirement benefits by way of a note to the Net Assets Statement (Note 20).

n) Contingent assets and liabilities

A contingent asset/liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Fund a possible
right/obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Fund. Contingent assets/liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
inflow/outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the right/obligation cannot be
measured reliably. Contingent assets/liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but
disclosed in a note to the accounts.

o) Pooling expenses

The Fund is member of the ACCESS pool, a group of 11 LGPS Administering Authorities who, as
part of a Government initiative, have agreed to pool their investments to achieve cost and scale
benefits. Pooling costs included in the Fund's accounts reflect the Fund's proportion of the cost of
the governance arrangements of the pool.

p) Additional voluntary contributions

The Fund provides an additional voluntary contribution (AVC) scheme for its members, assets of
which are invested separately from those of the Fund. AVCs are not included in the accounts in
accordance with Section 4(1)(b) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of funds) Regulations 2016 but are disclosed for information in note 23.

4. Critical judgements in applying accounting policy

The Fund’s investment portfolio includes a number of directly owned properties which are leased
commercially to various tenants with rental periods. The Fund has determined that these contracts
all constitute operating lease arrangements under the classifications permitted by the Code,
therefore the properties are retained on the net asset statement at fair value.

5. Assumptions made about future and other major sources of
estimation uncertainty

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from
assumption
Actuarial Estimation of the net liability to pay | The effects on the net pension liability of
present pensions depends on a number of | changes in individual assumptions can be
value of complex judgements relating to the | measured. For instance, a 0.1% increase in
promised discount rate used, the rate at the discount rate assumption would result in
retirement which salaries are projected to a decrease in the pension liability of £112m.
benefits increase, changes in retirement A 0.1% increase in assumed earnings
(Note 20) ages, mortality rates and expected | inflation would increase the value of liabilities
returns on Pension Fund assets. A | by approx. £9m, and a one year increase to
firm of consulting actuaries is the life expectancy assumptions would
engaged to provide the Fund with increase the value of the liabilities by approx.
expert advice about assumptions to | £290m.
be applied.
Private Valuation of unquoted privatePage 2 2'I' he total private equity, infrastructure and




Pension Fund Accounts

equity and equity and infrastructure other level 3 investments on the financial
infrastructure | investments is highly subjective statements are £755m. Potential change in
and other and inherently based on forward valuation due to changes in these factors is
level 3 looking estimates and judgements | estimated in Note 17.
investments | involving many factors. They are
(Note 17) valued by the investment managers

using guidelines set out in the

British Venture Capital Association.
Freehold Valuation techniques are used to The effect of 10% variations in the factors
and determine the fair values of directly | supporting the valuation would be an
leasehold held property and pooled property | increase or decrease in the value of directly
property and | funds. Where possible these held property and property pooled funds of
pooled valuation techniques are based on | £73m on a fair value of £727m. Details of
property observable data, but where this is potential factors affecting the valuation are in
funds not possible management uses the | Note 17.
(Note 17) best available data. Changes in the

valuation assumptions used,

together with significant changes in

rental growth, vacancy levels or the

discount rate could affect the fair

value of property.

6. Events after the reporting date

There have been no events since 31 March 2024, up to the date when these accounts were
authorised, that require or do not require any adjustment to these accounts.

7. Contributions receivable

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
By category
Employees' contributions 71,244 66,582
Employers' contributions
-normal contributions 231,833 192,792
-deficit recovery contributions 13,852 35,993
-augmentation contributions 4,284 2,325
Total Employers' contributions 249,969 231,110
Total contributions receivable 321,214 297,692
By type of employer
Kent County Council 116,271 109,234
Scheduled bodies 186,945 174,513
Admission bodies 17,998 13,945
321,214 297,692
8. Transfers in from other pension funds
2023-24 2022-23
By category £000 £000
Individual 12,280 17,306
Group 0 0
12,280 17,306

Page 243

152



Pension Fund Accounts

9. Benefits payable

2023-24 2022-23
By Category £000 £000
Pensions 254,015 227,129
Retirement commutation and lump sum 42,833 36,188
benefits
Death benefits 6,327 7,678
303,175 270,995
By type of employer
Kent County Council 133,038 121,133
Scheduled bodies 151,361 133,453
Admission bodies 18,777 16,409
303,175 270,995
10. Payments to and on account of leavers
2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Group transfers 0 0
Individual transfers 13,747 14,009
Payments/refunds for members joining state 1 3
scheme
Refunds of contributions 1,676 1,172
15,424 15,184
11. Management expenses
2023-24 2022-23
Notes £000 £000
Administration costs 5,258 3,684
Governance and oversight costs 1,660 992
Investment management expenses 12 27,641 27,665
Audit fees 96 46
Pooling expenses 133 115
34,788 32,502
12. Investment management expenses
2023-24 2022-23
Notes £000 £000
Investment managers fees 12a 27,419 27,448
Transaction costs 163 166
Custody fees 59 51
Total 27,641 27,665

The management fees disclosed above include all investment management fees directly incurred
by the Fund including those charged on pooled fund investments.

In addition to the transaction costs disclosed above, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-
offer spread on investments within pooled investment vehicles. These indirect costs are not

Page 244

separately provided to the Fund.

153



Pension Fund Accounts

12a. Investment management fees

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000
Fixed income 4,054 3,802
Equities 13,356 13,343
Private equity / infrastructure 6,906 6,907
Property 3,103 3,396
Total 27,419 27,448
13. Summary of income from investments
2022-24 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23
Notes £000 % £000 %
Bonds 17,862 1.4 15,606 10.2
Equities 10,356 6.6 7,257 4.7
Pooled investments 97,933 62.3 97,769 63.9
Private equity / infrastructure 9,941 6.3 11,271 7.4
Property 14 11,556 74 11,456 7.4
Pooled property investments 5,518 3.5 7,028 4.6
Cash and cash equivalents 3,884 2.5 2,621 1.7
Stock lending 98 0.1 103 0.1
Total before taxes 157,148 100.0 153,112 100.0
14. Property income and expenditure
2023-24 2022-23
£000 Restated
£000
Rental income from investment properties 27,026 19,962
Provision for doubtful debts -5,811 -4,735
Direct operating expenses -9,659 -8,506
Net operating income from property 11,556 11,456

Page 245

154



15. Investments

Pension Fund Accounts

Market Value Market Value
as at as at
31 March 24 31 March 23
£000 Restated
£000

Investment assets
Bonds 400,903 356,101
Equities 406,065 363,714

Pooled investments
Fixed income 792,897 711,013
Equities 4,390,583 4,312,029
Absolute return 410,961 573,683
Private equity/infrastructure funds 763,399 614,963
Property 461,774 501,584
Pooled property investments 265,421 280,305
Derivatives-forward currency contracts 375 5,562
Investment cash and cash equivalents 240,140 127,035
Investment income due 9,585 9,669*
Amounts receivable for sales 1,247 0
Margin cash 1,307 0
Total investment assets 8,144,656 7,855,657

Investment liabilities

Amounts payable for purchases -2,444 -2,169
Margin cash liability 0 -5,010
Derivatives-forward currency contracts -1,355 -409
Total investment liabilities -3,800 -7,588*
Net investment assets 8,140,856 7,848,069

155

Investment income due (debtors) includes a sum of £8.3m (2022-23 £7.5m) for rents and service
charges payable by tenants of properties owned by the Pension Fund. Due to continued effects of
the pandemic on rent collection, there is a high likelihood that a significant portion will not be fully
recovered. A provision of £5.8m (2022-23 £4.7m) has therefore been made for doubtful rent debts.

Page 246



Pension Fund Accounts

15a. Reconciliation of movements in investments and derivatives

Market
Value Change Market
as at in Value
31 March 23 | Purchases Sales market as at
Restated atcost proceeds value 31 March 24
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Bonds 356,101 99,347 -62,739 8,195 400,903
Equities 363,714 106,315 -107,103 . 43,139 406,065
Pooled investments 5,596,724 85,998 -179,148 90,867 5,594,441
Private equity/infrastructure 614,963 152,637 -43,045 38,844 763,399
Property 501,584 0 -19,766 -20,044 461,773
Pooled property investments 280,305 31,525 -35,052  -11,357 265,421
7,713,391 475,821 -446,853 149,643 7,892,002
Derivative contracts
- Forward currency contracts 5,163 2,807,373 -2,820,084 6,577 -981
7,718,544 3,283,194 -3,266,937 156,220 7,891,022
Other investment balances
- Investment cash and cash 127,035 167,933 1,495 240,140
equivalents
- Amounts receivable for 0 1,247
sales
- Amounts payable for -2,169 -2,444
purchases
- Margin cash liability -5,010 1,307
- Investment income due 9,669* 9,585
Net investment assets 7,848,069 3,451,127 -3,266,937 157,715 8,140,856

Page 247




Pension Fund Accounts

Market Market
Value Change Value
as at in as at
31 March 22 Purchases Sales market | 31 March 23
Restated atcost proceeds value Restated
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Bonds 379,027 62,081 -73,921  -11,086 356,102
Equities 371,946 127,202 -124,305 -11,129 363,714
Pooled investments 5,414,155 84,969 -1,309 98,909 5,596,724
Private equity/infrastructure 464,955 132,147 -36,525 54,386 614,963
Property 577,934 0 0 -76,350 501,584
Pooled property investments 324,287 1,251 -6,983  -38,250 280,305
7,532,304 407,650 -243,043 16,480 7,713,391
Derivative contracts
- Forward currency contracts -8,362 3,286,774 -3,252,871 -20,388 5,153
7,523,942 3,694,424 -3,495,914 -3,908 7,718,544
Other investment balances
- Investment cash and cash 155,305 206 127,035
equivalents
- Cash pending issue of units
- Amounts receivable for 788 0
sales
- Amounts payable for -800 -2,169
purchases
- Margin cash asset 8,548 -5,010
- Investment income due 9,256* 9,669
Net investment assets 7,697,039 3,694,424 -3,495,914 -3,702 7,848,069

15b. Analysis of derivative contracts

Objectives and policy for holding derivatives

Most of the holding in derivatives is to hedge liabilities or hedge exposures to reduce risk in the
Fund. Derivatives may be used to gain exposure to an asset more efficiently than holding the
underlying asset. The use of derivatives is managed in line with the investment management
agreement agreed between the Fund and the investment manager.

Open forward currency contracts

In order to maintain appropriate diversification and to take advantage of overseas investment
returns, a significant portion of the Fund's fixed income portfolio managed by Goldman Sachs
Asset Management is invested in overseas securities. To reduce the volatility associated with
fluctuating currency rates, the investment manager hedges the overseas exposure of the portfolio.

Page 248

157



Pension Fund Accounts

Settlement Currency Local Currency Local Asset  Liability
bought value sold value value  value
£000 £000 £000 £000
Up to one month GBP 51 EUR -59 0 0
Up to one month GBP 201 USD -254 0 0
Up to one month GBP 223,325 USD -283,787 0 -1,312
Up to one month USD 385 GBP -302 2 0
Up to one month GBP 523 USD -664 0 -3
Up to one month uUsSD 65 GBP -52 0 0
Up to one month GBP 403 USD -509 0 0
Up to one month uUsSD 104 GBP -82 0 0
Up to one month USD 544 GBP -430 1 0
Up to one month USD 1,092 GBP -870 0 -5
Up to one month GBP 3 USD -4 0 0
Up to one month USD 1,138 GBP -898 3 0
Up to one month GBP 811 usD -1,041 0 -12
Up to one month USD 30,065 GBP -23,481 317 0
Up to one month USD 1,993 GBP -1,565 13 0
Up to one month USD 725 GBP -571 3 0
Up to one month USD 2,109 GBP -1,672 0 -2
Up to one month GBP 6,126 usD -7,760 0 -16
Up to two months GBP 1,685 EUR -1,966 2 0
Up to two months GBP 341 EUR -399 0 -1
Up to two months GBP 81,665 EUR -95,377 21 0
Up to two months EUR 4,263 GBP -3,652 0 -3
Up to two months GBP 776 EUR -907 0 0
Up to two months GBP 550 EUR -643 0 0
Up to two months GBP 999 EUR -1,165 1 0
Up to two months GBP 1,098 EUR -1,284 0 -1
Up to two months GBP 1,981 EUR -2,301 12 0
375 -1,355
Net forward currency -980
contracts at 31 March 2024
Prior year comparative
Open forward currency contracts 5,562 -409
at 31 March 2023
Net forward currency 5,153
contracts at 31 March 2023

Page 249

158



Pension Fund Accounts

15c. Property holdings

Year ending 31

Year ending

March 24 31 March 23

£000 £000

Opening balance 501,584 577,934
Additions 0 0
Disposals -19,766 0
Net increase in market value -20,044 -76,350
Closing balance 461,774 501,584

There are no restrictions on the realisability of the property or the remittance of income or
proceeds on disposal and the Fund is not under any contractual obligation to purchase, construct
or develop these properties, other than to the extent reported in note 26.

The future minimum lease payments receivable by the Fund are as follows:

Year ending 31

Year ending

March 24 31 March 23

£000 £000

Within one year 16,658 16,935
Between one and five years 42,615 41,290
Later than five years 30,512 32,204
89,785 90,429

The above disclosures have been reduced by a credit loss allowance of 0.35% per annum
reflecting the Fund’s expected loss from late or non-recovery of rents from tenants. This has been
based on the Fund’s own historic experience but also information on similar properties received
from the Fund’s property letting agents. The income has also been reduced to take into account
the possibility of tenants taking advantage of break clauses in their non cancellable operating

lease contracts to terminate tenancies.

Page 250

159



Pension Fund Accounts

15d. Investments analysed by fund manager

Market Value Market Value Market Value Market Value
as at 31 as at 31 as at 31 as at 31
March 2024 March 2024 March 2023 March 2023
£000 % £000 %
Investments managed in the
ACCESS Pool
Baillie Gifford 1,204,259 14.8 1,071,672 13.7
M&G 593,948 7.3 536,060 6.8
Ruffer 180,143 2.2 191,519 2.4
Schroders 1,721,968 21.2 1,589,355 20.3
3,700,318 455 3,388,606 43.2
Investments managed outside
the ACCESS Pool
CQS 257,039 3.2 226,095 2.9
DTZ 527,294 6.5 545,702 7.0
Fidelity 135,589 1.7 141,308 1.8
Goldman Sachs 417,890 5.1 385,314 4.9
HarbourVest 308,604 3.8 259,578 3.3
Impax 74,660 0.9 72,807 0.9
Insight 962,656 11.8 1,039,867 13.2
Kames 27,943 0.3 32,132 04
Kent County Council investment 37,430 0.5 86,957 1.1
team
M&G 318,162 3.9 314,552 4.0
Partners Group 376,066 4.6 273,163 3.5
Pyrford 230,817 2.8 382,164 4.9
Sarasin 425,462 52 375,518 4.8
Schroders 259,889 3.2 239,281 3.0
YFM 78,729 1.0 82,222 1.0
Link Fund Solutions 2,308 0.0 2,803 0.0
4,440,538 54.5 4,459,463 56.8
Total 8,140,856 100 7,848,069 100

15e. Single investments exceeding 5% of net assets available for benefits

Investments 31 March 2024 31 March 2024
£000 % of net assets

WS ACCESS Global Equity Core Fund 1,204,259 14.8

WS ACCESS UK Equity Fund 1,246,127 15.3

LDI Solutions Plus ICAV Active (Insight) 793,963 9.8

WS ACCESS Global Dividend Fund 593,948 7.3

WS ACCESS Global Active Value Fund 475,841 5.9

Investments

31 March 2023
£000

31 March 2023
% of net assets

WS ACCESS Global Equity Core Fund 1,071,672 13.7
WS ACCESS UK Equity Fund 1,184,302 15.1
LDI Solutions Plus ICAV Active (Insight) 1,039,867 13.3
WS ACCESS Global Dividend Fund 536,060 6.8

Page 251




Pension Fund Accounts 161

15f. Stock lending

The Custodians undertake a programme of stock lending to approved UK counterparties against
non-cash collateral mainly comprising of Sovereigns and Treasury Bonds. The programme lends
directly held global equities and bonds to approved borrowers against a collateral of Government
and Supranational fixed interest securities of developed countries, which is marked to market on a
daily basis. Securities on loan are included at market value in net assets on the basis that they will
be returned to the Fund at the end of the loan term. Net income from securities lending received
from the custodian is shown as income from investments in the Fund Account.

The amount of securities on loan at year end, analysed by asset class and a description of the
collateral is set out in the table below:

31 March 2024

Loan Type Market Value . Collateral Value Collateral type
£000 £000
Equities 7,288 7,543 Treasury Notes and other Government debt
Bonds 33,754 34,934 Treasury Notes and other Government debt
41,042 42,478

31 March 2023

Loan Type Market Value . Collateral Value Collateral type
£000 £000
Equities 6,483 6,751 Treasury Notes and other Government debt
Bonds 33,470 34,854 Treasury Notes and other Government debt
39,953 41,606

Page 252



Pension Fund Accounts 162

16. Financial instruments

16a. Classification of financial instruments

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities by category
and Net Assets Statement heading.

31 Mar24 31 Mar 24 31 Mar24 31 Mar 23 31 Mar 23 31 Mar 23
Fair value Assets at Financial Fair value Assets at Financial
through amortised liabilities at through . amortised | liabilities at
profit and cost amortised  profit and cost amortised
loss £000 cost loss Restated cost
£000 £000 £000 £000 Restated
£000
Financial assets
Bonds 400,903 356,101
Equities 406,065 363,714
Pooled investments 5,594,441 5,596,724
Property pooled 265,421 280,305
investments
Private 763,399 614,963
equity/infrastructure
Derivative contracts 375 5,562
Cash & cash 230,973 15,587 116,870 11,894
equivalents
Other investment 12,139 9,669*
balances
Debtors/ 5,272 6,474
receivables
7,661,577 32,999 0 7,334,239 28,037* 0
Financial
Liabilities
Derivative contracts -1,355 -409
Other investment -2,444 -7,179*
balances
Creditors -11,524 -11,874
-1,355 0 -13,968 -409 0 -19,053*
Total 7,660,222 32,999 -13,968 7,333,830 28,037* -19,053*

16b. Net gains and losses on financial instruments

Financial assets 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

£000 £000
Fair value through profit and loss 177,025 72,442
Assets at amortised cost 734 206
Total 177,760 72,648

17. Valuation of assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The basis of the valuation of each class of investment asset is set out in the following table. There
has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year. All assets are carried at and
have been valued using fair value techniques.

Page 253



Pension Fund Accounts

Description of | Valuation | Basis of valuation Observable and Key sensitivities
asset hierarchy unobservable inputs affecting the valuation
provided
Quoted 1 Bid market price on last | Not required Not required
equities day of accounting
period
Quoted 1 Market value on last Not required Not required
bonds day of accounting
period
Quoted 1 Net asset value/bid Net asset values Not required
pooled prices on last day of
investments accounting period
Cash and 1 Carrying value is Not required Not required
cash deemed to be fair value
equivalents due to short term
nature of these
instruments
Unquoted 2 Net asset value/bid Net asset values Not required
pooled prices on last day of
investments accounting period
including
pooled
property
Private equity | 3 Fair values as per Valuation of Estimation
and international private underlying techniques used in
infrastructure equity and venture investment/assets/ valuations, changes
funds capital guidelines companies/EBITDA in market conditions,
(2012) multiples industry specific
conditions
Property 2 Independent valuation | Market values of Not required
by Colliers using RICS | similar properties,
valuation standards existing lease terms
estimated rental
growth, estimated
vacancies
Quoted funds | 3 Net asset value/bid Net asset values /or if | If the fund holds
in prices on last day of the fund holds illiquid | illiquid assets,
administration accounting period assets, valuation of estimation
underlying techniques used in
investment/assets/ valuations, changes
companies/EBITDA in market conditions,
multiples industry specific
conditions
Forward 2 Market forward Wide range of deals | Not required
exchange exchange rates on the | executed in the
contracts last day of accounting | currency markets,
period exchange rate risk
Bespoke fund | 2 Net asset value of Fund | Wide range of deals | Valuation of
for equity based on valuation of executed in the bond | derivatives is
protection underlying assets with | holdings but limited affected by the equity
programme quoted prices for bond | comparable and foreign
assets holdings and market transactions for exchange market
prices for derivative specialist equity conditions

Page 2¢

- flerivatives

<

163



Pension Fund Accounts

Note: Quoted fund in administration refers to the UK equities Fund managed by Link Fund
Solutions. Bespoke fund for equity protection programme assets is managed by Insight.

Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3

Having analysed historical data and current market trends, and consulted with independent
investment advisors, the Fund has determined that the valuation methods described above, are
likely to be accurate to within the following ranges, and has set out below the consequent potential
impact on the closing value of investments held at 31 March 2024.

Assessed Value as at 31 Value on Value on

valuation March 2024 increase decrease

range (+/-) £000 £000 £000

Private equity 23.7% 387,333 479,131 295,535
Infrastructure 11.7% 376,066 420,065 332,066
Direct and pooled property  9.0% 727,195 792,642 661,747
Other level 3 investments 23.7% 2,308 2,855 1,761
Total 1,492,901 1,694,693 1,291,109
Assessed Value as at 31 Value on Value on

valuation March 2023 increase decrease

range (+/-) Restated Restated Restated

£000 £000 £000

Private equity 23.7% 341,800 422,807 260,793
Infrastructure 11.7% 273,163 305,123 241,203
Direct and pooled property  9.0% 781,889* 852,259* 711,519*
Other level 3 investments 23.7% 2,803 3,467 2,139
Total 1,399,655 1,583,656* @ 1,215,654*

Prior Period Adjustment

We would like to bring to your attention an adjustment made to the disclosure in the financial
statements for the current period, stemming from the identification of an error that has impacted
the reported amounts in note 17 for prior period as well.

The adjustment is linked to the restatement of direct property and pooled property in the above
disclosure in the financial statements, reflecting the impact of the error correction on the previously
reported figures in this disclosure for the affected prior periods.

This correction was necessary to ensure the faithful representation of the entity's financial
statements and to rectify the misstatement that has been identified.

17a. Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1

Assets and liabilities at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Investments include quoted
equities, quoted fixed interest securities, quoted index linked securities and quoted unit trusts.

Level 2

Assets and liabilities at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available or where
valuation techniques are used to determine fair value. These techniques use inputs that are based

Page 255

164



Pension Fund Accounts

significantly on observable market data. Investments include derivatives, direct property
investments, property unit trusts and investments in Link pooled funds for ACCESS.

Level 3

Assets and liabilities at level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant
effect on the instrument's valuation is not based on observable market data and are valued using
various valuation techniques that require significant judgement in determining appropriate
assumptions. They include private equity and infrastructure investments the values of which are
based on valuations provided by the general partners to the funds in which the Pension Fund has
invested. Assurances over the valuation are gained from the independent audit of the accounts.
These assets also include investments in quoted funds that were in administration as at 31 March
2024 and are invested in illiquid underlying assets.

These valuations are prepared by the fund managers in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and the requirements of the law where these companies are incorporated.
Valuations are usually undertaken periodically by the fund managers, who provide a detailed
breakdown of the valuations of underlying assets as well as a reconciliation of movements in fair
values. Cash flow adjustments are used to roll forward the valuations where the latest valuation
information is not available at the time of reporting. The following table provides an analysis of the
assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund grouped into levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which
the fair value is observable.

With
Quoted Using significant
market | observable  unobservable
price inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Values at 31 March 2024 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss
Bonds 400,903 400,903
Equities 406,065 406,065
Pooled investments 565,365 5,026,768 2,308 . 5,594 441
Pooled property investments 265,421 265,421
Private equity and infrastructure 763,399 763,399
Derivatives 375 375
Cash deposits 240,140 240,140
Other investment balances 12,139 12,139
Non- Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss
Property 461,774 461,774
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss
Derivatives -1,355 -1,355
Other investment liabilities -2,444 -2,444
Net investment assets 1,622,167 5,025,788 1,492,901 8,140,856

Page 256

165



166
With
Quoted Using significant
market . observable = unobservable
price inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Restated Restated Restated Restated
Values at 31 March 2023 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss
Bonds 356,101 356,101
Equities 363,714 363,714
Pooled investments 694,252 4,899,671 2,803 5,596,725
Pooled property investments 280,305* 280,305
Private equity and infrastructure 614,963 614,963
Derivatives 5,562 5,562
Cash deposits 128,764 128,764
Other investment balances 9,669* 9,669*
Non- Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss
Property 501,584* 501,584
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss
Derivatives -409 -409
Other investment liabilities -7,179* -7,179*
Net investment assets 1,545,320 4,904,824* 1,399,655* 7,849,798
17b. Reconciliation of fair value measurements within level 3
Private  Infrastructure . Direct and Other Total
equity £000 pooled £000 £000
£000 property
Market value 1 April 2023 341,800 273,163 781,889 2,803 1,399,655
Transfers into level 3 0
Transfers out of level 3 0
Purchases during the year 69,615 83,023 31,525 0 184,162
Sales during the year -41,292 -1,753 -54,818 -12,148 . -110,011
Unrealised gains/ losses -8,783 20,809 -30,909 0 -18,883
Realised gains/losses 25,994 824 -492 11,653 37,979
Market value 31 March 387,333 376,066 727,195 2,308 1,492,901
2024
Private . Infrastructure | Direct and Other Total
equity £000 pooled £000 £000
Market value 1 April 2022 290,018 174,936 902,220 8,220 1,375,394
Transfers into level 3 0
Transfers out of level 3 0
Purchases during the year 53,759 78,389 1,252* 0 133,400*
Sales during the year -25,371 -11,153 -6,982 -1,308 . -44,814*
Unrealised gains/ losses 8,254 29,813 -115,444* -4109 . -81,486~7
Realised gains/losses 15,140 1,178 843~ 0 17,161*
Market value 31 March 341,800 273,163 781,889 2,803 1,399,655
2023 *

Page 257



Pension Fund Accounts 167

18. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

Risk and risk management

The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the value of its assets will fall short that of its liabilities
(i.e. promised benefits payable to members). Therefore, the aim of investment risk management is
to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value and to maximise the opportunity for gains
across the whole Fund portfolio. The Fund achieves this through asset diversification to reduce
exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk) and credit risk to an
acceptable level. In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient
liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast cash flows. The Council manages these investment risks as
part of its overall pension fund risk management programme.

Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management strategy rests with the Kent Pension Fund
Committee. Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Council’s pensions operations. Policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in activity and
in market conditions.

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign
exchange rates and credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to market risk from its investment
activities, particularly through its equity holdings. The level of risk exposure depends on market
conditions, expectations of future price and yield movements and the asset mix. The objective of
the Fund’s risk management strategy is to identify, manage and control market risk exposure
within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk. In general, excessive volatility in
market risk is managed through diversification of the portfolio in terms of geographical and
industry sectors and individual securities. To mitigate market risks, the Council and its investment
advisors undertake appropriate monitoring of market conditions and benchmark analysis.

Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its
issuer or factors affecting all such instruments in the market. The Fund is exposed to security and
derivative price risks. This arises from investments held by the Fund for which the future price is
uncertain. All security investments present a risk of loss of capital. Except for shares sold short,
the maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is determined by the fair value of the
financial instruments. The possible loss from shares sold short is unlimited. The Fund'’s investment
managers mitigate this price risk through diversification and the selection of securities and other
financial instruments, and their activity is monitored by the Council to ensure it is within limits
specified in the Fund's investment strategy.

Other price risk - sensitivity analysis

Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during the financial
year, in consultation with the Fund’s investment advisors, the Council has determined that the
following movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for the 2023-24 reporting period.

Asset Type Potential Market Movements (+/-)
UK Equities 15.3

Overseas equities 15.4

Global pooled equities inc UK 154

Bonds 74

Property 9.0

Infrastructure 11.7

Private equity 23.7 Page 258




Pension Fund Accounts

The potential price changes disclosed above are based on predicted volatilities calculated by our
fund managers. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates, remain the same. Had the market price of the Fund
investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the change in the net assets available to
pay benefits would have been as follows (the prior year comparator is shown below):

Value as at Value on Value on
31 March 24 Percentage increase decrease
Asset Type £000 change % £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 240,140 0.0 240,140 240,140
Investment portfolio assets:
UK equities 38,058 15.3 43,881 32,235
Overseas equities 368,006 15.4 424,679 311,333
Global pooled equities inc UK 4,801,544 15.4 5,540,981 4,062,106
Bonds incl bond funds 1,193,801 7.4 1,282,142 1,105,460
Property pooled funds 265,421 9.0 289,309 241,533
Private equity 387,333 23.7 479,131 295,535
Infrastructure funds 376,066 11.7 420,065 332,066
Derivative assets 375 0.0 375 375
Total 7,670,743 8,720,704 6,620,783

The Fund has an equities downside protection programme to protect the Fund from falls and cap
the returns within a given range and is designed to manage the risks associated with global equity

investments and help achieve the Fund's required rate of return.

Asset Type Value as at 31 Value on Value on
March 23  Percentage increase decrease
£000 change % £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 128,764 0.0 128,764 128,764
Investment portfolio assets:
UK equities 55,534 154 64,086 46,982
Overseas equities 308,180 15.6 356,256 260,104
Global pooled equities inc UK 4,885,711 15.7 5,652,768 4,188,655
Bonds inc bond funds 1,067,114 7.6 1,148,215 986,013
Property pooled funds 280,305 9.0 305,533 255,078
Private equity 341,800 11.7 381,791 301,809
Infrastructure funds 273,163 23.7 337,903 208,423
Derivative assets 5,562 0.00 5,562 5,562
Total 7,346,133 8,380,878 6,311,390

Interest rate risk

The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments.

These investments are subject to interest rate risks, which represent the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Fund's interest rate risk is routinely monitored by the Council and its investment
advisors in accordance with the Fund's risk management strategy, including monitoring the

exposure to interest rates and assessment of actual interest rates against the relevant
benchmarks. The Fund's direct exposures to interest rate movements as at 31 March 2024 and 31
March 2023 are set out below. These disclosures present interest rate risk based on the

underlying financial assets at fair value.
Page 259

168



Pension Fund Accounts

31 March 24 31 March 23
Asset type £000s £000s
Cash and cash equivalents 240,140 127,035
Cash balances 6,421 1,729
Bonds
- Directly held securities 400,903 356,101
- Pooled funds 792,897 711,013
Total 1,440,361 1,195,878

Interest rate risk - sensitivity analysis

The Fund recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Fund and the
value of the net assets available to pay benefits. A one percent movement in interest rates is

consistent with the level of sensitivity applied as part of the Fund’s risk management strategy. The

Fund’s investment advisor has advised that long-term average rates are expected to move less
than one percent from one year to the next and experience suggests that such movements are
likely. The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates,
remain constant, and shows the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a
+/- one percent change in interest rates:

Carrying Change in year in the Change in year in the
amount as at 31 net assets available net assets available
March 24  to pay benefits +1% to pay benefits +1%
Asset type £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 240,140 0 0
Cash balances 6,421 0 0
Bonds
- Directly held securities 400,903 -15,555 15,555
- Pooled funds 792,897 -12,344 12,344
Total change in assets
available 1,440,361 -27,899 27,899
Carrying Change in year in the Change in year in the
amount as at 31 net assets available net assets available
March 23  to pay benefits +1% to pay benefits +1%
Asset type £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 127,035 0 0
Cash balances 1,729 0 0
Bonds
- Directly held securities 356,101 -13,817 13,247
- Pooled funds 711,013 -2,406 2,406
Total change in assets
available 1,195,878 -15,653 15,653

Page 260

169



Pension Fund Accounts

Changes to both the fair value of assets and the income received from investments impact on the
net assets available to pay benefits. The analysis demonstrates that a 100 bps increase in interest
rates will not affect the interest received on fixed interest assets but will reduce their fair value and
vice versa. Changes in interest rates do not impact on the value of cash/cash equivalent balances
but they will affect interest income received on those balances.

Currency risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Through their investment managers,
the Fund holds both monetary and non-monetary assets denominated in currencies other than
GBP, the functional currency of the Fund. Most of these assets are not hedged for currency risk
and the Fund is exposed to currency risk on these financial instruments. However, a significant
proportion of the investments managed by Goldman Sachs Asset Management and all
investments in the CQS Fund are hedged for currency risk through forward currency contracts.
The Fund’s currency rate risk is routinely monitored by the Council and its investment advisors in
accordance with the Fund’s risk management strategy, including monitoring the range of exposure
to current fluctuations. The following table summarises the Fund’s currency exposure excluding
the hedged investments as at 31 March 2024 and 2023:

Asset value as  Asset value as

at 31 March 24 at 31 March 23
Currency exposure - asset type £000 £000
Overseas equities 368,006 308,180
Overseas pooled funds 3,829,079 3,944,244
Overseas bonds 0 0
Overseas private equity, infrastructure and
property funds 684,669 532,741
Non GBP cash 6,758 3,116
Total overseas assets 4,888,513 4,788,281

Currency risk - sensitivity analysis

Following analysis of historical data and expected currency movement during the financial year, in
consultation with the fund's investment advisors, the Fund has determined that the following
movements in the values of financial assets denominated in foreign currency are reasonably
possible for the 2023-24 reporting period. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. A relevant strengthening/weakening of the pound against
various currencies in which the Fund holds investments would increase/decrease the net assets
available to pay benefits as follows:

Change to net Change to net
Asset value as assets available to  assets available to
Currency exposure - asset at 31 March 24 pay benefits +5.4% pay benefits -5.4%
type £000 £000 £000
Overseas equities 368,006 387,879 348,134
Overseas pooled funds 3,829,079 4,035,849 3,622,309
Overseas bonds 0 0 0
Overseas private equity,
infrastructure and property funds 684,669 721,642 647,697
Non GBP cash 6,758 7,123 6,393
Total change in assets
available 4,888,513 5,152,493 4,624,533

Page 261

170



Pension Fund Accounts 171

Change to net Change to net
Asset value as assets available to | assets available to
Currency exposure - asset at 31 March 23  pay benefits +5.4% = pay benefits -5.4%
type £000 £000 £000
Overseas equities 308,180 330,368 285,991
Overseas pooled funds 3,944,244 4,228,230 3,660,259
Overseas bonds 0 0 0
Overseas private equity,
infrastructure and property funds 532,741 571,098 494,384
Non GBP cash 3,116 3,340 2,892
Total change in assets
available 4,788,281 5,133,036 4,443,526

b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument will
fail to discharge an obligation and cause the Fund to incur a financial loss. The market values of
investments generally reflect an assessment of credit in their pricing and consequently the risk of
loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities.

In essence the Fund’s entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk, with the
exception of the derivatives positions, where the risk equates to the net market value of a positive
derivative position. However, the selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial
institutions minimises credit risk that may occur through the failure to settle a transaction in a
timely manner.

Contractual credit risk is represented by the net payment of a receipt that remains outstanding,
and the cost of replacing the derivative position in the event of a counterparty default. The residual
risk is minimal due to the various insurance policies held by the exchanges to cover defaulting
counterparties. Derivative contracts are also covered by margins which provide collateral against
risk of default by the counterparties.

Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated independently
and meet the Fund's credit criteria. The Fund has also set limits as to the maximum amount that
may be placed with any one financial institution. The Fund's cash was held with the following
institutions:

Balance as at Balance as at
31 March 24 31 March 23
Rating £000 £000

Money market funds
Northern Trust Sterling Fund AAAmM 18,372 12,295
SSGA Liquidity Fund AAAmM 0 0
Blackrock ICS AAAM 41 43,648
Blackrock USD Government Liquidity Fund AAAmM 8 3,047
Aberdeen Sterling Liquidity Fund AAAmM 5 88
Goldman Sachs Liquid Reserve Government Fund = AAAm 6,478 17,481
Aviva Investors Sterling Liquidity Fund AAAmM 7,889 6,409
Federated (PR) Short-term GBP Prime Fund AAAM 0 0
Deutsche Managed Sterling Fund AAAM 2,330 3,923
HSBC Global Liquidity Fund AAAmM 0 0
LGIM Liquidity Fund AAAmM 25,315 28,043
Insight Sterling Liquidity Fund AAAM 168,694 0
229,132 114,933

Page 262



Pension Fund Accounts

Bank deposit accounts
NatWest SIBA A+ 1,841 1,799
1,841 1,799

Bank current accounts
NatWest current account A- 50 50
NatWest current account - Euro A+ 134 891
NatWest current account - USD A+ 9 651
Northern Trust - current accounts AA- 12,802 8,214
Barclays - DTZ client monies account A+ 2,592 2,225
15,587 12,032
Total cash and cash equivalents 246,560 128,764

172

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Council therefore takes steps to ensure that the Fund has adequate cash
resources to meet its commitments. The Council has immediate access to the Fund's money
market fund and current account holdings.

Management prepares periodic cash flow forecasts to understand and manage the timing of the
Fund’s cash flows. The appropriate strategic level of cash balances to be held forms part of the
Fund investment strategy.

All financial liabilities at 31 March 2024 are due within one year.

Refinancing risk

The key risk is that the Fund will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its financial
instruments at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Fund does not have any financial
instruments that have a refinancing risk as part of its treasury management and investment
strategies.

19. Funding arrangements

In line with Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2013 (as amended),
the Fund is required to obtain an actuary's funding valuation every three years for the purpose of
setting employer contribution rates for the forthcoming triennial period. The last such valuation
took place as at 31 March 2022.

The key elements of the funding policy are:

- To ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund and ensure that sufficient funds are available to
meet all the benefits as they fall due for payment

- To ensure employer contribution rates are as stable as possible

- To minimise the long term cost of the scheme by recognising the link between assets and
liabilities and adopting an investment strategy that balances risk and return

- To reflect the different characteristics of employing bodies in determining contribution rates where
the administering authority considers it reasonable to do so

At the 2022 valuation a maximum deficit recovery period of 11 years (2019 - 14 years) is used for
all employers. Shorter recovery periods have been used where affordable. This will provide a
buffer for future adverse experience and reduce the interest cost paid by employers. For
Transferee Admission Bodies the deficit recovery period is set equal to the future working life of

current employees or the remaining contract Beriodé&hichever is the shorter.
age



Pension Fund Accounts 173

In the 2022 triennial valuation, the smoothed value of the Fund's assets at the valuation date was
£7,555m and the liabilities were £7,374m. The assets therefore, represented 102% (2019 - 98%)
of the Fund's accrued liabilities, allowing for future pay increases.

The primary contribution rate for the average employer, including payments to target full funding
has increased from 18.4% to 20.5% of pensionable salaries after the latest valuation. Secondary
rates however differ from employer to employer depending upon their funding position and agreed
deficit recovery period. The funding level for the Fund as a percentage has increased (due to good
investment returns and employer contributions) although this has been partly offset by the
changes in the financial assumptions used to calculate the liabilities.

The actuarial valuation has been undertaken on the projected unit method. At individual employer
level the projected unit funding method has been used where there is an expectation that new
employees will be admitted to the Fund. The attained age method has been used for employers
who do not allow new entrants. These methods assess the costs of benefits accruing to existing
members during the remaining working lifetime, allowing for future salary increases. The resulting
contribution rate is adjusted to allow for any differences in the value of accrued liabilities and the
market value of assets.

The 2022 actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Assets have been valued at a 6
Valuation of Assets: month smoothed market rate
Rate of return on investments (discount rate) 4.5% p.a.

Rate of general pay increases:

Long term 3.9% p.a.
Short Term n/a
Assumed pension increases 2.9% p.a.

20. Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

In addition to the triennial funding valuation, every year the Fund's actuary undertakes a valuation
of the Fund's liabilities on an IAS 19 basis, using the same base data as the funding valuation
rolled forward to the current financial year, taking account of changes in membership numbers and
updating assumptions to the current year.

Actuarial present value of promised 31 March 24 . 31 March 23
retirement benefits £m £m
Present value of promised retirement benefits -7,923.6 -7,735.4
Fair value of scheme assets at bid value 8,134.2 7,831.8
Net asset 210.6 96.4

The Fund accounts do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits in the
future. Based on the latest valuation, the fair value of net assets of the Fund represents 103% of
the actuarial valuation of the promised retirement benefits. Future liabilities will be funded from
future contributions from employers.

The liability above being calculated on an IAS 19 basis and differs from the results of the 2022
triennial funding valuation because IAS 19 stipulates a discount rate rather than a rate which
reflects a market rate.

Page 264



Pension Fund Accounts

Assumptions used: % p.a.
Salary increase rate 3.90%
Inflation/Pensions increase rate 2.90%
Discount rate 4 .90%

In December 2018 the Court of Appeal passed the McCloud judgement, which relates to age
discrimination in relation to judges and firefighters pensions. On 16 July 2020, the Government
published a consultation on the proposed remedy to be applied to LGPS benefits in response to
the McCloud and Sargeant cases and legislation is now being drafted to bring forward these
changes. Updated Regulations are to be consulted on in 2023 with the earliest effective date
expected to be October 2023. The Government has confirmed that there will be changes to all
main public sector schemes, including the LGPS, to remove this age discrimination. For the 2022
valuation, as instructed by the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC),
our actuaries have assumed that the legislation will bring forward the changes as currently
proposed, and have valued the benefits in line with this. This exercise has estimated the additional
costs to be approximately 0.7% of the Fund's liabilities and these have been included in the total
liabilities of the Fund at the 2022 valuation.

21. Current assets

31 March 24 31 March 23
£000 £000

Debtors
- Contributions due - employees 5,391 4,759
- Contributions due - employers 17,694 16,541
23,085 21,300
Sundry debtors 5,272 6,474
Total debtors 28,357 27,774
Cash 6,421 1,729
Total current assets 34,778 29,503

22. Current liabilities

31 March 24 31 March 23
£000 £000

Creditors
- Benefits payable 21,559 17,746
- Sundry creditors 11,524 11,874
Total current liabilities 33,083 29,620

23. Additional voluntary contributions

Scheme members have the option to make additional voluntary contributions to enhance their
pension benefits. In accordance with regulation 4(2)(b) of the LGPS (Management and Investment
of Funds) Regulations 2009, these AVC contributions are not included within the Pension Fund
Accounts. These contributions are paid to the AVC provider directly by the employer and are
invested separately from the Pension Fund, with either Utmost Life, Prudential Assurance
Company or Standard Life Assurance Company. These amounts are included within the
disclosure note figures below.

Page 265

174



Standard Standard
Prudential | Prudential Life Life Utmost Life Utmost Life
2023-24 2022-23  2023-24  2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Value at 1 April 10,054 10,286 1,914 2,043 277 330
Value at 31 March 12,895 10,054 1,918 1,914 282 277
Contributions paid 3,303 2,309 318 186 0 3

24. Related party transactions

The Fund is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, not disclosed
elsewhere, in a note to the financial statements. During the year each member of the Kent
Pension Fund Committee is required to declare their interests at each meeting. None of the
members of the Committee or senior officers undertook any material transactions with the Fund.

2023-24 2022-23
£000 £000

KCC is the largest single employer of members of the Fund and during 88,527 83,624
the year contributed:
A list of all contributing employers and amount of contributions received is
included in the Fund's annual report available on the pension fund
website
Charges from KCC to the Fund in respect of pension administration, 6,497 4,118
governance arrangements, investment monitoring, legal and other
services.
Year end balance due to KCC arising out of transactions between Kent -6,252 -6,934
County Council and the Fund

The year end credit balance due to KCC mainly comprises of recharges and of VAT payable to

KCC.

Key management personnel

The employees of KCC who held key positions in the financial management of the Fund during
2023-24 was the Corporate Director Finance (and the Interim Corporate Director Finance) and the
Head of Pensions and Treasury.

Total remuneration payable to key management personnel is set our below:

31 March 24 ¢ 31 March 23

£000 £000

Salary 306 303
Allowances 18 16
Other 0 0
Employer's pension contributions 56 58
Total 381 377

Page 266

175



Pension Fund Accounts
25. Contingent liabilities

"The Fund is aware of the ‘Virgin Media Ltd v NTL Pension Trustees Il Ltd (and others)’ case and
considers that there is potential for the outcome of this case to have an impact on the Kent
Pension Fund. The case affects defined benefit schemes that provided contracted-out benefits
before 6 April 2016 based on meeting the reference scheme test. Where scheme rules were
amended, potentially impacting benefits accrued from 6 April 1997 to 5 April 2016, schemes
needed the actuary to confirm that the reference scheme test was still being met by providing
written confirmation under Section 37 of the Pension Schemes Act 1993. In the Virgin Media case
the judge ruled that alterations to the scheme rules were void and ineffective because of the
absence of written actuarial confirmation required under Section 37 of the Pension Schemes Act
1993. The case was taken to The Court of Appeal in June 2024 and the original ruling was upheld.

As a result, there may be a further liability to the Kent Pension Fund for benefits that were reduced
by previous amendments, if those amendments prove invalid (i.e. were made without obtaining
s37 confirmation). The Government Actuary’s Department is currently undertaking a review to
confirm whether such changes occurred in Local Government Pension Schemes. At this point it is
not possible to estimate the potential impact, if any, on the Kent Pension Fund and thus the
obligation and liability shown in the accounts.

26. Contractual commitments
Outstanding capital commitments (investments) as at 31 March 2024 totalled £309m (31 March
2023: £387m).

These commitments relate to outstanding call payments due on unquoted limited partnership
funds held in private equity and infrastructure parts of the portfolio. The amounts 'called' by these
funds are irregular in both size and timing over the life of each fund.

The fund also had outstanding commitments for the purchase of property of £4m and for sales of
£1.4m.

27. Contingent assets

38 admitted body employers in the Fund hold insurance bonds and 12 hold guarantees with their
Employing Authority to guard against the possibility of being unable to meet their pension
obligations. These bonds and guarantees are drawn in favour of the Fund and payment will only
be triggered in the event of employer default.

Page 267

176



Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Kent County Council

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Kent County
Council

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Kent County Council (the ‘Authority’) and its
subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2024, which comprise the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet,
the Cash Flow Statement, the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the
Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash Flow
Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2023/24.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Authority as at 31
March 2024 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Authority’s expenditure and
income for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK))
and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2024) (“the Code of Audit Practice”)
approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section
of our report.

We are independent of the group and the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Corporate Director Finance’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
group and the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Authority or the group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

In our evaluation of the Corporate Director Finance’s conclusions, and in accordance with the
expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2023/24 that the Author'\g/e’laga%group’s financial statements shall be



Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Kent County Council

prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the
continuation of services provided by the group and the Authority. In doing so we had regard to the
guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector
bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2022) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to
public sector entities. We assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the
group and Authority and the group and Authority’s disclosures over the going concern period.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Corporate Director Finance’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s
and the group’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Corporate Director Finance with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Governance Statement
and theStatement of Accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon, and our auditor’s report on the pension fund financial statements, The Corporate Director
Finance is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is
a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit
Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in November 2024 on
behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to
consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the requirements of the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24,
or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are
not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and
controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Page 269

178



Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Kent County Council 179

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements,
the other information published together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

e we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to
law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at
the conclusion of the audit; or;

e we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Corporate Director Finance

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts [set out
on page 20], the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its
financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of
those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Corporate Director Finance. The Corporate
Director Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes
the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24, for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Corporate Director Finance
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporate Director Finance is responsible for assessing
the Authority’s and the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they
have been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Authority and the
group without the transfer of its services to another public sector entity.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements. Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are capable of

detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.
Page 270



Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Kent County Council

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
group and Authority and determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to specific
assertions in the financial statements are those related to the reporting frameworks (the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24,
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Local
Government Act 2003 and the Local Government Act 1972).

We enquired of management and the Governance and Audit Committee concerning the group and
Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:

e the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

¢ the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

e the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance
with laws and regulations

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Governance and Audit Committee, whether
they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they
had any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority and group’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management’s incentives and
opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk
of management override of controls. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to

e unusual journal entries made during the year and at the accounts preparation stage; and

e the appropriateness of assumptions applied by management in determining significant
accounting estimates, such as the valuation of land and buildings and the valuation of the
defined benefit pension liability.

Our audit procedures involved:

e evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent
and detect fraud,

e journal entry testing, with a focus on testing unusual journal entries made during the year
and accounts preparation for appropriateness and corroboration

e challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant
accounting estimates in respect of the valuation of land and buildings and investment
property and the valuation of the defined benefit pension liability, and

e assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our
procedures on the related financial statement item.

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to
fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities
that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the
further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members, including the potential for fraud and error in revenue and expenditure recognition and
the significant estimates related to the valuation of land and buildings and investment property and
the valuation of the defined benefit pension liability. We remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, throughout the audit.

Page 271

180



Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Kent County Council

Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the group
and Authority’s engagement team and component auditors included consideration of the
engagement team's and component auditor’s understanding of, and practical experience with
audit engagements of a similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and
participation

e knowledge of the local government sector in which the group and Authority operates
e understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority and group
including:
o the provisions of the applicable legislation
o guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE
o the applicable statutory provisions.

In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

e the Authority and group’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and
its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions,
account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may
result in risks of material misstatement.

e the Authority and group's control environment, including the policies and procedures
implemented by the Authority and group to ensure compliance with the requirements of the
financial reporting framework.

For components at which audit procedures were performed, we requested component auditors
report to us instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that gave rise to a risk of
material misstatement of the group financial statements. No such matters were identified by the
component auditors.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — the Authority’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception — the Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not
been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2024.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter except:

e On 12 December 2024, we identified that the Authority had made good progress overall
with spending control and savings plans during 2023/24. However, its spend on adult social
care and health remains stubbornly high. Special educational needs and disability is
another area where the Authority struggles to contain spend. We recommended that the
Authority should:

o explore options for increased efficiency in the adult social care and health directorate
in 2024/25 and future years. Reducing current overspends will be essential if
reserves are to remain robust in future. Where it is the case that planned savings for
adult social care and health need longer timeframes to secure than had been
expected (for example with brokerage of new prices and access to new community
rehabilitation services), new timeframes should be calculated or new options for
savings and additional income jshguld fe explored.


http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Kent County Council

o work holistically to reduce spend on the high needs block. The Authority has made
good progress in slowing the rate of growth in spend on high needs, but continued
discipline is essential to limit the call required on reserves to the agreed total of £80
million.

e On 12 December 2024, we identified that only 38% of Internal Audit recommendations were
implemented during 2023/24. We recommend that the authority should:

o ensure that remaining high priority actions from Internal Audit recommendations
should be completed and closed. Any improvements made to implementation rates
under the new operating standards should be maintained.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be
satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered,
whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the
guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2024. This guidance sets
out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these
arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

e Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can
continue to deliver its services;

e Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly
manages its risks; and

e Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about
its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these

three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and
commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there is
evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Delay in certification of
completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Kent County Council for
the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed the work
necessary in relation to consolidation returns, including Whole of Government Accounts (WGA),
and the National Audit Office has concluded their work in respect of WGA for the year ended 31
March 2024. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 85 of the Statement of

Page 273



Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Kent County Council

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments
Limited.

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

SIGNATURE HERE

Paul Dossett, Key Audit Partner
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

London

Date: 12 December 2024

Page 274

183



Glossary of Terms

Glossary of terms

Agency - The provision of services by one local authority, on behalf of and reimbursed by the
responsible local authority or central government.

Budget - A statement defining the Council's policy over a specified period and expressed in
financial or other terms.

Capital expenditure - Expenditure on the provision and improvement of permanent assets such as
land, buildings, and roads.

Capital receipts - Money obtained on the sale of a capital asset.

Derivatives - A derivative is a contract that derives its value from the performance of an underlying
entity. Common derivatives include forwards, futures, options, and swaps.

Employee expenditure - The salaries and wages of employees together with national insurance,
superannuation, and all other pay-related allowances. Training expenses and professional fees
are also included.

Fair value - The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Page 31 of the
accounts provides clarification of level 2 and 3 inputs.

Government grants - Part of the cost of local government's services is paid for by central
government from its own tax income. These grants are of two main types. Some (specific grants
and supplementary grants) are for particular services such as Highways and Transportation.
Others are in aid of local services generally.

Intangible Assets - Capital spend on items such as software licences and patents.

Local Authority Accounting Panel -The Local Authority Accounting Panel issues LAAP Bulletins to
assist practitioners with the application of the requirements of the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting, Service Reporting Code of Practice, and the Prudential Code.

Long-term debtors - Amounts due to Kent County Council where payment is to be made over a
period of time in excess of one year.

Minimum Revenue Provision - The amount that the Council is required to charge to the revenue
account each year to provide for the repayment of debt.

Net operating expenditure - This comprises all expenditure minus all income, other than the
precept and transfers from reserves.

Non-Delegated - Spend on Education Services which is not delegated to schools.

Precept - The levying of a rate by one authority which is collected by another. Kent County Council
precepts upon the district council’s collection funds for its income but some bodies, e.g. the
Environment Agency, precept upon Kent County Council.

Public Works Loans Board - A Government controlled agency that provides a source of borrowing
for public authorities.

Related party transaction - A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the
performance of services by, to, or for a related party irrespective of whether a charge is made.

Revenue expenditure - Expenditure to meet the continuing cost of services including salaries,
purchase of materials, and capital financing charges.

Page 275

184



Glossary of Terms 185

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (Refcus) - Refcus includes expenditure
that has been treated as capital expenditure but does not lead to the acquisition by the Council of
a tangible asset.

Specific grants - See 'government grants'.

Support service costs - The 'overhead' cost to Service Directorates of support services, such as
architects, accountants, and solicitors.

Unusable reserves - Those reserves that the Council is not able to utilise to provide a service.

Usable capital receipts - The proportion of the proceeds arising from the sale of fixed assets that
can be used to finance capital expenditure.

Page 276



Further information on the accounts can be obtained from the
Chief Accountant (please call 03000 41 41 41).

This publication can be made available in alternative formats
and can be explained in a range of languages. Please call
03000 41 41 41 or Text Relay 18001 03000 41 41 41.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

From: Katy Reynolds, Governance Advisor
To: Governance and Audit Committee, 12 December 2024
Subject:  Audit Findings Report for Kent Pension Fund

Status: Unrestricted

Summary: The Audit Findings Report for the Kent Pension Fund sets out the opinion
of the External Auditor on the Fund’s financial statements. The
Governance and Audit Committee has the responsibility of receiving and
reviewing this report.

1) Introduction

a) Under the International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the National Audit
Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’), the Appointed Auditor,
Grant Thornton UK LLP, are required to issue as opinion as to whether:

e The Kent Pension Fund’s financial statements give a true and fair view of
both the financial position of the Fund and the Kent Pension Fund’s
income and expenditure for the year; and

e Have been properly prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of practice on local
authority accounting and prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

b) The External Auditor is also required to report whether other information
published together with the audited financial statements is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements and/or whether information obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

2) Governance and Audit Committee’s Responsibility

a) In accordance with CIPFA’s Position Statement 2022, the Committee is
responsible for considering the opinion and recommendations of External
Audit and their implications for governance, risk management or control, and
for monitoring management action in response to the issues raised by
external audit.

b) Members are reminded that the purpose of this Committee, in accordance
with its Terms of Reference, is to provide independent and high-level focus on
the adequacy of governance, risk, finance, and control arrangements.

c) Towards this purpose, its role is to:
i. ensure there is sufficient assurance over governance risk and control and
provide reports to full Council on the effectiveness and adequacy of these
arrangements;

Page 279


https://www.kent.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0010/3142/Constitution.pdf#page=[66]

ii. have oversight of both internal and external audit together with the
financial and governance reports, helping to ensure that there are
adequate arrangements in place for both internal challenge and public
accountability, and

iii. throughiand ii above, give greater confidence to all those charged with
governance for Kent County Council that its arrangements are effective
and reporting to full Council or other Committees as necessary where the
Committee has concerns that these arrangements are not effective.

3) Recommendation

The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the External Auditor’s
Findings Report for the Kent Pension Fund for assurance.

4) Appendices
Appendix: Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings Report for Kent Pension Fund 2023/24

5) Background Documents

CIPFA’s Position Statement 2022
International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260
National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice

6) Contact Details

Katy Reynolds
Governance Advisor
katy.reynolds@kent.gov.uk
03000 422252

Page 280


mailto:katy.reynolds@kent.gov.uk

o Grant Thornton

Audit Findings (ISA260) Report
for Kent Pension Fund

T8¢ abed

Year ended 31 March 2024
December 2024




Commercial in confidence

Private and

Gra ntThorntOn Confidential

Kent Pension Fund Grant Thornton UK LLP

Sessions House 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG
County Hall

Maidstone www.grantthornton.co.uk

Kent

ME14 1XX

Dear Members of the Governance and Audit Committee,
Audit Findings for Kent Pension Fund for the 31 March 2024

This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting process and
conf_iemotion of auditor independence, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK] 260. Its contents will be discussed with management and the Governance and Audit Committee.

As mgditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial
stat@nents that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with
gov%once of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

N
The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify control weaknesses, we will
report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive
special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other
purpose.

We encourage you to read our transparency report which sets out how the firm complies with the requirements of the Audit Firm Governance Code and the steps we have taken to drive audit quality
by reference to the Audit Quality Framework. The report includes information on the firm’s processes and practices for quality control, for ensuring independence and objectivity, for partner
remuneration, our governance, our international network arrangements and our core values, amongst other things. This report is available at transparency-report-2023.pdf (grantthornton.co.uk].

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.
Parris Williams

Director
For Grant Thornton UK LLP

Chartered Accountants
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2023.pdf

€8¢ abed

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Parris Williams
Key Audit Partner
T 02077282542

E parris.williams@uk.gt.com

Jayanti Gupta
Audit Manager
T 02078652510

E jayanti.gupta@uk.gt.com

Muneeb A Khan
Audit Manager
T 02073835100

E muneeb.a.khan@uk.gt.com

Ali Hamza
Assistant Manager
T 02077283411

E ali.hamza@uk.gt.com

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section Page
1. Headlines L
2. Financial statements 5
3. Independence and ethics 17

Appendices
A.  Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance 20
B. Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements 21
C. Audit Adjustments 22
D. Fees and non-audit services 26
E. National context 29
F.  Drat Audit Opinion 30

This Audit Findings Report (AFR) presents the observations arising from the audit
that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to

oversee the financial reporting process, as required by International Standard on
Auditing (UK) 260. Its contents will be discussed with management and the

Governance and Audit Committee.

Parris Williams

Parris Williams
For Grant Thornton UK LLP
Date: 12 December 2024

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention, which
we believe need to be reported to you as part of
our audit planning process. Itis not
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters,
which may be subject to change, and in particular
we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting
all of the risks which may affect the Pension Fund
or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your benefit
and should not be quoted in whole or in part
without our prior written consent. We do not
accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned
to any third party acting, or refraining from acting
on the basis of the content of this report, as this
report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any
other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square,
London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available
from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm
of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and
the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL
and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one
another’s acts or omissions.


mailto:parris.williams@uk.gt.com
mailto:jayanti.gupta@uk.gt.com

Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of Kent Pension Fund (‘the Pension
Fund’] and the preparation of the Pension Fund’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 for the attention of
those charged with governance.

Financial Statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK)
(ISAs) and the National Audit Office (NAO)
Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are
required to report whether, in our opinion:

* the Pension Fund’s financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial
transactions of the Pension Fund during the
year ended 31 March 2024 and of the
amount and disposition at that date of the
fund’s assets and liabilities, other than
liabilities to pay promised retirement
benefits after the end of the fund year; and

* Mdve been properly prepared in
Q
gpcordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of
paictice on local authority accounting and
pared in accordance with the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our audit work was completed remotely during July-November. Our findings are summarised on pages 5 to 16.

We acknowledge that the accounts were provided timely for our review and would like to extend our gratitude to the management for their efforts
and cooperation during the audit.

Summary of findings

We have identified an adjustment to the financial statements that resulted in a £10.482m adjustment to the Pension Fund’s reported financial
position. We have also identified an unadjusted presentational misstatement for £4.735m that impacted on the prior year disclosure. Audit
adjustments are detailed in Appendix C.

We identified a significant reclassification disclosure of pooled £265.4m and direct property investments £461.7m from Level 2 to Level 3, totalling
£727.1m for the current year and £781m for the prior year. This adjustment has resulted in a Prior Period Adjustment (PPA], which management has
reflected in the updated accounts. The adjustment was made due to these investments containing significant unobservable inputs into their
valuations so they should be categorised as Level 3. For detail please refer to appendix C.

Audit disclosure amendments arising from our work and agreed with management are also detailed in Appendix C.
We have also raised recommendations for management as a result of our audit work. These are set out in Appendix B

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would require modification of our audit opinion [Appendix
F] or material changes to the financial statements, subject to the following outstanding matters;

* Receipt of responses to queries in relation to note 15e. Single investments exceeding 5% of net assets available for benefits.
* Receipt of responses to ITGC queries in relation to Altair system.

* Receipt of responses to queries in relation to the key management personnel note.

* Responding to IAS 19 request letters.

* Final review of completed work by senior audit team members.

* Receipt and review of management representation letter.

* Final review of the Pension Fund Annual Report.

Our anticipated opinion on the financial statements will be unmodified.

Whilst our work on the Pension Fund financial statements is substantially complete, we will be unable to issue our final audit opinion on the
Pension Fund financial statements until the audit of the Kent County Council is complete.

We have also concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements is consistent with our knowledge of your
organization and the financial statements we have audited.

We are required to give a separate opinion for the Pension Fund Annual Report on whether the financial statements included therein are
consistent with the audited financial statements. We propose to issue our ‘consistency’ opinion on the Pension Funds Annual Report along with
the audit opinion on the financial statements.




2. Financial Statements

Overview of the scope of our audit Audit approach

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising
from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of
those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on
Auditing (UK]) 260 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the
Code’). Its contents will be discussed with management and
the Governance and Audit Committee.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
End the Code, which is directed towards forming and
xpressing an opinion on the financial statements that have
een prepared by management with the oversight of those
odharged with governance. The audit of the financial
Wtatements does not relieve management or those charged
with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

For Kent Pension Fund, the Governance and Audit
Committee fulfil the role of those charged with governance.
We note that there is a separate Pension Committee which
considers the draft financial statements and is part of the
overall member oversight process.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the Pension Fund’s business and is risk
based, and in particular included:

An evaluation of the Pension Fund’s internal controls
environment, including its IT systems and controls; and

Substantive testing on significant transactions and
material account balances, including the procedures
outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks.

Commercial in confidence

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial
statements and subject to outstanding queries being
resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Governance and Audit Committee meeting on
12t December 2024 and the finalisation of the administering
authority audit.

Outstanding items are set out on the page 4.



2. Financial Statements

98¢ abed

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is
fundamental to the preparation of the
financial statements and the audit
process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and adherence
to acceptable accounting practice and
applicable law.

We have revised the performance
materiality at year end based on the
updated Gross Assets Figures as at 31
March 2024.

We set out in this table our
determination of materiality for the
Pension Fund.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Pension Fund
Amount (final)

Pension Fund
Amount

(planning)

Commercial in confidence

Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial
statements

£122,600,000

£118,300,000

This benchmark is determined as a percentage of the Gross assets
which has been set at approximately 1.5%. Our materiality has
increased from planning (which was based on audited asset values
at 31 March 2023) as a result of our risk assessment not changing
and the increase of asset valuations at 31 March 2024

Performance materiality £91,950,000 £88,750,000 Performance Materiality is based on a percentage (75%) of the
overall materiality.

Trivial matters £6,100,000 £5,900,000 Triviality is based on a percentage [5%) of the overall materiality.

Specific materiality for fund £35,350,000 £31,850,000 This benchmark is determined as a percentage of the fund

account expenditure which has been determined as 10%. Our materiality
has increased from planning (based upon audited expenditure at 31
March 2023) as a result of our risk assessment not changing and
the increase in the reported fund account expenditure (mainly as o
result of the 10.1% pensions increase) at 31 March 2024.

Specific performance £26,500,000 £23,900,000 Performance Materiality is based on a percentage (75%) of the

materiality for fund account

overall materiality of the fund account.




Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the
potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

ISA240 fraudulent revenue recognition
- Rebutted

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk
that revenue may be misstated due to the improper
recognition of revenue.

Practice Note 10: Audit of Financial Statements of Public
TBector Bodies in the United Kingdom (PN10) states that
Dthe risk of material misstatement due to fraud related to
(Mexpenditure may be greater than the risk of material
Nmisstatements due to fraud related to revenue
~Jecognition for public sector bodies.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to
revenue recognition. Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA 240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the Fund, we
have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

= there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition;
" opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited; and

* the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including the Pension Fund, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as
unacceptable.

We have additionally assessed the risk as per Practice Note 10 around the risk of material misstatement due to fraud related to
expenditure. Based on our assessment, we did not consider this to be a significant risk for the Pension fund when producing our
audit plan.

We have reconsidered our original assessment as a part of our audit work on the Pension Fund’s financial statements and are
satisfied that this judgement continues to remain appropriate. We have performed testing on expenditure and no matters have
arisen that requires us to reassess our initial judgement in relation to fraud within expenditure.

Management over-ride of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed
risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is
present in all entities.

We therefore identified management override of control,
in particular journals, management estimates and
transactions outside the course of business as a
significant risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

In response to this risk, we have:
* evaluated the design and implementation of management controls over journals;
* analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals;

* identified and tested unusual journals made during the year and the accounts production stage for appropriateness and
corroboration;

* gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgments applied by management and considered their
reasonableness; and

* evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.
We have not identified changes to the accounting policies or the estimation process for 2023/24

Our audit work performed identified a control deficiency in relation to authorisation of journals which has been detailed in
appendix B of this document.

Other than the above finding, our audit work has not identified any material issues in relation to management override of control.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of Level 3 investments
(£1,492.9m as at 31 March 2024)

The Pension Fund values its investments on an annual basis to ensure
that the carrying value is not materially different from the fair value at
the financial statements date.

By their nature level 3 investment valuation lack observable inputs.

These valuation therefore represents a significant estimates by
—Unanagement in the financial statement due to the size of the numbers
8invo|ved and the sensitivity of this estimates to changes in key
(Dassumptions.

N

%Jnder ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant non-routine
transactions and judgemental matters. Level 3 investments by their
very nature require a significant degree of judgement to reach an
appropriate valuation at year end.

Management utilise the services of investment managers and/or
custodians as valuation experts to estimate the fair value as at 31
March 2024.

In response to this risk, we have:

evaluated management’s processes and design & implementation of relevant controls for valuing Level 3
investments;

reviewed the nature and basis of estimated values and considered what assurance management has over the
year-end valuations provided for these types of investments; to ensure that the requirements of the Code are met;

independently requested year-end confirmations from investment managers and the custodian for all investments
held;

for a sample of investments, tested the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the audited accounts, (where
available) at the latest date for individual investments and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that
date. Reconciled those values to the values at 31 March 2024 with reference to known movements in the
intervening period;

in the absence of available audited accounts, evaluated the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the
valuation expert;

reviewed investment manager service auditor report on the design and operating effectiveness of internal
controls; and

where appropriate, written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out to ensure that
the requirements of the Code are met.

Findings:

From the audit work completed to date, there is one adjustment of £10.482m, refer to Appendix C for details.

Moreover, our audit work performed on level 2 investments, identified a classification error in relation to Fair value
hierarchy where directly held properties and pooled property investments were classified as level 2 when these
should have been classified as level 3. This error also led to a prior period adjustment in the disclosure to the
accounts. For detail of error please refer to pages 10-11 and appendix C of this document.

Conclusion:

Other than the error mentioned above, our audit work has not identified any other material issues in relation to the
Closing Valuation of Level 3 investments.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of Directly Held Property
(E461.7m as at 31 March 2024)

The pension fund has directly held property within its Level 2 investment
portfolio. A full valuation is carried out by management’s expert on an
annual basis as at 31 December, and monthly indexation is applied to
ensure that the fair value of these properties are materially accurate
between the valuation date and the financial reporting date.

ﬁe valuation represents a significant estimate by management in the
ancial statements, due to the size of the asset values involved and
ggnsitivity to changes in assumptions applied.

(o0}
©

In response to this risk, we have:

* evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to
the valuation experts and the scope of their work;
independently requested year-end confirmations from investment managers and the custodian;
evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;
written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuations were carried out;
engaged our own valuer to assess the instructions to the Fund’s valuer, the Fund’s valuer’s report and the
assumptions that underpin the valuation;

* challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding; and
tested, on a sample basis, revaluations made during the year to ensure they have been recorded accurately
within Kent Pension Fund’s financial records.

Findings:
From the audit work completed to date, there is an adjustment identified related to the reclassification of directly

held property from Level 2 to Level 3. We note the adjustment of £461.7m in the current year and £501.6m in the prior
year, refer to Appendix C for details.

Conclusion:

Other than the Fair value hierarchy related classification error mentioned above, our audit work has not identified
any other material issues in relation to the Closing Valuation of Directly Held Property.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Significant judgement or

estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Level 3 Investments - The Pension Fund has investments in the following: The valuation of the Level 3 Investments is o
£1,492.9m - Private Equity/Infrastructure funds that in total are valued on the Net ~ "€@sonable. (Green)
Assets Statement as at 31 March 2024 at £763.4m; We consider management’s process is
- Pooled Investments in total are valued on the Net Assets statement s~ @PPropriate and key assumptions are neither
at 31 March 2024 at £2.3m optimistic or cautious, as we have considered all
. evidence obtained during the audit, including both
* Pooled property investments that are valued on the Net Assets corroborative and contradictory audit evidence,
statement as at 31 March 2024 at £265.4m when evaluating the appropriateness of these
The Fund revalues its investments on a quarterly basis to ensure that the  accounting estimates.
carrying value is not materially different from the fair value at the
financial statement date.
These investments are not traded on an open exchange/market and the
g valuation of the investment is highly subjective due to a lack of
Q observable inputs. In order to determine the value, management rely on
g the valuation provided by the Fund Manager, which is usually based on
8 an audited value of the fund as at 31 December 2023, with the valuation
rolled forward to 31 March 2024.
Level 3 Investments - The Pension Fund has investments in Property Holdings that in total are  The valuation of the Level 3 Investments (Directly ®
valued on the Net Asset Statement as at 31 March 2024. held Property) is reasonable. (Green)

( Directly Held Property)
£ué61.7m

The Fund obtained independent Valuation by Colliers on an annual basis.
A full valuation is carried out by management’s expert on an annual basis
as at 31 December, and monthly indexation is applied to ensure that the
fair value of these properties is accurately determined .

The valuation for property is based on unobservable inputs that are not
corroborated by market data and, therefore, require a higher degree of
judgment and estimation. These unobservable inputs include projected
rental cash flows, yields etc.

It is considered to be significant estimate due to the size of the asset
values involved and sensitivity to changes in assumptions applied.

We consider management’s process is
appropriate and key assumptions are neither
optimistic or cautious, as we have validated the
sources of information used by management,
management’s point estimate and disclosures
relating to this accounting estimate.

However, we have identified a reclassification
adjustment from Level 2 to Level 3, We note the
adjustment of £461.7m in the current year and
£601.5m in the prior year, refer to Appendix C for
details.

Assessment

@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Significant judgement or

estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Level 2 Investments- The Pension Fund has investments in Bonds and Pooled The valuation of the Level 2 Investments(excluding directly ®
(excluding directly held  Investment Vehicles that in total are valued on the Net Asset held property) is reasonable. (Green)

property)
£5,025m

While level 2 investments
do not carry the same
level of inherent risks
associated with level 3
investments, there is still

Uan element of judgement

Q@ involved in their valuation
as their very nature is such

©that they cannot be
valued directly.

Statement as at 31 March 2024%.

Whilst these investments themselves are not actively traded
on an open market, the underlying investments are and the
valuations of these investments are based on the value of
these underlying investments at 31 March 2024, or the closest
trade date to year-end.

We consider management’s process is appropriate and key
assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious, as we have
validated the sources of information used by management,
management’s point estimate and disclosures relating to this
accounting estimate.

However , we have identified a reclassification adjustment
from Level 2 to Level 3, We note the adjustment of £265.4m in
the current year and £280.3 m in the prior year, refer to
Appendix C for details.

Assessment

@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Information

Technology

This section provides an overview of results from our assessment of Information Technology (IT) environment and controls which included identifying risks from the use of IT related to business
process controls relevant to the financial audit. This includes an overall IT General Control (ITGC) rating per IT system and details of the ratings assigned to individual control areas. For
further detail of the IT audit scope and findings please see separate ‘IT Audit Findings’ report.

ITGC control area rating

Technology Additional procedures
Level of acquisition, Technology carried out to address
assessment Overall ITGC Security development and infrastructur Related significant risks arising from our
IT application performed rating management maintenance e risks/other risks findings
- [Detailed ITGC
SBracle E- assessment N/A. No significant
@usiness Suite (design N/A deficiencies were
N effectiveness identified.
S only)]
Ds;:!j:ﬁlftc Contributions and
Altai . benefits payable utilise
air (design TBC TBC TBC TBC the Altair software within TBC
effectiveness their brocess
only) P
Assessment

® Significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements
Non-significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements/significant deficiencies identified but with sufficient mitigation of relevant risk
IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements judged to be effective at the level of testing in scope
® Notin scope for testing

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

We set out below details of

other matters which we, as

auditors, are required by

auditing standards and the

Code to communicate to

those charged with
é}govemonce.

€6¢Z 9

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation
to fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Governance and Audit Committee. We have not been
made aware of any incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit
procedures.

Matters in relation
to related parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

Matters in relation
to laws and
regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
and we have not identified any incidences from our audit work.

Written
representations

A letter of representation will be requested from the Pension Fund .This will be signed alongside the final draft of
the financial statements in conclusion of the audit.

Audit evidence and
explanations

All information and explanations requested from management was provided.




Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Issue

Commentary

Confirmation
requests from
third parties

We requested from management permission to send (a) confirmation request(s) to your custodian, fund
managers, and banks. This permission was granted, and the requests were sent. These requests were returned with
positive confirmations.

Accounting
practices

We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Pension Fund's accounting policies, accounting estimates, and
financial statement disclosures.

We identified small number of disclosure issues none of which are considered significant, and these are reported
to you in appendix B. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect.




Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

G6¢ abed

Issue

Commentary

Going concern

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are required to “obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about the appropriateness of
management's use of the going
concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the
financial statements and to conclude
whetherthere is a material
uncertainty about the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern” (IS4

(UK) 570).

In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice - Practice
Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The Financial
Reporting Council recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing standards are
applied to an entity in a manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of financial statements in
that sector. Practice Note 10 provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector entities:

* the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and
resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for
accounting will apply where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a
material uncertainty related to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and standardised
approach for the consideration of going concern will often be appropriate for public sector entities

* for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is more
likely to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern basis of
accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the auditor applies the
continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting framework adopted by the
Pension Fund meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service approach. In doing so, we
have considered and evaluated:

* the nature of the Pension Fund and the environment in which it operates

* the Pension Fund's financial reporting framework

* the Pension Fund's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern

* management’s going concern assessment.

On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
* a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements:
other responsibilities under the Code

Issue Commentary

Other information The Pension Fund is administered by Kent County Council (the “Council’]), and the Pension Fund’s accounts form
part of the Council’s financial statements. We are required to read any other information published alongside the
Council’s financial statements to check that it is consistent with the Pension Fund financial statements on which
we give an opinion and is consistent with our knowledge of the Authority. No inconsistencies have been identified.
We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect.

Matters on which We are required to give a separate consistency opinion for the Pension Fund Annual Report on whether the
;DUNe report by financial statements included therein are consistent with the audited financial statements. We plan on completing
Qexception our work on the Pension Fund Annual Report once the 2023/2!4 financial statements have been finalised.
®
N We are required to report if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties as outlined in the Code. We
8 have nothing to report on these matters.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 16



Commercial in confidence

3. Independence considerations

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant
matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm or
covered persons (including its partners, senior managers, managers and network firms).

In this context, we confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our
independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention and
consider that an objective reasonable and informed third party would take the same view.

162 abed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the
financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor
Guidance Note O1issued in 7 September 2022 which sets out supplementary guidance on
ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix D.

Transparency

Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of the
action we have taken over the past year to improve audit quality as well as the results of
internal and external quality inspections. For more details see Grant Thornton International
Transparency report 2023.



https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf

Commercial in confidence

3. Independence and ethics

As part of our assessment of our independence we note the following matters:

Matter Conclusion

Relationships with Grant Thornton We are not aware of any relationships between Grant Thornton and the Pension Fund that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our integrity, independence and objectivity.

Relationships and Investments held by individuals We have not identified any potential issues in respect of personal relationships with the Pension Fund held by individuals.
Employment of Grant Thornton staff We are not aware of any former Grant Thornton partners or staff being employed, or holding discussions in respect of
R employment, by the Pension Fund as a director or in a senior management role covering financial, accounting or control related
D areas.
«Q
gBusiness relationships We have not identified any business relationships between Grant Thornton and the Pension Fund.
(]
Q
Contingent fees in relation to non-audit services No contingent fee arrangements are in place for non-audit services provided.
Gifts and hospitality We have not identified any gifts or hospitality provided to, or received from, a member of the Pension Fund’s board, senior

management or staff.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention and consider that an objective
reasonable and informed third party would take the same view. The firm and each covered person [and network firms] have complied with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard
and confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Appendices

Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance

Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Audit Adjustments

Fees and non-audit services

National context

n Y o0 » >

Audit opinion

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Appendices

A.Communication of audit matters to those
charged with governance

Audit Audit

A ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK), prescribe matters which we are required
Plan Findings

Our communication plan

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged

. o
with governance

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing
and expected general content of communications including °
significant risks

_UConﬁrmqtion of independence and objectivity °

8A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

(Mregarding independence. Relationships and other matters which
Wmight be thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work
erformed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and network firms, together with
fees charged. Details of safeguards applied to threats to
independence

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written
representations that have been sought

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or
which results in material misstatement of the financial statements

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

to communicate with those charged with governance, and which we set out in
the table here.

This document, the Audit Findings, outlines those key issues, findings and other
matters arising from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in
writing rather than orally, together with an explanation as to how these have
been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with
ISAs (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on
the financial statements that have been prepared by management with
the oversight of those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or
those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

Distribution of this Audit Findings report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals
charged with governance, we are also required to distribute our findings to those
members of senior management with significant operational and strategic
responsibilities. We are grateful for your specific consideration and onward
distribution of our report to all those charged with governance.

20



Commercial in confidence

B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

We have identified 2 recommendations for the Pension Fund as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with
management and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2024/25 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies
that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing

standards.
Assessment  Issue and risk Recommendations
Lack of review of Journals Management should prioritize implementing effective segregation of duties in the journal
In our review of management override of control we note that journals can posting process. This may involve assigning distinct responsibilities for initiating,
be posted and approved by the same person authorizing, recording, and reviewing journal entries to different individuals or teams.
. Additionally, regular monitoring, internal audits, and management oversight are essential to
Risks ensure compliance
Without proper segregation of duties, the same individual may be Management response
responsible for both initiating and posting journal entries. This increases the . . o
risk of errors, omissions, or irregularities going undetected, as there is no Journals are included in the master reconciliation performed half yearly and annually
T independent’ review of t’he transactions ’ which is signed off by Investments, Accounting and Pooling Manager.
jab)
«Q
D
w Outside of General ledger adjustments When some journals are recorded in a spreadsheet and not in the general ledger system, it
8 We identified from our investment testing work that the investment assets can present a risk to the accuracy and completeness of financial reporting. We therefore
are recorded on book cost in the general ledger and Market values of the recommend formalizing the process for recording journals by ensuring that all financial
investment assets are reconciled and recorded through an outside ledger transactions are captured directly in the general ledger system. This helps to maintain a
reconciliation excel sheet. We would expect all the transactions to be routed complete and accurate record of all financial activities.
through general ledger. Management response
Risks TBC
There is an increased risk for human errors and misstatement where
investments change in MV are recorded on manual spreadsheet.
Controls

@ High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements

Low - Best practice

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

21



Commercial in confidence

C. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all nontrivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net assets for the year ending 31 March 2024.

Pension Fund Account Net Asset Statement
Detail £°000 £°000 Impacton total net assets £°000
Change in market value of Level 3 at year-end Cr Profit and loss on disposal of investments Dr Investment assets 10,482 10,482

After production of the draft financial statements, management
were provided with updated valuation information from
investment managers. The net difference was £10,482,000 in
relation to Level 3 investments. Management then updated their
financial statements for this timing difference.

Level 3 Investments were understated by £10,482,000 in the
original version of the accounts provided which means that the
nésgets value in the financial statement was lower. This has
na@® been adjusted in the accounts.

Wegnote that this has also resulted in the disclosure amendments
to%ote 16, 17a & 17b and 18 which relate to your financial
instruments notes.

and changes in the market value of
investments (10,482)

Overall Impact

Cr(10,482) Dr 10,482 10,482

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

22



Commercial in confidence

C. Audit Adjustments (continued)

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Disclosure/issue/Omission Auditor recommendations Adjusted?

Net Assets Statement - Reclassification of Provision for Doubtful Debt Management response Yes

Other investments balances on the financial instrument is exclusive of Provision for doubtful debts amounting  Agreed to be amended
to £5,811k. Please note that the provision for doubtful debt need not to be shown separately as financial

liabilities but rather should be netted off against the Investments income due (debtor) and therefore reporting

the net balance as a financial asset. This has been updated in the accounts.

Basis of preparation - Note 2 Management response Yes

We suggested the Fund should consider making a disclosure in respect of IFRS 16 in Note 2 (Basis of Agreed to be amended
Preparation) - even if it is just to confirm that it does not apply as the PF does not hold any assets as lessee.

Client has agreed and included the following disclosure in note 2 : "Adoption of IFRS 16 which is set to come
to effect from April 2024, is not expected to have a material impact on the pension fund accounts"

=v)
Sglmcrg of significant accounting policies - Note 3 Management response Yes

DR to the Prior period adjustment being made as discussed on earlier pages of this document, accounting Agreed to be amended
pc@:g in this regard has also been added to the financial statements.

oo

Note 3c - Investment Income and Note 14 -Property income and expenditure Management response Yes

Note 3¢ indicated that rental income is adjusted for provision of rent invoiced but collection of which is Agreed to be amended
assessed as doubtful. As per the CIFPA code, the rental income can’t be shown as net of doubtful debt. This
has been updated to show it as a separate line in Note 14+ and update the wording in Note 3¢ as well.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policy- Note 4 Management response Yes

Note 4 of the accounts did not explain the critical judgement applied. The paragraph states the accounting Agreed to be amended
policy for the directly owned properties which are leased out but did not explain why these are determined to

be operating leased assets or why that assessment is regarded as a critical judgement. Management has

agreed to amend the Note 4 by including the details on why these are considered to be operating leases and

why this is regarded as critical judgement.

Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty - Note 5 Management response Yes

As per IAS 8, in case of a prior period error (discussed on next tab), the nature of it must be conspicuously Agreed to be amended
disclosed which is also required by IAS 1, especially considering it is for £782m in total. Considering this, the

note has been updated by adding more reference to this issue of investments being now classified as level 3

with a brief explanation for this change, for better understandability of the readers of the financial statements.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 23



C. Audit Adjustments (continued)

Disclosure/issue/Omission

Auditor recommendations

Adjusted?

Commercial in confidence

Valuation of assets and liabilities carried at fair value - Note 17

Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3 has been updated to include Direct and pooled property analysis for
both current year and prior year owing to the adjustment in FV Hierarchy which has been discussed in next
point in relation to update in note 17a.

Moreover, as this change led to a prior period adjustment, the reason for this change has been detailed
under heading “Prior Period Adjustment” in this note as well.

Management response

Agreed to be amended

Yes

Fair Value Hierarchy - Note 17a
Reclassification of Level 2 Investments

While performing our work on Investments, we noted that the Pooled property investments of £265.4m (CY),
£280.3m (PY), and Property Investments of £461.7m (CY), £501.5m (PY) have been classified as Level 2. Due
to significant unobservable inputs being used to measure the fair value of assets, we noted that this should
be classified as Level 3. This has resulted in additional disclosure related to Prior Period Adjustment (PPA)
WhiUch has been added to note 17 of the accounts.

Management response

Agreed to be amended

Yes

—
R‘Q%onciliotion of fair value measurements within level 3 - Note 17b

TH&comparative of the "Reconciliation of fair value measurements within level 3" was missing. Client has
upkiated it now.

Management response

Agreed to be amended

Yes

Financial Instruments - Note 16, 17 and 18

Changes were made to Financial Instrument Notes 16, 17 and 18 due to classification change of Directly held
properties and Pooled Property Investment from Investments Level 2 to Level 3 in FV Hierarchy.. Moreover, this
change was also owing to adjustment no.1 of £10.482m explained earlier in audit adjustments tab.

Management response

Agreed to be amended

Yes

Additional voluntary contributions - Note 23

The additional voluntary contribution for Prudential's had the figures not being disclosed in the accounts. The
figures were updated later on the receipt of relevant records from Prudential after which the accounts were
updated for it.

Management response

Agreed to be amended

Yes

Contingent Liability - Note 25

Contingent liability note 25, has been updated to reflect new information which we are now aware of in
relation to the update to the Virgin Media case.

Management response

Agreed to be amended

Yes

Various minor costing/olisclosure amendments

The accounts were also updated for minor presentation issues. None were material.

Management response

Agreed to be amended

Yes

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

24



C. Audit Adjustments (continued)

Impact of unadjusted misstatements

Commercial in confidence

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the 2023/24 audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements. The Kent Pension Fund, Governance
and Audit Committee Committee is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below.

Pension Fund Account
Detail £000

Net Asset Statement £° 000

Impact on total net assets
£°000

Reason for
not adjusting

Reclassification of Provision for Doubtful Dr Investment assets 4,735
Debt

When the Pension Fund updated the accounts
for adjustment number 2 mentioned on page 23,
“They made the change with respect to the
@provision for doubtful debt balance in the
Pcomparative year as well for £14,735k by
eclassifying it from Investment liabilities to
Ulnvestment assets.

Cr Investment Liabilities 4,735

Under IAS 8, prior period adjustments are only
required where the error in the prior period was
material. At £4,735k, the error in the prior period
was both not-material but also trivial. We are
therefore reporting this adjustment to you as an
unadjusted misstatement as it ought not be
processed under IAS 8.

We understand however that management has
made the change to ensure the accounts are
comparable under IAS 1.

Nil

Nil

Not material

Overall impact Nil

Nil

Nil

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

25



Commercial in confidence

D. Fees and non-audit services

We confirm below our final proposed fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Fee proposed in Proposed final fees
Audit Plan 2023/204
Kent Pension Fund Audit (Scale fee) £105,099 £105,099
IAS 19 letters™ £0 £0
ISA 315** £7,530 £7,530
&
Q
@
é“fotol audit fees (excluding VAT) £112,629 £112,629

*Note that fees for IAS 19 letters for employer body auditors were classed as non-audit fees prior to 2022/23. The National Audit Office have confirmed that the provision of IAS 19 assurances
to auditors of local government and NHS bodies should be considered work undertaken under the Code of Audit Practice for 2022/23 onwards. Provision of I1AS 19 assurances to auditors of
any other type of entity remains non-Code work. Overleaf it sets out our proposed non-audit fee of £3,500 in respect of our planned assurances to the NAO for Ebbsfleet Development
Corporation.

**|SA 315 is not included within the published 2023/24 scale fees. The £7,530 is therefore a fee variation that is subject to PSAA approval
Please note that IAS 19 letter fee for 2022/23 is also pending PSAA approval, which will be billed to the pension fund once approved.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 26



D. Fees and non-audit services

Audit and non-audit services

Commercial in confidence

For the purposes of our audit, we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Pension Fund. The following non-audit services were identified

Non-audit fees for other services Proposed fee Proposed final Threats Safeguards
per the audit fee
plan
Audit Related Services
IAS 19 Assurances to the NAO in respect of £1,100 £3,500 Self-Interest [becouse this The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a

the admitted body Ebbsfleet Development
Corporation.

10¢g abed

is a recurring fee)

Self-review (because GT
provides audit services)

Management

significant threat to independence as the fee for this work in comparison to
the total fee for the audit of £112,629 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall.

Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.
The reason for the fee increase from proposed is because IAS 19
assurances to non LG and NHS bodies are outside of the Code of Practice.
As non-audit fees, there is additional ethical procedures we must perform
ahead of completing this work.

We have not prepared the financial information on which our assurances
will be used by the requesting auditor to form an opinion on as part of their
opinion on the financial statements of the admitted body.

Any decisions relating to changing controls over financial information or
edits required to financial information arising from our findings will be a
decision made by informed management.

The scope of the work does not include making decisions on behalf of
management or recommending or suggesting a particular course of action
for management to follow.

We may make recommendations to the Pension Fund in respect of control
weaknesses, in the same way as we would in an audit of financial
statements. The Pension Fund has officers in place who understand

the operation of systems and can challenge our recommendations as
appropriate. They have sufficient authority or report to the s151 Officer
who can make informed decisions in respect of our findings.

Total non-audit fees (excluding VAT) £1,100

£3,500

None of the above services were provided on a contingent fee basis.

This covers all services provided by us and our network to the group/company, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known connected
parties that may reasonably be thought to bear on our integrity, objectivity or independence. (The FRC Ethical Standard)

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

27



Commercial in confidence

D. Fees and non-audit services

The fees reconcile to the financial statements as follows:

Amount Amount
Audit fees per Note 11 £96,000
Reconciling item i - Redmond review grant received by KCC £12,646*
Reconciling item ii - update the IAS 19 assurance letter fee per table above (£3,500)**
Reconciling item iii - ISA315 fee variation subject to PSAA approval £7,5630
Reconciling item iv - rounding difference (£47)
Reconciled Total fee per the accounts (excluding VAT) £112,629
Audit fee per the Audit Findings Report £112,629

80¢ 9ped

* The audit fee in the accounts is a net figure, after having been adjusted for the Redmond review grant received by the pension fund for support with local audit financial reporting.

** Please note the non-audit fee of £3.5k as per page 24 of this document, has been shown in the accounts as part of audit fees therefore, to reconcile audit fee in the accounts to the audit fee
per page 23 of this document, the non-audit fee is appearing as a negative in the table above as ideally the audit and non-audit fee should have been shown separately in the accounts,
however considering the amount involved being not material, no audit adjustment has been recommended.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 28



Commercial in confidence

E. National context

National context - audit backlog

Consultation

The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), working with the FRC, as incoming shadow system leader, and other system partners, has put forward proposals to
address the delay in local audit. The proposals consist of three phases:

Phase 1: Reset involving clearing the backlog of historic audit opinions up to and including financial year 2022/23 by 30 September 2024.

Phase 2: Recovery from Phase 1in a way that does not cause a recurrence of the backlog by using backstop dates to allow assurance to be rebuilt over multiple audit cycles.

Phase 3: Reform involving addressing systemic challenges in the local audit system and embedding timely financial reporting and audit.

The consultation ran until 7 March 2024. Full details of the consultation can be seen on the following pages:

° Consultations on measures to address local audit delays (fre.org.uk)
° Addressing the local audit backlog in England: Consultation - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk]
o Code of Audit Practice Consultation - National Audit Office (NAQ)

Our response to the consultation
Grant Thornton responded to the consultation on 5 March 2024. In summary, we recognise the need for change, and support the proposals for the introduction of a backstop date of 30
;Jcseptember 2024. The proposals are necessarily complex and involved. We believe that all stakeholders would benefit from guidance from system leaders in respect of:
L%. the appropriate form of reporting for a backstopped opinion
(65 the level of audit work required to support a disclaimer of opinion
© how to rebuild assurance in terms of opening balances when previous years have been disclaimed.

We believe that both auditor and local authority efforts will be best served by focusing on rebuilding assurance from 2023/24 onwards. This means looking forwards as far as possible, and not
spending 2023/2% undertaking audit work which was not carried out in previous years. We look for guidance from systems leaders to this effect. The timing of the general election has delayed
the implementation of these proposals. Once we have a further understanding of the new government’s intentions, and its priorities across the sector we will discuss this with you.

Impact on Pension Funds

Pension fund accounts fall within the scope of the outlined backstop legislation. Where an Administering Authority accounts may be required to be backstopped this would not automatically
apply to the Pension Fund accounts. We expect to be able to issue a separate opinion on the Fund accounts where the Pension Fund audit can be completed.

Update
Following the general election the Minister of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government has proposed backstop legislation which will revise the date of the first backstop for
financial years up to and including 2022-23 to December 13 2024.

National context — Triennial Valuation

Triennial valuations for local government pension funds have been published. These valuations, which are as at 31 March 2022, provide updated information regarding the funding position of
the Pension Fund and set employer contribution rates for the period 2023/24 - 2025/26. For the Pension Fund, the valuation was undertaken by Barnett Waddingham LLP, and showed that the
Pension Fund’s funding position had improved to 98% (from 90% as at 31 March 2019).The results of the latest triennial valuation are reflected in note 17 to the financial statements. These
valuations also provide updated information for the calculation of the net pension liability on employer balance sheets.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 29


https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/UwlbC731YuB83Zpt8lYDl?domain=frc.org.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/nMtfC821WSy2nYvI1Ub1i?domain=gov.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/S8TUC9r1Giwlo23s3V7oM?domain=nao.org.uk

F. Draft Audit Opinion

Our Draft audit opinion is included below.

We anticipate we will provide the Pension Fund with an unmodified audit report

Independent auditor's report to the members of Kent County Council on
the pension fund financial statements of Kent Pension Fund

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Kent Pension (the ‘Pension Fund’) administered by Kent
County Council {the ‘Authority’) for the year endad 31 March 2024, which comprise the Fund Account,
the Met Assets Statement and notes to the pension fund financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in their
ggeparaﬁnn is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
(‘ge United Kingdom 2023/24.

@our opinion, the financial statements:

=
© give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Pension Fund during the year ended 31
IMarch 2024 and of the amount and disposition at that date of the fund's assets and [igbilities,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requiremeants of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LK) (15As (UK)) and
applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2024) (the Code of Audit Practice") approved
by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Pension Fund's financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Acting Corporate Director Finance's
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
materal uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Pension
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
requirad to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor's opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Pension Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Acting Corporate Director Finance’s conclusions, and in accordance with the
expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2023/24 that the Pension Fund’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going
concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services provided by
the Pension Fund. In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Mote 10 Audit of
financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom {Revised 2022) on the
application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the reasonableness
of the basis of preparation used by the Authority in the Pension Fund financial statements and the
disclosures in the Pension Fund financial statements over the going concern period.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Acting Corporate Director Finance's
use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the Pension Fund financial
statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material unceriainties relating fo
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Pension Fund's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Owr responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Acting Corporate Director Finance with respect to
going concemn are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the
Pension Fund's financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, and our auditor's report on the
Authority’s and group’s financial statements. The Acting Corporate Director Finance is responsible for
the other information. Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent othernwise explicithy stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurances
conclusion therson.

30



Commercial in confidence

F. Draft Audit opinion continued

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 50, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Pension Fund financial stalements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a matenial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice (2024) published by the National
Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the Pension Fund's financial
statements, the other information published together with the Pension Fund's financial statements in the
S@em ent of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
c@istent with the Pension Fund financial statements.

w
I.'Ia'Eers on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if.

« Wweissue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

« we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

+ we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under
Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the
audit, or;

» W issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit, or

« we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters in relation to the Pension Fund.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Acting Corporate Director Finance

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the Authority
is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that
officer is the Acting Corporate Director Finance. The Acting Corporate Director Finance is responsible
for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the Pension Fund’s financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24, for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the Acting Corporate Director Finance determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the Pension Fund's financial statements, the Acting Corporate Director Finance is
responsible for assessing the Pension Fund's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they have been informed by the relevant national body of the intention o dissolve the Pension Fund
without the transfer of its services to another public sector entity.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Pension Fund's financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK) will always detect a matenal
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements. lregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irreqularities,
including fraud, is detailed below.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Pension
Fund and determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the
financial statements are those related to the reporting frameworks (the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24, the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Local Government Act 2003, the
Public Service Pensions Act 2013, the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016).

31



Commercial in confidence

F. Draft Audit opinion continued

We enquired of management and the Governance and Audit Committee conceming the Authority's
policies and procedures relating to:
+ the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

+ the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

+ the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance
with laws and regulafions.

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Governance and Audit Committee, whether they
were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any
knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Pension Fund's financial statements to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management’s incentives and opportunities for
anipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of management
genide of controls. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to:
)

+ journal entries posted which met a range of criteria determined during the course of the audit,
in particular those posted around the reporting date which had an impact on the fund's
financial position, and

w
=
N

+ accounting estimates made in respect of the valuation of level 3 investment assets.

Our audit procedures invalved:

«  evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent
and detect fraud:

«  journal entry testing, with a focus on entries mesfing the criteria determined by the audit
feam.
+  challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting

estimates in respect of the valuation of level 3 investments, including Private Equity,
Infrastructure and direct and pooled property investments;

«  assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our
procedures on the related financial statement item.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements
were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is
inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members, including the potential for fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition. We remained alert to
any indications of non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, throughout the audit.

Qur assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the
engagement team included consideration of the engagement team's:

« understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and
complexity through appropriate training and paricipation

« knowledge of the local government pensions sector

« understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Pension Fund
including:

o the provisions of the applicable legislation
o guidance issued by CIPFALASAAC and SOLACE
o the applicable statutory provisions.
In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

« the Pension Fund's operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and its
services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of fransactions,
account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may
result in risks of material misstatement.

« the Authority’s control environment, including the policies and procedures implemented by
the Authority to ensure compliance with the requirements of the financial reporting
framework.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at. www frc.org.uk/auditorsrespongsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor's report.

32



Commercial in confidence

F. Draft Audit opinion continued

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, 8 a body, in accordance with Part 5 of fhe
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as sef out in paragraph 85 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority's members those matters
e are required to state fo them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
%&lmiﬂed by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authonity and the
Eﬁuthmity's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report. or for he opinions we have formed.

Signature:

Paris Williams, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thorton UK LLP, Local Auditor
Londan

X December 2024

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 33



v TE abed

GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

"Grant Thornton” refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Agenda Item 10

From: Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate and Traded
Services
Interim Corporate Director — Finance

To: Governance and Audit Committee — 12 December 2024

Subject:  Treasury Management Mid-Year Update

Classification: Unrestricted

Future Pathway of report County Council

Summary: This report provides an overview of Treasury Management activity to the
end of September 2024.

Recommendation: The Committee is asked to endorse this report and recommend that
it is submitted to County Council.

1. Introduction

1.1 This report covers Treasury Management activity up to the end of September 2024
and developments in 2024-25 up to the date of this report.

1.2 If agreed by the Committee, this report will be presented to County Council.

1.3 The Council’'s Treasury Management Strategy for 2024-25 was approved by the
County Council on 19 February 2024.

1.4 The Council has both borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is
therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the
revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring
and control of risk are therefore central to the Council’'s treasury management
strategy. This report covers treasury activity and the associated monitoring and
control of risk.

1.5 Treasury risk management at the Council is conducted within the framework of
CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA
Code) which requires the Council to approve a treasury management strategy before
the start of each financial year and, as a minimum, a semi-annual and annual
treasury outturn report. This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the
Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code.

1.6 The Council has nominated the Governance & Audit Committee to be responsible for
ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

2. External context

Page 315



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Economic Update: The following economic commentary has been provided by the
Council’s retained treasury advisor, Link Group.

“The third quarter of 2024 (July to September) saw:

- GDP growth stagnating in July following downwardly revised Q2 figures (0.5% q/q)

- A further easing in wage growth as the headline 3myy rate (including bonuses) fell
from 4.6% in June to 4.0% in July;

- CPl inflation hitting its target in June before edging above it to 2.2% in July and
August;

- Core CPI inflation increasing from 3.3% in July to 3.6% in August;

- The Bank of England initiating its easing cycle by lowering interest rates from 5.25%
to 5.0% in August and holding them steady in its September meeting;

- 10-year gilt yields falling to 4.0% in September

The economy’s stagnation in June and July points more to a mild slowdown in GDP
growth than a sudden drop back into a recession. Moreover, the drop in September’s
composite activity Purchasing Managers Index, from 563.8 in August to 52.9, was still
consistent with GDP growth of 0.3%-0.4% for the summer months. This is in line with
the Bank of England’s view, and it was encouraging that an improvement in
manufacturing output growth could be detected, whilst the services PMI balance
suggests non-retail services output grew by 0.5% q/q in Q3. Additionally, the services
PMI future activity balance showed an uptick in September, although readings after
the Chancellor's announcements at the Budget on 30th October will be more
meaningful.

The 1.0% m/m jump in retail sales in August was stronger than the consensus
forecast for a 0.4% m/m increase. The rise was reasonably broad based, with six of
the seven main sub sectors recording monthly increases, though the biggest gains
came from clothing stores and supermarkets, which the ONS reported was driven by
the warmer-than-usual weather and end of season sales. As a result, some of that
strength is probably temporary.

The government’s plans to raise public spending by around £16bn a year (0.6%
GDP) have caused concerns that a big rise in taxes will be announced in the Budget,
which could weaken GDP growth in the medium-term. However, if taxes are raised in
line with spending (i.e., by £16bn) that would mean the overall stance of fiscal policy
would be similar to the previous government’s plan to reduce the budget deficit.
Additionally, rises in public spending tend to boost GDP by more than increases in
taxes reduce it. Our colleagues at Capital Economics suggest GDP growth will hit
1.2% in 2024 before reaching 1.5% for both 2025 and 2026.

The further easing in wage growth will be welcomed by the Bank of England as a
sign that labour market conditions are continuing to cool. The 3myy growth rate of
average earnings fell from 4.6% in June to 4.0% in July. On a three-month
annualised basis, average earnings growth eased from 3.0% to 1.8%, its lowest rate
since December 2023. Excluding bonuses, the 3myy rate fell from 5.4% to 5.1%.

Page 316



2.7

2.8

2.9

Other labour market indicators also point to a further loosening in the labour market.
The 59,000 fall in the alternative PAYE measure of the number of employees in
August marked the fourth fall in the past five months. And the 77,000 decline in the
three months to August was the biggest drop since November 2020. Moreover, the
number of workforce jobs fell by 28,000 in Q2. The downward trend in job vacancies
continued too. The number of job vacancies fell from 872,000 in the three months to
July to 857,000 in the three months to August. That leaves it 34% below its peak in
May 2022, and just 5% above its pre-pandemic level. Nonetheless, the Bank of
England is still more concerned about the inflationary influence of the labour market
rather than the risk of a major slowdown in labour market activity.

CPl inflation stayed at 2.2% in August, but services inflation rose from a two-year low
of 5.2% in July to 5.6%, significantly above its long-run average of 3.5%. Food and
fuel price inflation exerted some downward pressure on CPI inflation, but these were
offset by the upward effects from rising furniture/household equipment inflation,
recreation/culture inflation and a surprisingly large rise in airfares inflation from -
10.4% in July to +11.9% in August. As a result, core inflation crept back up from
3.3% to 3.6%. CPI inflation is also expected to rise in the coming months, potentially
reaching 2.9% in November, before declining to around 2.0% by mid-2025.

The Bank initiated its loosening cycle in August with a 25bps rate cut, lowering rates
from 5.256% to 5.0%. In its September meeting, the Bank, resembling the ECB more
than the Fed, opted to hold rates steady at 5.0%, signalling a preference for a more
gradual approach to rate cuts. Notably, one Monetary Policy Committee (MPC)
member (Swati Dhingra) voted for a consecutive 25bps cut, while four members
swung back to voting to leave rates unchanged. That meant the slim 5-4 vote in
favour of a cut in August shifted to a solid 8-1 vote in favour of no change.

2.10 Looking ahead, CPI inflation will likely rise in the coming months before it falls back

2.11

to its target of 2.0% in mid-2025. The increasing uncertainties of the Middle East
may also exert an upward pressure on inflation, with oil prices rising in the aftermath
of Iran’s missile attack on Israel on 1 October. China’s recent outpouring of new fiscal
support measures in the latter stages of September has also added to the upshift in
broader commodity prices, which, in turn, may impact on global inflation levels and
thus monetary policy decisions. Despite these recent developments, our central
forecast is still for rates to fall to 4.5% by the end of 2024 with further cuts likely
throughout 2025. This is in line with market expectations, however, although a
November rate cut still looks likely, December may be more problematic for the Bank
if CPI inflation spikes towards 3%. In the second half of 2025, though, we think a
more marked easing in inflation will prompt the Bank to speed up, resulting in rates
eventually reaching 3.0%, rather than the 3.25-3.50% currently priced in by financial
markets.

Our forecast is next due to be updated around mid-November following the 30
October Budget, 5 November US presidential election and the 7 November MPC
meeting and the release of the Bank of England Quarterly Monetary Policy Report.

2.12 Looking at gilt movements in the first half of 2024/25, and you will note the 10-year

gilt yield declined from 4.32% in May to 4.02% in August as the Bank’s August rate

Page 317



cut signalled the start of its loosening cycle. Following the decision to hold the Bank
Rate at 5.0% in September, the market response was muted, with the 10-year yield
rising by only 5bps after the announcement. This likely reflected the fact that money
markets had priced in a 25% chance of a rate cut prior to the meeting. The yield had
already increased by about 10bps in the days leading up to the meeting, driven in
part by the Fed's "hawkish cut" on 18 September. There is a possibility that gilt yields
will rise near-term as UK policymakers remain cautious due to persistent inflation
concerns, before declining in the longer term as rates fall to 3.0%.

2.13 The FTSE 100 reached a peak of 8,380 in the third quarter of 2024, but its

3.1

41

performance is firmly in the shade of the US S&P500, which has breached the 5,700
threshold on several occasions recently. Its progress, however, may pause for the
time being whilst investors wait to see who is elected the next US President, and how
events in the Middle East (and Ukraine) unfold. The catalyst for any further rally (or
not) is likely to be the degree of investors’ faith in Al.”

Local context

The treasury management position on 31 March 2024 and the change over the 6
months to 30 September 2024 is shown in the following table. Borrowing and
investment activity occurring over the first half of the year is discussed further in
sections 6 and 7 below.

31-Mar-24 2024-25 30-Sep-24 | 30-Sep-24
Balance Movement Balance Average
£m £m £m Rate
%
Long-term borrowing 771.9 -25.1 746.8 4.35
Total borrowing 771.9 -25.1 746.8 4.35
Long-term investments 280.1 32.9 312.9 4.71
Short-term investments 44 .4 12.4 56.7 4.96
Cash and cash 128.9 4.1 133.0|  4.99
equivalents
Total investments 453.4 49.3 502.6 4.82
Net borrowing 318.5 -74.4 2441

Borrowing Update

CIPFA’s 2021 Prudential Code is clear that local authorities must not borrow to invest
primarily for financial return and that it is not prudent for local authorities to make any
investment or spending decision that will increase the capital financing requirement,
and so may lead to new borrowing, unless directly and primarily related to the
functions of the Authority. PWLB loans are no longer available to local authorities
planning to buy investment assets primarily for yield unless these loans are for
refinancing purposes.

Page 318



5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

Borrowing Strategy during the period

The Council’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an appropriately low
risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost certainty over
the period for which funds are required, with flexibility to renegotiate loans should the
Council’s long-term plans change being a secondary objective.

At 30 September 2024 the Council held £746.8m of loans as part of its strategy for
funding previous capital programmes. No net new borrowing was undertaken in the
half-year and £25.1m of existing loans were allowed to mature without replacement.

Interest rates very slightly increased over the first half of the financial year in both the
long and short term, with rates at the end of September around 0.07% - 0.09% higher
than those at the beginning of April. The PWLB 10-year maturity certainty rate stood
at 4.83% at 30 September 2024, 20 years at 5.29% and 30 years at 5.36%.

The Council continues to hold LOBO (Lender’'s Option Borrower’'s Option) loans
where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest rate at set
dates, following which the Council has the option to either accept the new rate or to
repay the loan at no additional cost. Rising interest rates increases the likelihood of a
lender exercising their option although no banks exercised their option during the
period.

The Council’s borrowing activity in the 6 months to 30 September is as follows:

31/03/2024 2024-25 30/09/2024 | 30/09/2024 | 30/09/2024
Value
Balance Movement Balance A\:rage Weighted
ate Average
Life
£m £m £m % yrs
PWLB Loan 456.3 -23.9 432.4 4.33 15.11
Banks (LOBO) 90.0 0.0 90.0 4.15 39.38
Banks (Fixed Term) 216.1 0.0 216.1 4.54 37.73
Streetlighting project 9.5 -1.3 8.2 2.85 15.84
Total borrowing 771.9 -25.1 746.8 4.35 24.59

The maturity profile of the Council’s outstanding debt at 30 September 2024 was as
follows:

Page 319



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Loans Maturities by Type

£80.00m —

EGU.UUmé

£4U.UUm—f

£20 Dﬂm—i | I

£U.UUm—: T T I—I

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050 2055 2060 2065 2070

LOBO Vanilla WM Fixed

Treasury investment activity

CIPFA published a revised Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of
Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes on 20th December 2021. These define
treasury management investments as investments that arise from the organisation’s
cash flows or treasury risk management activity that represents balances that need
to be invested until the cash is required for use in the course of business.

The Council holds significant invested funds representing income received in
advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. During the period, the
Council’s investment balance ranged between £443.1m and £622.9m due to timing
differences between income and expenditure.

Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Council to invest its
funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments
before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The Council’s objective when
investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return,
minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving
unsuitably low investment income.

Bank Rate decreased from 5.25% at the beginning of the year to 5.00% at the end of
September 2024. Short-dated cash rates, which had ranged between 5.08% - 5.25%
at the beginning of April, dropped by around 0.25% for overnight/7-day maturities and
0.37% for 6-12 month maturities.

The Council continues to hold significant cash balances in money market funds as
well as in bank call accounts which have same day availability. This liquid cash is
diversified over several counterparties and money market funds to manage both
credit and liquidity risks.

During the 6 months to 30 September, the Council loaned £2.9m to the no use empty
loans programme. At 30 September 2024, the Council had outstanding loans totalling
£16.8m to the programme now achieving a return of 3.48% which is available to fund
general services. A £29.6m net increase in covered bonds in the 6 months brings the
total bond portfolio up to £117.9m. These instruments are negotiable and have the
benefit of collateral cover.

Page 320



6.7 The Council’'s investments during the 6 months to the end of September are
summarised in the table below and a detailed schedule of investments as at 30
September 2024 is in Appendix 1.

31-Mar-24 2024-25 30-Sep-24 30-Sep-24 30-Sep-24

Rate of Average
Balance Movement Balance Return Credit Rating
£m £m £m %

Call Deposits (Banks) 13.6 -7.6 6.0 4.41 A+
Money Market Funds 128.9 4.1 133.0 4.99 AAA
Covered Bonds 88.2 29.6 117.9 4.54 AAA
DMADF Deposits (DMO) 0.0 32.7 32.7 4.94 AA-
Treasury Bills (UK Government) 30.8 -12.8 18.0 5.17 AA-
No Use Empty Loans 16.0 0.8 16.8 3.48
Equity 1.3 0.0 1.3
Internally Managed Cash 278.8 46.8 325.6 4.74 AA+
Strategic Pooled Funds 174.6 24 177.0 4.97
Total 453.4 49.3 502.6 4.82

7. Externally managed investments

7.1 The Council is invested in equity, multi-asset and property funds. Because the pooled
funds have no defined maturity date, but are available for withdrawal after a notice
period, their performance and continued suitability in meeting the Council’s
investment objectives are regularly reviewed.

7.2 Although expected returns are higher over the long term than comparable short term
cash instruments, returns on pooled fund investments can be volatile from one year
to the next, and therefore the Council only holds long term (strategic) cash balances
in the strategic pooled funds’ portfolio.

7.3 Performance YTD The value of our holdings increased to £177.0m at the end of

September 2024, showing an unrealised gain of £2.4m (1.36%) over the period since
the end of March 2024. The total return (comprised of both income and capital
returns) on the pooled fund investments over the 6 months since 31 March 2024 is
£6.9m (3.85%), as shown in the table below.

Page 321



Cumulative Return (YTD)

5.00%

3.00%

1.00%

(Y] (] (o] ('] (o] g

— — = = _ 1) o

] a ] = = @

-1.00% = < = = - < A
S [ncome N Capital Total

7.4 The market value of the pooled fund investments as at 30 September 2024
compared to the position as at 31 March 2024 is shown in the table below.

31-Mar-24 2024-25 30-Sep-24 30-Sep-24
Market

Investment Fund Book cost | Market Value | Movement Value 6 months return

Income Total
£m £m £m £m % %

CCLA LAMIT Property Fund 60.0 54.2 0.2 54.0 2.44 2.12

gfn"dA Diversified Income 5.0 5.0 0.0 49| 043 0.29

Pyrfqrd Global Total Return 50 5.4 0.1 55 166 4.07

Sterling Fund

Fidelity Global Multi Asset 25.0 23.0 0.9 291 236 1.25

Income Fund

Ninety-One (Investec) 10.0 9.1 0.1 92| 233 3.69

Diversified Income Fund

Aegon (KAMES) Diversified 20.0 18.7 0.5 19.2 2.95 5.60

Monthly Income Fund

M&G Global Dividend Fund 10.0 15.1 0.9 16.0 3.12 12.55

‘:’Szgoc’ers Income Maximiser 25.0 205 11 215| 307 7.35

;E;edad”eed'e Global Equity 10.0 13.0 0.0 13.0 2.06 2.30

Threadneedle UK Equity 10.0 10.7 0.7 11.4 2.23 9.50

Income Fund L

Total Externally Managed 180.0 174.6 2.4 1770 | 2.49 3.85

Investments

7.5 Performance since inception: KCC initially invested in pooled funds in 2013. By the
end of September 2024 they had achieved a total income return of £54.1m, 29.98%,
with a fall in the capital value of the portfolio of £3.0m, -1.69%. Total returns since
inception have been far in excess of the returns available from cash and these

Page 322



instruments are an effective way of managing the Council’s longer term cash
balances. The following chart tracks the returns earned on the pooled funds over the
period from inception.

35.00%

30.00%

25.00%

20.00%

15.00%

10.00%

0.00%

-5.00%

-10.00%

Cumulative Return Since Inception

200.00%

180.00%

160.00%

140.00%

120.00%

100.00%

80.00%

. [|||||I|||||| o
| H|||. .||||||”|| (T
40.00%

s o

O E T E T oY LY e ®e @t 2P 2R e & s S s S NY YN SSReRS S ES
E E e e e e el em e e e e RS e e S e e E e S = S = e = =

S § 5 3 8 § 58 3 8§ 583 858338 58583858385 a8a3s5a83ss§5a83s85858838s523583

|,||_||[|||||||l||”||‘[||-|m||.|||.u,

= Capital Return m—— InCOMme Total Return

7.6

8.1

9.1

IFRS 9 Statutory Override: Under the current accounting requirements governing
local authorities, movements in the fair value of pooled fund investments are
removed from the general fund and recognised on the Council’s balance sheet. This
effectively ensures the impact of volatility in the capital value of such investments
does not affect the annual revenue outturn. However, the relevant accounting
provision (known as the “IFRS 9 statutory override”) is temporary in nature and is due
to expire on 31 March 2025 and therefore (in the absence of any future regulatory
changes), the Council will begin to recognise movements in the fair value of pooled
fund investments from 2025/26, including the cumulative position to date. Given the
uncertainty surrounding the impact of the expiry of the override, the Council
recogises this risk on the Budget Risk Register.

Actual and forecast outturn

Forecast net debt costs are lower than budget as yields from short-term and variable
long-term cash investments have increased.

Treasury Management Group

The Treasury Management group (TMG) is an informal, non-decision-making body
whose role is to support the County Council in oversight and assurance of the
treasury management strategy and implementation of it. The TMG last met on 13
November 2024, where it reviewed a quarterly activity report, alongside other
matters. A summary of the meeting discussion is included at Appendix 3.

Page 323




10.

10.1

11.

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

Compliance

The Interim Corporate Director — Finance reports that all treasury management
activities undertaken during the quarter complied fully with the CIPFA Code of
Practice and the Council’s approved Treasury Management Strategy.

Treasury Management Indicators

The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks
using the following indicators:

Security: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk
by monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its internally managed
investment portfolio. This is calculated by applying a score to each investment
(AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of
each investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their
perceived risk.

e Actual .
Credit risk indicator 30/09/2024 Minimum
Portfolio average credit rating AA+ AA-

Liquidity: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity
risk by monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within
a rolling three-month period, without additional borrowing.

C e L Actual -
Liquidity risk indicator 30/09/2024 Minimum
Total cash available within 3 months £215.8m £100m

Interest rate exposures: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to
interest rate risk. The upper limits on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall
in interest rates will be:

T Actual .
Interest rate risk indicator 30/09/2024 Upper Limit
One-year revenue impact of a 1% rise in interest rates £3.1m £10m
One-year revenue impact of a 1% fall in interest rates -£3.1m -£10m

11.5 Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Council’s

exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of
borrowing will be:

Page 324



Actual Upper limit Lower limit
30/09/2024
Under 12 months 0.01% 100% 0%
12 months and within 5 years 5.49% 50% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 6.56% 50% 0%
10 years and within 20 years 35.59% 50% 0%
20 years and within 40 years 26.84% 50% 0%
40 years and Ionger 25.51% 50% 0%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year

. The maturity date of

borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

11.6 Principal sums invested for periods longer than a year: The purpose of this
indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking
The limits on the long-term principal sum
invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be:

early repayment of its investments.

Price risk indicator 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 No Fixed Date
Limit on principal invested £150m £100m £50m £250m
beyond year end

Actual as at 30 September £70.7m £49.8m £9.5m £195.1m
2024

11.6 Liability Benchmark

Total Amount (£'000)

Liability Benchmark

£1,500,000

£1,000,000

£500,000 Illll
£0
-£500,000
-£1,000,000
S0P S TS S S

m=mm PWLEB Loans
= | OBO Loans
- Net Loans Requirement (forecast net loan debt)
== == Liability Benchmark (Gross Loans Requirement)

== Market Loans (excl LOBO loans)
- Existing Loan Debt Outstanding

=] oans CFR

Page 325

P EERPLFSIFSFSSLS S
T o A 4 4T S S




The liability benchmark chart shows the Council should be able to accommodate the
movement in Loans CFR through additional internal borrowing given the resources
on the balance sheet if it wants to maintain treasury investments at the £200m
liquidity allowance. However, this is based on the current assumption with regards to
movement in reserves and that the working capital position remains at the
31/03/2024 level of £300m. It also assumes that the liquidity allowance of £200m
remains appropriate given the £177.00m of external investments currently invested
with fund managers over a long-term investment time horizon.

12. Recommendation

Members are asked to endorse this report and recommend that it is submitted to Council.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Investments as at 30 September 2024
Appendix 2 — Glossary of Terms
Appendix 3 — TMG Meeting Notes, 13 November 2024

James Graham, CFA - Pension Fund and Treasury Investments
Manager

T: 03000 416290

E: James.Graham@kent.gov.uk

26 November 2024

Page 326


mailto:James.Graham@kent.gov.uk

Appendix A
Investments as at 30 September 2024

1. Internally Managed Investments

1.1 Term deposits, Call accounts and Money Market Funds

Instrument Type Counterparty Principal Amount £ Interest Rate End Date

Treasury Bills UK Government 4,936,737 5.1400% 14/10/24

Treasury Bills UK Government 4,874,936 5.1400% 21/10/24

Treasury Bills UK Government 4,874,310 5.2000% 25/11/24

Treasury Bills UK Government 3,316,591 5.2250% 02/12/24

Total Treasury Bills 18,002,574

DMADF Deposit Debt Management Office 10,285,000 4.9400% 01/10/24

DMADF Deposit Debt Management Office 13,400,000 4.9400% 07/10/24

DMADF Deposit Debt Management Office 9,035,000 4.9400% 08/10/24

Total DMADF 32,720,000

Call Account National Westminster Bank plc 1,000,000 3.25%

Call Account Lloyds Bank plc 5,000,000 4.64%

Total Bank Call Accounts 6,000,000

No Use Empty Loans 16,754,903 4.25%

Money Market Funds LGIM GBP Liquidity Class 4 19,998,420 5.0002%

Money Market Funds g\viva Investors GBP Liquidity Class 19.994 995 5.0132%

Money Market Funds Aberdeen GBP Liquidity Class L3 19,998,397 5.0052%

Money Market Funds I(z:tla::sr%ted Hermes Short-Term Prime 14,987 400 5.0204%

Money Market Funds HSBC GBP Liquidity Class F 19,996,293 4.9254%

Money Market Funds Northern Trust GBP Cash Class F 19,985.416 4.9839%

Money Market Funds Egl:itrfﬁrr:\e Managed GBP LVNAV 17,993,694 4.9981%

Total Money Market Funds 132,964,615

Equity Kent PFI (Holdings) Ltd 1,298,620 n/a
Page 327

1
TM half-year report 2024-25 to GAC



Bond Portfolio

Bond Type

Fixed Rate Covered
Bond

Fixed Rate Covered
Bond

Fixed Rate Covered
Bond

Fixed Rate Covered
Bond

Fixed Rate Covered
Bond

Fixed Rate Covered
Bond

Fixed Rate Covered
Bond

Fixed Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Floating Rate Covered
Bond

Total Bonds

Issuer

Bank of Scotland - Bonds
Bank of Scotland - Bonds
Bank of Scotland - Bonds

Lloyds - Bonds
Bayerische Landesbank -
bonds

Bayerische Landesbank -
bonds

Santander UK - Bonds

Santander UK - Bonds
Royal Bank of Canada -
Bonds

Royal Bank of Canada -
Bonds

Royal Bank of Canada -
Bonds

Bank Of Nova Scotia Bonds

Bank Of Nova Scotia Bonds
Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce - Bonds
National Australia Bank -
Bonds

National Australia Bank -
Bonds

Bank Of Nova Scotia Bonds
Nationwide Building Society -
Bonds

Nationwide Building Society -
Bonds

Bank Of Nova Scotia Bonds
Royal Bank of Canada -
Bonds

Yorkshire Building Society -
Bonds

Yorkshire Building Society -
Bonds

Leeds Building Society Bonds

Leeds Building Society Bonds

Total Internally managed investments

Adjusted Principal
£

6,265,814
4,124,283
4,990,350
7,022,483
14,986,497
299,534
1,542,195
968,185
8,945,148
1,786,768
5,007,358
5,019,603
4,009,717
5,048,167
5,048,683
10,070,240
707,868
500,756
5,403,642
10,076,845
4,035,368
3,004,326
2,001,980
3,998,884

3,002,783
117,867,477

325,608,188

Page 328

2
TM half-year report 2024-25 to GAC

Coupon Rate

0.4259%
1.7146%
5.2746%
4.8423%
5.1759%
5.2128%
4.5883%
4.7154%
5.2479%
5.4868%
4.6054%
4.4279%
4.6969%
4.4406%
4.4320%
4.1073%
5.1432%
5.4824%
5.5350%
4.7275%
5.0733%
5.2020%
5.2224%
5.3018%

5.2392%

Appendix A

Maturity Date

20/12/24
20/12/24
20/12/24
07/03/25
01/06/26
01/06/26
16/02/29
16/02/29
03/10/24
03/10/24
30/01/25
14/03/25
14/03/25
15/12/25
15/12/25
15/12/25
26/01/26
20/04/26
20/04/26
22/06/26
13/07/26
18/01/27
18/01/27
15/05/27

15/05/27



2. Externally Managed Investments

Investment Fund

CCLA LAMIT Property Fund

CCLA Better World Cautious Fund
(formerly DIF)

Pyrford Global Total Return Fund

Fidelity Multi Asset Income Fund
Ninety One (Investec) Diversified
Income Fund

Aegon (KAMES) Diversified Monthly
Income Fund

M&G Global Dividend Fund
Schroder Income Maximiser Fund

Threadneedle Global Equity
Institutional Fund

Threadneedle UK Equity Income
Fund

Total External Investments

3. Total Investments

Total Investments

Book Cost
£

60,000,000

5,000,000
5,000,000
25,038,637

10,000,000

20,000,000
10,000,000
25,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000
180,038,637

Page 329

Market Value at
30-September-24
£

54,025,592

4,948,141
5,472,888
22,050,771

9,240,387

19,240,096
16,004,834
21,541,285

13,048,657

11,430,706
177,003,356

£502,611,544

3
TM half-year report 2024-25 to GAC

Appendix A

6 months return to
30-September-24

Income

2.44%

0.43%
1.66%
2.36%

2.33%

2.95%
3.12%
3.07%

2.06%

2.23%
2.49%

Total
2.12%

0.29%
4.07%
-1.25%

3.69%

5.60%
12.55%
7.35%

2.30%

9.50%
3.85%



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

GLOSSARY

Local Authority Treasury Management Terms

Bond A certificate of long-term debt issued by a company, government, or other institution, which is
tradable on financial markets

Borrowing Usually refers to the stock of outstanding loans owed and bonds issued.

CFR Capital Financing Requirement. A council’s underlying need to hold debt for capital purposes,
representing the cumulative capital expenditure that has been incurred but not yet financed. The
CFR increases with capital expenditure and decreases with capital finance and MRP.

Capital gain | An increase or decrease in the capital value of an investment, for example through movements in

or loss its market price.

Counterparty | The other party to a loan, investment or other contract.

Counterparty | The maximum amount an investor is willing to lend to a counterparty, in order to manage credit

limit risk.

Covered Bond issued by a financial institution that is secured on that institution’s assets, usually

bond residential mortgages, and is therefore lower risk than unsecured bonds. Covered bonds are
exempt from bail-in.

CPI Consumer Price Index - the measure of inflation targeted by the Monetary Policy Committee.

Deposit A regulated placing of cash with a financial institution. Deposits are not tradable on financial
markets.

Diversified A collective investment scheme that invests in a range of bonds, equity and property in order to

income fund | minimise price risk, and also focuses on investments that pay income.

Dividend Income paid to investors in shares and collective investment schemes. Dividends are not
contractual, and the amount is therefore not known in advance.

DMADF Debt Management Account Deposit Facility — a facility offered by the DMO enabling councils to
deposit cash at very low credit risk. Not available in Northern Ireland.

DMO Debt Management Office — an executive agency of HM Treasury that deals with central
government’s debt and investments.

Equity An investment which usually confers ownership and voting rights

Floating rate

Bond where the interest rate changes at set intervals linked to a market variable, most commonly

note (FRN) 3-month LIBOR or SONIA

FTSE Financial Times stock exchange — a series of indices on the London Stock Exchange. The FTSE
100 is the index of the largest 100 companies on the exchange, the FTSE 250 is the next largest
250 and the FTSE 350 combines the two

GDP Gross domestic product — the value of the national aggregate production of goods and services
in the economy. Increasing GDP is known as economic growth.

Gilt Bond issued by the UK Government, taking its name from the gilt-edged paper they were

1
™ half-yed? BEHR 83ik5 to GAC




Appendix 2

originally printed on.

Income Return on investment from dividends, interest and rent but excluding capital gains and losses.

return

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards, the set of accounting rules in use by UK local
authorities since 2010

LIBID London interbank bid rate - the benchmark interest rate at which banks bid to borrow cash from
other banks, traditionally 0.125% lower than LIBOR.

LIBOR London interbank offer rate - the benchmark interest rate at which banks offer to lend cash to
other banks. Published every London working day at 11am for various currencies and terms. Due
to be phased out by 2022.

LOBO Lender’s Option Borrower’s option

MMF Money Market Funds. A collective investment scheme which invests in a range of short-term
assets providing high credit quality and high liquidity. Usually refers to Constant Net Asset Value
(CNAV) and Low Volatility Net Asset Value (LVNAV) funds with a Weighted Average Maturity
(WAM) under 60 days which offer instant access, but the European Union definition extends to
include cash plus funds

Monetary Measures taken by central banks to boost or slow the economy, usually via changes in interest

Policy rates. Monetary easing refers to cuts in interest rates, making it cheaper for households and
businesses to borrow and hence spend more, boosting the economy, while monetary tightening
refers to the opposite. See also fiscal policy and quantitative easing.

MPC Monetary Policy Committee. Committee of the Bank of England responsible for implementing
monetary policy in the UK by changing Bank Rate and quantitative easing with the aim of
keeping CPI inflation at around 2%.

MRP Minimum Revenue Provision — an annual amount that local authorities are required to set aside
and charge to revenue for the repayment of debt associated with capital expenditure. Local
authorities are required by law to have regard to government guidance on MRP. Not applicable in
Scotland, but see Loans Fund

Pooled Fund | Scheme in which multiple investors hold units or shares. The investment assets in the fund are
not held directly by each investor, but as part of a pool (hence these funds are also referred to as
‘pooled funds’).

Prudential Developed by CIPFA and introduced in April 2004 as a professional code of practice to support

Code local authority capital investment planning within a clear, affordable, prudent and sustainable
framework and in accordance with good professional practice. Local authorities are required by
law to have regard to the Prudential Code. The Code was update din December 2021

PWLB Public Works Loan Board — a statutory body operating within the Debt Management Office (DMO)
that lends money from the National Loans Fund to councils and other prescribed bodies and
collects the repayments. Not available in Northern Ireland.

Short-term Usually means less than one year

SONIA Based on actual transactions and reflects the average of the interest rates that banks pay to

borrow sterling overnight from other financial institutions and other institutional investors

Total return

The overall return on an investment, including interest, dividends, rent, fees and capital gains and
losses.

Weighted

The weighted average time for principal repayment, that is, the average time it takes for every

2
™ half-yd3aEHBrt 33425 to GAC




Appendix 2

average life
(WAL)

dollar of principal to be repaid. The time weights are based on the principal payments,

3
™ half-yed? BEHR B35 to GAC




This page is intentionally left blank



TMG 14 November 2024

Agenda

IS o o

Market and Regulatory Update (Link)
Balance Sheet Analysis Update (Link)
Quarterly Report (September)
Strategy Check

Mid-Year Strategy Review

AOB

Attendance:

Harry Rayner — MEM (Chair) James Graham — KCC
Rosalind Binks — MEM Geoff Hall - KCC

Paul Stepto - MEM Chris Ellis - KCC

Alister Brady — MEM Chris Jones — Link Group
Nick Buckland — KCC David Whelan — Link Group

Discussion Summary:

Link Group presented the latest market expectations following the UK Budget
and US election including the Bank of England’s forecasts for GDP, inflation,
wage Growth, interest rates. Link also shared a regulatory update.
Information included an update to the latest interest rate forecast following an
internal meeting at Link which took place after slides had been prepared and
distributed.

CJ presented Link’s projections for KCC’s Balance Sheet and Liability
Benchmark. The current liquidity allowance (the level of investments the
Council has conventionally looked to hold in highly liquidity cash instruments)
is £200m and excluding the strategic pooled funds balance (c. £175m).
Current projection shows in 2025/26, KCC will dip under this figure as existing
external borrowing matures. However, by 2027/28 projection shows liquidity
levels would rise above £200m once more, without further action. Link
advised that KCC does not have an immediate borrowing need.

Officers explained that that the analysis provided represented a snapshot at a
point in time and real figures may vary. Moreover, the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) has historically been subject to change based on the
actual pace of the capital programme. The Group also noted that changes in
the Government’s local government funding policy will likely have impacts.
Officers added that the current treasury management strategy is designed to
be robust and can be adapted as situations change.

Link provided a comparison of other councils’ CFRs and borrowing. When
compared to neighbouring counties who will need to borrow externally, KCC’s
does not appear as an outlier.

Officers provided a quarterly update on treasury activity updated as of end of
September. External borrowing balances are lower compared to the previous
reported position as loans have matured. External borrowing balances are
expected to decline further over the medium term as more loans mature.
Cash balances are projected to decline over the remainder of this year, which
is a normal trend.

Page 335



The Group asked for a clarification around the aims of having a diversified
maturity profile within the debt portfolio and officers confirmed that borrowing
maturities are spread across time to avoid the risk posed by having to re-
finance large amounts of borrowing in a short period of time.

Officers updated the group on treasury investment activity including the use of
covered bonds and the externally managed strategic pooled funds portfolio.
The Group noted the change in name for the CCLA ‘Better World Caution’
Fund (previously the Diversified Income Fund) and officers confirmed that the
investment objective remained the same.

The Group reviewed the appropriateness of the current treasury management
strategy for 2024/25 and no changes were proposed. The treasury
management consultant agreed that no changes were necessary.

Actions Points:

Ref

Action Status

JG will communicate Link’s most recent slides and the Mid Year |[Complete

Review to all members.

Page 336




	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2024
	EXEMPT Minutes of Meeting 12 November 2024

	5 Verbal update on Committee Business
	6 External Audit - Audit Findings for Kent County Council
	Audit Findings Report for Kent County Council 2023-24
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings  for Kent County Council  
	Slide 2: Dear Governance and Audit Committee Members
	Slide 3: Section   Page Headlines 4 Financial statements 8 Value for money arrangements 30 Independence and ethics 32 Appendices Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance 36 Action plan – Audit of Financial Statements 37 Follow up of
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 1. Headlines – continued
	Slide 6: 1. Headlines
	Slide 7: 1. Headlines
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements - Observations in respect of other risks
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements - Observations in respect of other risks
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements: new issues and risks
	Slide 17: 2. Financial Statements – Key findings arising from the group audit  
	Slide 18: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 19: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 20: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 21: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 22: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 23: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 24: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 25: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 26: 2. Financial Statements: Digital Audit
	Slide 27: 2. Financial Statements:  other communication requirements
	Slide 28: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 29: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 30: 3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM) 
	Slide 31: 3. VFM: our procedures and conclusions
	Slide 32: 4. Independence considerations
	Slide 33: 4. Independence considerations
	Slide 34: 4. Independence considerations
	Slide 35: Appendices
	Slide 36: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 37: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 38: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 39: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 40: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 41: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 42: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 43: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 44: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 45: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 46: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 47: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 48: F. Auditing developments
	Slide 49: G. Management Letter of Representation  - included as a separate agenda item
	Slide 50: H. Audit opinion  - included as a separate agenda item
	Slide 51: Final (back) page

	Appendix G - Audit Opinion Draft

	7 Kent County Council Statement of Accounts
	Draft Statement of Accounts 2023-24
	Statement of Accounts 2023-24
	Narrative
	Changes to financial reporting requirements and accounting policies
	Organisational Overview and External Environment
	Governance
	Strategic and Corporate Plans

	Financial Report
	Setting the Revenue Budget for 2023-24 - the budget strategy
	The 2023-24 budget
	Risk Strategy
	Revenue Strategy

	Revenue Budget and Outturn
	What the money is spent on
	Where the money came from
	Schools
	Earmarked Reserves
	Capital
	Insurance Fund
	Pension Fund
	IAS 19
	Current Borrowing & Capital Resources
	East Kent Opportunities

	2023-24 onwards

	The Council's Stewardship, Responsibilities and Financial Management Policies
	Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
	The Council's Responsibilities
	The Corporate Director Finance's Responsibilities

	Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
	Movement in Reserves Statement
	Balance Sheet
	Cash Flow Statement
	Note 1a - Expenditure and Funding Analysis
	Note 1b.  Basis for Preparation/General
	Note 2.  General Accounting Policies (where there is no accompanying note)
	General
	Accruals of Income and Expenditure
	Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
	Accounting for Schools
	Intangible Assets
	Fair Value Measurement of non-financial assets
	Joint Operations
	Accounting for Value Added Tax (VAT)
	Inventories
	Interests in companies and other entities
	Note 3.  Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

	Note 4 - Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies
	Property, Plant and Equipment
	Kent County Council's - Interest in Companies

	Note 5 - Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
	Note 6. Officers Remuneration
	Accounting Policy
	Employee Benefits
	Benefits Payable During Employment
	Termination Benefits
	Post Employment Benefits
	Teachers and former NHS Staff
	Other employees
	Service cost comprising:
	Remeasurement comprising:

	Discretionary Benefits

	Summary of employees receiving remuneration of £50,000 or more during the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024

	Note 7.  Members Allowances
	Note 8. Material Items of Income and Expense
	Accounting Policy
	Exceptional Items
	Material Items of Income and Expense


	Note 9a - Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis
	Note 9b. Segmental Income
	Note 10. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature
	Note 11. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations
	Note 12. Other Operating Expenditure
	Note 13. Financing and investment income and expenditure
	Note 14. Taxation and non-specific grant income
	Collection Fund Accounting Policy

	Note 15. Grant Income
	Accounting Policy
	Government Grants and Contributions


	Note 16.  Property, Plant and Equipment
	Accounting Policy
	Measurement
	Impairment
	Depreciation
	Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
	Gains and Losses on Disposal of Non-Current Assets
	Capital receipts
	Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

	Roads and Other Highways Infrastructure Assets
	Movements on balances

	Valuations of Property, Plant and Equipment carried at current value:
	Basis of valuation
	Surplus Assets Fair Value Hierarchy
	Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements (using Significant Unobservable Inputs) Categorised within Level 3 of the Fair Value Hierarchy
	Quantitative Information about Fair Value Measurement of Surplus Assets using Significant Unobservable Inputs - Level 3
	Valuation Process for Surplus Assets
	Highest & Best Use of Surplus Assets
	Contractual Commitments

	Note 17. - Investment Property
	Accounting Policy
	Fair Value Hierarchy
	Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements (using Significant Unobservable Inputs) Categorised within Level 3 of the Fair Value Hierarchy
	Quantitative Information about Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties using Significant Unobservable Inputs - Level 3
	Valuation Process for Investment Properties
	Highest & Best Use of Investment Properties

	Note 18. Capital Expenditure and Financing
	Accounting Policy
	Government Grants and Contributions
	Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

	Note 19. PFI and Similar Contracts
	Accounting Policy
	Value of PFI assets at each balance sheet date and analysis of movement in those values
	Value of assets
	Finance Lease Liability
	Details of payments to be made under PFI contracts
	6 schools
	Swanscombe Schools
	Westview/Westbrook
	Better Homes, Active Lives
	3 BSF Schools
	Excellent Homes for All

	TOTAL for all PFI Contracts
	Swan Valley and Craylands, 6 Group Schools, and 3 BSF Schools
	Westbrook and Westview
	Gravesham Place
	Better Homes, Active Lives PFI
	Excellent Homes for All PFI


	Note 20. Heritage Assets
	Accounting Policy
	Historic Environment & Monuments
	Artwork
	Archive Collections
	Archaeological & Historical Artefacts
	Civic Regalia

	Note 21. Leases
	Accounting Policy
	Leasing

	The Council as Lessee
	Finance Leases
	Operating Leases

	The Council as Lessor
	Operating Leases

	The Council as Lessee
	Operating Leases


	Note 22. Usable Reserves
	Accounting Policy
	School Reserves

	Note 23. Unusable Reserves
	Revaluation Reserve
	Capital Adjustment Account
	Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
	Pensions Reserve
	Collection Fund Adjustment Account
	Accumulated Absences Account
	Post Employment Account
	Pooled Investment Adjustment Account
	DSG Adjustment Account

	Note 24. Earmarked Reserves
	Vehicles, plant, and equipment (VPE)
	Smoothing Reserves
	Major Projects
	Partnerships
	Grants and External Funds
	Departmental Under/Overspends
	Insurance Reserve
	Public Health reserve
	Special funds

	Note 25. Provisions
	Accounting Policy
	Insurance
	Post Employment
	Accumulated Absences
	Other Provisions

	Note 26 - Amounts owed to the Council by debtors
	Note 27. Amounts owed by the Council to creditors
	Note 28. Cash and Cash Equivalents
	Accounting Policy

	Note 29. Cash Flow - Operating Activities
	Note 30. Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities
	Note 31.  Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities
	Note 32. Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from Financing Activities
	Note 33. Trading Operations
	Note 34. Audit Costs
	Note 35. Dedicated Schools Grant
	Note 36. Related Party Transactions
	Central Government
	Members
	Other Public Bodies (subject to common control by central government)
	Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Council
	Kent County Council also has an interest in the following companies:


	Note 37. Pension Costs
	Note 37a - Pension Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contribution Schemes
	Note 37b. Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
	Other Employees
	Pension Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet
	Reconciliation of Movements in the Fair Value of the Scheme (Plan) Assets:
	Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation):
	Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:
	The percentages of the total Fund held in each asset class were as follows:

	Basis for estimating assets and liabilities
	Highways ex Direct Works DLO Pension Fund
	Commercial Services, Invicta Law Ltd, Cantium Business Solutions Ltd, and The Education People

	Note 38.  Financial Instruments
	Accounting Policy
	Financial liabilities
	Financial assets
	Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
	Expected Credit Loss Model
	Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
	Financial Instruments
	Financial Liabilities
	Financial Assets
	Categories of Financial Instruments

	Financial Instruments Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
	Fair Value of Financial Assets
	Sensitivity of Fair Value Measurement using Significant Unobservable Inputs - Level 3

	Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements (using significant Unobservable Inputs) categorised within Level 3 of the Fair Value Hierarchy
	The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not carried at Fair Value (but for which Fair Value Disclosures are required)
	Fair value hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value

	Note 39. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
	Credit Risk: Treasury Investments
	Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements
	Liquidity risk
	Market risk
	Price Risk
	Foreign Exchange Risk

	Note 40. Contingent Liabilities
	Accounting Policy

	Note 41. Subsidiary Undertakings
	Accounting Policy
	Interests in Companies and Other Entities
	Subsidiary Undertakings

	Note 42. Events after the Balance Sheet Date
	Note 43. Other Notes
	Pension Fund

	Group Accounts
	Group Accounts Introduction
	Basis of Identification of the Group Boundary
	Basis of the Preparation of Group Financial Statements
	Subsidiaries have been consolidated by:
	Global Commercial Services Group Ltd (11735631)

	Global Commercial Services Group Ltd (previously called Kent Holdco Ltd) is a company limited by shares and wholly owned by Kent County Council. It was incorporated  on 19 December 2018 and the principal activity of the company is that of a holding co...
	On 1 October 2019 the shareholding for Kent County Trading Ltd (05242899), Gen2 Property Ltd, Cantium Business Solutions Ltd and the guarantor for EDSECO Ltd were transferred from Kent County Council to Global Commercial Services Group Ltd. Kent Count...
	Arm's Length and Commercial Trading Companies of Kent Holdco Ltd
	Kent County Council's wholly owned companies form a group sitting under Global Commercial Services Ltd (11735631). This company was previously called Kent Holdco Ltd. Global Commercial Services Ltd was incorporated in 2004 and is the immediate parent ...

	Group Accounting Policies
	Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
	Group Movement in Reserves Statement
	Group Balance Sheet
	Group Cash Flow Statement
	Note G1 - Critical Judgements
	Note G2 - Reconciliation of Group CIES
	Note G3 - Tax Expenses of Group Entities
	Supporting the Balance Sheet
	Note G4 - Debtors
	Note G5 - Creditors
	Note G6 - Cash & Cash Equivalents
	Note G7 - Reserves
	Note G8 - Financial Instruments
	Categories of Financial Instruments

	Supporting the Cash Flow
	Note G9. Cash Flow - Group Operating Activities
	Note G10 - Group Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities
	Note G11 - Group Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities
	Pension Fund Accounts
	1. Description of the Fund
	General
	Membership
	Funding
	Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by active members of the fund in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and ranged from 5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the financi...
	Benefits

	2. Basis of preparation
	The Statement of Accounts has been prepared on a going concern basis.  The vast majority of employers in the pension scheme are scheduled bodies that have secure public sector funding, and therefore there should be no doubt in their ability to continu...
	3. Summary of significant accounting policies
	Fund Account - revenue recognition
	a) Contribution income
	"Normal contributions, both from the members and from the employers, are accounted for on an accruals basis at the percentage rate recommended by the fund actuary in the payroll period to which they relate. Employers' deficit funding contributions are...
	Employers’ augmentation contributions and pensions strain contributions are accounted for in the period in which the liability arises.  Any amount due in year but unpaid will be classed as a current financial asset."
	b) Transfers to and from other schemes
	c) Investment income

	Dividends, distributions, interest, and stock lending income on securities have been accounted for on an accruals basis and where appropriate from the date quoted as ex-dividend (XD).  Changes in the net market value of investments are recognised as i...
	Fund Account - expense items
	d) Benefits payable
	e) Taxation
	f) Management expenses

	Net Assets Statement
	g) Financial assets
	h) Freehold and Leasehold Properties
	i) Derivatives
	j) Foreign currency transactions

	k) Cash and cash equivalents
	l) Financial liabilities
	m) Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits
	n) Contingent assets and liabilities
	o) Pooling expenses
	p) Additional voluntary contributions

	4. Critical judgements in applying accounting policy
	5. Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty
	6. Events after the reporting date
	7.  Contributions receivable
	8. Transfers in from other pension funds
	9.  Benefits payable
	10. Payments to and on account of leavers
	11.  Management expenses
	12. Investment management expenses
	12a. Investment management fees
	13. Summary of income from investments
	14. Property income and expenditure
	15. Investments
	15a. Reconciliation of movements in investments and derivatives
	15b.  Analysis of derivative contracts
	Objectives and policy for holding derivatives
	Open forward currency contracts
	15c.  Property holdings
	15d. Investments analysed by fund manager
	15e. Single investments exceeding 5% of net assets available for benefits
	15f. Stock lending

	16. Financial instruments
	16a. Classification of financial instruments
	16b. Net gains and losses on financial instruments
	17. Valuation of assets and liabilities carried at fair value
	Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3
	Prior Period Adjustment



	17a. Fair Value Hierarchy
	Level 1
	Level 2
	Level 3

	17b. Reconciliation of fair value measurements within level 3
	18. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments
	Risk and risk management
	a) Market risk
	Other price risk
	Other price risk - sensitivity analysis
	Interest rate risk
	Interest rate risk - sensitivity analysis
	Currency risk
	Currency risk - sensitivity analysis
	b) Credit risk
	c) Liquidity risk

	Refinancing risk

	19.  Funding arrangements
	20.  Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits
	21. Current assets
	22.  Current liabilities
	23.  Additional voluntary contributions
	24.  Related party transactions
	Key management personnel
	25. Contingent liabilities
	'The Fund is aware of the ‘Virgin Media Ltd v NTL Pension Trustees II Ltd (and others)’ case and considers that there is potential for the outcome of this case to have an impact on the Kent Pension Fund. The case affects defined benefit schemes that p...
	As a result, there may be a further liability to the Kent Pension Fund for benefits that were reduced by previous amendments, if those amendments prove invalid (i.e. were made without obtaining s37 confirmation). The Government Actuary’s Department is...
	26. Contractual commitments
	27. Contingent assets
	Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Kent County Council
	Report on the audit of the financial statements
	Opinion on financial statements
	Basis for opinion
	Conclusions relating to going concern
	Other information
	Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice
	Matters on which we are required to report by exception
	Responsibilities of the Authority and the Corporate Director Finance
	Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

	Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
	Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
	Responsibilities of the Authority
	Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

	Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in certification of completion of the audit
	Use of our report


	Glossary of terms


	8 External Audit - Audit Findings for the Kent Pensions Fund
	Kent Pension Fund Audit Findings Report 2023-24
	Slide 1: Audit Findings (ISA260) Report for Kent Pension Fund
	Slide 2: Dear Members of the Governance and Audit Committee,
	Slide 3
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 6:  2. Financial Statements
	Slide 7: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements:  other communication requirements
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 17: 3. Independence considerations
	Slide 18: 3. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 19
	Slide 20: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 21: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 22: C. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 23: C. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 24: C. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 25: C. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 26: D. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 27: D. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 28: D. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 29: E. National context
	Slide 30: F. Draft Audit Opinion  
	Slide 31: F. Draft Audit opinion continued  
	Slide 32: F. Draft Audit opinion continued  
	Slide 33: F. Draft Audit opinion continued  
	Slide 34


	10 Treasury Management Mid-Year Update
	Appendix 1 - Half-year Report 2024-25
	Investments as at 30 September 2024

	Appendix 2 - Glossary of Terms 2024-25
	Appendix 3 - TMG meeting note 14 November 2024




